
 

 

 

Merton Council 

Sustainable Communities 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel  
 
Date: 11 November 2014 

Time: 7.15 pm 

Venue: Committee rooms D & E - Merton Civic Centre, London Road, Morden SM4 
5DX 

AGENDA 

Page Number 

 

1  Declarations of Interest   

2  Apologies for absence   

3  Minutes of the meeting held on 16th September 
2014  

1 - 8 

4  Minutes of the special meeting held on 29th 
September 2014  

9 - 46 

5  Matters arising from the Minutes   

6  Adult Skills and Employability Task Group - 
Progress Update  

47 - 66 

7  Morden Leisure Centre - Update  67 - 90 

8  20 Mph Zones and limits  91 - 232 

9  Business Plan Update 2015-2019 (appendix to 
follow)  

233 - 
370 

10  Performance Monitoring - Verbal Update  371 - 
372 

11  Co-option  373 - 
380 

12  Work Programme 2014/15  381 - 
390 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This is a public meeting – members of the public are very welcome to attend. 
The meeting room will be open to members of the public from 7.00 p.m. 



 

 

 
For more information about the work of this and other overview and scrutiny panels, 
please telephone 020 8545 4035 or e-mail scrutiny@merton.gov.uk. Alternatively, 
visit www.merton.gov.uk/scrutiny 
 
Press enquiries: press@merton.gov.uk or telephone 020 8545 3483 or 4093 
 
Email alerts: Get notified when agendas are published 
www.merton.gov.uk/council/committee.htm?view=emailer 
 



 

 

Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel Membership 
 
Councillors: 
Russell Makin (Chair) 
Stan Anderson 
Ross Garrod 
Janice Howard 
Abigail Jones 
John Sargeant 
Imran Uddin 
David Dean 
Substitute Members: 
Tobin Byers 
David Chung 
Edward Foley 
Daniel Holden 
Abdul Latif 

Note on declarations of interest 

Members are advised to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any matter to be considered at the 
meeting.  If a pecuniary interest is declared they should withdraw from the meeting room during the whole of 
the consideration of that mater and must not participate in any vote on that matter.  If  members consider 
they should not participate because of a non-pecuniary interest which may give rise to a perception of bias, 
they should declare this, .withdraw and not participate in consideration of the item.  For further advice please 
speak with the Assistant Director of Corporate Governance. 

What is Overview and Scrutiny? 
Overview and Scrutiny describes the way Merton’s scrutiny councillors hold the Council’s 
Executive (the Cabinet) to account to make sure that they take the right decisions for the Borough. 
Scrutiny panels also carry out reviews of Council services or issues to identify ways the Council 
can improve or develop new policy to meet the needs of local people.  From May 2008, the 
Overview & Scrutiny Commission and Panels have been restructured and the Panels renamed to 
reflect the Local Area Agreement strategic themes. 
 
Scrutiny’s work falls into four broad areas: 
 

⇒ Call-in: If three (non-executive) councillors feel that a decision made by the Cabinet is 
inappropriate they can ‘call the decision in’ after it has been made to prevent the decision 
taking immediate effect. They can then interview the Cabinet Member or Council Officers and 
make recommendations to the decision-maker suggesting improvements. 

⇒ Policy Reviews: The panels carry out detailed, evidence-based assessments of Council 
services or issues that affect the lives of local people. At the end of the review the panels issue 
a report setting out their findings and recommendations for improvement and present it to 
Cabinet and other partner agencies. During the reviews, panels will gather information, 
evidence and opinions from Council officers, external bodies and organisations and members 
of the public to help them understand the key issues relating to the review topic. 

⇒ One-Off Reviews: Panels often want to have a quick, one-off review of a topic and will ask 
Council officers to come and speak to them about a particular service or issue before making 
recommendations to the Cabinet.  

⇒ Scrutiny of Council Documents: Panels also examine key Council documents, such as the 
budget, the Business Plan and the Best Value Performance Plan. 

 
Scrutiny panels need the help of local people, partners and community groups to make sure that 
Merton delivers effective services. If you think there is something that scrutiny should look at, or 
have views on current reviews being carried out by scrutiny, let us know.  
 
For more information, please contact the Scrutiny Team on 020 8545 4035 or by e-mail on 
scrutiny@merton.gov.uk. Alternatively, visit www.merton.gov.uk/scrutiny 



This page is intentionally left blank



All minutes are draft until agreed at the next meeting of the committee/panel.  To find out the date of the next 
meeting please check the calendar of events at your local library or online at www.merton.gov.uk/committee. 

 

1 

SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 
16 SEPTEMBER 2014 

(19.15 - 21:25) 

PRESENT Councillor Russell Makin (in the Chair), 
Councillor Stan Anderson, Councillor Daniel Holden 
(substitute for David Dean), Councillor Ross Garrod, 
Councillor Abigail Jones, Councillor Imran Uddin, 
Councillor John Sargeant, Councillor Janice Howard, 
Councillor Abdul Latif (observing)  

 
 

ALSO PRESENT: Councillor Andrew Judge, Cabinet Member for Environmental 
Regeneration and Sustainability 
 
James McGinlay (Head of Sustainable Communities), Paul 
McGarry (Future Merton Manager), Cormac Stokes (Head of 
Street Scene and Waste), Damian Hemmings (Climate 
Change Officer), Sara Williams (Regeneration, Investment and 
Renewal Officer), Rebecca Redman (Scrutiny Officer) 

 
1.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
None. 
 

2.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies were received from Chris Lee (Director of Environment and 
Regeneration), John Hill (Head of Public Protection), Councillor David Dean. 

 
3.  MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 24TH JUNE 2014  

 
Panel agreed the Minutes as a true record of the meeting. 

 
4.  MATTERS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES  

 
None. 
 

5.  CLIMATE CHANGE AND GREEN DEAL TASK GROUP – EXECUTIVE 
RESPONSE AND ACTION PLAN 
  
Damian Hemmings outlined the action plan to deliver the agreed 
recommendations resulting from the task group review of climate change and 
the green deal, undertaken by the Panel as part of their 2013/14 work 
programme. The Panel were informed that the implementation of the 
recommendations was sequential. 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



2 

Councillor Stan Anderson asked about the source of funding for 
implementation of recommendation 4. Damian Hemmings confirmed that it 
would be part grant funded and part match funded.  
 
Councillor Janice Howard asked about energy improvements in homes 
supplied by CHMP. Damian Hemmings explained that the provision and 
proposals for energy improvements in housing stock differs between providers. 
The council is looking at where there is scope for renewable energy generation 
in discussion with CHMP.  
 
Councillor Stan Anderson asked if consultation would be undertaken with 
residents in relation to recommendation 4. Damian Hemmings stated that this 
would happen in due course but that the council are looking at the legal 
framework in the first instance as this is a longer term programme of work.  
 
Damian Hemmings explained that the council look at a range of energy 
improvements but that Solar PV is the council’s main focus because it is the 
lowest maintenance/most effective technology at present. In addition, the 
council is exploring district heating networks.  
 
Councillor Daniel Holden asked how many buildings had CHP. Damian 
Hemmings informed the Panel that heat mapping had been undertaken and 
that Morden and Colliers Wood had been identified as key areas to take this 
forward. Members heard that there is also CHP in the civic centre. 
  
RESOLVED: The Panel agreed to receive an update every 6 months on 
progress with delivery of the action plan. 

 
6.  FEEDBACK ON ATTENDANCE AT YOUTH PARLIAMENT (15TH 

SEPTEMBER 2014) 
  
Members were unable to attend the meeting of the Youth Parliament. 
 
RESOLVED: It was agreed that Members would attend the next available 
meeting of the Youth Parliament to feedback on the items selected for the 
Panels work programme.  
 

7.  PERFORMANCE MONITORING 
  
Cormac Stokes provided the Panel with the July Performance Report. 
Members asked questions on the following indicators: 
 
Councillor Russell Makin asked if there was a backlog regarding SP384. 
Cormac Stokes confirmed that John Hill was responsible for this area and that 
he would ask for a response to be forwarded to the Panel.  

 
Councillor Abigail Jones asked if the TMT issues and delivery of parking 
permits had been addressed. Cormac Stokes agreed to ask Paul Walsh to 
provide a response to the Panel.  

Page 2



3 

 
Councillor John Sargeant asked if the improvement in recycling (SP065) was 
an indicator that the economy was recovering and if the 39% target was high 
enough. Cormac Stokes explained that this was not indicative of recovery and 
that 39% was set as a proportion of overall waste collected. Furthermore that 
steady levels of recycling were being maintained. Councillor Andrew Judge 
added that the levels of recycling of household waste were better in Merton 
than in other boroughs in London. However recycling figures have reached a 
plateau. The Council are working with the London Recycling Board to identify 
different ways of promoting recycling. 

 
Councillor Imran Uddin asked about the income from planning applications. 
James McGinlay explained that the income from building and development 
control is separate to planning. Furthermore, a number of planning 
applications are made through prior approval and the council do not receive an 
income for this. There is a need for further work on marketing to increase 
income by building control as they share the market with the private sector. 

 
Councillor Abigail Jones asked if there had been an increase in fly tipping. 
Cormac Stokes explained that there was an increase in fly tipping through the 
summer months. There was a similar increase this time last year. The council 
are trying to reduce waiting times for collecting household bulky waste to 
discourage fly tipping. 

 
Councillor Abdul Latif asked about the issues concerning private and public 
land and fly tipping and the jurisdiction of the council in terms of collection. 
Cormac Stokes explained that he would expect the council to pick up waste on 
the public highway. 

 
Councillor Stan Anderson asked about sickness levels in the waste service. 
Cormac Stokes explained that this was a major problem in front line services. 
This is being dealt with in the best way possible through council’s procedures.  

 
Councillor Daniel Holden asked if resources were appropriately allocated in 
terms of dealing with the volume of planning applications. James McGinlay 
confirmed this to be the case.  

 
Councillor Daniel Holden asked about the levels of waste being sent to landfill 
and costs (SP067). Cormac Stokes explained that all residual waste was dealt 
with through a contract under partnership. The energy recovery facility 
generates the same costs to the council as landfill. It is down to the contractor 
in terms of where this waste is sent. 
  
RESOLVED:  Panel noted the performance report.  
 

8.  WORK PROGRAMME 2014/15 
 

Page 3



4 

RESOLVED: The Panel agreed to remove the Welfare Reform Act from the 
work programme and to attend the 25 November 2014 meeting of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Commission to hear the financial resilience item.  
 

9.       ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 
 

Sara Williams introduced the report and talked through the six components for 
growth that now made up the strategy, which would be delivered over a 3 year 
period.  

 
Councillor Russell Makin asked about the provision to develop housing estates 
on sites previously used for business. James McGinlay explained that all 
developments still have to go through the planning development process and 
that all applications are assessed against the Council’s planning policies. 
 
Councillor Imran Uddin asked what discretion the council can exercise in 
judging whether or not these applications meet the relevant criteria. James 
McGinlay explained that applications are assessed against the Council’s 
development management policies and there is little scope for the council on 
changing the criteria they are assessed against. 

 
Councillor Ross Garrod asked what improvements had been made to shop 
fronts/parades as stated within the strategy. Sara Williams explained that one 
of the main improvements had been around lighting as it made people feel 
safer in those areas. There has also been painting and art work put up to 
make these areas more aesthetically pleasing. Councillor Ross Garrod added 
that there were still homeless people sleeping overnight in the car park behind 
Iceland and that there were still some issues regarding cleanliness and  
overflowing bins and safety in that area.  
 
James McGinlay added that the council recognise this and are taking a cross 
departmental approach to talking to businesses about some of these issues 
along with partners, for example, the police and housing associations. The 
Panel heard that a meeting was scheduled with partners to discuss these 
problems and agree a way forward.  
 
Councillor Abigail Jones asked what consultation had been undertaken as part 
of the refresh of the strategy and to advertise this. Sara Williams confirmed 
that the department had run a campaign online and placed hard copies of 
documents in libraries and other public buildings. Paul McGarry added that a 
lot of work had been done as part of the shop front improvement programme 
and that there was a high uptake on Merton High Street on some of the 
improvements. The council are trying to take a place based approach to this 
work. 
 
Councillor Ross Garrod asked if there was a way of measuring the direct work 
of the council in terms of the investment secured or people employed as a 
result of delivery of the plan. Councillor Ross Garrod added that there may be 
other factors that have resulted in reduced unemployment and asked how the 

Page 4



5 

council were identifying these to determine the extent of value for money of 
certain initiatives being rolled out. 
 
Sara Williams explained that the council works closely with the job centre but 
that cost benefit analysis is not undertaken. Sara Williams also agreed to 
circulate the most recent unemployment figures.  

 
RESOLVED: The Panel noted the report and asked for a progress update in 6 
months time. 

 
10.    INWARD INVESTMENT STRATEGY            

 
This was an exempt agenda item; however, none of the following discussion 
includes exempt information contained within that report.  

 
Paul McGarry welcomed comments on the draft inward investment strategy 
before its consideration by Cabinet in October 2014. The strategy aimed to 
carry out activities that would promote the borough as a great place for 
businesses to locate. Research was commissioned from Colliers International to 
look at the opportunities for the borough and how the council might capitalise on 
the Wimbledon brand to support economic buoyancy in the borough.  The 
council also consulted on what attracted investors to the borough. This strategy 
is also linked to the council’s regeneration and economic growth programmes 
which the council aims to bring together. Cabinet will agree the strategy and the 
funding to support its delivery in October 2014.  
 
Councillor Andrew Judge noted the location issues associated with attracting 
investment. However, there was a comprehensive regeneration of Morden town 
centre planned and an improved retail offer was part of this. There were also 
opportunities to capitalise on Merton Abbey Mills and the Wimbledon School of 
Arts to expand the creative sector in Merton. A number of graduates for 
example were looking to start creative businesses in the borough and Merton 
should facilitate this.  
 
Councillor Andrew Judge also raised the opportunities presented by Cross rail 2 
for Merton to attract investment.  
 
Councillor Abigail Jones expressed her concerns about the focus on Wimbledon 
in the strategy and asked if other areas had been considered. Paul McGarry 
explained that there is a demand for office space in Wimbledon but that they will 
also look at other areas an how to attract investment. 
 
Councillor John Sargeant asked if the actions to deliver the strategy had been 
shared with residents in Wimbledon and if the impact of attracting investment on 
the quality of residential areas in the town centre had been considered. 
Furthermore, had officers considered how to manage the potential disruption 
this might cause?  
 

Page 5



6 

James McGinlay confirmed that the council had spoken to the business 
community. There was also a Future Wimbledon Conference and Future Merton 
Competition to raise awareness, consult and seek ideas.  
 
Paul McGarry added that delivery of the regeneration programme also impacted 
as the council do not own a lot of the land that could be used and that 
consultation is underway to find out what the appetite is for such development. 
For example, a recent consultation programme asked what Wimbledon should 
look like and responses have just been received which will raise debate about 
plans for the area and inform planning.  
 
Councillor Andrew Judge added that the master planning phase would take 
place after the competition. Wimbledon also had other selling points such as 
being very well connected in terms of transport links that they would wish to 
highlight.  
 
Councillor Janice Howard added that investment should also be made into 
improving the road network as we cannot assume people will get on public 
transport. James McGinlay agreed that the council would need to look at this 
and the supporting infrastructure when looking at attracting investment.  
 
Councillor Ross Garrod added that he was excited about the proposals and 
asked if timescales for the programme would be impacted by waiting on the 
outcome of the crossrail decision. Councillor Ross Garrod also asked what 
scope there was for the council to encourage and allow more office 
developments. 
 
Paul McGarry explained that the council did not need to wait for the Crossrail 
decision and that there have been discussions with landowners to identify sites 
for office developments.  
 
James McGinlay added that Merton council is an enabler and as planning 
authority they need to determine what the right kind of developments is. Plans 
will inevitably change and once the council has engaged with prospective 
investors, they need to be clear that they will follow through on them. The 
council also competes with other boroughs and central London in terms of 
attracting investment.  
 
Councillor Russell Makin asked if the council had any say on crossrail 2. James 
McGinlay confirmed that the council have been consulted on route options.  
 
Councillor Daniel Holden asked how many sites would be protected linked to 
the Crossrail 2 development and stated that the council should be careful not to 
let office space encroach on residential areas. 
 
Paul McGarry explained that north of Wimbledon station had been safeguarded. 

 
RESOLVED:  Panel noted the report. 

 

Page 6



7 

 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



All minutes are draft until agreed at the next meeting of the committee/panel.  To find out the date of the next 
meeting please check the calendar of events at your local library or online at www.merton.gov.uk/committee. 

 

1 

SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 
29 SEPTEMBER 2014 (SPECIAL MEETING) 

(19.15 – 21:45) 

PRESENT Councillor Russell Makin (in the Chair), 
Councillor Stan Anderson, Councillor David Dean, 
Councillor Ross Garrod, Councillor Tobin Byers (substitute 
for Abigail Jones), Councillor Imran Uddin, 
Councillor John Sargeant, Councillor Janice Howard, 
Councillor Abdul Latif (observing)  

 
 

ALSO PRESENT: Councillor Nick Draper (Cabinet Member for Community and 

Culture), Pauline Ford (CHMP), Paul Quinn (CHMP), Mark 

Anderson (CHMP), Jenny Marshall (CHMP), Steve Langley 

(Head of Housing Needs and Strategy), Steve Webb 

(Business Support and Relationship Manager), James 

McGinlay (Head of Sustainable Communities), Rebecca 

Redman (Scrutiny Officer), Councillor Dennis Pearce, 

Councillor Suzanne Grocott 

 
1.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
None. 
 

2.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies were received from Chris Lee (Director of Environment and 
Regeneration).  

 
3.  OVERVIEW OF STOCK TRANSFER AND UPDATE ON DELIVERY OF 

COMMITMENTS 
 

The presentation given by Pauline Ford (CHMP) is available on the council’s 

website. The presentation covered: 

• Delivering on the promises within the stock transfer agreement; 

• Response to Welfare Reform; 

• Projects such as increasing employment and skills, tackling hoarding 

and community schemes delivered through the community fund  

Councillor David Dean asked about overcrowding and the numbers that need 

re-housing as a result of this. Steve Langley confirmed approximately 1200 

CHMP residents requested a transfer to alternative accommodation which 

could be as a result of medical factors, downsizing or overcrowding. 

Agenda Item 4

Page 9



2 

Councillor David Dean asked why there were so many people on the housing 

list. Pauline Ford explained this was due to a range of issues however, homes 

displayed as much under occupation as overcrowding. The issue therefore 

becomes how to solve a range of housing issues which are very complex.   

Councillor David Dean asked if there should be an increase in sheltered 

accommodation for people who are in need and what short and long term 

estimates are for residents requiring this type of accommodation. Pauline Ford 

stated that sheltered accommodation was not the answer to rehousing older 

people and that instead this should be based around choice, and offering a 

range of solutions for local communities, enabling some to remain in their 

homes and offering access to high quality accommodation that would aid their 

mobility. Pauline Ford did not have this information at the meeting and agreed 

to forward these figures to the Panel after the meeting. 

Councillor Stan Anderson asked if lack of housing was due to a lack of land 

available for new properties to be built, or due to a lack of building. Pauline 

Ford stated that land availability was a factor and that, at the time of transfer, 

analysis was undertaken to look at opportunities regarding land availability and 

how to provide value for money and deliver a sustainable scheme. However, 

land supply in the borough was limited.  

The following questions submitted by Councillor Suzanne Grocott were asked 

by Councillor Janice Howard and responses received during the meeting: 

• Do CHMP follow prioritisation criteria in determining whether, and if so 
when, repairs should be undertaken. 

 

• What is the expected turnaround time for tenants' repairs to be 
undertaken 

 

• What steps are needed to evict disruptive tenants?  Dundonald 
Councillors have been corresponding with CHMP for almost a year now 
about a noisy, disruptive tenant living in a quiet residential street in our 
ward. MPH has agreed that the tenant is unsuitable for the property, but 
seem unable to do anything it.  

 

Councillor Ross Garrod asked about void housing where the tenant has 

moved out and the property is put back onto the housing register, and what the 

turn around time was for repairing these properties to make them available to 

residents. Pauline Ford explained that the amount of time required to repair 

these homes in Merton is quite extensive and that the average cost of 

repairing a void property ranges from £5000 to £7000, but costs can increase 

dependent on the extent of the repair needed. CHMP work with the provider to 

Page 10



3 

ensure that there are clear timescales and that properties move through the 

system quickly. Yet some properties need an extraordinary amount of work.  

Councillor Ross Garrod asked why properties are allowed to go back on to the 

housing register when they are not adequate for residents to move into. 

Pauline Ford stated that they do not go on to the register until they are ready. 

Steve Langley explained the process regarding nomination rights to the Panel 

and how they work with CHMP to minimise delays. 

Councillor John Sargeant asked about tenant scrutiny and if the people 

involved are the same as the resident advocates. Pauline Ford explained that 

the regulator expects there to be a process in place for co-regulation with 

residents and this is where the scrutiny process has come in. Residents 

received training to undertake this role. Councillor John Sargeant asked if the 

panel could see the tenant panel’s final reports. Pauline Ford agreed to share 

these with the Panel. 

Councillor Janice Howard asked what steps had been taken to evict disruptive 

tenants. Pauline Ford explained that there is an Anti Social Behaviour team 

who work with neighbourhood wardens and a range of tools are in place to 

monitor any issues. This team also work closely with environmental health and 

adult social care to establish if there are any issue regarding vulnerability. The 

burden of proof for eviction is substantial in such cases and human rights need 

to be taken into consideration. CHMP can evict but need the appropriate 

evidence base.  

Councillor Russell Makin asked if ambience reports could be shared with the 

Panel which are compiled by wardens in certain wards. Pauline Ford agreed to 

look into this. 

Councillor David Dean asked if CHMP had a need to raise funding and if they 

were able, as an organisation, to ask for funding from the Mayor’s office. 

Pauline Ford explained that funding was sought, yet the levels available to 

councils and housing associations to support housing need had decreased 

over the years. The majority of the work undertaken to date to improve 

housing stock had been funded by CHMP.  

RESOLVED: Panel noted the presentation and asked for an update on 

performance at their March 2015 meeting. 

 
4.  REGENERATION PROGRAMME 

 
The presentation given by Paul Quinn (CHMP) is available on the council’s 
website. The presentation covered: 
 

Page 11



4 

• Rationale for the programme; 

• Scale of the project; 

• Consultation and engagement undertaken; and 

• Next steps 
 
Councillor Stan Anderson asked where residents were placed while 

regeneration works were underway and if residents had a right to return to 

their properties once complete. Paul Quinn explained that there are a number 

of options available to CHMP in how they handle this process. One option 

could be to build homes first on empty land which would allow people to move 

in and then free up other buildings to regenerate the remaining stock. CHMP 

are also looking to acquire sites near estates to build homes ahead of the 

regeneration scheme and have held discussions with council officers on this. 

This means some homes would be available for people to live in during this 

time on the estates, or as close as possible to these estates. He added that 

the right to return is reflected in the regeneration master plan, which is in its 

first drafting stage, and takes account of peoples housing needs. CHMP would 

encourage resident’s right to return.  

Councillor David Dean asked what the discrepancy was between cabinet, 

CHMP and residents about the types of homes they wanted as part of the 

scheme resulting from the consultation undertaken, in particular with regard to 

density. Councillor David Dean asked if we would see something other than 

tower blocks and a design that would look relevant in the future in the plan. 

Paul Quinn explained that planning would take place based on what they think 

is the right mix of properties and also in response to consultation outcomes. 

Density will be considered as part of the master planning.  

Councillor Russell Makin asked CHMP to ensure that they consulted the group 

leaders on the master plan when available.  

Councillor Janice Howard asked about the staged offer of market value plus 

10% being offered to any residents that wish to leave sooner. How confident 

are you that you have the funds for all that may wish to take this option. In 

addition, if residents move out and they are offered right to return, will the cost 

be the same value CHMP paid to them when they moved out ahead of the 

regeneration scheme. Paul Quinn explained that the additional 10% is to 

reflect that their lives are going to be disturbed with the work being undertaken 

but if they leave early then this will not be the case. With regard to buy back, 

when properties come to the market, the values of peoples existing homes will 

have increased and therefore will be valued at that time. If people wanted to 

buy back and the price of the property was higher then CHMP would provide 

shared equity options. Options will be explored with homeowners as part of the 

Page 12



5 

consultation programme to support residents to buy and remain in their 

homes. Workshops will be run on this during the winter. 

Councillor Janice Howard added that there is still an underlying concern that 

when residents do buy back it will only be 80% of the property they previously 

owned outright. 

Councillor Tobin Byers asked if all three schemes were financially dependent 

on one another and if they needed to come forward at the same time. 

Councillor Tobin Byers also asked how CHMP would make a decision to 

proceed. Paul Quinn explained that High Path estate was key to the 

regeneration and that developing East fields and Ravensbury on their own was 

not a viable option.  

Paul Quinn explained that CHMP were seeking resident’s views to get an 

indication of how people are reacting to various types of homes that could be 

built and on the financial offer. CHMP have also taken residents to other sites 

where regeneration was underway to show them that it is not as disruptive as 

they might imagine.   

Councillor Russell Makin asked if the regeneration on all three sites would be 

carried out over 10 years. Paul Quinn confirmed this.  

Councillor Ross Garrod said that residents didn’t feel like they were being 

heard as part of the current consultation and asked for more detail on the 

consultation process planned for autumn/winter.  Paul Quinn confirmed that a 

range of consultation methods and approaches would be employed as part of 

the consultation programme. In addition, despite careful design residents can 

feel that they are not being heard.  

Councillor Ross Garrod expressed his concerns with when this consultation 

was being undertaken and how this might impact on the response rate. Paul 

Quinn confirmed that CHMP regeneration team would be going door to door 

and producing written materials on the master plan, house types etc. Paul 

Quinn added that they will be engaging with hard to reach groups also and 

testing out their offer as part of the workshops mentioned earlier.  

Councillor Ross Garrod asked what the percentage contact rate was for this 

consultation programme. Paul Quinn explained that previous consultation 

campaigns have engaged 80% of residents. Also there have been lots of 

consultation events during summer and active residents groups have been 

keen to share ideas and participate so far.  

Councillor John Sargeant stated residents associations don’t feel this 

consultation has been as robust as it could be or that many have been 

Page 13



6 

engaged in the events run by CHMP during the summer. In addition, he asked 

if the survey Merton Council was undertaking would cut across that being 

undertaken by CHMP. Paul Quinn confirmed that CHMP had held more events 

with experts and met with customers on a number of occasions to seek their 

feedback during the summer and that there had been a good turnout. Yet 

there have been no plans to be able to share with residents until this stage 

which will now be consulted on. Furthermore, Paul Quinn explained that there 

wasn’t an overlap as the local authority was consulting on the planning 

framework which CHMP planning applications will be considered against, at 

that stage.  

Councillor John Sargeant asked about finance and selling back homes to 

existing residents and what impact this might have on resident’s ability to 

return to their homes. Paul Quinn confirmed that the sale values for properties 

would be determined at a much later date and were not known as yet. But that 

CHMP would produce a scheme that was as equitable and fair as possible. 

The aim was ultimately to offer a better quality of home to residents. 

RESOLVED: Panel noted the presentation and asked that they be consulted 

on future developments in the regeneration programme. 

 
5.  REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE PROGRAMME 

  
The presentation given by Mark Anderson (CHMP) is available on the council’s 
website. The presentation covered: 
 

• Repairs and maintenance undertaken since the housing stock transfer; 

• Objectives of the service; 

• Achievements; 

• Challenges going forward; and 

• Investment in the service 
 
Councillor Tobin Byers asked if interest in the regeneration programme at High 

Path Estate was linked to resident’s experience of the repairs programme, 

especially if this was negative. Furthermore, if surveyors are visiting properties 

but work is not completed then what percentage of work is undertaken based 

on these visits. Mark Anderson confirmed that he had heard that resident’s 

have had many visits from different surveyors. CHMP needs to plan so that 

one survey covering a number of aspects is covered in one visit. In terms of 

day to day response to repairs, one of the downsides has been around staff 

retention given where the team is located and other places offering a higher 

rate of pay. A fixed stable team is currently in place and hopes are that they 

will become permanent.  

Page 14



7 

Councillor Ross Garrod asked if the staffing structure for repairs was working 

as the team were accountable to the regional manager and the rest of the 

operation was accountable to the managing director in Morden. How many 

Housing Associations have this set up and how well is it working.  

Mark Anderson explained that as the regional director for property service 

repairs he spent 3 days a week in Morden and was closely involved and that 

there was a customer service centre in operation under Wayne Hainsworth.  

There is daily dialogue between the two posts. However, going forward they 

will consider the effectiveness of the structure.  

Councillor Ross Garrod added that communication seemed to be a problem 

between teams and with stakeholders and that perhaps there was a disjointed 

approach to resolving issues. Mark Anderson agreed that historically it has 

been disjointed but that changes have been made to address this.  

Councillor John Sargeant asked about staff retention and performance and 

average length of service. Furthermore, what processes had been adopted to 

ensure that issues are not missed?  

Councillor John Sargeant also asked for an update on allegations about Keep 

Moat in the local press. Mark Anderson stated that they had reviewed 

processes and staff performance and that previous communication issues 

have been acknowledged and dealt with. However, the focus of the team has 

always been on supporting the customer and less on the team responsible.  

Mark Anderson added that there was an investigation underway regarding 

Keep Moat and informed the Panel that there is an independent audit every 6 

months on the contract. This issue is being dealt with by the Executive Director 

of Governance. The results from the audit should be available to the CHMP 

Board shortly.  

Councillor Stan Anderson asked if homeowners could go to other providers for 

repairs and maintenance. Mark Anderson explained that repairs relate to a 

common part of the building and that they encourage repairs to be requested 

through them as the main provider.  

Councillor Stan Anderson asked if there was a price issue and if going 

elsewhere and getting it cheaper was the driver for residents. Mark Anderson 

explained that this was discouraged as there could be issues with warranty, 

quality of materials etc. CHMP has the responsibility for repairs and also for 

keeping a check on what repairs are being undertaken which would be difficult 

if other providers were involved. 

Page 15



8 

Councillor Janice Howard explained that residents were still not happy and 

expressed her concerns about Keep Moat. Mark Anderson clarified that they 

were aware that 15% of residents were not satisfied and that this needed to be 

addressed.  

Councillor Dennis Pearce asked about repairs and independent assessments 

being made on flats for planned maintenance and why there are no 

independent assessments undertaken which can then be shared with 

residents so that they know what they are paying for. Councillor Dennis 

Pearce also asked how the decent homes figures were calculated as residents 

are referred to the council to seek funding for new kitchens etc. via 

occupational therapy. How is this justified, shouldn’t CHMP be funding this? 

Mark Anderson explained that legislation does not require that an independent 

survey be carried out. However, CHMP have engaged an external consultant 

to review all works identified and a report will be produced and discussed with 

residents. The scoping is undertaken in advance of the next financial year and 

works are carried out in the subsequent year.  

With regard to adaptations, CHMP has the right to engage Occupational 

Therapists when people have disabilities. It was confirmed that adaptations 

were not funded by the council.  All maintenance and repairs are funded by 

CHMP. In terms of the decent homes standards, a survey was undertaken pre 

transfer which stood at 76% of homes were classed as non-decent and this 

figure has since increased.  

Councillor Abdul Latif asked about density and size of rooms in new properties 

and what consultation will be invited on this. Paul Quinn explained that there 

will be a range of types of housing and also on size and height. These will 

meet the London Space Standards. There will be a higher density required but 

not beyond the size/scale of the tower blocks we currently have.   

RESOLVED: Panel noted the presentation.  

 
6.  DISCUSSION OF PROPOSED SCRUTINY TASK GROUP ON HOUSING 

SUPPLY 
  
The Panel discussed undertaking a task group review of housing supply. The 
Panel agreed to conduct the review and that the scope for this review is 
produced and presented for approval to the next available Panel meeting.  
 
RESOLVED: Membership of the task group agreed: Councillor Ross Garrod 
(Chair), Imran Uddin, Dennis Pearce, Abdul Latif, Janice Howard. 

 

Page 16



Circle Housing Merton Priory
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

29 September 2014 

Pauline Ford: Regional Operations Director, Circle Housing 

Paul Quinn: Director of Regeneration, Circle Housing

Mark Anderson: Director, Property Services (South), Circle Housing 

P
age 17



Circle Housing Merton Priory

Pauline Ford: Regional Operations Director, 

Circle Housing 

P
age 18



Delivering Our Promises

• 91 promises to deliver in first five years 

• 80 promises delivered /11 In progress

• Neighbourhood renewal obligations under the 

transfer agreement being delivered

P
age 19



Delivering our Promises

• Resident Involvement – range and depth increased

• Resident Scrutiny – two reports to the Circle Housing 

Merton Priory Board

• Financial Inclusion – Debt advice, Credit Union 

partnerships with Grenfall Housing and CAB

• Two new sheltered schemes – one sheltered / 

learning disabilities scheme 

• 30 new build homes for single people and families

• Supporting Mobility

• Valuing diversity

P
age 20



Welfare Benefit Reform

• A significant challenge for Circle Housing Merton 
Priory and our customers

• We’re using profiling information to tailor services 
and our financial inclusion advice and assistance to 
their specific needs

• Right information and help in place at the right time

• Universal Credit will be the biggest challenge

P
age 21



Response to Welfare Benefit Reform

Under Occupation penalty- 374 households 
affected

• 47.9% fully paying

• 45.6% partially paying

• 0.9% no payments 

• 5.6% pre-paid 

Benefit Cap- 28 households affected

• 67.8% fully paying

• 32.2% part payment

P
age 22



ROUTES2WORK since 2012 has helped:

•250 people into employment or 

apprenticeship

•820 people into further training

•2050 people with advice and information

•61 new small businesses  developed 

through Start Your Own Business 

programme creating local jobs

Employment and skills 

P
age 23



Transfer promise to invest £1m in local community projects to 

enhance  the life chances of our customers and the communities 

where they live by 2015.

•So far we have awarded 150 local grants totalling £930k benefitting 

over 19,000 local people 

•Supported over 90 new and existing community-led groups enabling 

customers to develop projects to benefit their local areas.

Community Fund 

P
age 24



Hoarding

•Multi-agency protocol developed in partnership with LB of Merton, Circle 

Housing Merton Priory, Merton Clinical Commissioning Group, SW London 

and St Georges Mental Health Trust to share cost and risk, and implement 

sustainable solutions for residents

•Sharing good practice across the sector, promoting the Circle   Brand: 

CIH conference, Social Housing Law Association, Housing Associations 

across England

•Nominated for local Government award 

P
age 25



Merton Regeneration Project 

Paul Quinn: Director of Regeneration,

Circle Housing 

P
age 26



Merton Regeneration Project 

P
age 27



Why regenerate?

•Non traditional construction on 

Ravensbury and Eastfields

•Stock condition, community safety and 

poor lay out on High Path

• If we are to regenerate, this is the time 

to do it

P
age 28



The scale of the project

P
age 29



The scale of the project

•Regeneration would replace most of 

the c 1,300 existing homes and add 

around 1,000 new ones

•Currently a 10 year programme

• Involves full demolition of two estates

•Partial demolition and refurbishment of 

third estate 

P
age 30



Consultation and engagement 

P
age 31



Consultation and engagement 2014

•Spring – preparing people for scale of project 

•Summer – workshops, exhibitions and site 

visits about master planning and design 

•October - draft master plan launch 

•Autumn / winter – door to door follow up to 

ensure everyone engaged 

P
age 32



What’s next 

• Financial model review under way

• Final master plan and Residents’ Offer Jan 2015

•Decision on whether to proceed March 2015

• Planning applications could be submitted

Summer 2015

• Start on site early 2016

• Build first, demolish second 

P
age 33



Principles

• Inclusive and engaging 

•Equitable and transparent

•Place making

•Sustainability underpinnings

•Design quality 

• Innovative and creative

P
age 34



Key points 

P
age 35



• Rents would not rise because of regeneration

• Every home would get private outdoor space

• The great majority of new homes would be 

larger than existing – none smaller

• Keeping the existing community is a priority

Key Points

P
age 36



• Homeowners offered above open market 

value when we would need their home

• Independent valuation 

• Early buy back for those who wish to leave 

before the regeneration

• Generous shared equity offer 

Key Points

P
age 37



Repairs & Maintenance 

Mark Anderson: 

Regional Director, Property Services (South), 

Circle Housing 

P
age 38



Repairs & Maintenance

Since transfer: 

• Over 100,000 repairs delivered 

• Over 750 major adaptations

• £20m day-to-day repairs investment 

• £65m capital and planned investment

• Local budgets for estate and block improvements

• Customer Engagement Panels

• Apprenticeships and jobs for local people

P
age 39



Repairs & Maintenance

Main Service Provider Partners 

•Keepmoat Property Services – responsive repairs 

and voids

•United House Limited – capital and          planned 

investment

P
age 40



Repairs & Maintenance

Objectives – 2014/15

•£90m investment in homes (from transfer to 2015)

•Maintaining and improving customers homes

•Reducing fuel poverty - boilers, wall / loft insulation, 

energy advice

•Increase energy efficiency ratings for homes 

•Estate improvements 

•Improvements to sheltered housing blocks

P
age 41



Repairs & Maintenance

Achievements 

• Non-decency reduced from 73% to 38%

• Development of a 30 year investment programme

• Significant change in commercial marketplace

• Customer satisfaction at 85% 

• Eight apprenticeships created since April 2014

• Customer Service Centre – meeting targets for 

responses

• Gas servicing generally at 99.9%

P
age 42



Repairs & Maintenance

Achievements 

• Use of sub-contractors - reduced from 60% in 2013

to 17% in August 2014

• Employment and training opportunities for residents 

• Community investment 

• Increase in local management and administrative 

support 

• Additional directly employed staff including

out of hours and electrical / roofing 

P
age 43



Repairs & Maintenance

Challenges 

•Delivering major change programme within R&M

•Service failings and under-performance tackled through 

regularly reviewed Service Improvement Plans 

•Backlog of works – dedicated resource in place to clear

•Significant investment requirement in Services

•35% of tenants refused our offer of works 

P
age 44



Circle Housing

Commitment and Investment

Transfer to 2044 - £245m
+

Regeneration

P
age 45



P
age 46

T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
Committee: Sustainable Communities Overview and 

Scrutiny Panel 

 
Date: 11

th
 November 2014 

 
Agenda item: 6 
 
Wards: All Wards 

 
Subject: Executive Response and Action Plan - Adult 

Skills and Employability  
 
Lead officer: Chris Lee, Director of Environment & Regeneration 
 
Lead member: Councillor Andrew Judge, Cabinet Member for Environmental 
Sustainability and Regeneration 
 
Contact Officer: Sara Williams, Future Merton Programme Manager 
Sara.Williams@merton.gov.uk, x3066 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

Recommendations: 

 
A. That the Sustainable Communities Scrutiny Panel note the 

recommendations endorsed by Cabinet in relation to their task group 
review of Adult Skills and Employability – Appendix 1; 
 

B. That the Sustainable Communities Scrutiny Panel note the progress 
report shown in the Action Plan since the last presentation to Scrutiny 
on 26th March 2014  as Appendix 1.  
 

C. That the Sustainable Communities Scrutiny Panel note the agreed  
business rates discount scheme  attached as Appendix 2.  

 
 
1. 0 PURPOSE OF REPORT AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

1.1 1 To provide a progress report to the Sustainable Communities Scrutiny 
Panel on the recommendations made by the Adult Skills and 
Employability Task Group. 

 
1.2 At the Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel meeting 

of the 12th November 2013 it was resolved that the Panel noted the 

report and asked that: 

Agenda Item 6

Page 47



1.2.1 The notes of the meetings of the Economic Wellbeing Sub Group be 

circulated to all Panel members when available by the E&R 

Department (every 6 weeks); 

1.2.2 Councillor James Holmes is appointed Member Champion overseeing 

implementation of the agreed review recommendations. 

1.2.3 A progress report on implementation is brought to the Panel every 

three months. 

1.2.4 The timescales for reporting to Cabinet on business rates be shared 

with the Panel when available. 

 

2.  DETAILS 

 

2.1 1 The Council’s Sustainable Communities Scrutiny Panel 
agreed to the Action Plan which aims to increase economic viability 
and prosperity of the borough by reducing unemployment and 
attracting inward investment.  

 
2.2 1  Cabinet considered the findings and recommendations of the Adult 

Skills and Employability Task Group at its meeting held on 16th 
September 2013. The recommendations were presented to the Panel 
on 12th November 2013 and it was agreed that the panel would receive 
regular updates on the action plan recommendations.  

 
2.3 The accompanying Action Plan (Appendix 1) details how the agreed 

recommendations will be implemented and shows the progress since 
November 2013.  

 
2.4 Councillor Holmes was appointed member Champion and is now 

included in the circulation of the minutes of the Economic Well Being 
who meet every 6 weeks.   

 
2.5 The business rates local discount policy was agreed in the end by CMT 

on 21st January 2014 and did not need to go to Cabinet. The scheme 
detail is attached as Appendix 2.  

3. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

3.1 None for the purpose of this report  

4. CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN OR PROPOSED 

4.1 None for the purposes of this report. 

5. TIMETABLE 

5.1 The Action Plan will be delivered according to the timescales outlined 
in Appendix 1.  

Page 48



6. FINANCIAL, RESOURCE AND PROPERTY IMPLICATIONS 

6.1 None for the purposes of this report - financial, resource and property 
implications of implementing the agreed recommendations have been 
accounted for in the Final Report of the Adult Skills and Employability 
Task Group submitted to Cabinet for consideration. 

7. LEGAL AND STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 None for the purposes of this report – legal and statutory implications of 
implementing the agreed recommendations have been accounted for in 
the Final Report of the Adult Skills and Employability Task Group 
submitted to Cabinet for consideration. 

8. HUMAN RIGHTS, EQUALITIES AND COMMUNITY COHESION 

IMPLICATIONS 

8.1 None for the purposes of this report – human rights, equalities and 
community cohesion implications of implementing the agreed 
recommendations have been accounted for in the Final Report of the 
Adult Skills and Employability Task Group submitted to Cabinet for 
consideration. 

9. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 None for the purposes of this report – crime and disorder implications 
of implementing the agreed recommendations have been accounted for 
in the Final Report of the Adult Skills and Employability Task Group 
submitted to Cabinet for consideration. 

10. RISK AND HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

10.1 None for the purposes of this report – risk management and health and 
safety implications of implementing the agreed recommendations have 
been accounted for in the Final Report of the Adult Skills and 
Employability Task Group submitted to Cabinet for consideration. 

11. APPENDICES – THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTS ARE TO BE 

PUBLISHED WITH THIS REPORT AND FORM PART OF THIS 

REPORT  

11.1 Appendix 1 –Adult Skills and Employability Task Group Action Plan and 
Progress report   

 Appendix 2 - Merton Council Local Business Rates Discount Policy  
 

12. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

12.1 Minutes of the meeting of Cabinet held on 16th September 2013. 

 Minutes of the Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
of 12th November 2013.  

Page 49



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1 - ADULT SKILLS AND EMPLOYABILITY TASK GROUP- PROGRESS UPDATE MARCH 2014 

 

NAME OF SCRUTINY PANEL: Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel       
 
NAME OF SCRUTINY REVIEW/TASK GROUP: Review of Adult Skills and Employability  
    
 
DATE OF FINAL REPORT: June 2013 – This update is for November 2014  
 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 

 
PROPOSED ACTION 

 
LEAD 

OFFICER 
 

 
PROGRESS UPDATE   

NOV 2014 

1 Recommendation 1  
That Cabinet engage the 
councils apprenticeship 
group, and work 
closely with the Economic 
Well Being Sub Group 
(EWG) to utilize existing 
good 
practice, to increase the 
number and diversity of 
apprenticeships available to 
adults from 18 years 
onwards (and beyond 24 
years of age) to increase 
employment opportunities 
for adults. 

 
Officers sit on both the 
Sutton and Merton 
Apprenticeship Forum and 
the Economic Well Being 
Group (EWG) and so 
information and good 
practice is shared between 
the groups. Representation 
includes officers from 
Children, Schools and 
Families who work with 
NEET’s and looked after 
children. There are also 
training providers, JCP, 
RSL’s, Merton Chamber of 
Commerce, Grenfell and 
Commonside Trust 
representatives.  

Sara 
Williams 
futureMerton 

Ongoing   
 
The EWG and joint apprenticeship 
groups continue to work together to 
support employment and particularly 
apprenticeship opportunities. The EWG 
group meet every six weeks to discuss 
progress and to highlight opportunities 
to bid for funds. Members feedback to 
the Sutton and Merton apprenticeship 
forum meetings which are quarterly.  
 
Members of the EWG are actively 
involved in the review of the Skills and 
Employment Action Plan to set the 
priorities for the next two years.  

P
age 51



APPENDIX 1 - ADULT SKILLS AND EMPLOYABILITY TASK GROUP- PROGRESS UPDATE MARCH 2014 

 

 
The Employment and Skills 
Action Plan (2013-14) sets 
out reducing youth 
unemployment/NEETs as a 
priority 

2 Recommendation 2 
That Cabinet identifies and 
establishes 100 new 
apprenticeships in the 
borough for adults of all 
ages within the next 12 
months. 

The EWG can encourage 
employers to employ 
apprentices by promoting 
the benefits of 
apprenticeships. The EWG 
launched the “Take One” 
initiative led by Merton 
Chamber of Commerce. 
This is a programme of 
engagement with local 
businesses to encourage 
them to take on one new 
person as an apprentice, for 
work experience or 
employment.  
 
The number of 
apprenticeships placed can 
be reported back to Scrutiny 
within an agreed timetable.  
 

Sara 
Williams 
futureMerton  

The Employment and Skills Action Plan 
saw the development of the Take One 
initiative. As at the end of September 
there are 174 apprentices in post 
through Take One. MCC have been 
funded by the access to Employment 
and Skills funds (Economic 
Development reserves) up to the end of 
September 2014.   
  
Merton Chamber of Commerce (MCC) 
are now using the Take One and EWG 
model to promote a “Skills for the 
Workforce” pan London initiative which 
is to promote and support SME’s to 
participate in the Apprenticeship 
programme and to offer opportunities to 
young adults. This will be launched in 
November and will run until July 2015. It 
is funded by current European Social 
Fund (ESF) managed through Newham 
college. Part of the programme includes 
showcasing Merton’s Economic 
Wellbeing Group as best practice to 
other LA’s to demonstrate how to work 

P
age 52



APPENDIX 1 - ADULT SKILLS AND EMPLOYABILITY TASK GROUP- PROGRESS UPDATE MARCH 2014 

 

in partnership when engaging with 
businesses. The other participating local 
authorities are Croydon, Sutton, 
Richmond, Hounslow, Southwark, 
Greenwich and Newham. 

3 Recommendation 3 
That the Council, engaging 
with all relevant departments 
increase the 
number of apprenticeships 
available for adults through 
the: 
• Tendering process; 
• Community Plan; and 
• Regeneration Plans for 
Merton 

Merton’s Skills and Action 
Plan (2013-2014) sets a 
priority action of increasing 
employer demand and take-
up of apprenticeships. This 
will be actioned by using 
suppliers and the Councils 
procurement policy to 
increase the number of 
apprenticeships through 
suppliers and contractors.  

Procurement 
Team  

Ongoing   
 
Currently there are 39 apprentices 

working across 18 different sections 

across Merton. Most of these are 

studying Business Administration, 

however some apprentices are also 

studying, IT, legal, facilities, waste 

services, customer services, gardening, 

engineering  and communications. 

Since July 2014 22 new apprentices 

have been recruited across Merton. 

There are 29 apprentice vacancies at 

different stages of the recruitment 

process.  

The number of looked after young 

people recruited by Merton has 

increased from 2 to 5 since July. This is 

a result of working closely with leaving 

care services and other partners in 

publicising the opportunities we have 

across the council. All LAC candidates 

P
age 53



APPENDIX 1 - ADULT SKILLS AND EMPLOYABILITY TASK GROUP- PROGRESS UPDATE MARCH 2014 

 

are guaranteed an interview if they meet 

the job spec. All managers are notified if 

a LAC young person applies.  

More work needs to be done on this 

recommendation to ensure there are 

corporate measures in place to support 

the departments in increasing the 

number of apprentices through the 

tendering process. The Community Plan 

was refreshed in 2013 and a new plan 

will be written in the next two years but 

the soft touch refresh in 2015 can 

include the theme of skills/employment 

with a focus on apprenticeships.  

 

4 Recommendation 4-  
That Cabinet considers 
establishing an information 
portal for use by partner 
organisations to facilitate 
greater information sharing, 
working with the Economic 
Well Being Sub Group.  
 
  

A portal has not been 
created but information is 
shared through the EWG 
minutes. Information 
amongst members on good 
practice, bid opportunities 
and share information is 
regularly discussed. This is 
serviced through 
futureMerton. Meetings take 
place every 6 weeks.  
A portal would require a 

Sara 
Williams 
futureMerton 
 

Ongoing   
 
The first newsletter has been produced 
and sent for October 2014. This is sent 
on a monthly basis to a number of 
partners, training providers, schools and 
registered providers. The newsletter will 
be produced until there is sufficient 
content to develop a communication 
portal. The content is produced by 
members of the EWG and the 
employment and skills officer in 

P
age 54



APPENDIX 1 - ADULT SKILLS AND EMPLOYABILITY TASK GROUP- PROGRESS UPDATE MARCH 2014 

 

dedicated officer to manage 
and update.  
 
 
 
 
 

futureMerton coordinates this.  
 
In addition to this, futureMerton are now 
regularly tweeting on the social 
networking site twitter. The tweets 
include retweets from local partners and 
providers, information on local events 
and opportunities, as well as advertising 
internal and local job and work 
experience opportunities.  

5 Recommendation 5 
That Cabinet 
support/endorse adult 
employment and skills 
activities being delivered 
through the Partnership's 
Economic Wellbeing (EW) 
Sub Group. 

 
The EW Group has been 
recognised for the 
achievements to date.  
There is a proposal for the 
Group to apply for Flexible 
Support Funds to support 
adult employment and skills 
activities.  

EWG The FSF bid is being led by Grenfell 
Housing. It has been postponded 
following new guidelines from 
JobCentre Plus. The bid will be 
reworked and in the region of £50k.  
 
Other successful partnership bids 
include funding for  a “Demand Led 
Pilot” programme and further funding 
from the London Learning Consortium 
for a community learning fund. (£350k 
and a further £32k). 
 

Other funding has been received from 
the National Apprenticeship Service 
(via London Councils) for the Take One 
project. (£20k). this led to a pan London 
project (see recommendation 2).  
 
Grants from the Economic 
Development Strategy’s access to 

P
age 55



APPENDIX 1 - ADULT SKILLS AND EMPLOYABILITY TASK GROUP- PROGRESS UPDATE MARCH 2014 

 

employment and skills reserves fund 
were provided to partners for projects 
being delivered by one or more of the 
stakeholders. 
This included: 
 

• Merton chamber of Commerce’s 
“Take One” business engagement 
to Sept 2014 - £11,500.  

• Commonside Trusts “Step Forward 
Programme” supporting 100 
families with problems arising from 
debt, housing problems, domestic 
violence, low skills - £5,000 

• Merton Adult Education (MAE) 
“Route to Self Employment” 
courses and  market trading 
workshop for 30 unemployed 
Merton residents - £4,992 

• Grenfell Housing’s “Home Instead 
Programme” of training to prepare 
candidates to work in the field of 
care - £10,125 

6 Recommendation 6 
That Cabinet endorse the 
provision of tailored support 
programmes in 
local libraries to support 
writing applications, CV’s, 
and accessing online 

There is a Citizen Advice 
Bureau website which is 
facilitated through the 
libraries and this provides 
guidance on job-ready 
activities such as 
applications and CV writing. 

Anthony 
Hopkins 
Head of 
Library & 
Heritage 
Services 
 

Ongoing  
 
All libraries provide employability 
support workshops on a weekly basis 
and events have recently been added to 
further broaden the offer. 
 

P
age 56



APPENDIX 1 - ADULT SKILLS AND EMPLOYABILITY TASK GROUP- PROGRESS UPDATE MARCH 2014 

 

resources for interview 
practice etc, building upon 
the good practice that 
already exists in libraries, as 
part of the councils assisted 
digital strategy. 

The Council are working 
closely with JobCentre Plus 
and the voluntary sector to 
deliver programmes of on-
line activity to support 
unemployed residents. In 
our libraries we now have 
support programmes.   

An online training package is currently 
being rolled out to staff to further 
improve their skills in providing 
employability support for customers. 

7 Recommendation 7 
That Cabinet agree to 
debate and consider the 
Councils inward 
investment Strategy by 
December 2013. 

The brief for the Inward 
Investment Strategy and 
Action Plan (IIASP) is being 
prepared.  
 
Cabinet and the Adult Skills 
& Employment Task Group 
will be consulted on the 
IISAP.  
 
When completed the IISAP 
will include : 

• Merton’s offer for 
attracting inward 
investment ( from 
foreign and UK 
companies) 

•  Place marketing ( 
marketing & promotion 
of Merton as a place 
for inward investment) 

• Specific projects for 
attracting inward 
investment –and the 

Eric Osei, 
Business 
Growth 
Officer 
 

IIBR Strategy and Action Plan 
completed 30 Sept 14. It sets out in  a 
clear and practical manner what LBM 
and its partners should be doing to 

attract new companies. (both domestic 

and foreign companies) as well as 
supporting existing firms (business 
retention and aftercare). 
A business event targeted at Merton’s 
large, medium size and high growth 
companies to be held on 13 November 
14. The aim of the workshop/event is to 
seek input from the companies and key 
partners on the delivery of the strategy 
and their potential role in delivering the 
jobs, re-investment /expansion, 
attracting new companies and other 
outputs. 
Delivery of smaller short term projects 
underway. However larger projects will 
require external funding. Officers will be 
seeking appropriate sources of external 
funding. 

P
age 57



APPENDIX 1 - ADULT SKILLS AND EMPLOYABILITY TASK GROUP- PROGRESS UPDATE MARCH 2014 

 

type of investment the 
borough can 
realistically attract 
 
 

 

8 Recommendation 8 
That Cabinet undertake an 
appraisal of the 
opportunities for exploiting 
the SW19 brand to attract 
investment to the borough, 
working with the Wimbledon 
Business Improvement 
District, to develop a 
partnership led 
strategic vision for the 
borough. 

A futureWimbledon 
Conference took place on 
17th October 2013.  
Information collected from 
businesses and developers 
at the event will be included 
in the Councils overall 
Inward Investment Strategy 
and Action Plan (IISAP). 
futureMerton work closely 
with LoveWimbledon 
(Wimbledon BID) and the 
Head of Sustainable 
Communities sits on the 
BID Board so partnership is 
well established and any 
ideas on promoting SW19 
within our forthcoming 
IISAP are/will be in 
consultation with  
LoveWimbledon.  
 
 

Paul 
McGarry 
futureMerton 

Wimbledon and the SW19 offer will be a 
major element of the overall Inward 
Investment and Business Retention 
Strategy (IIBRS).  

FutureMerton plan to commission a 

master plan for Wimbledon in 2015 to 

guide investment and manage growth 

for the next 15 years, considering the 

potential of Crossrail2 as a catalyst for 

growth. 

In 2014 it held an ideas competition is a 
pre-cursor to that master plan as an 
opportunity for rising stars and 
community champions so share their 
ideas for Wimbledon to share their 
aspirations at the earliest stage and 
inform the future plans.  
  
The competition, organised by Merton 
Council, Love Wimbledon Business 
Improvement District and Design 
Council, attracted ideas from 
professionals and local creative 

P
age 58



APPENDIX 1 - ADULT SKILLS AND EMPLOYABILITY TASK GROUP- PROGRESS UPDATE MARCH 2014 

 

communities whose imaginations were 
fired by the possibility of imagining the 
Wimbledon town centre of 2030. 

Nearly 100 entries were submitted to a 

panel of judges. An exhibition of 

competition entries is taking place at 

New London Architecture and 

in Wimbledon town centre between 9th 

October and 7th November.  

The futureWimbledon website can be 

seen here: 

http://www.futurewimbledon.co.uk/Home 

 

9 Recommendation 9 
That Cabinet consider the 
feasibility of offering 
business rate incentives 
and more flexible packages 
to attract investment into the 
borough. 

futureMerton and Revenue 
& Benefits have developed 
policy and eligibility criteria 
for the new Business Rate “ 
Discount” scheme. The 
proposals are pending 
approval.  
 
In addition, advice on 
business rate (including rate 
relief) is advertised on the 
Council’s website as well as 
the new futureMerton 
brochure on business 

David 
Keppler, 
Head of 
Revenue & 
Benefits. 
 

A scheme is in place offering business 
rates discounts to those that meet the 
eligibility criteria. Details are on our 
Merton web pages.  
  
Businesses submit an application and 
are awarded if they meet the criteria of 
the scheme. To date we have given 
relief to 3 businesses to a value of 
£5,600.  The take up has not been 
substantial and requires more marketing 
to promote the offer.  

P
age 59



APPENDIX 1 - ADULT SKILLS AND EMPLOYABILITY TASK GROUP- PROGRESS UPDATE MARCH 2014 

 

support and finance for 
Merton businesses. 

10 Recommendation 10 
That Cabinet, in consultation 
with local businesses, 
considers the 
viability of offering additional 
courses/training that meet 
employer 
demand and may increase 
the employment 
opportunities of residents in 
the borough. The Task 
Group acknowledges that 
any delivery model and the 
courses that will be 
delivered are part of a wider 
Cabinet decision on the 
outcomes of the Public 
Value Review being 
undertaken of Merton Adult 
Education. (MAE) 

Business consultation 
training needs exercise to 
be undertaken.  MAE have 
engaged with the Tesco 
South Kensington and New 
Malden branches regarding 
IT and ESOL training for 
staff 

Yvonne 
Tomlin 
MAE 

Much networking has been undertaken 
to capture some training needs. 
 
Survey has not yet been completed  
 
Have liaised with Wimbletech campus in 
offering free and reduced rates on room 
usage at Wimbledon and Whatley site 
this has resulted in increased requests 
for room lettings. 
 
Room letting promotion has 
commenced with listings on a number of 
key sites, in the Google search for 
venues in Wimbledon MAE is high on 
the list 

11 Recommendation 11 
That Cabinet explore the 
possibility of offering an 
enhanced set of 
courses and qualifications 
that are more attractive to 
employers for 
example, offering bespoke 
training to local companies 

Discussion underway with 
the Higher Education 
Funding council regarding 
degree programmes.   
 
Consultation on the types of 
courses required will be 
integrated in the survey in 
point 10. 

Yvonne 
Tomlin 
MAE 

Meeting with ABE a business focused 
examination body, was scheduled in  
March 2014. 
 
Two report writing courses have been 
developed one focused on Social 
Workers the other a more generic 
audience.  The course has been 
developed in partnership with ‘Create 

P
age 60



APPENDIX 1 - ADULT SKILLS AND EMPLOYABILITY TASK GROUP- PROGRESS UPDATE MARCH 2014 

 

or diplomas that 
enable students to graduate 
and move into the second 
year of a degree 
programme. 

 
Bespoke Adult Social Care 
courses being developed 
for launch in the new year.  
The service has undergone 
a staffing re-structure 
whereby new commercially 
focused sales roles have 
been established. 

Expectation’.  The first course is due to 
launch in May 2014. 
 
Further social media, marketing and 
business courses under development, 
with plans to launch in June. 
 

12 Recommendation 12 
That Cabinet support the 
development of the Merton 
Adult Education service as a 
commercial brand, alongside 
longer term work on further 
developing the reputation 
and provision of MAE. 

Development and 
implementation of 
commercial business plans. 
 
 

Yvonne 
Tomlin 

The service has completed the Target 
Operating Model (TOM) exercise and 
produced action plans for the 
commercial short courses. 
 
Adult Learning Review has resulted in 
further activity taking place a decision is 
due to take place in January 2015 
regarding the future of MAE 

13 Recommendation 13 
That Cabinet consider 
setting up a virtual Merton 
Business School that will 
support Merton residents 
and existing and prospective 
businesses. 

MAE will develop further for 
possible implementation in 
2015 

Yvonne 
Tomlin 

No current updates  

P
age 61



APPENDIX 1 - ADULT SKILLS AND EMPLOYABILITY TASK GROUP- PROGRESS UPDATE MARCH 2014 

 

14 Recommendation 14 
That Cabinet agree to 
Merton Adult Education 
(MAE) becoming accredited 
to deliver higher level 
qualifications and to 
engaging local in the 
delivery of these courses. 

Discussion underway with 
the Higher Education 
Funding council regarding 
degree programmes.   
 
Currently delivering the 
CELTA Cambridge higher 
level qualification 
 

Yvonne 
Tomlin 

MAE is exploring extending the 
curriculum offer to include Access 
Courses. 
 
ABE offer degree level courses, a 
meeting was scheduled in March 2014.  
 
ABE Accreditation to deliver Higher 
Education Qualifications has been 
prepared, submitted and approved, a 
range of leadership and marketing 
courses now on offer.  A specifically 
designed marketing campaign is being 
developed for launch in 2015 
 
Contacted Kingston University regarding 
possible partnership working.  A 
successful meting took place at the 
university whereby we have agreed 
enrichment activities for our Early Years 
programmes as this could result in 
progression onto the Kingston widening 
participation degree 

15 Recommendation 15 
That Council endorse the 
development and refresh of 
the Adult Skills Strategy and 
engage futureMerton and 
partners in this process to 
make the relevant linkages 
in terms of economic 

The current Employment 
and Skills Action Plan 
(2013-2014) is being 
implemented. It is proposed 
that an update report be 
presented for the first years 
activities to Cabinet in 
December/January 2014.  

Sara 
Williams 
futureMerton 

Currently the Economic Well Being 
Group (EWG) is working with Shared 
Intelligence to review the existing 
Employment and Skills Action Plan and 
considering priorities for the next 2 
years (2015-2017). The research should 
be concluded by the end of the year. 
 

P
age 62



APPENDIX 1 - ADULT SKILLS AND EMPLOYABILITY TASK GROUP- PROGRESS UPDATE MARCH 2014 

 

development in the borough. Taking forward a further 
Plan beyond 2014 could 
require additional funds to 
be provided for activities to 
support the objectives and 
outputs.  

Stakeholders are being interviewed to 
establish priorities and understand what 
has worked well. A number of focus 
groups will be taking place in November 
to understand the barriers to 
employment from the claimant’s 
perspective.  
 
Although youth unemployment/ NEET’s 
will remain a priority for the forthcoming 
action plan, we shall also be prioritising 
those 25 and over and those on long 
term health related benefits.  

 
Notes:-  
 

P
age 63



P
age 64

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 - Executive Response and Action Plan for Adult Skills and Employability Task Group  
 
 

Merton Council Local Business Rates Discount Policy  
 
 

            
Business Rates retention has given authorities the discretion to introduce local discounts for 
business rates for the first time. This new relief can be used on individual cases or as part of a 
wider strategy to enhance or encourage business to occupy empty premises in Merton. 
 
The cost of the local discount would be split in line with Business Rates Retention arrangements, 
so the authority would bear 30% of the cost.  
  
 
The aim of the local discount scheme is to:  
 

• Support the attraction of new businesses ( and the associated investment and jobs) into the 
borough, particularly into the East and other part of the borough undergoing regeneration 

• Help reduce the number of empty premises and thereby reverse the physical and economic 
decline of areas associated with high levels of vacant premises 

• Help increase Council income generated from business rate in the medium and long term. 
 
General scheme 
 

• The scheme is aimed at small to medium businesses with a rateable value of £6,500 or 

above who occupy or re-locate within the borough or for existing businesses expanding 

within the borough 

• The discount will run for a fixed period within the financial year.   

• The discount can be awarded for up to two years but any discount in year two can be no 

more than 50% of the discount awarded in year one.   

• A business can apply at any time but can only benefit from the discount up until the end of  

financial year   

• The level of discount awarded can be between 20% and 100% of the rates for a given 

period.  

• The level of discount awarded will depend on the individual circumstances of the application  

 

   

The scheme will initially target Mitcham, Morden and Colliers Wood areas – focusing on: 

• Mitcham town centre  

• Willow Lane Industrial Estate (Mitcham) 

• Colliers Wood High Street 

• Merton High Street  

• South Wimbledon Industrial Estate 
 
 
Eligibility Criteria 
 
Businesses eligible for the local discount include: 

• Those who are relocating from other boroughs or locations and will bring significant 
additional employment to Merton 

• Existing Merton businesses who need additional premises to expand and will create 

significant additional jobs Page 65



• High quality new business start-ups with the potential to grow and create new jobs 

• Businesses employing 2 or more staff and have the potential to grow. 

• Businesses trading for more than one year and have minimum of one year lease on the 

property 

Ineligible businesses/organisations  
 
Businesses that would not be eligible for the local discount: 

• Payday loan companies 

• Betting shops and other gambling establishments 

• Charity shops - unless they have at least 5 existing employees, or can generate at least 
3 new jobs in the first year of operation.  

• Businesses trading in sectors in activities that could bring the scheme into disrepute 
(e.g. pornography etc.).  

• Business that have received up to approximately £170,000 of aid or assistance from 
public bodies/agencies over any consecutive three financial years (European 
Commission State Aid Rules- “De Minimis”.) 

 
 
Application Process 
 
A formal application form must be submitted via the Future Merton team with a recommendation 
for the application and the level of the discount requested. This application will be considered by 
the Head of Revenues and Benefits. The application form along with supporting documentation 
will be presented to the Director of Corporate Services to assist him/her as to whether the discount 
should be granted.  
 
Applications can be received and decided, in principal, in advance of the business entering into a 
lease for the property to enable the business to enter into any agreement knowing the rates 
liability for the year.  
 
Budget 
 
The level of local discount to be awarded for the year will be set by the Director of Corporate 
Services as part of the budget process and submission of the NNDR1 (Formal government return 
that estimates the Council’s business rates collection for the year) 
 
The level of discount awarded will need to take in to consideration current spend on the local 
discount and expected future spend within the financial year.  
 
 

Page 66



1 

 

Committee: Sustainable Communities Overview & Scrutiny 
Panel 

Date:           11
th

 November 2014 

Agenda item: 7 

Subject:  Morden Leisure Centre - Update 

Lead officer: Christine Parsloe, Leisure & Culture Development Manager 

Lead member: Councillor Nick Draper, Cabinet Member for Community & Culture 

Contact officer: Christine Parsloe, Leisure & Culture Development Manager 

Recommendations:  

A. That the Sustainable Communities Overview & Scrutiny Panel note the report 
recently received by Cabinet [attached Appendix A]. 

B. That the Sustainable Communities Overview & Scrutiny Panel consider the role 
they wish to play in the roll-out and delivery of the Morden Leisure Centre 
project.  

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1. To provide the Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel with an 
update on the decisions taken by Cabinet in relation to the development of 
Morden Leisure Centre further to consideration of the report attached at 
Appendix A. 

1.2. To seek the views of the Sustainable Communities Overview & Scrutiny Panel 
on the role they wish to play in the roll-out and delivery of the Morden Leisure 
Centre project.  

2 DETAILS 

2.1 For a number of years the council have been aware that a replacement for 
Morden Park Pools would be required as the existing building was beyond 
economic repair and in the winter of 2013, the Council announced its intention 
to press ahead with a new Morden Leisure Centre to replace the existing 
Morden Park Pools and set aside £11m within the council’s capital programme. 

2.2 Research has been undertaken and early reports and surveys are underway.  
Cabinet considered the first officer report on the development of Morden Leisure 
Centre at their meeting on 10 November 2014. The Cabinet report is attached 
as Appendix A to this report. 

2.3 A verbal update will be provided by the Leisure and Culture Development 
Manager on the outcome of consideration by Cabinet on the report attached at 
Appendix A and the decisions taken will be tabled. 

3 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

3.1. None for the purposes of this report.  Alternative options for the project are set 
out in Appendix A, paragraph 3. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 67



2 

 

4 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN OR PROPOSED 

4.1. None for the purposes of this report.  Consultation undertaken or proposed for 
the project are set out in Appendix A, paragraph 4. 

5 TIMETABLE 

5.1. None for the purposes of this report.  The timetable for the project are set out in 
Appendix A, paragraph 5. 

6 FINANCIAL, RESOURCE AND PROPERTY IMPLICATIONS 

6.1. None for the purposes of this report. Financial, resource and property 
implications for the project are set out in Appendix A, paragraph 6. 

7 LEGAL AND STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS 

7.1. None for the purposes of this report.  Legal and statutory implications for the 
project are set out in Appendix A, paragraph 7. 

8 HUMAN RIGHTS, EQUALITIES AND COMMUNITY COHESION 
IMPLICATIONS 

8.1. None for the purposes of this report.  Human rights, equalities and community 
cohesion implications for the project are set out in Appendix A, paragraph 8. 

9 CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS 

9.1. None for the purposes of this report.  Crime and disorder implications for the 
project are set out in Appendix A, paragraph 9. 

10 RISK MANAGEMENT AND HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

10.1. None for the purposes of this report.  Risk management and health and safety 
implications for the project are set out in Appendix A, paragraph 10. 

11 APPENDICES – THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTS ARE TO BE PUBLISHED 
WITH THIS REPORT AND FORM PART OF THE REPORT 

• Appendix A – Cabinet Report – Morden Leisure Centre (10th November 2014) 

• Appendix 1 of Cabinet report – Project Scope 

• Appendix 2 of Cabinet report – Sites Map 

• Appendix 3 of Cabinet report – Sites Review 

12 BACKGROUND PAPERS 

12.1. None for the purposes of this report.  

Page 68



 

 

1 

 

APPENDIX A – Cabinet Report 

 

Committee: Cabinet   
Date: 10

th
 November 2014  

Wards: St. Helier, Cannon Hill 
Subject: Morden Leisure Centre 
Lead officer: Chris Lee, Director, Environment & Regeneration Department 
Lead member: Councillor Nick Draper 

 Cabinet Member for Community & Culture 
Contact officer: Christine Parsloe, Leisure & Culture Development Manager 
___________________________________________________________________ 

Recommendations:  

Cabinet agree to 

A. The Project Scope for the new Morden Leisure Centre. 

B. Develop a new Morden Leisure Centre using the priorities for the facility mix as 
determined by the 2014 public consultation, in so far as the budgets set aside will 
allow. 

C. Site MLC 3 as being the preferred location for the new facility with site MLC 1 being the 
reserve site should MLC 3 for any reason not be possible. 

D. Re-profile the capital expenditure into future years in accordance with the detailed 
figures in paragraph 6.2.   

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 This report seeks to gain approval to accept the recommendations of the 2014 
Public Consultation and agree to the site within Morden Park for the new Morden 
Leisure Centre as well as agreeing to the Project Scope for the new Morden Leisure 
Centre.   It also seeks to gain approval to re-profile the capital expenditure. 

2  DETAILS 

2.1 In the winter of 2013, the Council announced its intention to press ahead with a new 
Morden Leisure Centre to replace the existing Morden Park Pools and set aside 
£11m within the council’s capital programme. 

2.2 Following desk top research and having sought advice from Sport England, the 
Sport England’s Low Cost Leisure Centres design was chosen as the basis for a 
public consultation.  PPS, an independent public consultation company, were 
appointed and they consulted on the use of this design as well as determining the 
public’s preferences for additional facilities in priority order, so that a new facility can 
be procured within the budget available. The findings of this public consultation are 
detailed in paragraph 4 of this report.  

2.3 For a number of years the council have been aware that a replacement for Morden 
Park Pools would be required as the existing building was beyond economic repair, 

Page 69



 

 

2 

 

hence the location for a new facility has been considered and the detail of the four 
shortlisted sites is contained within paragraph 3 of this report. 

2.4 Internal cross-council project advisors have been brought together to support the 
delivery of this new facility as well as a project management team which includes 
the operators Greenwich Leisure Limited (GLL) and this management team will be 
added to over the coming months as the councils external experts are appointed. 

2.5 The council has already appointed its operator for the new facility, which is GLL.  
They were awarded the tender for the Leisure Management Contract for the 
boroughs three leisure centres in 2010 and that contract included the potential for 
the demise of Morden Park Pools and the move to a new Morden Leisure Centre. 

2.6 Based on the findings from the public consultation and the work completed to date a 
Project Scope (Appendix 1- Project Scope) has been initiated to capture all of the 
detail for the development and delivery of this new facility.  This document, which 
currently sets out the key objectives, initial scope and early findings from surveys 
currently being undertaken, will be added to over the coming months in readiness 
for procurement of the construction company. It will be used to inform our specialists 
and advisors and for they in turn to add to it to advise the contractors, thus ensuring 
we deliver within the scope of the project and within the funding available. 

3 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

3.1 Four sites within Morden Park were identified for consideration for the new Morden 
Leisure Centre (Appendix 2 – Sites Map): 

• MLC1 – the site of the existing Morden Park Pools 

• MLC2 – Morden Park Car Park 

• MLC3 – on the London Road frontage, on the right hand side of the access 
road  

• MLC4 – on the London Road frontage, opposite the Morden South Station 
and near to the railway line 

3.2 Each of these locations was then considered against the following criteria so as to 
help determine the most appropriate site: 

• Location 

• Planning 

• Ecology. 

• Archaeology 

• Timeliness  

• Continuity of Service 

• Costs 

• Land ownership 

• Risks 

• Ancillary 

• Regeneration opportunities 

Page 70



 

 

3 

 

• Utilities 

• Impact on other council services 

3.3 Location MLC3 has the benefits of being the one with the least impact on the 
archaeological priority zone and is the only site not adjacent to a site of importance 
for nature conservation although it is accepted that a development here will have an 
impact on a number of mature trees and the resulting demolition of the existing 
Morden Park Pool may have ecological issues.   

3.4  MLC3 is a clear site and by building on a new location it ensures that the existing 
pool can remain open during construction so that there is no loss of service to the 
users. The existing car park would remain and serve the new facility therefore only 
requiring car parking close to the facility for disabled users and service access.  

3.5 This prominent MLC3 location, on the London Road, would assist in realising the 
council’s Core Planning Strategy objectives of improving links between the town 
centre and the park.  

3.6 It is prudent to ensure the council does allocate a reserve site for this development 
to ensure that should unforeseen issues arise during the project development and 
planning stages, that an alternative is available to the project team.  The MLC1 
existing pools site has been determined for this as it is already the site of an existing 
leisure facility, has the second best set of pros and cons within the Sites Review 
analysis detailed in Appendix 3, but it would mean that should the project team need 
to move to this reserve site then there would be a loss of the leisure facility and its 
benefits to the users for at least 18 months whilst demolition and construction 
occurs and an opening date which would be much later than that for site MLC3. 

4 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN OR PROPOSED 

4.1 Public consultation on the base Sport England Low Cost Leisure Centre facility 
model and prioritising the additional elements the public wished to see included took 
place in the spring of 2014, and the report was published in August 2014.  The full 
report is available on www.leisureformorden.com  

4.2      The main findings were: 

4.2.1 “The Council’s basic approach of using the Sport England model as the basis for the 
new leisure centre was endorsed by the majority of respondents (53 percent). 
A”1   

4.2.2 “A clear preference was shown for what additional facilities the public would like to 
see at the new sports centre.   Top of the list is a café. A”1 

4.2.3 “A significant response was received from users of the diving facilities at the existing 
leisure centre.   They want the new Leisure Centre to continue to offer diving 
facilities either by incorporating a movable floor in the secondary pool and/or by 
incorporating a movable floor in the main pool. A”1 

4.2.4 “Athe future configuration of the swimming pool is a tricky issue to resolve and 
whatever the Council does, some users will be upset.   Our recommendation would 
be to a) keep the 25m pool but b) add in an additional two lanes so the footprint of 
water is nearer to what it is now and so the pool can continue to be operated in a 
flexible manner and c) to investigate some fun uses of the training pool (even if it is 
just the provision of large floating toys) for when it is not being used for diving.”1 

Page 71



 

 

4 

 

4.2.5 “Alack of a clear direction on what non water-based facilities are wantedA model 
developed by Sport England was satisfactory A recommendation is to take the 
evidence from the consultation on face value and to approach additional facilities in 
the order in which they were wanted.   So, if sufficient funds are available, to provide 
a climbing wall, then to provide a sauna, then look to a crèche and so on.”1 

4.3 The report also recommends: 

• Liaison with the diving club to be undertaken during the process of planning 
the new facilities. 

• Further consultation ethnic minority people, who were not well represented in 
the previous consultation. 

• The council continues to communicate with the people who were involved in 
the consultation and left their contact details as the decision making process 
progresses. 

4.4 The public will also be able to get updates on the progress of this project via the 
council’s website, from local press and officers will attend Morden Community 
Forum as appropriate.   

4.5 Officers have also met with Morden Park Playing Fields Trust (MPPFT) 
representatives to discuss their emerging proposals, whereby they wish to develop 
full-size floodlit artificial grass pitches and a pavilion in the playing fields area of the 
park in order to re-establish and re-open the sports pitches on the area previously 
operated, many years ago, by the London Playing Fields Association.   

4.6 The council will continue to work with MPPFT and will develop a Memorandum of 
Understanding with them so that both projects can complement each other where 
possible and shared facilities can be explored. 

5        TIMETABLE  

5.1 Table 1 provides an indicative timeline for a new Morden Leisure Centre on site 
MLC3. 

Table 1 -  Indicative Timetable – MLC3 Site 

By When What 

10 Nov 2014 Report to Cabinet 

Dec 2014 Appoint Project Manager  

Jan 2015 Procure Specialists 

Spring 2015 Develop design and Procure Construction 
Company 

Spring 2015 

 

Application to Demolish existing Morden Park 
Pools 

Autumn 2015 Agree design and submit planning application 

Spring 2016 Begin Construction 

Autumn 2017 Completion 

Spring 2018  Demolish Morden Park Pools 

Page 72



 

 

5 

 

 

5.2 Table 2 provides an indicative timeline for a new Morden Leisure Centre on site 
MLC1. 

Table 2 -  Indicative Timetable – MLC1 Site 

By When What 

10 Nov 2014 Report to Cabinet 

Dec 2014 Appoint Project Manager  

Jan 2015 Procure Specialists 

Spring 2015 Develop design and Procure Construction 
Company 

Spring 2015 

 

Application to Demolish existing Morden Park 
Pools 

Autumn 2015 Agree design and submit planning application 

Spring 2016 Demolish existing Morden Park Pool 

Autumn 2016  Begin Construction 

Summer  2018  Completion  

 

6 FINANCIAL, RESOURCE AND PROPERTY IMPLICATIONS 

6.1 The council has set aside £11m within their capital programme for the purposes of 
delivering a new Morden Leisure Centre.  This figure is to include the construction of 
the new facility and the demolition of the existing Morden Park Pools, as well as all 
fees, surveys, associated costs, etc. 

6.2 The current capital programme identifies spend of £1m in this financial year with 
£10m in 15/16.  The council will need to adjust these figures to take account of the 
indicative programme, which anticipates the majority of the expenditure in the 
financial year 16/17.  The profiled expenditure will be only known once the 
procurement has been completed, but at this point it is recommended that £100k 
remains in the 14/15 capital programme, with £900k in 15/16; £9m in 16/17 and £1m 
in 17/18. 

6.3 All of the sites identified as potential locations for the new Morden Leisure Centre 
are on land owned by the council, but all lie within a conservation area each with 
their own different pros and cons as identified in Appendix 2 - Sites Review 
attached.  A full planning application will need to be submitted. 

6.4 The new Morden Leisure Centre is intended to increase usage with a resulting 
increase in traffic movement to and from the site. The operation of the access road / 
A24 Junction will need to be reviewed to accommodate the added traffic 
movements. This will be addressed by a Traffic Impact Assessment as part of the 
Planning Application. 

6.5 To deliver this facility the council will need to draw on resources and expertise 
across the organisation and to that end an officer project advisory group has been 

Page 73



 

 

6 

 

established.  This group will meet bi-monthly and at other times as and when 
necessary to keep the project moving. 

6.6 A project team including Greenwich Leisure Limited (GLL) and lead officers for the 
council will lead & drive the project forward.   

6.7 Procurement of the construction of the new facility will be via OJEU. 

6.8 The new Morden Leisure Centre will be operated by GLL, as this is part of their 
existing contract with the council, which was previously procured through an OJEU 
process that concluded in December 2010, with the award of a 15 year Leisure 
Management Agreement (LMA). 

7         LEGAL AND STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 The provision of leisure facilities is a discretionary matter for the authority. 

7.2 The current Leisure Management Agreement (LMA) with Greenwich Leisure Limited 
(GLL) provides for the termination of those clauses in the existing LMA covering 
Morden Park Pool and to amend the LMA with GLL to include the new facilities.  
Schedule 3 of the LMA provides a list of agreed principles which both parties are 
subject to in determining what terms will apply in relation to the terms that will apply 
to the new Morden Leisure Centre. 

7.3 Furthermore, a new lease will need to be entered into with GLL with regards to the 
new leisure centre.  

7.4 If MLC1 is chosen, if there is encroachment onto land owned by the college then the 
Council will have to decide how they will acquire this land  whether it be by 
purchasing the land (including consideration of a Compulsory Purchase Order) or  a 
long lease.  

7.5 Title searches at the Land Registry are currently being conducted of the proposed 
sites to identify restrictions, rights of way or any other factors that may have a 
bearing on the proposed sites.  

8 HUMAN RIGHTS, EQUALITIES AND COMMUNITY COHESION IMPLICATIONS 

8.1 It is important to ensure that the range of swimming pools operating in the borough 
and the surrounding boroughs have equalities, accessibility and pricing policies to 
meet the complete range of Merton resident’s needs. 

8.2 The design of the new Morden Leisure Centre will be in accordance with Sport 
England’s Best Practice Guidance and will be disabled accessible, whilst the 
contractual obligations for the operation is already in place and there is no intention 
to alter the operational arrangements rather just to improve the range of sports 
facilities and offer available. 

9 CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 The Sport & Recreation Alliance in its ‘Game for Life’ report, September 2012, 
evidences how participation in sport & recreation is good for you, be that by 
improving health, educational attainment and/or community cohesion.    

9.2 Research shows that participation in “Asport and recreation programmes can 
prevent boredom, teach important life skills, divert young people from crime and 
foster social inclusion.”2  

Page 74



 

 

7 

 

9.3 The importance of sport and recreation within a local community with regards to the 
crime and disorder implications is evidenced by:  

• Physical activity can create a diversion from undertaking criminal behaviour, 
with “A7 out of 10 teenagers believing that anti-social behaviour occurs 
because young people are bored and 6 out of 10 say that there isn’t enough for 
young people to do in their area.” 3  

• “A lack of self-regulation has been linked to substance abuse and criminal 
behaviour amongst other negative behaviours (Baumeister et al., 1994 cited in 
Oaten and Cheng, 2006) and potentially it can play a role in someone’s 
adherence to an exercise programme or participation in sport.”2 

• “Diverting 1 in 10 away from crime would save over £113m per annum.”2 

• “Around 80% of people believe that participating in sport teaches respect for 
others and increases people’s involvement in community activities.  76% of 
people believe that participating in sporting activities reduces anti-social 
behaviour / crime among young people.”4  

• “There is a significant link between participation in cultural activity and people 
being satisfied with an area in which they live. In inner cities those who 
participated in culture were 10% more likely to be satisfied with where they live, 
compared to those who did not participate.”5   

9.4  A new Morden Leisure Centre will not on its own be the panacea to resolving local 
crime and disorder issues, however the sports and recreation facilities along with 
the operation of them will create a whole host of opportunities for local people that 
will reduce their likelihood to become bored, offer programmes and activities that 
encourage social and community cohesion and offer experiences that will in turn 
benefit the individuals, self-esteem, sense of well-being and increase their capacity 
for educational attainment. 

10 RISK MANAGEMENT AND HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

10.1 Risk Management 

10.1.1There is a high business risk that the existing Morden Park Pools (MPP) could fail, 
resulting in closure of service provision.  In managing the business risks, officers 
and the leisure contractors are continuing to progress planned works thus ensuring 
that the services can be retained and the facilities operated during the development 
and construction of the new Morden Leisure Centre.   

10.2 Health and Safety 

10.2.1  Should MPP fail and become a health & safety risk it will be closed with immediate 
effect. 

11 APPENDICES – THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTS ARE TO BE PUBLISHED 
WITH THIS REPORT AND FORM PART OF THE REPORT 

Appendix 1 –   Project Scope 
Appendix 2 –   Sites Map  
Appendix 3 –    Sites Review  

Page 75



 

 

8 

 

12. BACKGROUND PAPERS – the following documents have been relied on in 
drawing up this report but do not form part of the report 

• Morden Leisure Centre – Public Consultation Report, July 2104 

13.  REFERENCES 

1. Morden Leisure Centre Consultation, PPS, July 2014 
2. Game for Life, Sport & Recreation Alliance, Sept  2012 
3. Nestle Family Monitor, 2002, & 4Children, 2007, cited in Audit Commission, 

2009 
4. MORI Research, 2004 
5. Taking Part Survey, Internal Data Analysis, DCMS, 2002 

Contacts 

Report author:  
Name: Christine Parsloe 
Tel: 020 8545 3669 
Email: christine.parsloe@merton.gov.uk 

Meeting arrangements - Democratic Services: 
Email: democratic.services@merton.gov.uk 
Tel: 020 8545 3356/3357/3359/3361/3616 

All press contacts - Merton’s Press office: 
Email: press@merton.gov.uk 
Tel: 020 8545 3181 

London Borough of Merton: 
Address: Civic Centre, London Road, Morden, SM4 5DX 
Tel: 020 8274 4901 

Useful links 

Merton Council’s Web site: http://www.merton.gov.uk 

Readers should note the terms of the legal information (disclaimer) regarding information 
on Merton Council’s and third party linked websites. 

http://www.merton.gov.uk/legal.htm 
This disclaimer also applies to any links provided here. 
 
 
 

Page 76



 
 

 

Page 1 of 3 

Appendix 1 

London Borough of Merton    
 
PROJECT SCOPE 
 

Project Title: 

Morden Leisure Centre  

 

Total Project Budget: 

                               £11,000,000 

To include all fees, surveys, associated 
costs, fit out, furniture, equipment, ICT 
hardware, etc. Also to include the 
demolition of the existing Morden Park 
Pools 

Document Issued by: 

Christine Parsloe 

 

Date Issued: 

October 2014 

 

Client:  

LONDON BOROUGH OF MERTON 

 

Key stakeholders: 

London Borough of Merton 

Greenwich Leisure Limited 

Client Contact Officer: 

Christine Parsloe 

Project Manager:  

To be appointed 

 

Page 77



 
 

 

Page 2 of 3 

Background: 

The council wishes to replace the existing Morden Park Pools (MPP) with a new modern 
family friendly leisure centre – Morden Leisure Centre (MLC). 

The council has set aside a capital programme sum of £11m to achieve this new facility 
and the demise of the existing facility. 

The council has previously let a contract for its three leisure centres to Greenwich Leisure 
Limited (GLL) in December 2010 for a term of 15 yrs (with an option to extend further for 
up to 2 years).  This procurement and contractual agreement included the replacement of 
MPP with a new leisure centre and therefore the operators for the new facility are already 
in place and will be a delivery partner in taking this project forward. 

 

Project Objectives: 

To build a leisure centre that: 

•  Provides a wide range of sports and leisure facilities for the whole community, 
whatever their age and physical ability 

• Ensures all project stakeholders have had the opportunity to input into the 
business case 

• Best fits with the needs of the various stakeholders including, the public, local 
residents, education establishments, sports clubs, London Borough of Merton, 
Greenwich Leisure Limited, Sport England and other national governing bodies of 
sport 

• Promotes best practice 

• Is value for money and within budget 

• Delivers economic sustainability for the leisure centres portfolio in Merton 

• Encourages partnerships which deliver increases in participation, enable 
promotion of broader social and health outcomes and achieve financially 
sustainable leisure provision 

• Provides a high quality venue that encourages people no matter what their ability, 
to take more exercise  

• Considers all legislative implications 

• Takes into account  equality and ensures it is considered from the outset 

• Considers local strategic outcomes covering: 

� Health and wellbeing 

� Social inclusion 

� Local economic benefits 

� Children and young people 

� Participation 

� Older people 

To demolish the existing Morden Park Pools and reinstate the area in accordance with 
the natural surrounds.(N.B. Unless this site is the preferred location for the new Morden 

Page 78



 
 

 

Page 3 of 3 

Leisure Centre) 

 

Consultation: 

The council commissioned PPS, a consultation company, to carry out a public 
consultation in 2014 to determine the priorities for the facility mix for the new MLC.  This 
consultation also advised the public that the intention would be to include in the new MLC 
those facilities chosen that the council could afford within the budgets available. 

The findings of that public consultation were:- 

1. Sport England Affordable Leisure Centres was a good base for the new centre. 

2. The size of the centre should be based on Sport England’s model 4, which 
includes, as a minimum: 

• 6 lane x 25m swimming pool 

• Secondary / teaching pool 

• 4 badminton court sports hall 

• 100 station health & fitness facility 

• 2 studios 

• Wet & dry changing facilities 

3. The additional facilities for inclusion, as far as the budgets will allow, are prioritised 
as: 

• Café 

• Moveable floor in the secondary / main pool for diving 

• Extra lanes for the 25m pool to provide more water space 

• Fun uses for  the secondary pool (e.g. floating toys) 

• Climbing Wall 

• Sauna 

• Crèche 

• Etc. 

4. Consult further the local diving clubs regarding the diving provision 

5. Consult further with the ethnic minority community and local sports clubs for sports 
hall use, as both were under-represented in the public consultation. 

6. Consult further with Morden Park Playing Fields Trust (MPPFT) regarding their 
emerging proposals to re-establish and re-open the sports pitches in the park 
area. Consider how the two projects might complement each other and for any 
shared facility opportunities. 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 79



Page 80

This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 81



P
age 82

T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

APPENDIX 3 – SITES REVIEW 

MORDEN LEISURE CENTRE                  October  2014 

 Site MLC1 - The Existing Site 

 PROS CONS 

1. Location The leisure centre would be in the in a similar location 
to the existing facility.  

Vehicular access would be shared with the existing 
college access – using the current access road. 

G 

R 

E 

E 

N 

The centre might have to encroach onto land owned by the 
college. 

Site development access through existing road past Register 
Office. 

Heavy construction traffic – may need to consider weight 
bearing of access road with utilities running below. 

Shared access. 

New facility would be completely hidden from view and would 
lack prominence. 

Continuing impact on Register Office/Morden Park House. 

A 

M 

B 

E 

R 

2. Planning The principle of the location is broadly acceptable in 
planning terms. 

The structure could be erected without directly 
affecting other existing structures and with very minor 
designation / land swops to ensure no net loss of 
protected open space. 

G 

R 

E 

E 

N 

Only issue if need to encroach onto land owned by the 
college and extend further into protected open space. 

Additional land was granted planning permission for sports 
hall under planning permission for college. 

Land to rear of centre originally set aside for sports hall under 
Merton’s previous Unitary Development Plan (UDP) is now 
overgrown with natural vegetation and is no longer 
designated as land for a sports hall within the Local Plan 
2014  

Within proximity of the settings of listed buildings. 

G 

R 

E 

E 

N 

3. Ecology & 
Landscaping 

Vegetation could ensure that the new building does 
not affect the setting of the listed buildings. 

Existing building already in situ, so less likely to have 
impact on local habitats 

G 

R 

E 

E 

N 

Site adjacent to a Site of Importance for Nature Conservation. 

Due to the proximity of local nature reserves and records of 
known protected species (including bats and great crested 
newts), this site would require biodiversity surveys and 
potential mitigation measures. 

G 

R 

E 

E 

N 

4. Archaeology Already a building in place so less likely to be an 
impact. 

G 

R 

E 

E 

N 

Site wholly within Upper Morden Conservation Area and an 
Archaeological Priority Zone  

 

G 

R 

E 

E 

N 

5. Timeliness   Demolition would need to take place before a new build, 
which would delay the new building going up thus extending 
the time before a new facility would open. 

A 

M 

B 

E 

R 

6. Continuity of 
Service 

  The existing pool would be closed during the construction 
phase and this would mean a loss of service for the duration 
of the building and a loss of customer base for the new centre 
once opened. This is a significant disadvantage. Schools 
swimming lessons and clubs would have to relocate for the 
duration of the demolition & build periods. 

A 

M 

B 

E 

R 

7. Costs   Temporary loss of car and coach parking income to Parking 
Services during development as reduced use due to no 
leisure centre users. 

Building on existing site could increase construction costs 
compared to bare site. 

 

G 

R 

E 

E 

N 

8. Land Ownership In council ownership, although extensions to build 
sports hall may need to encroach onto land owned by 
the college, should that area provide the best 
solution. 

G 

R 

E 

E 

N 

The centre might have to encroach onto land owned by the 
college. 

A 

M 

B 

E 

R 

9. Risks   Building on the existing site may have inherent risks in the 
existing building that would have to be addressed prior to 
demolition and rebuilding. 

College may not give consent.  

A 

M 

B 

E 

R 

10. Ancillary – Car 
Park; external 
opportunities; etc. 

The parking layout in the existing car park can be 
improved to give 200 spaces, at the expense of coach 
parking, should this be required. 

 

G 

R 

E 

E 

N 

  

11. Regeneration 
Opportunities 

    

Page 83



 

12. Utilities This site already is served with utilities, albeit these 
may need to be upgraded for a new built facility.  

G 

R 

E 

E 

N 

  

13. Impact on other 
council services  

 

 

 Vehicle movements 7 days a week will cause disruption to 
Register Office for 2 to 3 years. 

Impact and potential temporary loss of income to Register 
Office.  

Impact and potential temporary loss of income to Parking 
Services. 

G 

R 

E 

E 

N 

14. Any other matters 
 

    

 

Page 84



 

 

 Site MLC2 - The Existing Car Park 

 PROS CONS 

1. Location An innovatively designed centre could be provided on 
this awkwardly shaped site. 

Vehicular access would be shared with the existing 
college access – using the current access road. 

Distinct from Register Office 

More prominent than MLC1  

G 

R 

E 

E 

N 

Due to the site constraints, the centre might have to have 
reduced facilities and additional costs or build out into the 
park area. 

Would need to construct and fund a replacement car park. 

Heavy construction traffic – may need to consider weight 
bearing of access road with utilities running below. 

Loss of public car, coach and lorry park. 

Less prominent a site than MLC3 & MLC4. 

A 

M 

B 

E 

R  

2. Planning If located on car park, no development on protected 
open space or very minor designation / land swops to 
ensure no net loss of protected open space. 

G 

R 

E 

E 

N 

The site is in a prominent location within the park, with little 
opportunity for screening, even though it is noted that 
vegetation screening could lessen the impact.  

A large building on this site could be detrimental to the 
openness of the MOL. 

A large building would be highly visible when approaching on 
the access driveway to the listed building and from the listed 
building itself and across the park. 

Car parking would need to be re-provided to support the 
centre and this would either see a loss of protected open 
space within the vicinity or the existing pool site would need 
to be retained for car parking.  

The volume of vehicles traffic passing close by and the large 
building on this site would harm the setting of the listed 
building. 

Would need to be able to designate the replacement car park 
as a pay and display facility.  

More planning risk than MLC1 but less than that for MLC3 & 
MLC4 

A 

M 

B 

E 

R 

3. Ecology & 
Landscaping 

Hard surfaced for many years. 

Very limited ecological value 

 

G 

R 

E 

E 

N 

Site adjacent to a Site of Importance for Nature 
Conservation. 

Due to the proximity of local nature reserves and records of 
known protected species (including bats and great crested 
newts), this site would require biodiversity surveys and 
potential mitigation measures. 

There may be ecological issues to be addressed with the 
demolition of the existing MPP. 

A 

M 

B 

E 

R 

4. Archaeology   Site within Upper Morden Conservation Area and would 
require archaeological investigations. 

Wholly within an Archaeological Priority Zone. 

G 

R 

E 

E 

N  

5. Timeliness   An alternative car park would need to be provided first before 
construction on this site location could be possible. This 
would delay the construction of the new facility build. 

G 

R 

E 

E 

N 

6. Continuity of 
Service 

The existing facility would be retained and remain 
open keeping the customer base and continuity of 
service. 

G 

R 

E 

E 

N 

Customers may choose to move to other facilities as the area 
leading up to the existing venue will be a building site and 
temporary car parking arrangements will be in place. 

G 

R 

E 

E 

N 

7. Cost   Temporary loss of car and coach parking income to parking 
services during development @ c£40k per annum 

Additional costs to install temporary car parking and then 
replacement car parking for the new facility once built. 

May impact on park and ride for AELTC. 

A 

M 

B 

E 

R  

8. Land Ownership In council ownership. G 

R 

E 

E 

N 

  

9. Risks Clear site.  G 

R 

E 

E 

N 

Risks in the additional costs around car park provisions, loss 
of customer base and impact on the Register Office and 
College.   

A 

M 

B 

E 

R  

10. Ancillary – Car 
Park; external 
opportunities; etc. 

It may be an opportunity to achieve good cycling 
facilities  links of  Hillcross Avenue to the existing 
cycling route on the A24 London Road as part of this 
project, should funds be available 

G 

R 

E 

Temporary loss of car parking. The site for the new build will 
require a temporary car park for the existing facility users and 
then a new replacement car park to be installed post new 
build completion. Some disruption for users of the college, 

A 

M 

B 

Page 85



 

E 

N 

local park, Register Office and Morden Park Pools throughout 
the build period. 

Temporary reduction in parking income  [ up to £40k ]  

Discussions would be held with South Thames College to 
seek some shared use of their car park, if required.  

E 

R 

11. Regeneration 
Opportunities 

    

12. Utilities Utilities supplies run through the access road G 

R 

E 

E 

N 

The utilities would need to be connected to the new build – 
the longer the run the greater the costs. 

G 

R 

E 

E 

N 

13. Impact on other 
council services 

  Loss of income to Register Office and the annual fireworks 
event which uses the car park as the site for the fun fair. 

Impact on Register Office as development and construction 
traffic will be near to the venue for a long period of 
construction time and will at times be noisy, etc. 

G 

R 

E 

E 

N 

14. Any other matters  

 

 

 The new access road leading to the site and any surrounding 
parking / circulating areas may be adopted as Highway 
leading to highway adoption issues (highway, drainage, 
lighting, future maintenance). 

G

R

E

E

N 

 

Page 86



 

 

 

 Site MLC3 - London Road (north of college) 

 PROS CONS 

1. Location Vehicular access would be shared with the existing 
college access – using the current access road. 

This is the most prominent site of those under 
consideration 

The area close to the Register Office would be 
improved once the new centre is completed 

G 

R 

E 

E 

N 

  

2. Planning The new building would be in a more prominent 
location facing onto a strategic road (A24), adjacent 
to the large college buildings and opposite the 5-
storey blocks of flats in the Haig Estate. 

Providing the existing pool is demolished and the 
land returned to public open space with appropriate 
landscaping, planning would be more acceptable as 
the facility would be relocated within existing area. 

Subject to discussions with the GLA, the MOL and 
open space boundary could be amended to include 
the former pool building area, the house and its 
grounds, and the parking area – as long as it can be 
demonstrated that the parking area is ancillary to the 
public open space. This proposal may then not result 
in a net loss of open space and MOL. 

With considered landscaping, the setting of the listed 
buildings in the area would be improved, since the 
pool building would no longer be in situ. 

G 

R 

E 

E 

N 

A large building could be detrimental to the ‘openness’ of the 
MOL. 

More planning risks than MLC1 & MLC2, but less than MLC4. 

 

A 

M 

B 

E 

R 

3. Ecology & 
Landscaping 

This is the only site not immediately adjacent to a 
Site of Importance for Nature Conservation (SINC). 

 

G 

R 

E 

E 

N 

Development is likely to affect a substantial number of 
mature trees. 

Due to the proximity of local nature reserves and records of 
known protected species (including bats and great crested 
newts), this site would require biodiversity surveys and 
potential mitigation measures. 

There may be ecological issues to be addressed with the 
demolition of the existing Morden Park Pools. 

A 

M 

B 

E 

R 

4. Archaeology Partially within an Archaeological Priority Zone – 
least affected of the 4 sites under consideration. 

G 

R 

E 

E 

N 

Site within Upper Morden Conservation Area and would 
require archaeological investigations. 

Partially within an Archaeological Priority Zone. 

Construction should seek to minimise the impact on known 
archaeological features (Stane Street) which would be in 
close proximity.  

Archaeological investigations would be required before 
construction; the building and associated infrastructure may 
have to be adapted to prevent harm. 

A

M

B

E

R 

5. Timeliness Clear site should allow easier construction. G 

R 

E 

E 

N 

  

6. Continuity of 
Service 

Existing facility continues to operate until new build 
opens. 

Car park continues to operate until new build opens. 

G 

R 

E 

E 

N 

  

7. Cost No loss of car parking income and the potential to 
increase car parking income with new facility and 
increased usage. 

G 

R 

E 

E 

N 

  

8. Land Ownership In council ownership. G 

R 

E 

E 

N 

  

9. Risks     

10. Ancillary – Car 
Park; external 
opportunities; etc. 

The parking layout in the existing car park could be 
used and can be improved to give 200 spaces, at the 
expense of coach parking, should this be required. 

It may be an opportunity to achieve good cycling 
facilities  links of  Hillcross Avenue to the existing 

G 

R 

E 

E 

Existing car park is not located immediately adjacent to this 
site, but neither is it with MLC1 

G 

R 

E 

E 

Page 87



 

cycling route on the A24 London Road as part of this 
project, should funds be available 

N N 

11. Regeneration 
Opportunities 

In this prominent location, closer to Morden Town 
Centre than any of the other sites, the location would 
assist in realising the council’s Core Planning 
Strategy objectives of improving links between the 
town centre and the park. 

 

G 

R 

E 

E 

N 

  

12. Utilities There are existing utility services to the College, 
Register Office and existing Pool, which would also 
be able to best serve this site and reduce utility 
connection costs. A thorough Utility search would 
inform on the level and cost of infrastructure required 
to service this new site. 

G 

R 

E 

E 

N 

  

13. Impact on other 
council services 

No disruption to Register Office services.  G 

R 

E 

E 

N 

  

14. Any other matters  

 

 

 

 

 The new access road leading to the site and any surrounding 
parking / circulating areas may be adopted as Highway 
leading to highway adoption issues (highway, drainage, 
lighting, future maintenance). 

 

G

R

E

E

N 

 

Page 88



 

 

 Site MLC4 - Morden Park Playing Fields 

 PROS CONS 

1. Location In close proximity to Morden Town Centre (~650m 
walking distance from Morden underground station) 

G

R

E

E

N 

 

A new junction on London Road (A24) would be required, 
rising project costs, delivery timelines and difficulties of 
creating a junction off the A24. 

Agreement of TfL would be required for junction onto a red 
route. 

Site is within an area susceptible to surface water flooding. 

Least prominent site (lower level and adjacent to railway 
embankment). 

R

E

D 

2. Planning The new building would be in a more prominent 
location facing onto a strategic road (A24), adjacent 
to the large mosque and the railway embankment. 

With considered landscaping following the demolition 
of the existing pool, the setting of the listed building 
would be improved. 

G

R

E

E

N 

 

The prominence of the building, away from an existing group 
of buildings, may also be seen as a negative. 

A large building would be detrimental to the ‘openness’ of the 
adjacent MOL. 

Installing car parking adjacent to the new facility at this site 
would further encroach into MOL. 

This site is the closest to existing homes (Hillcross Avenue, 
Links Avenue). 

Would need to be able to designate the replacement car park 
as a pay and display facility which would require a further 
change to the public open space to car park designation to 
allow this to happen. 

This site is assessed as having the highest planning risk. 

R 

E 

D 

3. Ecology & 
Landscaping 

Not within an area of Site of Importance for Nature 
Conservation (SINC) 

 

G

R

E

E

N 

 

Development here is likely to affect a substantial number of 
mature trees. 

Site adjacent to a Site of Importance for Nature 
Conservation. 

Due to the proximity of local nature reserves and records of 
known protected species (including bats and great crested 
newts), this site would require biodiversity surveys and 
potential mitigation measures. 

There may be ecological issues to be addressed with the 
demolition of the existing Morden Park Pools. 

A 

M 

B 

E 

R 

4. Archaeology   Site within Upper Morden Conservation Area and would 
require archaeological investigations. 

Wholly within an Archaeological Priority Zone. 

Construction of the building, car park and junction may 
impact on known archaeological features (Stane Street).  

Archaeological investigations would be required before 
construction; the building and associated infrastructure may 
have to be adapted to prevent harm. 

A 

M 

B 

E 

R  

5. Timeliness Cleared site should allow easier construction  G 

R 

E 

E 

N 

A new junction on London Road (A24) would be required 
which would increase the time to deliver the project.  This 
would require TfL approval as the London Road is a Red 
Route. 

A 

M 

B 

E 

R 

6. Continuity of 
Service 

Existing facility continues to operate until new build 
opens. 

Car park continues to operate until new build opens  

G 

R 

E 

E 

N 

  

7. Cost   A new junction on London Road (A24) would be required and 
this would considerably increase the project costs. 

The cost of creating a new car park close to this site would 
considerably increase the project costs. 

Designation of new car park would need to allow car park 
income, otherwise loss incurred. 

There may be a requirement to reduce size of existing car 
park and return to open space, which would also have cost 
implications. 

A

M

B

E

R 

8. Land Ownership In council ownership G 

R 

E 

E 

N 

  

9. Risks  

 

   

10. Ancillary – Car 
Park; external 
opportunities; etc. 

It may be an opportunity to achieve good cycling 
facility links from Hillcross Avenue to the existing 
cycling route on the A24 London Road as part of this 
project, should funds be available. 

G 

R 

E 

E 

N 

A new car parking area would be required on MOL. This 
would be required to be shared with park users to be 
acceptable development on MOL. 

Potential loss of income to Parking Services should this not 
be a pay & display car park. 

Net loss of capacity for car parking to serve college and 

A 

M 

B 

E 

R 

Page 89



 

Register Office should the existing car park size need to be 
reduced. 

Consideration as to what to do with existing car park, if it is 
no longer fully needed. 

11. Regeneration 
Opportunities 

In such close proximity to Morden Town Centre 
(~650m walking distance from Morden underground 
station) the development would contribute to the 
regeneration of the town centre. 

G 

R 

E 

E 

N 

  

12. Utilities   The ability of the existing utilities to service a new build would 
need to be fully explored and the associated costs 

The site would need to be investigated in relation to drainage 
for a building of this size and scope 

 

 

G 

R 

E 

E 

N 

13. Impact on other 
council services 

No disruption to Register Office services  G 

R 

E 

E 

N 

  

14. Any other matters  

 

 

 

 

 Access onto the London Road (A24) for vehicles to and from 
facility could be extremely difficult especially for those coming 
from Morden Town Centre approach. 

Uncertainty of the views of TfL on an access to the London 
Road (A24) 

A

M

B

E

R 

 

Page 90



1 

Committee: Sustainable Communities Overview & 
Scrutiny Panel 
Date: 11

th
 November 2014 

Agenda item: 8 
Wards: All 

Subject: Scrutiny Review – 20mph zones & limits 

Lead officer: Chris Lee, Director of Environment and Regeneration 
Lead member: Councillor Andrew Judge, Cabinet Member for Environmental 
Sustainability & Regeneration 
Forward Plan reference number: N/A 
Contact officer: Richard Lancaster 

Recommendation:  
A- That the Sustainable Communities Overview & Scrutiny Panel consider 

the information in the report in relation to the council’s approach to 
speed management and comment specifically on the recommendations 
regarding the future policy approach to 20mph zones and limits   

 
1  PURPOSE OF REPORT AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
1.1 The purpose of the report is to provide an overview to Members of the 

Overview & Scrutiny Panel in relation to the council’s approach to 
20mph zones and limits.   

 
1.2 The report has been prepared in response to a motion and resolution 

from Council in November 2012, set out as follows:  
 

‘Council notes that between 1996 and 2011 Merton experienced a 65% 
reduction in those killed or seriously injured, and a 34% reduction in 
slight casualties, due to traffic collisions on our roads. However, even 
one fatality as a result of a traffic collision is one too many and this 
council will continue to do all in its power to reduce these figures still 
further. 

 
As part of the work to increase road safety and reduce casualties, 
Merton has a combination of roads with 20 mph limits and 20 mph 
zones, the majority of which have been implemented during the last 4 
years. In order to assess the effectiveness of the current Merton 
schemes, monitoring analysis has been commissioned. This is 
focusing on a comparison of ‘before’ and ‘after’ accident data at each 
of the individual limits and zones, along with ‘before’ and ‘after’ traffic 
flow and vehicle speed data at each. This work will be reported in the 
next few months. The intention is to examine this evidence alongside 
the evidence from Boroughs such as Portsmouth and Islington which 
have implemented ‘area wide’ 20mph speed limits to determine what 
has and will work best to reduce road traffic casualties in an outer 
London Borough like Merton. 
This Council affirms that: 

Agenda Item 8

Page 91



2 

(1) it is important that road traffic policy and schemes are based on 
empirical evidence and 
(2) asks that this work is completed with due urgency as a priority and 
(3) asks that a Report is presented to both Cabinet and Scrutiny with 
balanced recommendations for future policy including practical 
measures to maximise road safety for all road users. 

 
1.3 Since this original council resolution there have been two reports to the 

Overview & Scrutiny Panel, one on 16th October 2013 (Appendix A) 
and one on 26th February 2014 (Appendix B).  

1.4  The borough has since taken forward two discrete pieces of work in 
response to the recommendation:     
 
1) A high-level research project to investigate the impact of 20mph 

speed limits and zones, undertaken by Steer Davies Gleave on 
behalf of the London Environment Directors’ Network (LEDNet). 
This report is included at Appendix C and is referred to as the ‘SDG 
Report’ in this paper. 

2) Local investigative work to assess the impact of 20mph zones and 
limits currently operating in the borough (Appendix D). 

 
2  Details 
 Legal & Regulatory Context  
2.1 Detailed information in relation to the legal and regulatory context in 

relation to of 20mph zones and limits is documented in the SDG Report 
at Appendix C. The salient points are as follows: 

 
2.2 DfT Circular 01/2013 ‘Setting local speed limits’ provides guidance to 

highway authorities who are considering setting local speed limits, 
including 20mph zones and limits. 

 
2.3 The most important distinction to be made is the difference between 

20mph zones and limits: 
 

• 20mph zones are supported by traffic calming and other 
features; 

• 20mph limits are implemented using speed limit signage, and 
are not necessarily supported by traffic calming or other 
features. 

 
2.4 The features included in 20mph zones are prescribed, and must 

generally be placed at intervals no greater than 100 metres. Previously, 
only certain physical traffic calming measures could be used to meet 
this requirement, but recently more flexibility has been allowed. The 
implication of this is that it may reduce the cost of implementing 20 
mph zones by reducing the number of physical traffic calming features 
required. 

 
2.5 As 20mph limits do not require any features (aside from the necessary 

regulatory signs), they are generally cheaper to implement compared 

Page 92



3 

to 20mph zones. However, the DfT Circular states that 20mph limits 
are only suitable when the mean speeds are already at or below 
24mph.  

 
2.6 In terms of enforcement, the DfT guidance states that 20mph zones 

and limits should be self-enforcing, with no expectation from the police 
to enforce them. Enforcement of 20mph speed limits is possible and 
does take place in a few locations, notably Edinburgh and Southend, 
but the Police’s recently revised guidelines state that whilst 
enforcement of 20mph limits will be considered, it cannot take the 
place of proper engineering.  

 
2.7 The DfT is currently in the process of undertaking further detailed 

investigative work in relation to the impact of 20mph zones and limits. 
The results of this 3-year study are scheduled to be reported in 2017.  

 
Policy Context 

 
2.7 Recent London-wide policy documents and strategies support the 

continued roll-out of 20mph schemes. Of particular relevance is the 
work of the Roads Task Force that identified 20mph as being a suitable 
speed limit for specific street types where the ‘movement’ and ‘place’ 
functions need to be more balanced, where there are high levels of 
pedestrian and cycle activity and where safety issues need to be 
tackled. Further information in relation to the work of the Roads Task 
Force on street types is included in the SDG report. 

 
2.8  Transport for London’s recently produced Road Safety Plan, ‘Safe 

Streets for London: The Road Safety Action Plan for London 2020 
(June 2013)’ also endorses the role of 20mph limits and zones, 
supporting their expansion on both borough and Transport for London 
roads, subject to the consideration of the function of each road taking 
into account Roads Task Force principles.  

 
2.9 20mph schemes can also contribute to the discharge of the council’s 

public health duty.  
 
3 20mph zones and limits across London 
 
3.1 As part of the high-level research work undertaken by SDG a 

questionnaire was sent to all 33 London Boroughs. The purpose of this 
work was to generate a comprehensive understanding of the different 
approaches by boroughs to the issue of 20mph zones and limits. A 
total of 15 boroughs responded to the questionnaire, which helped 
identify a number of key themes: 

 

• A borough-wide approach is becoming more widespread, particularly in 
inner London—Camden, Islington and the City have implemented 
blanket 20mph schemes, and several other boroughs also plan to 
implement this approach; 

Page 93



4 

• There is variability as to whether borough main roads are included or 
excluded from the blanket 20mph approach; 

• A number of boroughs implement 20mph schemes on an area-by-area 
basis, particularly in outer London, commonly prioritising areas based 
on collision history, resident requests and in some cases the presence 
of schools; 

• The use of 20mph limits appears to be becoming more common, partly 
because such schemes are cheaper and avoid the issues that physical 
traffic calming measures often attract;  

• Whilst some ancillary publicity is usually undertaken alongside scheme 
implementation, behaviour change campaigns to encourage sustained 
driver compliance have generally not formed a core part of 20mph 
schemes; 

• Before and after monitoring is often undertaken. However, the post-
implementation monitoring period is often carried out over a shorter 
period (generally one year). Reductions in collisions and vehicle 
speeds are generally achieved, although the effect is smaller for 
schemes without physical measures; 

• Enforcement remains an ongoing challenge for all boroughs. Whilst it 
seems that police are becoming more willing to consider possible 
options for enforcing 20 mph, their position remains that there should 
be no expectation for additional police resources. However, it should 
be noted that since the production of the SDG report LB Islington has 
announced that from 7th October 2014 that Police Enforcement will 
take place on borough roads, based on a financial agreement between 
the council and the Police.  

 
4 Rationale for 20mph speed limits 
 
4.1 The available evidence shows a clear link between average vehicle 

speeds and the number / severity of collisions that occur. A reduction in 
vehicle speeds would be expected to both reduce the number of 
collisions that occur and decrease the severity of those that do occur.  

 
4.2 Reducing the speed limits is one way to lower vehicle speeds. There 

are also a number of other factors (apart from the legal speed limit 
itself) that influence drivers’ speed, including physical measures and 
the levels of enforcement. However, a key factor in achieving a 
sustainable decrease in vehicle speeds is via cultural change, so that 
20mph is seen as the appropriate speed in urban areas.  

 
5 Impact of 20mph Schemes (High Level Research) 
 
5.1 There is strong evidence that 20 mph schemes result in significant 

casualty reductions, although the available studies focus predominantly 
on zones with physical traffic calming. Such zones result in a decline of 
speeds of about 9 mph on average. The evidence in relation to vehicle 
emissions is mixed and traffic noise is negligible. There is also some 
evidence that in conjunction with other measures, 20mph zones have 

Page 94



5 

the potential to reduce traffic volumes and increase the use of 
sustainable modes, such as walking and cycling.  

 
5.2 Signed-only 20mph limits generally achieve relatively small speed 

reductions of 1 – 2 mph. Due to the limitations with monitoring, that has 
generally take place over one year, it is difficult to draw confident 
conclusions. 

 
5.3 Research by the University of the West of England indicates that it is 

crucial that an integral programme of ‘soft’ measures be included as 
part of signed-only 20mph limits. The aim is to effect cultural change 
amongst drivers, so that driving in 20mph areas becomes normal.  

 
6 Impact of 20mph Schemes (Local Research) 
 
6.1 In addition to the high level research, the borough has undertaken its 

own local research to investigate the effectiveness of 20 mph zones 
and limits. Detailed information in relation to this work is included at 
Appendix D. Whilst this work provides useful information in relation to 
traffic volumes, vehicle speeds and collisions, it does not provide a 
‘before’ and ‘after’ comparison for volume and speed due to the lack of 
available pre-scheme data.  

 
6.2 It should also be noted that in a number of locations the 20mph speed 

limits or zones were introduced on roads that already benefited from a 
form of traffic calming, therefore the impacts on speed, volume and 
collisions are likely to be less than in cases when completely new 
schemes have been established. 

 
6.3 The survey results provide an interesting relationship with the work of 

the Roads Task Force on street types. Specifically, the function of the 
road has a strong correlation with the way it is used. On roads with 
high traffic volumes, where the ‘function’ is predominantly about 
movement, vehicle speeds are generally higher. On roads with lower 
traffic volumes, where the ‘place’ function is more predominant and 
walking and cycling is more common, vehicles are much more likely to 
keep to a 20mph speed limit. For example, on roads with a weekly 
traffic volume of less than 10,000 vehicles, approximately 20% travel 
above the 20mph limit, whereas on roads where the weekly traffic 
volume exceeds 25,000, approximately 64 – 80% of vehicles travel 
above 20mph.  

 
6.4 The collision data is less easy to interpret at a high level, as the 

implication is that there has been a decrease in collisions in areas with 
20mph limits and an increase in collisions in areas with 20mph zones. 
However, interrogation of the data indicates that the increase in 
collisions in zones has come almost entirely from one road, Tamworth 
Lane. Further work will be undertaken to investigate the specific 
reasons for this increase.  

 

Page 95



6 

6.5 It should also be noted that there was a 50% decrease in the number 
of serious injury collisions across both zones and limits, whilst there 
was no change in slight injury collisions. In addition, there was a 46% 
decrease in pedestrian collisions, a 31% decrease in pedal cyclist 
collisions, no change in motorcycle collisions and an increase in 19% 
for vehicle collisions.  

 
6.6 The local review also provides an officer-level recommendation of the 

highway improvements that are required to improve the overall 
operation of specific zones or limits. The delivery of such 
improvements will be subject to funding and prioritisation.  

 
7 Conclusions 
 
7.1 Based on the evidence that has been compiled, the key conclusions 

are as follows:  
 

• The evidence is clear that reducing vehicle speeds results in fewer and 
less severe collisions, particularly for vulnerable road users; 

• Historically, 20mph zones have been successful at reducing speeds by 
using physical traffic calming measures. Limited resources and relaxed 
regulations have increased the focus on 20mph limits. However, these 
tend to achieve smaller decreases in vehicle speeds; 

• The lack of resources to enable effective enforcement remains a major 
issue;  

• Changing driver attitudes and behaviour is a major challenge, in order 
for 20mph to be seen as the appropriate speed in urban areas. 
Therefore, supporting measures that foster cultural change need to be 
an integral part of all 20mph schemes. 

 
8 Recommendations for Discussion 
 

• The research evidence indicates that outer London boroughs generally 
roll-out 20 mph zones and limits on a case-by-case basis. This is 
considered to be a reflection of the different characteristics of the street 
environment, when compared to inner London. This is the approach 
that has been adopted by Merton, and the approach that should be 
maintained moving forward at this time; 
 

• However, this approach may need to evolve in response to changed 
circumstances. A useful point to review 20mph policy may be in 2017, 
when the current Department for Transport study is expected to report 
and there should be more monitoring evidence available. In the longer-
term, a ‘tipping point’ may be reached when a borough-wide approach 
may warrant consideration, which may be triggered if Merton’s 20mph 
coverage (through the case-by-case approach) grows to encompass a 
large portion of roads in the borough, and/or if neighbouring boroughs 
were to adopt a blanket approach; 
 

Page 96



7 

• The work of the Roads Task Force in relation to Street Types provides 
an appropriate policy framework to help determine the appropriateness 
of 20mph zones and limits moving forward. For example, roads with a 
high place and low movement function, where there are high levels of 
pedestrian and cycle activity, will be better suited to 20mph speed 
controls than roads that have more of an important movement function. 
This is also reflected in the local investigative work where 20mph 
zones and limits have proved to be much more successful at 
containing vehicle speeds in areas that experience lower vehicle 
movements. There will be some exceptions to this, based on local 
circumstance;   

 

• Measures to foster cultural change have an important role to play in 
reducing vehicle speeds, and should be considered to be a 
fundamental part of the approach, rather than a ‘bolt-on’; 
 

• Post-scheme monitoring should be comprehensive and continue for a 
minimum of 3 years to ensure that the scheme objectives continue to 
be met. A portion of scheme funding allocations should be set aside for 
this purpose; 
 

• Police enforcement is limited to available resources. Islington has 
adopted a new approach to enforcement that should be monitored. The 
possibility of local authorities enforcing speed controls should be 
explored; 

 

• New technology should be investigated when appropriate. An example 
would be Intelligent Speed Adaptation, which has the potential to 
influence or control a vehicles speed based on the speed limit. 
 
 

9 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 
9.1  Not applicable – this report is for information only. 
 
10  CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN OR PROPOSED 
10.1  N/A 
 
11 TIMETABLE 
11.1  Performance information is monitored annually as a requirement of TfL. 
 
12 FINANCIAL, RESOURCE AND PROPERTY IMPLICATIONS 
12.1  There are no financial, resource or property implications arising from 

this information report. All related services are delivered within existing 
resources. 

 
13  LEGAL AND STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS 
13.1   This report is for information only.  
 
14 HUMAN RIGHTS, EQUALITIES AND COMMUNITY COHESION 

IMPLICATIONS 

Page 97



8 

14.1  There are no specific human rights, equalities or community cohesion 
 
15 CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS 
15.1  There are no specific crime and disorder implications arising from this 
          information report. 
 
16  RISK MANAGEMENT AND HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
16.1  There are no risk management or health and safety implications arising   

from this information report. 
 
APPENDICES 
 
Appendix 1: Sustainable Communities Overview & Scrutiny Panel 

Report – 16th October 2013 
 
Appendix 2: Sustainable Communities Overview & Scrutiny Panel 

Report – 26th February 2014 
 
Appendix 3: Research into the Impacts of 20mph zones and limits – 

October 2014 
 
Appendix 4a, Appendix 4b, Appendix 4c: 
 

Local Research into the Impact of 20mph zones and limits 
in Merton – October 2014 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 98



1Page 7 

Appendix 1 
 
 
 

Committee: Sustainable Communities Overview & 
Scrutiny Panel 
Date: 16

th 
October 2013 

Agenda item: 6 
Wards: All 

 

Subject: Scrutiny Review – 20 mph limits / zones update 
 

Lead officer: Chris Lee, Director of Environment and Regeneration 
Lead member: Councillor Andrew Judge, Cabinet Member for Environmental 
Sustainability & Regeneration 
Forward Plan reference number: N/A 
Contact officer: Mario Lecordier / Richard Lancaster 
 
Recommendations: 
A.  That Sustainable Communities O & S Panel considers the information in the 

report and the council’s approach to Speed Management. 
 
 
 

1        PURPOSE OF REPORT AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
1.1     The  purpose  of  the  report  is  to  provide  an  overview  to  Members 

regarding the council’s approach to 20mph zones and limits. 
 
2        Details 

Background 
2.1     There are still a high number of casualties on urban roads in the UK. In 

2008, there were 771 fatalities and 92,714 injuries reported on built up 
roads in Great Britain. A large proportion of these collisions occurred 
on residential roads. 

 
2.2     The majority of pedestrian casualties also occur in built up areas: 24 

child pedestrians and 278 adult pedestrians were killed in 2010 on 
such  roads.  In  total  there  were  24,950  pedestrian  injuries.  Pedal 
cyclists are also vulnerable in built up areas and there were 59 cyclist 
fatalities and 15,995 casualties of all severities. 

 
2.3     Merton has demonstrated positive progress in order to meet collision 

reduction  targets  over  the  last  15  years.  Between  1996  and  2011 
Merton  experienced  a  65%  reduction  in  those  Killed  or  Seriously 
Injured (KSI’s), along with a 34% reduction in the number of slight 
casualties during the same period. 

 
2.4     Speed significantly increases the chance of being injured in a collision. 

Studies which compare injury severity with vehicle speed show that 
accidents at speeds above 20mph are more likely to result in severe 
injuries, rather than slight injuries. The risk of being fatally injured 
increases too, and a UK study of accidents found that at 20mph there 
was a 2.5% chance of being fatally injured, compared to a 20% chance 
at 30mph. 

Page 99



2Page 
8 

 

History 
2.5     In December 1990 the Department of Transport issued Circular Roads 

4/90  which set out guidelines for the  introduction  of  20mph  speed 
limits; local authorities had to apply for consent from the Secretary of 
State to introduce a 20mph zone. 

 
2.6     In 1999, the law was changed by the Road Traffic Regulation Act 

(Amendment) Order 1999, which gave Highways Authorities more 
flexibility so they no longer had to apply for permission to introduce a 
zone. The updated legislation made two distinct types of 20mph speed 
limit possible: 

 
20mph limits, which consist of just a speed limit change to 20mph 
which is indicated by the speed limit (and repeater) signs, and 

20mph zones, which are designed to be “self-enforcing” due to the 
traffic calming measures that must be introduced along with the change 
in the speed limit. 

 
2.7     The  Department for Transport’s current guidance  is set out in DfT 

Circular 01/2006 which encourages and supports Local Authorities to 
implement 20 mph limits and  zones in situations where there is a 
particular risk to vulnerable road users. The guidance sets out that the 
purpose of 20 mph areas is to create conditions in which drivers 
naturally drive at around 20 mph as a result of traffic calming measures 
or the general nature of the location. 

 
2.8     It,  therefore,  suggests  that  20mph  limits  are  appropriate  for  roads 

where average speeds are already low (below 24mph) or can be 
reduced to this level following the introduction of traffic calming. 
Ultimately the Local Authority is responsible for deciding which of these 
is the most appropriate. 

 
2.9     The Department for Transport has recently announced its intention to 

revise and reissue “Circular 01/06, Setting Local Speed Limits’ with a 
key aim of increasing flexibility for Local Authorities when considering 
the introduction of 20mph zones and limits. 

 
2.10   The guidance in the document on 20mph zones and 20mph limits has 

been expanded to make it clearer that highway authorities have 
flexibility in the use of 20mph zones and limits, and should apply the 
option best suited to the local circumstances and that brings the most 
benefits in terms of casualty reduction and community benefits. This 
amends the previous advice that 20mph zones without traffic calming 
should generally be restricted to single or small groups of streets, and 
traffic  authorities  are  reminded  that  they  can,  over  time,  introduce 
20mph zones or limits into: 

 
· Major streets where business on foot is more important than 

slowing down traffic and; 

Page 100



3Page 9 

· Lesser residential roads in cities, towns and villages, particularly 
where this would be reasonable for the road environment, there 
is community support and streets are being used by pedestrians 
and cyclists 

 
Characteristics of 20mph zones and speed limts 

2.11   There is a significant difference between the characteristics of a 20mph 
speed limit and a 20mph zone. 

 
20mph limits are areas where the speed limit has been reduced to 20 
mph but there are no physical measures to reduce vehicle speeds 
within the areas. Drivers are alerted to the speed limit with 20mph 
speed limit repeater signs. 
20mph limits are most appropriate for roads where average speeds are 
already low, and the guidance suggests below 24mph. The layout and 
use of the road must also give the clear impression that a 20mph 
speed or below is the most appropriate. 

 
20 mph zones use traffic calming measures to reduce the adverse 
impact of motor vehicles on built up areas. The principle is that the 
traffic calming slows vehicles down to speeds below the limit, and in 
this way the zone becomes “self-enforcing‟ . Speed humps, chicanes, 
road narrowing, planting and other measures can be introduced to both 
physically and visually reinforce the nature of the road. 

 
Effectiveness of 20mph limits 

2.12   Transport Research Laboratory (TRL) carried out research on 20mph 
limits in 1998 which examined the effectiveness of 20mph limits without 
traffic calming measures. It found that traffic calming was a more 
effective way of reducing vehicle speeds than signs only, which only 
produced a small reduction in speed. There was some evidence that 
public awareness campaigns and enforcement further reduced traffic 
speeds. 

 
2.13   In  2009,  an  interim  analysis  was  conducted  of  the  20mph  limits 

introduced in Portsmouth, which cover 91% of the 438km of the city’s 
roads. The evaluation was taken from 158 sites which were monitored 
for vehicle speeds, one year after the limits were implemented. 

 
2.14   It found that 20 mph speed limits reduced the average speed by 0.9 

miles per hour, which was not statistically significant. However, at sites 
where the average speed was above 24mph before the new limit was 
introduced, there was a statistically significant average speed reduction 
of 7 mph. 

 
2.15   An analysis of accidents found that there was an overall reduction in 

casualties but it was not significant when compared to the national 
trend. Further research after 3 years of the scheme will hopefully clarify 
its effectiveness. 

Page 101



 

Next Steps 
2.16   Focusing  specifically  on  20  mph  limits,  Islington  became  the  first 

borough in the country to introduce the limit on all side roads after 
introducing a scheme in early 2012. On 12th  October 2012 Camden 
also announced that it ‘would consider introducing the 20 mph limit on 
all roads under its control in a bid to reduce the number of accidents 
and encourage more people to walk and cycle.’ 

 
2.17   Within Merton, like a number of other London Boroughs, there is a 

combination  of  roads  with  20  mph  limits  and  20  mph  zones,  the 
majority of which have been implemented during the last 4 years. 

 
2.18   In order to assess the effectiveness of the current schemes that have 

been implemented in Merton, monitoring analysis has recently been 
commissioned. This has focused on a comparison of before and after 
accident data at each of the individual limits and zones, along with 
before and after traffic flow and vehicle speed data at each of the 
individual limits and zones. 

 
2.19  The Audit was carried out in July 2012 and used the following 

methodology. 

 
·  Analysis of before and after accident data at each site 

·  Analysis of before and after Traffic Flow and Speed at each site 

·  Overall   comparison   of   accidents,   traffic   flow   and   speed 
measures at each site. 

 
2.20   A total of twenty three 20mph Zones / Limits were reviewed as part of 

this audit. These are: 
 

20mph Zones 
 

High Path area 
Pelham Road area 
Parkway area 
Pollards Hill area 
Easfields area 
Ridgway area 
Lake Road area 
Hillcross area 
Commonside East area 
Cromwell Road area 
West Barnes area 

 
20mph Limits 

 
Trinity road 
Merton Hall Road 
Quicks road 
Merton Park 

 

 
 

P4age 10 Page 102



 

Melrose Avenue 
Wandle Road 
Ashbourne Road 
Cambridge Road 
Claremont Road 
Ernle Road 
Edge Hill 
Farm Road 

 

 
 

2.21   The majority of the speed reducing measures was introduced in 2009 
with the rest in 2010/11. The report concluded that: 

 
·  Both zones and limits experienced an increase in Personal Injury 

Collisions per year with an increase in Zones greater that that of 
Limits. 

·  Limits delivered a significant reduction in pedestrian and child 
accidents 

·  Zones experienced a greater reduction in 85%ile speeds (3.7% 
reduction  (0.9mph  –  change  from  26.69  to  25.79mph)  on 
average per Zone compared to 2.7% (0.75mph – change from 
27.65  to  26.9mph)  in  limits).  Limits  experienced  a  greater 
reduction in average speeds 

·  Overall vehicle speeds were down by 5.5% (1.19mph) in limits 
and  7.8% (1.73mph) in zones. 

·  Zones  performed  best  with  regards  to  traffic  flows  with  a 
marginal increase in traffic flows across the zones. 

·  Pelham Road and Eastfields Zones and Merton Park 20mph 
Limit were the worst performing in terms of collision reduction. 

 
2.22   Reducing  speed  remains  the  most  effective  way  of  reducing  the 

severity and number road casualties the outcome of the Audit does not 
support a borough-wide approach to the introduction of 20mph limit in 
Merton. This is supported by the results of the audit which shows that 
both zones and limits have shown a slight increase in the annual 
accident rates. This could be due to the short before and after 
assessment period. A longer before and after assessment period (over 
5 years)  would be required to get a better understanding of the impact 
of  20mph  limits  on  mean  speed,  average  speed  and  casualty 
reduction. It is however clear that inappropriate or excessive speed 
remains a concern to both residents and the Council. The Council will 
therefore  focus  its  resources  on  developing  Home  /  School  Zones 
aimed  at  reducing  speeds  in  key  areas  such  as  in  the  vicinity  of 
schools, areas with high pedestrian footfall and major trip generators 
such as Town Centres and also in residential areas. Speed reduction 
measures will also be considered to encourage sustainable local travel 
by making cycling, walking and the use of public transport more 
attractive and effective. 

 
 
 
 
 

5Page 11 Page 103



 

2.23  Enforcement will also remain a key consideration in achieving the 
objectives of reducing the number and severity of road casualties. The 
Council has no legal powers to  undertake speed  enforcement and 
caution drivers in breach of speed regulations. Only the Police have the 
necessary powers to undertake enforcement and prosecute offenders. 
It is however recognised that the Police is not sufficiently resourced to 
undertake local speed enforcement and the Council will continue to 
work with them to encourage a pro-active Police participation in 
managing speeds on local roads. 

 

 
 

3        ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 
3.1     Not applicable – this report is for information only. 

 

 
 

4        CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN OR PROPOSED 
4.1     N/A 
 
5        TIMETABLE 
5.1     Performance information is monitored annually as a requirement of TfL. 
 
6        FINANCIAL, RESOURCE AND PROPERTY IMPLICATIONS 
6.1     There are no financial, resource or property implications arising from 

this information report. All related services are delivered within existing 
resources. 

 
7        LEGAL AND STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS 
7.1     This report is for information only. 
 
8 HUMAN RIGHTS, EQUALITIES AND COMMUNITY COHESION 

IMPLICATIONS 
8.1     There are no specific human rights, equalities or community cohesion 
 
9        CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS 
9.1     There are no specific crime and disorder implications arising from this 

information report. 
 
10      RISK MANAGEMENT AND HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
10.1   There are no risk management or health and safety implications arising 

from this information report. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P6age 12 Page 104



1 

Committee: Sustainable Communities Overview & 
Scrutiny Panel 
 
Date: 26

th
 February 2014 

 
Agenda item: 5 

Subject: Scrutiny Review – 20 mph limits / zones update 

Lead officer: Chris Lee, Director of Environment and Regeneration 
 
Lead member: Councillor Andrew Judge, Cabinet Member for Environmental 
Sustainability & Regeneration 
 
Contact officer: Mario Lecordier / Richard Lancaster 

Recommendations:  
A. That Sustainable Communities O & S Panel considers the information in 
the report and the council’s approach to Speed Management.  

 
1  PURPOSE OF REPORT AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
1.1 The purpose of the report is to provide an update to Members of the 

Overview & Scrutiny Panel regarding the council’s approach to 20mph 
zones and limits.   

 
1.2 The report has been prepared in response to a motion and resolution 

from Council in November 2012, set out as follows: 
 
 ‘As part of the work to increase road safety and reduce casualties, 

Merton has a combination of roads with 20 mph limits and 20 mph 
zones, the majority of which have been implemented during the last 4 
years.  

 
 In order to assess the effectiveness of the current Merton schemes, 

monitoring analysis has been commissioned. This is focusing on a 
comparison of ‘before’ and ‘after’ accident data at each of the individual 
limits and zones, along with ‘before’ and ‘after’ traffic flow and vehicle 
speed data at each. This work will be reported in the next few months.  

 
 The intention is to examine the evidence alongside the evidence from 

places such as Portsmouth and Islington which have implemented 
‘area wide’ 20 mph speed limits to determine what has and will work 
best to reduce road traffic casualties in an outer London location like 
Merton.  

 
 The council affirms that: 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 9Page 105



2 

(1) It is important that road traffic policy and schemes are based on 
empirical evidence and developed in consultation with residents; 
and 

(2) Asks that the work is completed with due urgency as a priority; and 
(3) Asks that a report is presented to both Cabinet and Scrutiny with 

balanced recommendations for future policy including practical 
measures to maximise road safety for all road users.’ 

 
1.3 A previous version of this paper was presented to Sustainable 

Communities Overview & Scrutiny Panel on 16th October 2013 
(included as appendix A).  

 
2  Details 
 Background 
 
2.1 Having a safe road network and public realm is a key factor in ensuring 

that Merton remains a sustainable and liveable borough.   
 
2.2 In 2012 there were a total of 196,000 casualties of all severities in road 

accidents reported to the police in the UK, 4% lower than in 2011. 
There were 1,750 people killed, an 8% decrease from 2011, and 
23,000 seriously injured, down 0.4%.  

 
2.3 In Greater London is 2012 there were 28,780 casualties. Of these, 134 

were fatally injured, 2884 were seriously injured and 55,762 were 
slightly injured. Fatalities fell by 16% (159 to 134) to the second lowest 
level since recent records began.�

 
2.4 Merton has demonstrated positive progress in order to meet collision 

reduction targets over the last 15 years. Between 1996 and 2011 
Merton experienced a 65% reduction in those Killed or Seriously 
Injured (KSI’s), along with a 34% reduction in the number of slight 
casualties during the same period. Whilst there was an increase in 
year-on-year KSI’s in 2012, provisional results from 2013 indicate 
further reductions.    

 
2.5 Speed significantly increases the chance of being injured in a collision. 

Studies which compare injury severity with vehicle speed show that 
accidents at speeds above 20mph are more likely to result in severe 
injuries, rather than slight injuries. The risk of being fatally injured 
increases too, and a UK study of accidents found that at 20mph there 
was a 2.5% chance of being fatally injured, compared to a 20% chance 
at 30mph.  

 
Characteristics of 20mph zones and speed limts 

2.6 There is a significant difference between the characteristics of a 20mph 
speed limit and a 20mph zone.  

 
20mph limits are areas where the speed limit has been reduced to 20 
mph but there are no physical measures to reduce vehicle speeds 

Page 10Page 106



3 

within the areas. Drivers are alerted to the speed limit with 20mph 
speed limit repeater signs.  
 
20mph limits are most appropriate for roads where average speeds are 
already low, and the guidance suggests below 24mph. The layout and 
use of the road must also give the clear impression that a 20mph 
speed or below is the most appropriate.  

 
20 mph zones use traffic calming measures to reduce the adverse 
impact of motor vehicles on built up areas. The principle is that the 
traffic calming slows vehicles down to speeds below the limit, and in 
this way the zone becomes “self-enforcing”. Speed humps, chicanes, 
road narrowing, planting and other measures can be introduced to both 
physically and visually reinforce the nature of the road. 

 
2.7 The Police have the authority to enforce speed limits in both 20 mph 

zones and limits.  
 
� Effectiveness of 20mph limits 
2.8 Transport Research Laboratory (TRL) carried out research on 20mph 

limits in 1998 which examined the effectiveness of 20mph limits without 
traffic calming measures. It found that traffic calming was a more 
effective way of reducing vehicle speeds than signs only, which only 
produced a small reduction in speed. There was some evidence that 
public awareness campaigns and enforcement further reduced traffic 
speeds.  

 
2.9 In 2009, an interim analysis was conducted of the 20mph limits 

introduced in Portsmouth, which cover 91% of the 438km of the city’s 
roads. The evaluation was taken from 158 sites which were monitored 
for vehicle speeds, one year after the limits were implemented.  

 
2.10 It found that 20 mph speed limits reduced the average speed by 0.9 

miles per hour, which was not statistically significant. However, at sites 
where the average speed was above 24mph before the new limit was 
introduced, there was a statistically significant average speed reduction 
of 7 mph.  

 
2.11 An analysis of accidents found that there was an overall reduction in 

casualties but it was not significant when compared to the national 
trend. Further research after 3 years of the scheme will hopefully clarify 
its effectiveness, but, no date has currently been set for the publication 
of this information.  

 
2.12 In other cities and towns research regarding limits remains relatively 

scarce due to the embryonic stage that the majority of the schemes are 
at.  

 
2.13 Islington became the first London Borough to introduce the limit on all 

side roads after introducing a scheme in early 2012. However, it should 

Page 11Page 107



4 

be noted that 78% of the roads in the borough were already covered by 
zones, so the new 20mph limit only covers the remaining 22% of roads. 
On 16th December 2013 Camden also announced that it would be 
introducing a 20mph limit on all remaining roads in the borough not 
covered by existing controls in order ‘to reduce the number of 
accidents and encourage more people to walk and cycle.’ Southwark 
also made a similar decision in November 2013.    

 
2.14 Within Merton, like a number of other London Boroughs, there is a 

combination of roads with 20 mph limits and 20 mph zones, the 
majority of which have been implemented during the last 4 years.  

 
2.15 In order to assess the effectiveness of the current schemes that have 

been implemented in Merton, monitoring analysis was commissioned in 
2012. The report has been included as Appendix 2.  

 
2.16 The report has focused on a comparison of before and after accident 

data at each of the individual limits and zones, along with before and 
after traffic flow and vehicle speed data at each of the individual limits 
and zones.  

 
2.17 The purpose of the report was to help inform whether a borough-wide 

approach in the form of a 20mph limit is the most effective method to 
reduce collisions and vehicle speeds, or if it would be more effective to 
maintain an evidence based approach in order to target those areas 
that experience particular issues. 

 
2.18  The Audit was carried out in July 2012 and used the following 

methodology: 
 

• Analysis of before and after accident data at each site; 

• Analysis of before and after traffic flow and speed at each site 

• Overall comparison of accidents, traffic flow and speed 
  measures at each site. 

 
 
2.19  The majority of the speed reducing measures was introduced in 2009 

and the remainder in 2010/11. The report concluded that: 
 

• Both zones and limits experienced an increase in personal injury 
collisions per year with an increase in zones greater that that of 
limits; 

• Limits delivered a reduction in pedestrian and child accidents, albeit 
from a low base; 

• Zones experienced a greater reduction in 85%ile speeds (3.7% 
reduction on average per zone (0.9mph – change from 26.69 to  
25.79mph) compared to 2.7% (0.75mph – change from 27.65 to  
26.9mph) in limits). Limits experienced a greater reduction in 
average speeds. 

Page 12Page 108



5 

• Overall vehicle speeds were down by 5.5% (1.19mph) in limits and 
7.8% (1.73mph) in zones. 

• Zones performed best with regards to traffic flows with a marginal 
increase in traffic flows across the zones.  

  
2.20  It is clearly evident from the extensive research on the subject that 

reducing speed remains the most effective way of reducing the severity 
and number of road casualties. However, due to the limitations of the 
Merton based work to date, particularly in relation to the ‘after’ data that 
in most cases was just collected for one year, it has proven to be very 
difficult to draw accurate conclusions and have sufficient confidence in 
the evidence collected.   

 
2.20 For this reason, the council will maintain its current approach to speed 

management, implementing school zones and homezone ‘lite’ 
measures, aimed at reducing speeds in key areas such as in the 
vicinity of schools, areas with high pedestrian footfall and major trip 
generators such as town centres and also in residential areas. The 
works due to commence in March 2014 in Abbey Road, Kirkley Road 
and Shelton Road are examples of this work. Speed reduction 
measures will also be considered to encourage sustainable local travel 
by making cycling, walking and the use of public transport more 
attractive and effective. 

 
Next Steps (with reference to the Council motion): 
 
2.21 As discussed in the body of the report, whilst overall research in 

Merton and elsewhere with respect to 20 mph zones identifies clear 
reductions in vehicle speeds and accidents, there remains less clarity 
with regard to the effectiveness of 20mph speed limits, principally due 
to the lack of research in place to quantify impacts. On this basis of the 
need for further empirical evidence to inform the future approach to 
speed management, the council will commit to undertaking the 
following:  

 
(a) To undertake in-depth survey work in 2014/15 to develop a 
comprehensive understanding of the effectiveness of 20mph zones 
and limits operating in the borough and in other towns and cities. This 
will also consider the potential for reductions in traffic speeds / road 
casualties via the introduction of 20 mph speed limits or zones in areas 
not already covered by existing speed control measures. Funding with 
the council’s LIP programme has been set aside for this purpose in 
2014/15.  

(b) An assessment of the business case associated with the introduction of 
20 mph zones vs the introduction of borough-wide 20 mph limits,or a 
combination of the two; 

(c) The sustainability of the potential benefits of 20 mph zones and limits 
(i.e. whether improvements are likely to be maintained without the need 
for further traffic calming measures). 

Page 13Page 109



6 

(d) The views of local residents with respect to both 20 mph zones and 
limits.  

(e) An investigation into enforcement matters, including liaison with the 
Police.  

 
2.22 Following this work, officers will be in a position to report back the 

evidence to the Panel, along with clear recommendations regarding the 
council’s future approach to speed management.  

 
3 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 
3.1  Not applicable – this report is for information only. 
 
4  CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN OR PROPOSED 
4.1  N/A 
 
5  TIMETABLE 
5.1  Performance information is monitored annually as a requirement of TfL. 
 
6  FINANCIAL, RESOURCE AND PROPERTY IMPLICATIONS 
6.1  There are no financial, resource or property implications arising from 

this information report. All related services are delivered within existing 
resources. 

 
7  LEGAL AND STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS 
7.1   This report is for information only.  
 
8  HUMAN RIGHTS, EQUALITIES AND COMMUNITY COHESION 

IMPLICATIONS 
8.1  There are no specific human rights, equalities or community cohesion 
 
9  CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS 
9.1  There are no specific crime and disorder implications arising from this 
          information report. 
 
10  RISK MANAGEMENT AND HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
10.1  There are no risk management or health and safety implications arising   

from this information report. 
 
Appendix 1:  Scrutiny Review – 20 mph limits / zones update (October 2013) 
 
Appendix 2: 20 mph Speed Limit and Zones – Interim Monitoring Analysis 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 14Page 110



 

 

 Research into the 

impacts of 20mph speed 

limits and zones 

London Borough of Merton on 

behalf of LEDNet 

 

   

 Report 

October 2014 

Our ref: 22709601 

Client ref: E10217902RPP 

 

 Page 111



Page 112



 

Steer Davies Gleave has prepared this work for London Borough of Merton on behalf of LEDNet. This 

work may only be used within the context and scope of work for which Steer Davies Gleave was 

commissioned and may not be relied upon in part or whole by any third party or be used for any other 

purpose. Any person choosing to use any part of this work without the express and written permission 

of Steer Davies Gleave shall be deemed to confirm their agreement to indemnify Steer Davies Gleave for 

all loss or damage resulting therefrom. Steer Davies Gleave has prepared this work using professional 

practices and procedures using information available to it at the time and as such any new information 

could alter the validity of the results and conclusions made. 

 Research into the 

impacts of 20mph speed 

limits and zones 

London Borough of Merton on 

behalf of LEDNet 

 

   

 Report 

October 2014 

Our ref:  22709601 

Client ref:  E10217902RPP 

 

 

 Prepared by: 

 

Prepared for: 

 

 Steer Davies Gleave 

28-32 Upper Ground 

London  SE1 9PD 

 

London Borough of Merton on behalf of 

LEDNet 

Merton Civic Centre 

London Road 

Morden 

SM4 5DX 

 +44 (0)20 7910 5000 

www.steerdaviesgleave.com 

 

Page 113



 

 October 2014 

Contents 

Executive summary ....................................................................................................................... i 

Legal, regulatory and policy context.............................................................................................. i 

20mph zones and limits across London ......................................................................................... i 

Road safety rationale for 20mph speed limits .............................................................................. i 

Impacts of 20mph schemes ...........................................................................................................ii 

Examples of policy in practice .......................................................................................................ii 

Conclusions ....................................................................................................................................ii 

1 Introduction ....................................................................................................................... 1 

2 Legal, regulatory and policy context .................................................................................... 2 

Introduction .................................................................................................................................. 2 

Legal and regulatory context ........................................................................................................ 2 

Policy context................................................................................................................................ 7 

3 20mph zones and limits across London ............................................................................. 13 

Introduction ................................................................................................................................ 14 

Responses ................................................................................................................................... 14 

Analysis of questionnaire responses .......................................................................................... 25 

4 Road safety rationale for 20mph speed limits .................................................................... 29 

Introduction ................................................................................................................................ 29 

Speed and road safety ................................................................................................................ 30 

Impact of speed limit changes on speeds ................................................................................... 32 

Factors affecting driver speed choice ......................................................................................... 33 

5 Impacts of 20mph schemes ............................................................................................... 35 

Introduction ................................................................................................................................ 35 

General studies ........................................................................................................................... 36 

Specific studies ........................................................................................................................... 38 

Overall findings ........................................................................................................................... 40 

6 Examples of policy in practice ........................................................................................... 41 

Introduction ................................................................................................................................ 41 

United Kingdom .......................................................................................................................... 41 

Examples from Europe and overseas ......................................................................................... 51 

Other implementation issues ..................................................................................................... 56 

Discussion of key findings ........................................................................................................... 57 

7 Detailed case studies ........................................................................................................ 60 

Introduction ................................................................................................................................ 60 

Islington ...................................................................................................................................... 60 

Camden ....................................................................................................................................... 61 

Kingston upon Thames ............................................................................................................... 63 

Bristol .......................................................................................................................................... 64 

Page 114



 

 October 2014 

8 Lessons for future 20mph policy in London........................................................................ 66 

Introduction ................................................................................................................................ 66 

Overall approach ........................................................................................................................ 67 

Scheme costs and benefits ......................................................................................................... 72 

Monitoring and evaluation ......................................................................................................... 73 

Compliance ................................................................................................................................. 73 

 

 

Figures 
Figure 2.1 The implications of street-types for the speed environment ...................................... 8 

Figure 3.1 Current and future 20mph coverage in London by borough .................................... 26 

Figure 4.1 Change in collisions as a function of change in mean speed for urban / residential 

roads ........................................................................................................................................... 31 

Figure 4.2 Change in casualties as a function of change in mean speed for urban / residential 

roads ........................................................................................................................................... 31 

Figure 4.3 Probability of fatal injury to pedestrians as a function of impact speed................... 32 

Figure 4.4 Relationship between changes in speed limit and changes in mean speed ............. 33 

Figure 8.1 Road speeds in London, peak journey times ............................................................. 69 

Figure 8.2 Road speeds in London, inter peak journey times .................................................... 70 

Figure 8.3 Road speeds in London, night journey times ............................................................ 71 

 

 

Tables 
Table 3.1 Responses received to borough questionnaire .......................................................... 15 

Table 3.2 Summary of responses to borough questionnaire ..................................................... 16 

Table 4.1 Best estimates of exponents for the power model of the relationship between 

changes in speed and changes in road safety, urban / residential roads .................................. 30 

Table 5.1 Descriptions of impact themes ................................................................................... 35 

Table 5.2 Key findings from previous studies ............................................................................. 37 

Table 5.3 DfT Speed Limit Appraisal Tool methodologies .......................................................... 38 

Table 5.4 Impact of 20mph drive cycle on emission factors ...................................................... 39 

Table 5.5 Summary of key findings ............................................................................................. 40 

Table 6.1 Examples of 20mph schemes ...................................................................................... 43 

Table 6.2 Relevant examples from other countries ................................................................... 52 

Table 6.3 AA survey responses ................................................................................................... 56 

Table 6.4 Summary of key findings ............................................................................................. 58 

Table 7.1 Findings from Islington case study .............................................................................. 61 

Table 7.2 Findings from Camden case study .............................................................................. 62 

Table 7.3 Camden’s evaluation of savings from casualty reductions ......................................... 63 

Table 7.4 Findings from Kingston case study .............................................................................. 64 

Table 7.5 Findings from Bristol case study ................................................................................. 65 

Table 8.1 Future 20mph policy for London ................................................................................ 67 

Table 8.2 Estimating impacts ...................................................................................................... 72 

 

 

Page 115



 

 October 2014 

Appendices 

A Reference list 

B Boroughs questionnaire 

 

 

Page 116



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | i 

Executive summary 

Steer Davies Gleave has undertaken a study into the impacts of 20mph limits and zones, for LB 

Merton on behalf of the London Environment Directors’ Network (LEDNet). The purpose of 

this study has been to conduct desktop research, in order to examine the available evidence 

and inform future 20mph policy in London. 

Legal, regulatory and policy context 

The new version of the TSRGD (proposed for introduction next year) incorporates the 

relaxation in requirements for physical traffic calming introduced in 2011. It also makes the 

lighting of regulatory signs within 20mph zones optional. 

Enforcement of 20mph speed limits is possible, and does take place (using both fixed speed 

cameras and mobile enforcement by police). However, the police’s recently revised guidelines 

state that whilst enforcement of 20mph speed limits will be considered, it cannot take the 

place of proper engineering. 

Recent London-wide policy documents and strategies support the continued roll-out of 20mph 

schemes, including by boroughs and (where appropriate) on TLRN roads. The Roads Task Force 

identified 20mph as being a suitable speed limit for streets in certain movement and place 

categories. The contribution that 20mph schemes can make towards achieving reduction in 

casualties and improving road safety, including for pedestrians and cyclists, is also emphasised. 

20mph zones and limits across London 

A questionnaire was sent to all 33 local authorities in London with 15 responses received, and 

a number of key themes emerged. A borough-wide approach is becoming more widespread, 

especially in inner London. There is variability as to whether borough main roads are included 

or excluded from a blanket 20mph approach. Other boroughs implement 20mph schemes on 

an area-by-area basis, most commonly prioritising areas based on collision history, resident 

requests, and in some cases the presence of schools. 

Using a 20mph limit (with signage and road markings only) is the most common approach that 

is now taken. This is because it is cheaper than schemes involving physical traffic calming 

measures, and also avoids the opposition that physical measures often attract. In some cases, 

a budget is held back so that some target traffic calming can be implemented where high 

speeds persist. Publicity and marketing are often undertaken in conjunction with scheme 

implementation, but it appears that these are seen as ancillary measures rather than a core 

part of 20mph schemes. 

Before and after vehicle speeds and collisions are generally monitored, along with traffic 

volumes in some cases. Reductions in collisions and vehicle speeds are generally achieved, 

although the effect is smaller for schemes without physical measures. One weakness is that 

monitoring often only takes places over a relatively short period (most usually a year); a longer 

monitoring period would provide more robust information. 

Achieving compliance with 20mph schemes is an ongoing challenge. Whilst it seems that 

police are becoming more willing to enforce 20mph, their position remains that there should 

be no expectation for additional police resources. 

Road safety rationale for 20mph speed limits 

Page 117



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | ii 

The available evidence shows a clear link between average vehicle speeds, and the number 

and severity of collisions that occur. A reduction in vehicle speeds would be expected to both 

reduce the number of collisions that occur, and decrease the severity of those that do occur. 

Reducing speed limits is one way to lower vehicle speeds. The available evidence indicates 

that on average, the change in average vehicle speed is approximately 25% of the change in 

the speed limit. This would equate to a decrease of about 2.5mph for a 10mph reduction in 

the speed limit. However, this is heavily dependent on local circumstances. 

There are a number of factors (apart from the legal speed limit itself) that influence the 

drivers’ speeds. Physical measures can be used, but these are expensive to implement. 

Enforcement can also be used, and Intelligent Speed Adaptation (ISA) is an emerging 

technology that may prove useful. However, the key to achieving a sustainable decrease in 

vehicle speeds is via cultural change. 

Impacts of 20mph schemes 

There is strong evidence that 20mph zones result in significant casualty reductions, although 

the available studies focus on zones with physical traffic calming. Such zones result in a decline 

in speeds on about 9mph on average. The evidence on vehicle emissions is mixed, with the 

effect dependent on fuel type and driving styles. Any impact on traffic noise is likely to be 

negligible. There is also some evidence that 20mph zones can reduce traffic volumes and 

increase the use of sustainable modes, such as walking and cycling, especially where 20mph is 

implemented as part of a wider package of measures. 

Examples of policy in practice 

A number of examples of 20mph policy in practice were examined. It was found that in the UK, 

signed-only 20mph schemes generally achieve relatively small speed reductions of 1–2mph, 

although early monitoring suggests that even this small change is translating into noticeable 

road safety benefits. This will need to be confirmed once further data is available. There may 

be some other positive impacts from these schemes, although there is currently little data 

available that is conclusive. 

An examination of case studies from overseas has shown that many countries have followed a 

similar trajectory of relaxation in the requirements for physical measures as part of 30km/h 

schemes. The aim of this has been to facilitate more widespread implementation of such 

schemes. One of the most relevant overseas examples is from Graz in Austria, where a 30km/h 

city-wide limit was implemented primarily using signs, and in conjunction with a programme 

of police enforcement. Whilst there was only a minor reduction in average vehicle speeds, 

significant decreases in collisions and casualties was observed. 

Research conducted by the University of the West of England suggests that it is crucial that an 

integral programme of ‘soft’ measures be included as part of any signed-only 20mph limit. The 

aim is to effect cultural change amongst drivers, so that driving at 20mph in urban areas 

becomes normal. 

Conclusions 

Based on the evidence that has been compiled, the key conclusions of this study are that: 

· The evidence is clear that reducing vehicle speeds results in fewer and less severe 

collisions, particularly for vulnerable road users. 

Page 118



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | iii 

· Historically, 20mph zones have been successful at reducing speeds by using physical traffic 

calming measures. Limited resources and relaxed regulations mean that signed-only 20mph 

limits are now preferred, however these tend to achieve smaller decreases in vehicle 

speeds. 

· The challenge is to find ways to achieve reductions in vehicle speeds in signed-only 20mph 

limits, so that safety benefits are still achieved. Enforcement is only a partial solution, with 

changed driver attitudes so that 20mph is seen as the appropriate speed in urban areas

being the key to achieving sustained reductions in vehicle speeds; although this will take 

time, there are precedents such as attitudes towards drink driving. This may be supported 

by new technologies, such as Intelligent Speed Adaptation (ISA). 

· This suggests that supporting measures that foster cultural change need to be an integral 

part of all 20mph schemes. 

Based on this, a recommended policy approach for London is outlined in the table below. 

Item Description 

Overall approach 

· Applying an area-wide approach has the benefit of providing greater consistency for 

drivers, improving awareness and supporting cultural change 

· There is already a nucleus of existing 20mph boroughs in central London, and this could 

be used as a starting point for outwards expansion 

· 20mph limits supported primarily by signage and roadmarkings are more cost effective; 

however, a budget should be retained to implement targeted measures where high 

vehicle speeds persist 

· Whether borough main roads and TLRN roads are included in 20mph schemes should 

be decided based on the local context 

· At least 10% of the implementation budget should be set aside for a package of 

complementary ‘soft’ measures to foster cultural change 

Costs and benefits 

· Evaluation of scheme benefits should focus on road safety impacts, and test a range of 

scenarios given the difficulty of accurately predicting changes in vehicle speeds 

· More certainty on the impacts of 20mph limits will be available once the DfT study is 

complete in 2017 

Monitoring and 

evaluation 

· More comprehensive monitoring over at least a three year period (encompassing 

collisions, vehicle speeds, movement volumes and a comparison against control areas) 

should be undertake to evaluate the effectiveness of 20mph schemes 

· There would be merit in creating a London-wide system for monitoring the effects of 

20mph schemes 

Compliance 

· Police enforcement is limited by available resources; this could be alleviated by allowing 

local authorities to enforce speed, which would enable better responsiveness to local 

issues and priorities 

· Technology such as Intelligent Speed Adaptation (ISA) has a role to play in achieving 

compliance, and more widespread adoption should be promoted 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 119



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 1 

1 Introduction 
1.1 This report sets out the findings of a study into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones, 

which Steer Davies Gleave has been commissioned to undertake by the London Borough of 

Merton on behalf of the London Environment Directors’ Network (LEDNet). 

1.2 As stated in the project brief, the purpose of this project is to: 

‘…understand the effectiveness and impact of 20mph zones or limits 

where they have been introduced as area / city / authority wide schemes.’ 

1.3 This research has been undertaken in two main stages: 

· Stage 1 Comparative Study: General review and comparative study, which includes a 

literature review and examination of examples from both the UK and abroad, as well as a 

survey of London local authorities. This stage will provide useful context on the current 

state of 20mph limits and zones. 

· Stage 2 Detailed Investigations: More detailed investigation of four selected case studies, 

which will have been selected in conjunction with LEDNet. By focussing on a smaller 

number of case studies that are particularly pertinent, more in-depth and incisive insights 

have been gained. 

1.4 Following this introduction, the report includes the following chapters: 

· Chapter 2 Legal, regulatory and policy context 

· Chapter 3 20mph zones and limits across London 

· Chapter 4 Rationale for 20mph speed limits 

· Chapter 5 Impacts of 20mph schemes 

· Chapter 6 Policy in practice 

· Chapter 7 Detailed case studies 

· Chapter 8 Conclusions and next steps 

Page 120



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 2 

2 Legal, regulatory and policy context 
Chapter summary 

· The new version of the TSRGD (proposed for introduction next year) incorporates the 

relaxation in requirements for physical traffic calming introduced in 2011. It also makes the 

lighting of regulatory signs within 20mph zones optional. 

· Enforcement of 20mph speed limits is possible, and does take place (using both fixed speed 

cameras and mobile enforcement by police). However, the police’s recently revised 

guidelines state that whilst enforcement of 20mph speed limits will be considered, it 

cannot take the place of proper engineering. 

· Recent London-wide policy documents and strategies support the continued roll-out of 

20mph schemes, including by boroughs and (where appropriate) on TLRN roads. The Roads 

Task Force identified 20mph as being a suitable speed limit for streets in certain movement 

and place categories. The contribution that 20mph schemes can make towards achieving 

reduction in casualties and improving road safety, including for pedestrians and cyclists, is 

also emphasised. 

 

Introduction 

2.1 The ability of highway authorities to introduce 20mph schemes is heavily influenced by the 

legal, regulatory and policy context. For example, legal requirements dictate what is needed to 

implement such schemes, whilst the policy context has a bearing on whether the strategic fit 

of 20mph schemes can be demonstrated and hence the likelihood of obtaining funding for 

implementation. 

Legal and regulatory context 

2.2 There are a number of documents, including various pieces of legislation and regulations, that 

prescribe the requirements for 20mph zones and limits. The key documents of most relevance 

are: 

· Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 

· Traffic Signs Regulations and General Directions (TSRGD) 2002 as amended 

Page 121



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 3 

· Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders (Procedure) (England and Wales) Regulations 1996 

· DfT Circular 01/2013 Setting local speed limits 

· Traffic Advisory Leaflet 9/99 20mph speed limits and zones 

· Traffic Management Act 2004 

2.3 DfT Circular 01/2013 Setting local speed limits provides guidance to highway authorities who 

are considering setting local speed limits, including 20mph zones and limits. 

2.4 The most important distinction to be made is the difference between 20mph zones and 

20mph limits: 

· 20mph zones are supported by traffic calming and other features 

· 20mph limits are implemented using speed limit signage, and are not necessarily 

supported by traffic calming or other features 

2.5 The features that are required in a 20mph zone are prescribed, and must generally be placed 

at intervals of no greater than 100m. Previously, only certain physical traffic calming features 

could be used to meet this requirement, but recently more flexibility has been allowed. The 

implication of this is that it may reduce the cost of implementing 20mph zones by reducing the 

number of physical traffic calming features required. The features that can be used are: 

· A repeater speed sign (TSRGD diagram 670) 

· A speed roundel road marking (TSRGD diagram 1065) 

· A combination of both these signs 

· Traffic calming features  (note that at least one traffic calming feature must still be present 

in each 20mph zone) 

2.6 On the other hand, as 20mph limits do not require any features (aside from the necessary 

regulatory signs), they are generally cheaper to implement compared to 20mph zones. 

However, the DfT circular states that 20mph limits are only suitable when mean speeds are 

already at or below 24mph. 

2.7 In any case, it is also stated that both 20mph zones and limits should be self-enforcing, with no 

expectation for the police to enforce them. This is consistent with the previous position of the 

Association of Chief Police Officers (ACPO), however revised speed enforcement guidelines 

were published last year (and discussed below). 

2.8 The DfT circular outlines the factors to be taken into account when considering 20mph zones 

and limits. It states that 20mph zones and limits may be appropriate in the following 

situations: 

· ‘Major streets where there are—or could be—significant numbers of journeys on foot, 

and/or where pedal cycle movements are an important consideration, and this outweighs 

the disadvantage of longer journey times for motorised traffic.’ 

· ‘Residential streets in cities, towns and villages, particularly where the streets are being 

used by people on foot and on bicycles, there is community support and the characteristics 

of the street are suitable.’ 

2.9 More generally, the circular also notes that it is ‘important to consider the full range of options 

and their benefits’. 

2.10 As part of the traffic order making process related to the implementation of a 20mph zone or 

limit, statutory consultation must be undertaken with a number of specified organisations. 

However, it is recommended that consultation not be limited to this minimum; the DfT circular 

Page 122



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 4 

states that ‘comprehensive and early consultation of all those who may be affected’ should be 

undertaken. 

2.11 Accompanying the DfT circular is a Speed Limit Appraisal Tool, which is intended to assist 

highway authorities in assessing the impacts of setting a local speed limit. The impacts that 

this tool takes into account are: 

· Safety 

· Traffic speeds 

· Emissions 

· Noise 

· Traffic volumes 

2.12 These impacts, and the methodologies adopted to estimate these impacts, are discussed 

further in Chapter 5. 

2.13 An older document relevant to 20mph zones and limits is Traffic Advisory Leaflet 9/99 20mph 

speed limits and zones. Whilst some of the content of this document (in particular regarding 

regulations) is now out of date, it contains design advice that remains useful. This includes 

considerations such as the location and design of zone and limit boundaries, and the range of 

traffic calming measures available to moderate vehicle speeds. 

2.14 Earlier this year, DfT ran a consultation on the revised TSRGD to be introduced in 2015. The 

consultation closed in mid-June and the feedback received is currently being analysed. The 

new TSRGD will incorporate the change in requirements for traffic calming measures within 

20mph zones previously permitted under an Area-Wide Special Direction issued on 17 October 

2011. 

2.15 It is also proposed that the new TSRGD will provide traffic authorities with the option of not 

directly lighting regulatory signs within 20mph zones (although if not lit they must be 

reflectorised). 

2.16 The DfT circular states that: 

The Government recognises that 20 mph zones and 20 mph limits can be 

useful in the right locations, but that these are local decisions which 

should be made in consultation with local communities. It is hoped that 

the removal of the requirement for sign lighting within 20 mph zones and 

limits, and the relaxations in respect of traffic calming measures within 20 

mph zones will incentivise traffic authorities to consider such measures.
1
 

2.17 More generally, the Traffic Management Act 2004 contains various requirements on how 

highway authorities should manage their road networks. The act places a duty on an authority 

to secure the expeditious movement of traffic on their network, and to facilitate the same on 

the networks of other authorities. This is perceived by some as a duty to secure the fast 

movement of motorised traffic, and is therefore used as an argument against 20mph schemes. 

However, this narrow interpretation does not reflect the whole meaning of this requirement, 

                                                           
1
 Page 25 of circular 

Page 123



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 5 

as ‘traffic’ encompasses all modes of transport using roads, including pedestrians. This duty is 

essentially about balancing the needs of all road users, and also operates alongside other 

duties, including those in the area of road safety. This is made clear in the DfT’s Network 

Management Duty Guidance: 

The overall aim of the “expeditious movement of traffic” implies a 

network that is working efficiently without unnecessary delay to those 

travelling on it. But the duty is also qualified in terms of practicability and 

other responsibilities of the authority. This means that the duty is placed 

alongside all the other things that an authority has to consider, and it does 

not take precedence. So, for example, securing the expeditious movement 

of vehicles should not be at the expense of an authority’s road safety 

objectives. But, the statutory duty reflects the importance placed on 

making best use of existing road space for the benefit of all road users.
2

2.18 In addition, experience from schemes that whilst concerns are sometimes raised regarding 

increased journey times, there have generally been no noticeable impacts (on either general 

traffic or buses) once a scheme has been implemented. This is discussed later in this report. 

Enforcement 

2.19 Enforcement is one tool that can be used to encourage compliance with speed limits, and this 

includes 20mph speed limits. This section begins by discussing the current police guidance on 

the enforcement of 20mph speed limits. A number of examples where 20mph are enforced in 

practice are then outlined. 

Association of Chief Police Officers (ACPO) Guidelines 

2.20 Prior to a revision of its speed enforcement policy guidelines in 2013, the Association of Chief 

Police Officers (ACPO) came under criticism for their approach to the enforcement of 20mph 

limits. The impression had been that the police took the view that 20mph zones should be 

largely ‘self-enforcing’ and that enforcement would be confined to taking action against 

motorists who persistently broke the law. 

2.21 The new guidance, whilst still emphasising that ‘enforcement cannot and must not take the 

place of proper engineering and/or clear signing’, brings the enforcement of 20mph limits 

closer to the approach used in regard to other speed limits. The document recommends that, 

in 20mph areas, drivers caught at speeds between 24–31mph should be offered the option of 

attending a speed awareness course or receiving a fixed penalty notice fine. At speeds of 

35mph+ a summons is issued. 

2.22 The new guidance states that: 

Enforcement will be considered in all clearly posted limits… but limits are 

only one element of speed management and local speed limits should not 

be set in isolation. They should be part of a package with other measures 

                                                           
2
 Department for Transport (2004) Traffic Management Act 2004 Network Management Duty Guidance 

Page 124



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 6 

to manage speeds which include engineering, visible interventions and 

landscaping standards that respect the needs of all road users and raise 

the driver’s awareness of their environment, together with education, 

driver information, training and publicity.
3
 

2.23 The National Driver Offender Retraining Scheme (NDORS) has developed a speed awareness 

course tailored to 20mph zones. It was introduced in November 2013 and will run until 2016. 

Examples of 20mph enforcement 

2.24 The new guidance discussed above was only released last year, and there has been a 

perception that enforcement of 20mph speed limits was difficult. Nevertheless, there are a 

number of examples where these limits are being enforced. 

2.25 A 20mph speed limit is enforced on Tower Bridge by the City of London Police to minimise 

damage to the bridge’s structure. As outlined in Chapter 3, the City of London has introduced 

a 20mph limit on nearly all its roads in a bid to reduce collisions. Police have said they will 

actively enforce the limit
4
. 

2.26 Average 20mph speed cameras have been in place along Southend-on-Sea’s Marine Parade 

since 2011 to enforce a 20mph zone. The zone was created following the introduction of the 

£7.6m City Beach shared space area. It may be extended to Western Esplanade in future if 

plans for a new £35m museum become a reality.  

2.27 In Edinburgh, traffic police with speed guns began patrolling residential streets in May 2014 to 

enforce 20mph limits. Officers were positioned at accident black-spots as Edinburgh headed 

towards becoming the first city in Scotland to introduce 20mph limits across all residential 

areas. Previously, 20mph speed limits had been controlled through speed bumps and traffic 

calming measures but not enforcement. Police had been unwilling to devote resources to 

20mph enforcement but this changed under a deal struck with city leaders. The city council 

made enforcement of 20mph areas part of its “service level agreement” with Police Scotland 

which saw it provide £2.6 million to enhance community policing. The agreement gave city 

leaders the right to a refund if officers were switched from their community role without 

approval. 

2.28 In London, Hackney Borough Council has called for councils to be given the power to enforce 

20mph speed limits using mobile and average speed cameras. In a draft transport strategy, 

Hackney encourages the lobbying of central government and the mayor of London to grant 

new powers and adopt the principles of strict liability whereby a driver would be liable for an 

accident involving a cyclist – even if the cyclist was at fault
5
. 

                                                           
3
 ACPO Speed Enforcement Policy Guidelines 2011-2015: Joining Forces for Safer Roads (2013), 

Association of Chief Police Officers 
4
 Rucki A (2014) All roads in the City will have 20mph speed limit by the end of the month, London 

Evening Standard. Available at http://www.standard.co.uk/news/transport/all-roads-in-the-city-will-

have-20mph-speed-limit-by-the-end-of-the-month-9582113.html 
5
 Give us power to enforce 20mph, says Hackney (2014) Local Transport Today. Available at 

https://www.transportxtra.com/magazines/local_transport_today/news/?id=38575 [Accessed online 

25
th

 July 2014]. 

Page 125



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 7 

2.29 These examples demonstrate that enforcement of 20mph speed limits has been taking place 

and is possible, using both speed cameras and police with speed guns. 

Policy context 

2.30 Apart from legislation, relevant policies also influence whether and how 20mph schemes can 

be implemented. This section discusses a number of London-wide policies, that make 

reference to 20mph schemes: 

· Roads Task Force 

· Safe Streets for London 

· Pedestrian Safety Action Plan 

· Cycle Safety Action Plan 

· London Cycle Design Standards (LCDS) 

Roads Task Force (RTF) 

2.31 The establishment of the RTF was a Mayoral manifesto commitment. It was set up in 2012 to 

consider the challenges facing London’s roads now and in the future. 

2.32 The RTF notes that speed limits will play an important role where movement and place need 

to be more balanced, where there are high levels of pedestrian and cycling activity and where 

safety issues need to be tackled. One RTF recommendation was that the speed environment 

should be linked to different street types (based on movement and place) as shown in Figure 

2.1. 

Page 126



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 8 

Figure 2.1 The implications of street-types for the speed environment
6
 

 

Source: The Vision and Direction for London’s Streets and Roads (2013) Roads Task Force, Page 95, Figure 15

2.33 The RTF has identified five toolbox ‘compartments’ which must all play a role if the vision for 

London is to be achieved. Each compartment contains tools that support the different 

functions, namely living, unlocking, functioning, protecting and sustaining – as well as moving. 

2.34 Compartment 2, ‘Making more efficient and flexible use of space’, is about creating vibrant, 

safe and efficiently connected places which cater for the needs of all users, from business 

freight to pedestrians and cyclists. Tool 2b refers specifically to a ‘Safe Speed Environment’ 

and the particular importance of road design and speed limits for cyclist and pedestrian 

safety
7
. The suggested application of Tool 2b is the implementation of a 20mph zone for 

central London (plus bridges), the roll out of 20mph limits on key street types (e.g. high 

roads/high streets/city hubs) and the introduction of average speed cameras. It is deemed 

feasible that this tool can be implemented in the short-term i.e. by 2016. 

 

                                                           
6
 The description of street types corresponding to the 9 tiles in this diagram range from Arterial Road

(top left) to City Place (bottom right). An example of the former is the North Circular whilst an example 

of the latter is Covent Garden. 
7
 The Vision and Direction for London’s Streets and Roads (2013) Roads Task Force, Page 111 

Page 127



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 9 

2.35 In its response to the Roads Task Force
8
, TfL outlined its work to date in improving and 

managing London’s roads and how it will build on this success where there is immediate scope 

to put the RTF’s recommendations into action. With particular reference to Tool 2b, TfL 

committed to: 

· Continue to fund the roll-out of 20mph zones by boroughs through their LIPs, building on 

the 400 plus zones that have been funded by TfL and implemented by the boroughs to 

date; 

· Trial 20mph speed limits at specific locations on the TLRN, such as the Waterloo Imax 

roundabout; 

· Be open to a range of speed limits on main roads in London, including 20mph. Limits 

relevant to key arterial routes are different to those on routes where people live, work and 

shop, and we will consider variable speed limits and 20mph limits where appropriate and in 

line with DfT guidance; 

· Work with London boroughs, such as Islington, Hackney, Camden and the City of London, 

which are all seeking to introduce borough-wide 20mph limits on borough roads and on 

parts of the TLRN, to understand the most effective means of implementation and 

compliance and the wider application in central London; 

· Create a Road Fatalities Review Group to bring together road safety experts to learn 

lessons from fatal and serious collisions 2013 onwards, and develop new and coordinated 

responses to the issues; and 

· From 2013 trial a Community Roadwatch scheme to help local communities in managing 

speeding in their neighbourhoods, and to raise awareness of the dangers of excessive 

speed and anti-social driving. 

2.36 The prevailing message from both the Roads Task Force and TfL is that targeted reductions to 

speed limits will help to improve the environment for walking and cycling, contribute to 

revitalised urban destinations, reduce severance, increase community interaction and 

cohesion and improve general levels of road safety. 

Safe Streets for London 

2.37 Safe Streets for London: The Road Safety Action Plan for London 2020 (June 2013) is TfL’s 

overall road safety plan. It contains a number of actions organised under three headings: safe 

roads; safe vehicles; and safe people. 

2.38 In general, the plan is supportive of 20mph limits and zones, supporting their expansion on 

both borough and Transport for London Road Network (TLRN) roads, subject to consideration 

of the function of each road taking into account Roads Task Force principles. The key actions in 

the plan of relevance are: 

· Safe Roads Action 11: Building on the success of more than 400 20mph zone schemes in 

London, TfL will support the installation of further 20mph zones and limits on borough 

roads where compatible with the functions of the local road network. This will be delivered 

through: 

· Funding of new zones and limits through LIPs 

                                                           
8
 Delivering the Vision for London's Streets and Roads: Transport for London’s Response to the Roads 

Task Force (2013), TfL, London 

Page 128



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 10 

· Engaging with police and boroughs to establish effective methods of ensuring 

compliance and maximising casualty reduction impacts, including consideration of 

enforcement by cameras (2013 onwards) 

· Supporting boroughs in evaluating ways of ensuring casualty reduction through 20mph 

limits (2013 onwards) 

· Safe Roads Action 12: TfL will continue to be open to a range of speed limits on London’s 

main roads, including 20mph where appropriate, in light of the Roads Task Force’s 

fundamental review identifying the need to manage the wide range of roads in London in 

different ways. Limits needed on key arterial routes are different from those on routes 

where people live, work and shop. In light of the Task Force’s and DfT guidance, TfL will 

continue to consider variable speed limits and 20mph limits where appropriate, for 

example Camberwell and Waterloo, where cycle improvements are planned. TfL will also 

integrate international best practice to ensure the most effective use of 20mph (30kph) 

limits in city settings (2013). 

· Safe People Action 37: TfL will use its power and influence to seek amendments to 

legislation so that speed awareness courses can be offered to drivers as an alternative to 

prosecution for exceeding a 20mph speed limit. This will reduce reoffending by drivers and 

will require working with central government and the police (2013 onwards). 

2.39 In addition, the plan specifically notes locations where 20mph zones and limits are introduced 

as areas where research should be undertaken to understand their impact. It also states that 

consideration will be given to 20mph limits enforced by cameras. 

Pedestrian Safety Action Plan 

2.40 The draft Pedestrian Safety Action Plan (2014) sets out a strategy for improving the safety of 

pedestrians in London. It contains actions aimed at reducing pedestrian casualties ranging 

from design guidelines to speed enforcement. 

2.41 The plan highlights how the likelihood of severe injury and death increases dramatically with 

speed; at 20mph most pedestrians will survive a collision but at 40mph the risk of fatal injury 

increases to 31%
9
. The key actions in the plan related to speed are: 

· Action 10: TfL, alongside the City of London, will trial 20mph speed limits on two stretches 

of the TLRN across the City of London, including London Bridge and Blackfriars Bridge to 

reduce casualties associated with speed. The trials will be closely monitored with a view to 

rolling out similar schemes elsewhere on the TLRN in future. This action is due to be 

completed by 2015. 

· Action 11: TfL will continue to encourage London boroughs to deliver more 20mph 

schemes through their Local Implementation Plan (LIP) programmes, in order to create 

safer environments for pedestrians in London. This action will start in 2014 and will then 

be ongoing throughout the draft plan to 2020. 

· Action 12: TfL will crack down on speeding vehicles that threaten pedestrian safety by: 

· replacing around 350 obsolete wet film speed cameras with digital cameras across 

London; 

· installing approximately 250 digital red light cameras at around 200 junctions across 

London; and 

                                                           
9
 Draft Pedestrian Safety Action Plan (2014), TfL, London 

Page 129



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 11 

· installing average speed camera system trials on stretches of the following four roads in 

the Capital: A406, A40, A2 and A316. 

This action is due to be completed by 2016. 

· Action 13: Building on the success of Operation Safeway, TfL will issue the Metropolitan 

Police Service Roads Policing Unit with maps and data highlighting the location of high 

pedestrian risk, in order to better target their enforcement activity. They will also focus on 

issues such as cracking down on mobile phone use whilst driving and educating drivers 

about flashing amber signals at pedestrian crossings. This action is due to be completed by 

2020. 

· Action 14: The Mayor and TfL will work with the police to embed the use of Speed 

Awareness Courses for motorists as an alternative to prosecution in cases of minor speed 

infractions, with a focus on 20mph limits. Greater enforcement of 20mph limits will ensure 

the safety benefits of lower speeds limits for pedestrians are fully realised. This action is 

due to be completed by 2015. 

Cycle Safety Action Plan 

2.42 The draft Cycle Safety Action Plan (2014) sets out a strategy for improving the safety of cyclists 

in London. It contains actions aimed at reducing cycling casualties ranging from junction 

improvements to driver awareness. 

2.43 The Designing safe streets for cycling section sets out actions to improve the infrastructure of 

London's streets to make them safe places to cycle and places where Londoners feel safe to 

cycle. Action 5 essentially repeats Actions 10 and 11 from the Pedestrian Safety Action Plan 

but with a specific focus on cyclists: 

· Action 5: TfL, alongside the City of London, will trial 20mph speed limits on two stretches of 

the TLRN in the City of London, including London Bridge and Blackfriars Bridge, to create 

safer and more attractive environments for cycling. The trials will be closely monitored to 

help understand the potential of 20mph limits at other locations on the TLRN. TfL will also 

continue to encourage London boroughs to deliver more 20mph schemes through their LIP 

programmes. 

London Cycle Design Standards (LCDS) 

2.44 TfL are currently consulting on a new version of the London Cycle Design Standards (LCDS). 

The consultation draft draws on Dutch experience, outlining a ‘cycle street’ treatment  may be 

appropriate for streets that have high cycle volumes relative to motor vehicle volumes. Such a 

treatment involved marking advisory cycle lanes and removing the centre line on quiet local 

streets with narrow carriageways. Whilst a type of cycle street is proposed for inclusion in the 

TSRGD 2015, in the interim the LCDS suggests that cycle streets could be implemented within 

20mph zones, by using the lower panel of the 20mph zone signs to indicate that status of such 

streets. 

2.45 In addition, the consultation document specifically refers to 20mph speed limits on cycle 

routes: 

Wherever possible, 20mph should be the maximum speed limit on roads 

forming part of designated cycling routes off main roads, including local 

streets, town squares and city places. Locations where 20mph limits may 

Page 130



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 12 

be appropriate should be identified and assessed through the route 

assessment process… (page 197) 

Page 131



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 13 

3 20mph zones and limits across 
London 
Chapter summary 

· A borough-wide approach is becoming more widespread, especially in inner London. There 

is variability as to whether borough main roads are included or excluded from a blanket 

20mph approach. 

· Other boroughs implement 20mph schemes on an area-by-area basis, most commonly 

prioritising areas based on collision history, resident requests, and in some cases the 

presence of schools. 

· Using a 20mph limit (with signage and road markings only) is the most common approach 

that is now taken. This is because it is cheaper than schemes involving physical traffic 

calming measures, and also avoids the opposition that physical measures often attract. In 

some cases, a budget is held back so that some target traffic calming can be implemented 

where high speeds persist. 

· Publicity and marketing are often undertaken in conjunction with scheme implementation, 

but it appears that these are seen as ancillary measures rather than a core part of 20mph 

schemes. 

· Before and after vehicle speeds and collisions are generally monitored, along with traffic 

volumes in some cases. Reductions in collisions and vehicle speeds are generally achieved, 

although the effect is smaller for schemes without physical measures. One weakness is that 

monitoring often only takes places over a relatively short period (most usually a year); a 

longer monitoring period would provide more robust information. 

· Achieving compliance with 20mph schemes is an ongoing challenge. Whilst it seems that 

police are becoming more willing to enforce 20mph, their position remains that there 

should be no expectation for additional police resources. 

 

  

Page 132



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 14 

Introduction 

3.1 In order to inform this study, it is important to understand the current situation regarding 

20mph zones and limits throughout London, and the current policies and approaches various 

local authorities have towards 20mph schemes. To collect this information, a short 

questionnaire was developed, and supplied to LEDNet to be sent to each of the 33 local 

authorities in London (including those who are not LEDNet members). 

3.2 A copy of this questionnaire is included in Appendix B. The questionnaire contained questions 

on the following topics: 

· Current coverage of 20mph zones and limits 

· Current policies 

· Approach to implementation and prioritisation 

· Reasoning 

· Monitoring and evaluation 

· Barriers and challenges 

 

Responses 

3.3 A total of 15 responses were received, which represents a response rate of 45%. A significantly 

higher response rate was achieved for inner London authorities (9 out of 13, or 69%) 

compared to outer London authorities (6 out of 20, or 30%). A summary of the boroughs that 

responded is included in Table 3.1 below. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 133



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 15 

Table 3.1 Responses received to borough questionnaire 

Local authoritiy LEDNet member Response received? 

INNER LONDON 

Camden Yes Yes 

City of London Yes Yes 

Greenwich No Yes 

Hackney Yes No 

Hammersmith and Fulham Yes Yes 

Islington Yes Yes 

Kensington and Chelsea Yes No 

Lambeth Yes Yes 

Lewisham Yes No 

Southwark Yes Yes 

Tower Hamlets Yes Yes 

Wandsworth Yes Yes 

Westminster Yes No 

OUTER LONDON 

Barking and Dagenham Yes No 

Barnet Yes No 

Bexley No No 

Brent Yes Yes 

Bromley Yes No 

Croydon No Yes 

Ealing Yes Yes 

Enfield Yes No 

Haringey Yes Yes 

Harrow Yes No 

Havering Yes No 

Hillingdon No No 

Hounslow Yes No 

Kingston upon Thames Yes Yes 

Merton Yes Yes 

Newham Yes No 

Redbridge Yes No 

Richmond upon Thames Yes No 

Sutton Yes No 

Waltham Forest Yes No 

 

3.4 A summary of the key points made by each authority in their responses to the questionnaire is 

included in Table 3.2 below. 

 

Page 134



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 16 

 

Table 3.2 Summary of responses to borough questionnaire 

Borough 
Current 

coverage 
Policies, approach and reasoning Monitoring and evaluation Barriers and challenges 

INNER LONDON 

Camden All borough 

roads (mix of 

zones and 

limits) 

Short section 

of TLRN 

(Camden High 

Street) 

· Long-standing commitment to introduce 20mph limits and zones 

to reduce casualties, and also encourage more walking and 

cycling; helps to achieve objectives and targets in Camden 

Transport Strategy and Camden Plan 

· Prior to borough-wide limit, zones prioritised based on number of 

casualties and severity; up until 2011 traffic calming was used, 

after this signage primarily used with targeted physical measures 

· Borough-wide limit implemented using signing and lining, 

together with publicity and promotional campaigns; will consider 

additional targeted signing and traffic calming based on results of 

monitoring 

· Case for 20mph limit primarily based on road safety benefits, in 

particular for vulnerable road users such as pedestrians and 

cyclists (which the council wants to encourage); this drew on 

existing research as well as UK case studies (including in Camden), 

and casualty savings (and associated cost savings) calculated 

based on Camden’s three year average casualty data 

· Also looked at existing research on emissions, but not conclusive 

· Case was also made for efficiency savings of a borough-wide limit, 

given that much of the borough was already covered by 20mph, 

and that a borough-wide limit would be more cost effective and 

consistent 

· Did not undertake an assessment of traffic diversions, as the 

existing widespread 20mph in the borough meant that these 

would be occurring anyway 

· Cost of the scheme significantly lower than expected—funding 

drawn from the portion of annual LIP funding allocated for road 

safety 

· Prior to borough-wide limit, 

speed and casualty 

monitoring undertaken on 

zones with traffic calming—

results showed that casualties 

dropped by 53.4% 

· Too early to assess the impact 

of the borough-wide limit, 

but results of monitoring will 

be used to inform where 

additional measures are 

needed 

· 20mph zones and borough-

wide limit generally received 

wide-spread support; 

objections mainly in relation 

to traffic calming measures 

and from taxi drivers 

· TfL were supportive, but 

raised concerns about 

journey time impacts and bus 

reliability 

· Concerns regarding 

enforcement, with police 

expecting that all necessary 

measures will be 

implemented to make the 

20mph limit clear to drivers 

· Some raised concerns that a 

20mph limit would make 

roads more dangerous 

· Issues about road markings 

(particularly in conservation 

areas)—some want less but 

some want more 

P
age 135



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 17 

Borough 
Current 

coverage 
Policies, approach and reasoning Monitoring and evaluation Barriers and challenges 

City of London All roads 

(except for 

A3211 and 

A1210) 

(previously 

20mph on 

several minor 

streets) 

· City-wide 20mph policy adopted in response to increasing 

casualties, related to increased walking and cycling in the City (a 

trend which is expected to continue) 

· Predicted impacts: 

· Reduction in casualties by 8.6% 

· Up to a 10% increase in average journey times 

· Strongly positive impact on walking and cycling environment, 

and modal shift to cycling 

· Significant positive impact on air pollution due to brake and 

tyre wear 

· Insignificant or neutral impact on modal shift to walking; air 

pollution (exhaust emissions); greenhouse gas emissions; 

emissions due to modal shift; noise pollution and vibration 

· Policy supported by City of London Police 

· Surveys across 59 sites 

indicated that the existing 

average spot mean speed in 

the City is 21.9mph 

- 

Greenwich 40% of 

borough roads 

(37 zones) 

45 potential 

zones 

identified for 

remaining 

area 

· Adopted policy of introducing 20mph limits on all residential roads 

· Approach to implementation includes: 

· Speed surveys on every road in zones to identify 85%ile 

speeds, where below 24mph will consider signs only, 

otherwise will introduce physical measures 

· Liaison with local schools to cover road safety, and school 

children provide sketches for use on signage 

· VAS used where appropriate 

· Prioritisation of remaining zones based on analysis of collision 

data, with a total score calculated based on weightings applied to 

various factors: 

· Collision severity 

· Collisions involving vulnerable road users (pedestrians, 

cyclists, P2Ws, children) 

· Journeys to/from school 

· Number of schools in each zone 

· Reviews of zones undertaken 

to asses effectiveness—looks 

typically at speeds and 

collision date (typically 12–18 

months after 

implementation) 

· Main issues is fairly low 

response rate to 

consultations, although 

majority of participants tends 

to be supportive of measures 

P
age 136



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 18 

Borough 
Current 

coverage 
Policies, approach and reasoning Monitoring and evaluation Barriers and challenges 

Hammersmith 

& Fulham 

About half of 

borough roads 

Mostly zones, 

one limit 

· New administration has a manifesto pledge to make all residential 

streets (but not trunk roads) 20mph; case to be built in 2015/16 

LIP funding cycle along with feasibility design and community 

engagement and consultation 

· Historic approach has been to implement based on casualties 

using LIP funding, with a few school specific zones delivered as 

part of school travel plans 

· All zones fully traffic calmed (mostly cushions), entry signs 

designed by local schools and accompanied with local publicity 

campaigns 

· Rolling programme of speed indicator devices that are moved 

around zones on a six monthly basis. 

· Before and after casualty 

monitoring (both for three 

year periods) for various 

zones has shown a decrease 

in injuries of between 40% 

and 70% 

· Most zones have received 

significant majority public 

support 

· Political opposition (to traffic 

calming measures) has been 

major barrier to extending 

the zonal programme, 

alongside decreasing rates of 

return (casualty savings) 

· Perception of poor 

compliance (responded to 

with speed indicator devices) 

Islington All borough 

roads 
· The council supported the implementation of 20mph zones 

through the LIP between 2002 and 2009, when Islington decided 

to complete its programme through the use of 20mph limits using 

council funding 

· Between 2002 and 2009, 20mph zones implemented using 

physical measures, after consulting local residents; prioritisation 

was based on areas with concentrations of casualties 

· After 2009 20mph limits were implemented after consultation to 

complete the programme 

· Surveys have shown a 

reduction in speeds and 

casualties in areas where 

20mph zones have been 

implemented 

· Ongoing monitoring of 

20mph limits shows a slight 

reduction in overall speeds; 

currently working with the 

police and lobbying for 

stronger enforcement 

· Implementation of 20mph 

zones resulted in some 

concerns related to physical 

measures at the time; 

however, no significant calls 

for their removal post-

implementation 

P
age 137



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 19 

Borough 
Current 

coverage 
Policies, approach and reasoning Monitoring and evaluation Barriers and challenges 

Lambeth Approximately 

1/3 
· Lambeth Transport Plan supports borough-wide 20mph but would 

investigate further; a commitment to a 20mph zone was in the 

Lambeth Labour party manifesto and the borough is committed to 

delivering this over the next two years 

· Programme is currently being worked up, but is likely to initially 

roll-out signage with a publicity campaign, with follow-up physical 

measures where there is persistent speeding or local concerns 

· Also considering more intensive engagement with physical 

calming measures and other community street projects in some 

wards, but to be decided as part of overall programme 

· Evidence base will be assembled over next six months as part of 

making the case for borough-wide coverage—but there is already 

general political support 

· Evidence will focus on speed surveys, collision history, quality of 

life and related benefits such as supporting cycling and walking 

- 
· None yet (early stage of 

programme development) 

Southwark 85% of 

borough roads 

All borough 

roads and 

most 

boundary 

roads by 

October 2014 

· Long standing policy in favour of 20mph (Transport Plan 2011); 

Council Assembly passed formal motion in 2013 and subsequently 

a council budget was made available 

· Around 85% of roads already 20mph, remainder to be supported 

by signs and roundels only 

· Do not support use of vehicle activated signs 

· A budget to pay for physical interventions has been held back, but 

these will be concentrated in only those areas where a need is 

evidence once the signage-only approach has been monitored 

· Full before and after 

monitoring is being 

undertaken, but results are 

not yet available 

· Evidence from earlier zones 

has concentrated on speed 

and volume data, although 

given the range of different 

approaches to 

implementation in previous 

years cross-comparison is 

difficult 

· Formal objection from police 

on grounds that some roads 

have a mean speed above 

24mph 

· Some challenges in design 

process to combine a mixture 

of existing 20mph zones and 

limits with a new borough-

wide limits (as legislative and 

signage rules not always 

helpful)—for example, 

treatment of private roads, 

treatment of existing zone 

boundaries 

P
age 138



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 20 

Borough 
Current 

coverage 
Policies, approach and reasoning Monitoring and evaluation Barriers and challenges 

Tower 

Hamlets 

85% of roads 

(23 zones) 
· Plan to implement a borough-wide 20mph limit during the current 

year 

· 85% of the borough already covered has physical traffic calming 

throughout which will be reviewed for effectiveness, but borough-

wide limit will be largely signage and roundels, with 

rearrangement of parking contributing to physical calming 

measures where appropriate 

· Intention is to include the whole borough, including the TLRN if 

TfL can be persuaded 

· Reasoning based on review of existing zones (70% reduction in 

collisions); resident’s perception of road safety and requests for 

speed enforcement led to this becoming a Mayoral pledge at 

recent local elections 

· Before and after road safety 

analysis 

· Potential reluctance of TfL 

and police to cooperate 

· Cost of implementation of 

more traffic calming has 

stalled extension of zones to 

the rest of the borough 

Wandsworth Map supplied, 

appears to 

cover 

approximately 

15%–25% of 

the borough’s 

area 

· Policy supports introducing 20mph schemes, and they are already 

considered as part of the Neighbourhood and Safer Routes to 

School programmes 

· New 20mph zones/limits are resident-led, with support from local 

members 

· Factors to be considered when prioritising schemes include traffic 

speeds; number of collisions; local demand; existing measures; 

removal of existing traffic calming; collisions involving vulnerable 

road users; schools; high number of vulnerable road users; cycle 

route or high number of cyclists’ results of consultations; cost 

· Monitoring of two schemes 

that did not involve 

additional physical traffic 

calming showed mixed results 

for changes in average 

speeds—the Dover House 

area had a reduction of 

0.38mph, and the West 

Putney area had a reduction 

of 1.9mph 

· Road Safety Strategy states 

that traffic surveys (speed 

and flow) should be carried 

out one year after 

construction 

· Main issue has been calls for 

schemes to be enforced—this 

is difficult to control as 

responsibility lies with the 

police, however there are 

regular liaison meetings with 

the police which Wandsworth 

use to influence enforcement 

schedules when police 

resources are available 

 

 

 

P
age 139



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 21 

Borough 
Current 

coverage 
Policies, approach and reasoning Monitoring and evaluation Barriers and challenges 

OUTER LONDON 

Brent Approximately 

24% 
· Current policy is to implement 20mph schemes where required 

(not adopting blanket approach) 

· Where zones are outside schools they have been engaged with, 

and a competition run to design a sign 

· All schemes have involved installing physical traffic calming 

measures 

· Only small number of vehicle activated signs—used where there 

are a very high number of collisions involving pedestrians 

· 20mph zones determined based on collision history, speed survey, 

locations and other benefits to the area (such as air quality, rat-

running, quality of life) 

· Accident reduction · Emergency services 

Croydon Few percent 

(introduced 

over ten years 

ago, mostly 

around 

schools) 

· Looking to develop policy on 20mph zones/limits 

· Approach is to look at large areas of borough 

· Considering whether main roads should be included or not 

· Anticipate using signs-only, with physical measures where 

absolutely necessary 

· Reasoning and priority likely to be based on collision record and 

some form of cost benefit appraisal (as more difficult to judge 

quality of life improvements) 

- 
· Enforcement (or lack of it) 

· Cost of signage 

· Any need for physical 

measures 

· Monitoring / evaluation of 

collisions 

P
age 140



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 22 

Borough 
Current 

coverage 
Policies, approach and reasoning Monitoring and evaluation Barriers and challenges 

Ealing Map supplied, 

appears to 

cover 

approximately 

30%–40% of 

the borough’s 

area 

· 20mph zones/limits are included in Ealing’s LIP as possible 

measure to improve road safety and improve quality of life 

· Approach selected on case by case basis to suit local 

circumstances, and both signage only and physical traffic calming 

schemes have been used 

· Vehicle activated signs have been used in some locations (for 

example on road with large volumes of HGVs) 

· 20mph zones/limits are prioritised according to number of 

collisions and residents’ complaints 

· Some 20mph limits included as integral elements of 

comprehensive road safety and urban realm improvement 

schemes 

· Currently no ‘roll-out’ of 20mph schemes across Ealing, rather 

they are included in the LIP delivery plan according to need (a 

borough-wide police is currently being considered) 

· Before and after assessments 

of collisions in 20mph zones 

· Generally significant barriers 

or challenges not experienced 

· Some complaints and 

negative response from 

certain road user groups and 

sections of the community 

· Overall experience is that the 

majority of residents support 

in public consultations 

Haringey Approximately 

50% (all 

zones) 

· Recently adopted policy is the implement a borough-wide 20mph 

limit, except for Principal Roads not in town centres, which will 

remain at 30mph 

· Approach will use signs and road markings only, with traffic 

calming considered where speeds remain high (particularly 

around schools) 

· Cost of limit estimated at £500–600k and take about 12 months to 

implement, compared to 20mph zones which would cost £20m 

and take 15–20 years to implement 

· Adoption of policy based on extensive consultation with 

stakeholders; neighbouring boroughs’ policies; supporting 

sustainable transport; collision history; speed surveys; perception 

of safety 

· Results of consultation show mixed views—42% of respondents 

support and 46% oppose a borough-wide limit; this changes to 

65% support and 35% oppose if 20mph only applies to residential 

roads and roads outside schools 

· Before and after data for 

20mph zones 

· Resident satisfaction 

· Opposition, both political and 

through consultation 

· Cost (prior to relaxation of 

requirements) 

P
age 141



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 23 

Borough 
Current 

coverage 
Policies, approach and reasoning Monitoring and evaluation Barriers and challenges 

Kingston upon 

Thames 

Approximately 

45% of 

borough roads 

(zones and 

limits) 

Will approach 

50% once 

2014/15 

schemes in 

development 

are 

implemented 

· LIP mentions implementing speed restrictions appropriate to the 

road environment and development of a borough-wide 20mph 

implementation plan 

· Recently carried out a review of all existing 20mph zones/limits 

for compliance with new guidance, which offered opportunity to 

consider areas where new schemes or extensions to existing 

schemes might be appropriate 

· Borough split into four neighbourhood areas, each responsible for 

their own highway network (therefore differing levels of coverage, 

due to differences in willingness to accept vertical deflection): 

· Kingston Town: virtually 100% coverage on non-principal 

roads, more generic approach in residential areas due to 

neighbourhood support for roll-out across the neighbourhood 

· Surbiton: more generic approach in residential areas due to 

neighbourhood support for roll-out across the neighbourhood 

led by officers 

· South of the Borough / Maldens and Coombe: demand-led 

approach, residents’ groups have been driving force 

· Throughout all neighbourhoods, schemes supported by 

assessments of collision data and speed surveys 

· New schemes are generally including a minimum level of physical 

features (subject to existing average speeds ≤25mph), as schemes 

with minimal changes and no vertical deflections more likely to be 

accepted 

· Speed Indicator Display signs used where speeds are insufficiently 

low or have not reduced as much as anticipated 

· Before and after speed 

surveys 

· Before and after collision 

data 

· Currently reviewing all 

existing schemes, will 

undertake changes to bring 

into line with current 

guidance and remove 

potential police objections 

· Historically main challenges 

related to the inclusion and 

siting of physical measures 

(whilst residents generally 

supported schemes they did 

not support physical 

measures adjacent to their 

properties), members in 

some neighbourhoods would 

not agree to schemes with 

physical measures 

P
age 142



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 24 

Borough 
Current 

coverage 
Policies, approach and reasoning Monitoring and evaluation Barriers and challenges 

Merton Approximately 

40% (zones 

and limits) 

· Currently combination of 20 mph limits and zones, majority 

implemented during last 5 years 

· Existing policy (such as in LIP) focusses on need to reduce speeds 

and collision rates, but does not commit to a particular 20mph 

approach; however current administration has adopted an 

evidence-based approach to target areas that experience 

particular issues, until evidence is available to support an 

alternative approach 

· Existing approach generally about targeted interventions on case-

by-case basis, depending on local circumstances; ‘time’ has also 

had an influence upon political thinking and overall approach 

· Both physical traffic calming and signage schemes have been 

used; vehicle activated signs have been used in some locations 

· Schemes generally prioritised according to numbers of collisions / 

complaints from residents 

· A borough-wide policy approach may be considered once 

monitoring work is finalised, and this research has been 

undertaken to determine effectiveness of schemes in other areas 

· Monitoring analysis recently 

commissioned to influence 

future policy and to assess 

the effectiveness of current 

schemes 

· Focus on comparison of 

before and after accident 

data, traffic flows and vehicle 

speed data 

· Work is currently being 

finalised and will be reported 

in autumn 

· Current approach has not 

resulted in significant barriers 

or challenges 

· Cost and budgetary pressures 

support a targeted approach 

at the current time 

· Political and stakeholder 

pressure to implement 

borough-wide 20mph limit, 

but borough will not adopt 

without further evidence 

 

 

P
age 143



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 25 

 

Analysis of questionnaire responses 

3.5 This section discusses the survey responses that have been received, highlighting the main 

themes that have emerged along with useful lessons that are likely to be of relevance across 

London. 

3.6 An important point to note is that the responses received are not likely to be representative of 

the policies and approaches to 20mph across London as a whole. This is because of the higher 

response rate in inner London compared to outer London, coupled with the lack of response 

from any boroughs with a policy position that is not favourable towards 20mph schemes.. 

3.7 The map included in Figure 3.1 below shows both the existing extent of 20mph coverage 

within each borough (for which a response was received), along with potential future coverage 

based on current borough policy. 

 

Page 144



Harrow

upon 

Hammersmith 

& Fulham

Ealing

Kingston 
upon 
Thames

Wandsworth
Lambeth

Croydon

Merton

Brent

Southwark

Tower Hamlets

City

Camden
Islington

Greenwich

Haringey

LEGEND

P
age 145



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 27 

Authorities with a borough-wide approach 

3.8 The responses indicate that a borough-wide approach to 20mph is becoming increasingly 

prevalent, especially in inner London. Out of the responses received from the inner London 

boroughs, all except Wandsworth have implemented or have a policy to implement 20mph on 

a borough-wide basis. In addition to the inner London boroughs, Haringey is also adopting a 

borough-wide approach. 

3.9 These boroughs are currently at different stages—some have completed implementation, 

others have obtained committee/cabinet approval for implementation, whilst others have a 

policy commitment to 20mph but are in the early stages of considering how this will be put 

into practice. In addition, some boroughs are including their main roads within their 20mph 

schemes, whilst others are excluding them. 

· Camden, Islington and the City have implemented 20mph on all of their borough roads, 

including main roads. Islington was the first to do so, followed more recently by Camden 

and then the City. 

· Southwark and Haringey have approval to implement a borough-wide approach. 

Southwark will include all of its borough roads, whilst Haringey is excluding sections of its 

borough main roads. 

· Greenwich has adopted a policy of introducing 20mph limits on all residential roads. This is 

being implemented gradually on a zone-by-zone basis. 

· Tower Hamlets, Lambeth and Hammersmith & Fulham all have a commitment to 

implement 20mph on a borough-wide basis, stemming from pledges made in political 

manifestos for the London local elections earlier this year. 

Other authorities 

3.10 The responses received from authorities that are not pursuing a borough-wide approach were 

all from outer London boroughs, plus Wandsworth. All of these boroughs, with the exception 

of Croydon, currently have between 20% and 60% of their borough roads covered by 20mph. 

· In Brent, Ealing, Merton and Wandsworth, the need for new 20mph schemes is identified 

by what is best described as a case-by-case approach. Areas for new 20mph schemes in 

these boroughs are generally determined based on requests from residents and collision 

history. 

· Kingston has a slightly different approach, due to its system where the borough is split into 

four neighbourhood areas, with each responsible for its own highway network. As such, the 

level of 20mph coverage in each neighbourhood area varies widely. 

· Croydon is currently looking develop a policy on 20mph zones/limits. This follows a hiatus 

of over a decade, prior to which a small number of 20mph zones were installed. 

General findings 

3.11 Apart from the specifics of the current policies and approaches to 20mph discussed above, 

there are a number of more general findings that can be identified from the responses 

received. 

Policies, approaches and reasoning 

· Previously the most common approach adopted was to implement 20mph zones (with 

physical traffic calming) on a zone-by-zone basis. However, many boroughs are now 

utilising 20mph limits (without physical traffic calming) in the first instance, reserving the 

Page 146



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 28 

use of traffic calming measures for areas with persistently high speeds. This has enabled 

the cost of implementing 20mph schemes to fall. 

· The main rationale for implementing 20mph schemes has been to improve road safety, in 

particular for vulnerable road users such as children, pedestrians and cyclists. 

· LIP funding is most commonly used to implement 20mph schemes. 

· Where a blanket borough-wide approach has not been adopted, there are a number of 

different systems that have been used to prioritise areas for 20mph implementation. The 

most common factor taken into account is collision history, whilst the presence of schools

and resident requests are also sometimes taken into account. 

· There is generally some publicity or marketing accompanying the implementation of 

20mph schemes. However, it appears that this has generally been as an ancillary element, 

rather than as a core part of each scheme. 

· Many boroughs use vehicle activated signs which are rotated amongst different locations, 

in order to encourage slower vehicle speeds. 

Monitoring and evaluation 

· In terms of monitoring, before and after vehicle speeds and collisions are the most 

common variables monitored. Traffic volumes are also sometimes monitored. Reductions 

in collisions and vehicle speeds have generally been observed, although the results can vary 

widely by area, and the magnitude of reductions achieved is generally smaller for schemes 

without any physical traffic calming measures. 

· Where specified, it appears that ‘after’ monitoring generally takes place over a relatively 

short period of time, sometimes only one year. This means that monitoring results can be 

susceptible to random variations, especially in terms of collisions given that the number of 

collisions in areas where 20mph has been implemented is relatively low. 

Barriers and challenges 

· The challenge mentioned most consistently amongst the responses received is opposition 

(both from residents and politicians) to physical traffic calming measures that were 

formerly required as part of 20mph zones. This requirement also limited the rate at which 

20mph schemes could be introduced, due to the cost of installing traffic calming measures. 

This challenge has become less relevant due to the relaxation of  requirements for traffic 

calming. 

· Achieving compliance with 20mph limits is another widely mentioned challenge. Related to 

this has been obtaining police support for 20mph schemes. For some borough-wide 

schemes, formal objections have been received from the police, on the grounds that 

20mph limits will not be self-enforcing. More recently, it appears that police are becoming 

more supportive of 20mph schemes. However, their position is that there should be no 

expectation on the police for extra resources to enforce 20mph limits. 

· In most cases, boroughs have generally received public support for 20mph schemes, 

although there has been opposition from certain segments of the community. 

· In some cases TfL has expressed concerns regarding journey times, in particular for buses. 

Emergency services sometimes also raise concerns about the impact on their response 

times. 

Page 147



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 29 

4 Road safety rationale for 20mph 
speed limits 
Chapter summary 

· The available evidence shows a clear link between average vehicle speeds, and the number 

and severity of collisions that occur. A reduction in vehicle speeds would be expected to 

both reduce the number of collisions that occur, and decrease the severity of those that do 

occur. 

· Reducing speed limits is one way to lower vehicle speeds. The available evidence indicates 

that on average, the change in average vehicle speed is approximately 25% of the change in 

the speed limit. This would equate to a decrease of about 2.5mph for a 10mph reduction in 

the speed limit. However, this is heavily dependent on local circumstances. 

· There are a number of factors (apart from the legal speed limit itself) that influence the 

drivers’ speeds. Physical measures can be used, but these are expensive to implement. 

Enforcement can also be used, and Intelligent Speed Adaptation (ISA) is an emerging 

technology that may prove useful. However, the key to achieving a sustainable decrease in 

vehicle speeds is via cultural change. 

 

Introduction 

4.1 The primary rationale for introducing 20mph speed limits is to improve road safety by 

reducing the number of collisions. Whilst the link between vehicle speed and road safety is 

generally well known and accepted, it is worth revisiting it here before proceeding further. 

4.2 As such, this chapter discusses the road safety rationale for reducing speed limits to 20mph. In 

particular, the following three points are addressed: 

· The relationship between vehicle speeds and collisions (both the number of collisions and 

collision severity) 

· The relationship between speed limit changes and any resultant changes 

· The factors that influence how drivers choose their speed 

Page 148



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 30 

Speed and road safety 

4.3 There are a number of different ways in which the relationship between changes in vehicles 

speeds and changes in the number of collisions can be quantified and modelled. One model 

that has been widely applied is the exponential model, which takes the following form: 

 

4.4 An analysis of numerous previous studies was undertaken by Elvik (2009). Based on this, 

estimates for the value of the exponent in the model above were obtained, as outlined in 

Table 4.1 below. 

Table 4.1 Best estimates of exponents for the power model of the relationship between changes in speed and 

changes in road safety, urban / residential roads 

Collision / injury severity Best estimate of exponent 

NUMBER OF COLLISIONS 

Fatal 2.6 

Serious injury 1.5 

Slight injury 1.0 

All injury 1.2 

Property damage only 0.8 

NUMBER OF CASUALTIES 

Fatal 3.0 

Serious injury 2.0 

Slight injury 1.1 

All injury 1.4 

Source: Elvik (2009:58) 

4.5 The relative values of these exponents mean that the model predicts that as speeds decline, 

the number of fatal collisions and casualties will decrease more than the number of serious 

injury collisions and casualties respectively. In turn, the number of serious injury collisions and 

casualties will decline faster than the number of slight injury collisions and casualties. 

Conversely, when means speeds increase it is expected that fatal collisions and casualties 

would rise at fastest rate. 

4.6 To illustrate these changes, the predictions that the model makes for changes in mean speed 

on urban / residential roads have been plotted. Figure 4.1 below shows the predicted change 

in the number of collisions (by severity) for various changes in mean speed, whilst  Figure 4.2 

below shows the predicted change in the number of casualties. 

Page 149



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 31 

Figure 4.1 Change in collisions as a function of change in mean speed for urban / residential roads 

 

Source: Based on power model parameters in Elvik (2009) 

Figure 4.2 Change in casualties as a function of change in mean speed for urban / residential roads 

 

-100%

-80%

-60%

-40%

-20%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

-50% -40% -30% -20% -10% 0% 10% 20%

C
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

co
ll

is
io

n
s

Change in mean speed

Fatal Serious injury Slight injury

-100%

-80%

-60%

-40%

-20%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

-50% -40% -30% -20% -10% 0% 10% 20%

C
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

ca
su

a
lt

ie
s

Change in mean speed

Fatal Serious injury Slight injury

Page 150



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 32 

Source: Based on power model parameters in Elvik (2009) 

4.7 There are a number of reasons why the risk of collisions and casualties tends to decrease as 

vehicle speeds decline. At a basic level, a slower speed means that drivers have more time to 

react to events that could potentially lead to a collision. This means that there is a great 

likelihood of a collision being avoided in the first place, and a lower impact speed for any 

collisions that do occur. This in turn is likely to reduce the severity of any injuries, particularly 

for vulnerable road users such as pedestrians and cyclists. For example, the probability of a 

fatal injury to a pedestrian as a function of impact speed is shown in Figure 4.3 below. It can 

be seen that the chance of a fatal injury declines substantially between an impact speed of 

30mph (48km/h) and 20mph (32km/h), from approximately 55% to 17%. 

Figure 4.3 Probability of fatal injury to pedestrians as a function of impact speed 

 

Source: Elvik (2004:10) 

4.8 Child pedestrians in particular appear to be more vulnerable, as one study suggests that 

children do not perceive looming objects (such as an approaching vehicles) as an adult 

would
10

. It was found that under most viewing conditions, children could not reliably detect a 

vehicle approaching at speeds great than 25mph. As such, the study concludes that lower 

vehicle speeds reduce the risk and severity of child pedestrian casualties, not only because of 

lower impact speeds but also because there is a lower probability of a child stepping out in 

front of a vehicle in the first instance. 

Impact of speed limit changes on speeds 

4.9 Based on the above, the evidence is clear that a reduction in mean speed on a road would be 

expected have a positive impact on road safety. Lower speed limits is one possible measure 

that can be employed to achieve a reduction in mean speed. However, given the autonomy 

that each driver has, it is obvious that there is unlikely to be a simple one-to-one relationship 

                                                           
10

 Wann J.P. et al (2011) Reduced Sensitivity to Visual Looming Inflates the Risk Posed by Speeding 

Vehicles When Children Try to Cross the Road in Psychological Science 22(4), pp429–434. 

Page 151



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 33 

between a change in the speed limit and the actual change in vehicle speeds. It is therefore 

also useful to understand how speed limit changes influence actual vehicle speeds. 

4.10 Elvik examined the relationship between a change in speed limit and the resulting change in 

mean vehicle speed. The results of this analysis are shown in Figure 4.4 below. As would be 

expected, there is quite a high level of variability in this relationship, as the change in mean 

speed would be influenced greatly by local factors. Nevertheless, a linear relationship was 

found using regression analysis. This relationship indicates that as a rule of thumb, the change 

in mean speed is a quarter of the change in the speed limit. For example, a reduction in the 

speed limit of 10mph could be expected to reduce the mean speed by about 2.5mph. 

Figure 4.4 Relationship between changes in speed limit and changes in mean speed 

 

Source: Elvik (2009) 

Factors affecting driver speed choice 

4.11 This suggests that in general, the actual speed reduction achieved is generally smaller than the 

decrease in the speed limit. As such, it would be useful to understand the factors that 

influence a driver’s choice of speed, in addition to the speed limit itself. This will help to inform 

any actions that can be taken to encourage drivers to lower their speeds more, which will in 

turn assist in ensuring that the road safety benefits from 20mph schemes are maximised. 

· Physical measures: As discussed elsewhere in this report, physical traffic calming measures 

generally results in greater decreases in speed compared to schemes that primarily rely on 

signage alone. However, the downside of them is that they are expensive to implement, 

which limits how quickly they can be rolled out. In addition, some types of traffic calming 

(in particular speed humps) can have negative effects on adjacent properties. 

· Enforcement: Enforcement of 20mph limits is another tool that can be used to encourage 

compliance, and has been used in a number of locations. However, it is clear that with 

limited resources and competing priorities, there is a limit to how much enforcement can 

take place. 

· Intelligent Speed Adaptation (ISA): This is an emerging technology, which can assist drivers 

in complying with speed limits, either on a mandatory basis (where the driver cannot drive 

faster than the speed limit), or a system where the driver has an ‘override’ button.  

Page 152



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 34 

· Driving culture: The key to achieving lower vehicle speeds is to effect cultural change, so 

that driving at 20mph becomes normal. This means that 20mph schemes should include an 

integral package of supporting ‘soft’ measures, as discussed in Chapter 6. 

Page 153



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 35 

5 Impacts of 20mph schemes 
Chapter summary 

· Strong evidence that 20mph zones result in significant casualty reductions, although the 

available studies focus on zones with physical traffic calming. Such zones result in a decline 

in speeds on about 9mph on average. 

· The evidence on vehicle emissions is mixed, with the effect dependent on fuel type and 

driving styles. Any impact on traffic noise is likely to be negligible. 

· There is some evidence that 20mph zones can reduce traffic volumes and increase the use 

of sustainable modes, such as walking and cycling, especially where 20mph is implemented 

as part of a wider package of measures. 

 

Introduction 

5.1 As outlined in the previous chapter, the primary rationale for 20mph schemes is as a measure 

to improve road safety by reducing traffic speeds. However, there are also a number of other 

impacts that such schemes could also potentially have. Therefore, in addition to impacts on 

road safety and traffic speeds, five further broad categories of potential impacts have been 

identified, for a total of seven impact themes. These are described in Table 5.1 below. 

Table 5.1 Descriptions of impact themes 

Impact theme Description 

Road safety 
Impacts on road safety, as measured by the numbers of accidents and casualties 

(both in the aggregate and disaggregated by road user group) 

Traffic speeds Impacts on traffic speeds 

Environment and health Impacts on emissions and consequently on human health 

Amenity 
Impacts on amenity, such as noise, vibration, vehicle dominance and severance, 

including in residential areas and town centres 

Inequality Impacts on inequalities in road safety outcomes 

Transport efficiency 
Impacts on the efficiency of the road network, such as journey times for general 

traffic, buses and emergency services 

Page 154



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 36 

Impact theme Description 

Traffic volumes and 

sustainable modes 

Impacts on traffic volumes and mode shift to sustainable modes (such as cycling and 

walking) 

 

5.2 This chapter looks at existing evidence regarding these seven impact themes. Firstly, the 

findings of a number of general studies are reviewed, including the methodologies 

recommended in the Speed Limit Appraisal Tool released by DfT. Following this, evidence from 

a number of studies looking more specifically at particular impacts are discussed. 

General studies 

Key UK studies 

5.3 A number of more general studies have been undertaken that investigate and analyse the 

impacts of 20mph zones and limits, both in London and throughout England. There are four 

main studies that are most relevant, and their key findings are summarised in Table 5.2. 

However, it should be noted that whilst these are useful at looking at a high number of 

schemes, the studies are now rapidly ageing. In particular, given the regulatory context at that 

time most schemes examined would have been 20mph zones that included physical traffic 

calming features. 

5.4 The Department for Transport (DfT) has recently commissioned research into the effectiveness 

of 20mph limits (as opposed to 20mph zones). Whilst there is evidence on the effectiveness of 

20mph zones in reducing collisions and speeds, the current evidence on 20mph limits is 

limited. Whilst some monitoring data from 20mph limit schemes in Portsmouth and Bristol is 

available, the DfT’s view is that the evidence presented is inconclusive. As such, this has been 

identified as an evidence gap. 

5.5 The purpose of the recently commissioned research is to fill this gap, which aims to establish 

the effectiveness of 20mph limits. The findings are intended to inform future 20mph policy 

development. As outlined in the specification document, there are four objectives for this 

research: 

‘a. To evaluate the effectiveness of 20mph speed limits in terms of a range of outcomes and 

impacts including speed, collisions, injury severity, mode shift, quality of life, community, 

economic public health benefits, and air quality. 

b. To examine drivers’, riders’ and residents’ perceptions of 20mph speed limits and their 

outcomes and impacts. 

c. To evaluate the processes and factors which contribute to the level of effectiveness of 20mph 

speed limit schemes 

d. To assess the relative cost/benefits to specific vulnerable road user groups e.g. children, 

cyclists, the elderly.’ 

5.6 Correspondence with DfT has indicated that they are currently in the scoping phase of the 

research. The project will run for about three years, with the final report from the research is 

anticipated to be available in 2017. 

 

Page 155



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 37 

Table 5.2 Key findings from previous studies 

Study DfT report completed by TRL (Webster and Mackie 1996) DfT report completed by TRL (Webster 

and Layfield 2003) 

TfL report completed by Grundy et al 

(2008a) 

TfL report completed by 

Grundy et al (2008b) 

Scope 72 20mph zones in England 78 20mph zones in London 399 20mph zones in London 399 20mph zones in London 

Method Before and after analysis (before period of at least three years 

and after period of a least one year) 

Before and after analysis (before period 

of five years and average after period of 

three years) 

Time series analysis Time series analysis 

Key 

findings 

Road safety 

61% reduction in accidents and 70% reduction is KSI accidents 

(no adjustment for background trend) 

63% reduction in pedestrian injury accidents, 29% reduction in 

pedal cyclist injury accidents, 73% reduction in motorcyclist 

injury accidents, 67% reduction in child (pedestrian and cyclist) 

injury accidents 

Ratio of KSI accidents to all accidents fell from 0.21 to 0.16 

Reduction in accidents did not appear to be due to migration 

onto surrounding roads 

Traffic speeds 

Overall average reduction in mean speed from 25mph to 16 

mph (reduction of 9mph) 

6.2% reduction in accidents for each 1mph reduction in mean 

speed 

Traffic volumes and sustainable modes 

Limited traffic flows info, but reductions in flows within zones 

and increases around zones 

Implementation issues 

Generally favourable public reaction, although negative reaction 

to some specific features (e.g. chicanes, speed humps) 

Schemes generally cost £100k to £200k 

Road safety 

Adjusting for background changes, 45% 

reduction in casualties and 57% 

reduction in KSI casualties 

Adjusting for background changes, 45–

60% reduction in child KSI casualties, 

39–50% reduction in pedestrian KSI 

casualties, 30–50% reduction in pedal 

cyclist KSI casualties and 68–79% 

reduction in powered two wheeler 

casualties 

Ratio of KSI casualties to all casualties 

fell from 0.16 to 0.12 

Reduction in accidents did not appear to 

be due to migration onto surrounding 

roads 

Traffic speeds 

Average speed reduction of 9mph (after 

mean traffic speeds of 17mph) 

Traffic volumes and sustainable modes 

Average reduction in traffic volumes of 

15% 

Road safety 

42% reduction in casualties in 20mph 

zones (taking into account background 

changes) 

Effects diminishing (zones 

implemented 2000–2006 show only a 

22% reduction in casualties) 

Zones more cost effective in higher 

casualty areas, positive benefit in 

areas with >0.7 casualties/km/year 

(only taking into account casualty 

costs) 

Traffic volumes and sustainable 

modes 

20mph zones appears to reduce rat-

running (casualties closer to home in 

20mph zones) 

Inequality 

20mph zones historically 

targeted at high casualty, high 

deprivation areas, therefore 

helped to reduce inequality 

But limited future role as few 

areas left that have high levels 

of deprivation and eligible for 

20mph zones 

Other measures needed to 

reduce road safety inequalities 

Areas 

identified 

for 

further 

research 

None stated Further work required to investigate 

how 20mph zones are chosen; obtain 

additional data to enable a more 

comprehensive evaluation to be 

undertaken; and investigate the effect of 

20mph zones on powered two-wheelers 

Need more research on how 20mph 

zones affect exposure to accidents 

through changed travel patterns 

Data was not available on 

changes to risk exposure and 

to control for any other road 

safety interventions 

implemented at roughly the 

same time as 20mph zones 

P
age 156



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 38 

DfT Speed Limit Appraisal Tool 

5.7 Accompanying DfT Circular 01/2013 is a Speed Limit Appraisal Tool, which is intended to assist 

local highway authorities in assessing the impacts of speed limit changes. The impact 

assessment methodologies that are implemented in the tool are outlined in Table 5.3. 

Table 5.3 DfT Speed Limit Appraisal Tool methodologies 

Impact theme Methodology 

Road safety Uses a model, developed by Rune Elvik of the Norwegian Institute of Transport 

Economics, that adjusts before observed accidents to forecast after accidents, and also 

takes into account changes in accident severity. 

Traffic speeds The change in mean speed between the before and after scenarios (MSC) is estimated 

based on formulae that use the observed mean speed before the speed limit change 

(BMS) as a starting point: 

Urban 20mph without traffic calming:  MSC = 4.4038 – 0.2265 * BMS 

Urban 20mph with traffic calming:  MSC = 10.2891 – 0.7714 * BMS 

The after 85th percentile speed is estimated by multiplying the after mean speed 

(calculated using the formulae above) by the ratio of the before 85th percentile speed 

and before mean speed; this is because data suggests that a change in speed limit does 

not change the distribution of vehicle speeds. 

Environment and health Change in CO2 emissions calculated using WebTAG 3.3.5D methodology. 

Change in NOx emissions estimated by using a ratio to the estimated change in CO2 

emissions (although change in NOx emission is likely to be extremely small). 

Amenity Noise impacts negligible, even in the most extreme cases. 

Noise impacts only likely to be material if there is a major diversion of traffic from one 

road to another. 

Traffic volumes and 

sustainable modes 

Reduction in traffic volumes of 5.3% for 20mph without traffic calming and 13.4% with 

traffic calming, although as these relationships are subject to high variability they have 

not been implemented in the tool. 

 

Specific studies 

5.8 In addition to the studies described above, there are also a number of studies examining the 

impacts of 20mph zones / limits in more specific areas. 

Walking and cycling 

5.9 A literature review of the effects that 20mph zones have on walking and cycling was recently 

conducted by Par Hill Research for the City of London
11

. It noted that the propensity to cycle 

and walk is based on ‘safety, perceptions of safety, the condition of the surfaces and the 

overall appearance of the urban environment’, and that 20mph schemes may therefore 

encourage walking and cycling by positively affecting safety and perceptions of safety. 

5.10 The review noted that evidence from Portsmouth, Barcelona and Brussels suggests that 

20mph zones do encourage greater walking and cycling. However, it should be noted that in 

some cases, other measures (such as traffic calming measures, cycle lanes or bike hire 

schemes) have been implemented concurrently as part of a wider package. As such, it would 

be difficult to isolate the impact that 20mph schemes alone have on walking and cycling, 

                                                           
11

 Tovar M.C & Kilbane-Dawe I (2013) Effects of 20mph Zones on Cycling and Walking Behaviours in 

London, Par Hill Research Ltd. 

Page 157



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 39 

although it appears that they can have a positive impact on rates of walking and cycling when 

implemented together with other measures. 

Environment and health 

5.11 There are two broadly opposing views regarding the impact that slower speeds have on 

vehicle emissions and fuel use, suggesting the overall picture is inconclusive. On one hand, 

motor vehicles generally operate most efficiently at speeds higher than 20mph so decreasing 

vehicle speeds could result in higher emissions and fuel use. On the other hand, a lower speed 

limit in urban areas could possibly encourage smoother driving with reduced acceleration and 

braking, which would tend to reduce emissions and fuel use. In addition, it is possible that if 

there is mode shift towards sustainable modes, emissions could be reduced even further. 

5.12 One discussion of the impact of lower speed limits on vehicle emissions can be found in a 

report from the Centre for Transport Studies at Imperial College London
12

. As shown in Table 

5.4, the study found that NOX emission factors are higher for petrol vehicles at 20mph 

compared to 30mph whilst for diesel vehicles they are lower. Given the higher contribution of 

diesel vehicles to NOX emissions this is an important result. PM10 emission factors are lower for 

both petrol and diesel vehicles at 20mph compared to 30mph with the exception of vehicles 

with engines in excess of 2.0 litres. CO2 emission factors follow the same pattern as NOX 

showing increased fuel consumption when travelling at lower speeds. 

Table 5.4 Impact of 20mph drive cycle on emission factors 

Vehicle Type 

Drive Cycle 

Speed Limit 

(mph) 

NOX (g/km) PM10 (g/km) CO2 (g/km)

Petrol 1.4l-2.0l, EURO IV 20 0.0726 0.00218 271.95 

Petrol 1.4l-2.0l, EURO IV 30 0.0673 0.00237 266.35 

Impact of 20mph drive cycle +7.9% -8.3% +2.1% 

Diesel 1.4l-2.0l, EURO IV 20 0.7437 0.01758 201.58 

Diesel 1.4l-2.0l, EURO IV 30 0.8104 0.01917 203.48 

Impact of 20mph drive cycle -8.2% -8.3% -0.9% 

 

5.13 Whilst the study concludes that the effects on vehicle emissions are mixed, it does not account 

for potential associated impacts of speed restrictions, such as congestion or encouragements 

to shift mode to walking/cycling as a result of a more attractive environment for active travel. 

5.14 With regard to driving styles, the same study observed that, across several routes in central 

London, a greater range of speeds occurred on 30mph segments compared to 20mph 

segments. Average speeds were higher on 30mph segments and, when restricted to speeds 

observed during cruising, were statistically significant. In addition, a larger proportion of time 

was spent accelerating and decelerating on 30mph segments suggesting that 20mph routes 

may facilitate smoother driving. 

5.15 The study identified the need for further research into emissions resulting from non-exhaust 

sources including brake and tyre wear. 

                                                           
12

 Williams D & North R (2013) An evaluation of the estimated impacts on vehicle emissions of a 20mph 

speed restriction in central London, 2013, Imperial College London. 

Page 158



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 40 

5.16 This is largely consistent with the findings of another study that was conducted in Madrid
13

. 

This study examine changes in fuel consumption and emissions for a light duty diesel vehicle, 

assuming a reduction in the speed limit from 50km/h to 30km/h. It was found that a reduction 

in the speed limit generally resulted in lower fuel consumption, and a decrease in carbon 

monoxide, nitrous oxide and particulate matter emissions, but an increase in hydrocarbon 

emissions. However, these results are highly dependent on the driving style adopted. 

Overall findings 

5.17 Based on the review in this chapter, the key points gleaned from the evidence on the impacts 

of 20mph limits and zones across the seven impact themes are summarised in Table 5.5 

below. 

Table 5.5 Summary of key findings 

Impact theme Evidence 

Road safety Strong evidence from that 20mph zones can result in 

significant reduction in casualties (over and above 

wider trends), although the evidence primarily pertains 

to zones with physical traffic calming. 

Traffic speeds 20mph zones supported by physical traffic calming 

features generally result in a significant reduction in 

average speeds (of about 9mph on average). 

Environment and health Some evidence to suggest that lowering vehicle speeds 

may reduce vehicle emissions of some pollutants, but 

increase emissions of others. However, this is heavily 

dependent on fuel type and driving styles. 

Amenity May be some impact on traffic noise, although this is 

likely to be negligible. 

Inequality 20mph zones have had some impact on inequality in 

the past, although their future role in reducing 

inequality may be limited. 

Transport efficiency - 

Traffic volumes and sustainable modes Traffic volumes generally decrease in 20mph zones, 

although this impact is highly variable and depends on 

the characteristics of a particular area. 

Some evidence that walking and cycling levels may 

increase, although this is primarily when 20mph is 

implemented as part of a package of wider measures. 

 

                                                           
13

 Casanova J & Fonseca N (2012) Environmental assessment of low speed policies for motor vehicle 

mobility in city centres in Global NEST Journal 14(2), pp192–201. 

Page 159



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 41 

6 Examples of policy in practice 
Chapter summary 

· In the UK, signed-only 20mph schemes have achieved relatively small speed reductions of 

1–2mph, although early monitoring suggests that even this small change is translating into 

noticeable road safety benefits. This will need to be confirmed once further data is 

available. 

· There may be some other positive impacts from these schemes, although there is currently 

little data available that is conclusive. 

· An examination of case studies from overseas has shown that many countries have 

followed a similar trajectory of relaxation in the requirements for physical measures as part 

of 30km/h schemes. The aim of this has been to facilitate more widespread 

implementation of such schemes. 

· One of the most relevant overseas examples is from Graz in Austria, where a 30km/h city-

wide limit was implemented primarily using signs, and in conjunction with a programme of 

police enforcement. Whilst there was only a minor reduction in average vehicle speeds, 

significant decreases in collisions and casualties was observed. 

· Research conducted by the University of the West of England suggests that it is crucial that 

an integral programme of ‘soft’ measures be included as part of any signed-only 20mph 

limit. The aim is to effect cultural change amongst drivers, so that driving at 20mph in 

urban areas becomes normal. 

 

Introduction 

6.1 This chapter discusses how 20mph schemes have been implemented in practice, both in the 

UK and in other countries. The purpose of this has been to compare past and current policies 

in these areas, as well as to look at evidence of the impacts of 20mph limits and zones, and 

lessons that have been learnt from their implementation. 

United Kingdom 

6.2 For each of these case studies, the current situation regarding 20mph limits and zones is 

described, along with a discussion of evident impacts and any lessons learnt during 

Page 160



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 42 

implementation. Applicable policies that will drive the future direction of 20mph limits and 

zones in each area are also examined. This information is contained in the tables on the 

following pages. The level of detail provided for each case study varies, due to the limited 

availability of information in some instances. 

6.3 Across many of the case studies, a distinction has been made between two categories of 

roads: ‘main roads’ and ‘residential streets’ / ‘side streets’. The precise definition of these 

categories varies, and in some cases relates to the road hierarchy used by the relevant 

authority for each case study. In general, however, the distinguishing feature of main roads is 

that facilitating the movement of through traffic is one of their key functions. Other roads, 

where this function is less pronounced, fall under the residential street / side street category. 

 

Page 161



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 43 

Table 6.1 Examples of 20mph schemes 

Area / Local 

Authority 
Current Situation Reasons Outcomes 

Portsmouth First area wide 20mph limit in the country: 

implementation commenced in March 

2008 

 

Applied on approximately 94% of roads in 

Portsmouth that previously had a 30mph 

limit (410km out of 438km). 

 

Cost of approximately £573k. 

 

Rise in number of people killed or seriously 

injured rose for the first time in ten years 

in 2011. The majority (~80%) were on 

30mph+ roads and suggest no connection 

to the city-wide 20mph limits on 

residential streets. 

To address the high number of randomly 

located person injury accidents in 

residential streets. 

 

To ensure that the scheme was self-

enforcing so as to avoid the need for extra 

Police enforcement. 

 

A great number of the city’s residential 

streets form a closely packed network of 

terraced housing, developed in the 19th 

Century or earlier, with little or no off-

street parking. The relatively low speeds 

before the scheme implementation on 

these roads are mainly the result of 

narrow carriageways and on-street 

parking, which reduces the effective 

carriageway width. The scheme was 

implemented partly to support the low 

driving speeds adopted previously by 

many motorists and partly to encourage 

less aggressive driving behaviour from 

those who drove at inappropriate speeds. 

 

Interim Evaluation of the Implementation of 20mph Speed Limits in 

Portsmouth, DfT, 2010. 

Road safety 

22% reduction in total casualties (compared to 14% nationally). 

16% reduction in pedestrian casualties (compared to 13% nationally). 

6% increase in KSI casualties, although absolute increase only 1.2 per 

year. 

Traffic speeds 

Across the six sectors, average speeds declined by between 0.6mph and 

1.8mph, with an overall average decline of 1.3mph (from 19.8mph to 

18.5mph). 

Average reduction of 6.3mph for sites with a before average speed 

>24mph. 

Amenity 

40% of survey respondents thought that car speeds had decreased, 

whilst 54% thought there was no change. 

Almost 40% of respondents thought driving had become less aggressive. 

Just under half of surveyed respondent satisfied with scheme. 

Traffic volumes and sustainable modes 

Small decrease in traffic volumes, but may be due to other factors. 

Survey suggests little mode shift, although some respondents reported 

increased walking, cycling and public transport use. 

P
age 162



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 44 

Area / Local 

Authority 
Current Situation Reasons Outcomes 

Bristol 20mph limits introduced in two pilot areas 

in 2010 (Inner East Pilot Area and Inner 

South Pilot Area). These schemes now 

have the backing of 82% of local 

residents
14

.  

 

Scheme primarily consisted of signage and 

painted roundels, supported by 8 vehicle 

activated signs and a communications 

campaign. 

 

From February 2014, the 20mph schemes 

are being implemented on a rolling basis, 

starting with the central area, and are 

planned to be completed by March 2015. 

The scheme is funded by the Local 

Sustainable Transport Fund and is 

expected to cost £2.3m. 

 

Drivers in Bristol will be among the first in 

the country to be offered a speed 

awareness course for exceeding 20mph 

limits, under plans being drawn up by the 

local police force. 

To encourage more walking, more cycling, 

and more independent mobility for 

children and elderly in the City, to reduce 

risk and severity of road casualties and to 

help create pleasant people-centred 

streets and public space. 

Monitoring Report: 20mph Speed Limit Pilot Areas, Bristol City Council, 

2012. 

Road safety 

Small changes in accident numbers observed, but too early to draw any 

conclusions. 

Traffic speeds 

Average speed reduction of 0.9mph in the Inner South area (from 

23.6mph to 22.7mph), and 0.9mph in the Inner East area (from 23.4mph 

to 22.9mph). 

Environment and health 

Negligible changes in emissions. 

Amenity 

Small (but negligible) decrease in traffic noise. 

Majority of survey respondents support 20mph limits, higher levels of 

support for residential roads compared to main roads. 

Survey responses indicate perception of traffic noise has decreased. 

Transport efficiency 

Bus operator reports no impact on bus journey times and service 

reliability. 

Traffic volumes and sustainable modes 

Increases in pedestrian activity and cycling levels of between 1.1% and 

36.6%, although may not solely be due to 20mph limit. 

                                                           
14

 Bristol Council phasing in 20mph limits, Local Transport Today (Issue 262, 3
rd

 February 2014), accessed online 7
th

 July 2014. 

P
age 163



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 45 

Area / Local 

Authority 
Current Situation Reasons Outcomes 

Edinburgh A 20mph speed limit was introduced in a 

pilot area in South Edinburgh covering 

nearly 40 miles of residential roads in early 

2012. 

 

In 2014 it was reported that 75% of 

Edinburgh residents support the extension 

of the pilot scheme to more residential 

streets in Edinburgh. 67% supported 

rolling out a 20mph limit on all city centre 

streets
15

. 

 

Plans by the council could result in a 

20mph speed limit throughout Edinburgh 

by 2016/17. The cost of the proposals is 

£2.5m and will be subject to a two-year 

consultation process before the final 

extent of the speed limits are agreed. 

To provide a low-cost option for increasing 

safety, reducing fatal and serious road 

collisions, increasing walking and cycling, 

and improving the urban realm for 

business and social interaction. 

 

The Council has a long-standing policy of 

introducing 20mph speed 'zones' in 

residential areas.  Around 50% of the city's 

residential streets are now in a 20mph 

zone where road humps and other 'traffic 

calming' features ensure speeds stay low. 

They have a good track record of reducing 

road casualties but are fairly expensive to 

install. 

South Central Edinburgh 20mph Limit Pilot Evaluation, 2013, The City of 

Edinburgh Council. 

Road safety 

With the modest reductions in average speed it is expected that the 

number and severity of collisions will also fall. This will be assessed after 

3 years. 

Traffic speeds 

Average speed reduction of 1.9mph amongst 28 locations where the 

speed limit was changed from 30mph to 20mph. 

Amenity 

Majority of survey respondents support 20mph limits and higher levels 

of support for residential roads compared to main roads. 

The proportion of older primary school children allowed to play 

unsupervised outside their home, on the pavement, or in the street rose 

from 31% to 66%. 

Traffic volumes and sustainable modes 

Increase in overall number of vehicles on most streets but none were 

notable. Proportion of children walking to school increased marginally 

from 63% to 65%. Increases in walking and cycling levels of between 5-

7%. 

                                                           
15

 Transport and Environment Committee Full Meeting Papers: Part 1, 27
th

 August 2013, The City of Edinburgh Council 

P
age 164



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 46 

Area / Local 

Authority 
Current Situation Reasons Outcomes 

Dundee In June 2014 a council motion calling for 

signed-only 20mph speed limits across 

residential streets in Dundee was narrowly 

defeated. 

Current policy at Dundee City Council is to 

prioritise pedestrian accident injury sites 

for analysis and treatment prior to any 

consideration of 20mph sites. 

 

According to the head of transportation, 

“This policy essentially targets the 

council’s limited resources to locations 

where injury accident are occurring rather 

than installing traffic calming on roads 

where there is no injury accident 

history”
16

. 

 

Scottish Government guidance suggests 

expensive engineering works would be 

needed to provide traffic calming that 

would be self-enforcing and would not 

require additional police enforcement. 

It is has been Dundee City Council’s policy for approximately 10 years 

not to implement signed-only 20mph speed limits as there is evidence 

that these schemes typically reduce speeds by between one and two 

miles per hour on streets where the average traffic speed is already 

relatively low. 

                                                           
16

 Smith D (2014) Call for 20mph zones to be introduced on streets across Dundee. Available at http://www.thecourier.co.uk/news/local/dundee/call-for-20mph-

zones-to-be-introduced-on-streets-across-dundee-1.313390 [Accessed on 8th July 2014] 

P
age 165



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 47 

Area / Local 

Authority 
Current Situation Reasons Outcomes 

Brighton & 

Hove 

In January 2013 the City Council’s 

Transport Committee approved Phase 1 of 

a 20mph scheme which introduced a 

speed limit for all residential and shopping 

streets in the centre of Brighton.  

 

In March 2014, following consultation, the 

Environment, Transport and Sustainability 

Committee approved Phase 2 of the 

scheme which extends the 20mph speed 

limit further than the centre. The Council 

have decided to only introduce the speed 

limit in streets where the majority of 

respondents supported the proposals. 

 

Phase 1 was introduced in April 2013 

whilst Phase 2 started in June 2014. 

To reduce road collisions and the severity 

of casualties, improve the quality of life of 

local neighbourhoods and encourage more 

walking and cycling for local trips. This in 

turn would bring significant health 

benefits and reduce congestion. 

 

Following public consultation in 2012 and 

a growing number of petitions from local 

communities, the majority of residents 

across the city told the Council they were 

in favour of a reduced speed limit for 

residential and local shopping areas. 

Early monitoring from the first six months of Phase 1 in the city centre 

shows there was: 

 •A decrease in traffic speed on 74% on the roads; and 

 •A significant reduction in the number and severity of collisions, and no 

fatal collisions since implementation. This includes a 20% decrease in the 

number of collisions and a 19% decrease in the number of casualties 

(based on five months of 2013 data compared with the three year 

average for the same five months in the previous three years.) 

Hampshire A pilot scheme for 20mph limits – “The 

Residential 20 Project” – was implemented 

in twelve residential areas across 

Hampshire between July 2013 and May 

2014 following consultation with local 

residents to ascertain support. 

 

The anticipated cost at the start of the 

pilot was £200,000. 

 

Following the trials further consultation 

will be conducted with residents to decide 

whether the lower limit should be officially 

implemented. 

The Residential 20 project was developed 

to take advantage of the Department of 

Transport's relaxations to the signing 

requirements associated with 20 mph 

limits. The pilot schemes are intended to 

test the effectiveness of this new 

approach. 

The 20mph speed limits are indicated in the pilot areas using road side 

signs at the start of the limits and 20mph road marking 'roundels' on the 

road surface within the areas. Residents are encouraged to help 

promote awareness of their 20mph speed limit via a publicity campaign. 

'Before' and 'After' speed monitoring will be carried out in a sample of 

roads in each area to assess the impact of the new speed limit. 

P
age 166



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 48 

Area / Local 

Authority 
Current Situation Reasons Outcomes 

Newcastle 20mph limits apply across residential 

roads (covering 75% of the city’s roads) 

Cost of £1.4m 

Works carried out in six phases, over an 18 

month period from June 2010 to 

December 2011 

- Initial monitoring suggests that there has been a significant reduction in 

casualties for some of the early phases of the scheme where 12 months 

of post-implementation data is available 

Bath & North 

East 

Somerset
17

 

Plans for 20mph limits across all 

residential roads (except main traffic 

routes) approved in 2012, with 

implementation over two years at a cost of 

£500k 

Implementation is proceeding on an area-

by-area basis, with informal consultation, 

following by formally advertising a 

proposal for a TRO, with a decision then 

made by the Cabinet Member for 

Transport 

One area has been withdrawn from the 

programme due to a negative response to 

consultation 

- - 

Calderdale, 

West 

Yorkshire 

Blanket 20mph limit for residential areas 

approved in 2014 

Already has 140km of 20mph limit roads, 

which will be increased to 650km over 

next three years 

Funded by £520k of local transport plan 

funds and £500k of public health funds 

Consultation attracted 1200 responses—

48% favoured 20mph in all residential 

areas; 36% favoured 20mph outside 

schools only; 16% favoured 20mph in high 

casualty areas only 

- 

Kikrlees, 

West 

Yorkshire 

Rejected blanket 20mph limits in 2013 View that there was little evidence that 

20mph limits reduce speeds and collisions 

Police favoured case-by-case approach 

- 

                                                           
17

 http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/services/streets-and-highway-maintenance/road-safety/traffic-schemes/20mph-speed-limits-residential- 

P
age 167



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 49 

Area / Local 

Authority 
Current Situation Reasons Outcomes 

Birmingham Pilot 20mph scheme approved in 2014 

Will include 20mph limits on residential 

street across one-third of the city 

(excluding A and B roads) 

Detailed consultation on the pilot will take 

place later in 2014 and implementation 

planned by March 2015 

Funding for the pilot from £1.025m 

allocation from the Birmingham Cycle 

Revolution budget—£800,000 from the 

DfT’s Cycle City Ambition Grant and 

£225,000 from the council’s integrated 

transport block 

One aim of the pilot is to build support for 

20mph limits elsewhere in Birmingham, by 

demonstrating the benefits of such 

schemes 

Pilot area already has significant 20mph 

limits/zones, therefore pilot will join up 

existing 20mph schemes 

Consultation attracted 3565 responses—

58% opposed the plans and 39% in favour; 

support rose to 44% in relation to 20mph 

in residential areas, 49% on high streets 

and other shopping areas, and 91% near 

schools 

Implementation of 20mph limits on 

residential streets in inner Birmingham 

was a key component of Birmingham’s 

successful Cycle City Ambition Fund bid, 

which the DfT granted £17m to last year 

Decision on whether to extend 20mph limits to other areas will be made 

in 2016/17 

Norfolk 

County 

Rejected area-wide 20mph limits in urban 

areas in 2013 

Considered that blanket 20mph schemes 

are not good value for money related to 

more targeted measures 

- 

Hartlepool Plans for town-wide 20mph limit rejected 

in 2011 

Poor response to consultation; our of 62 

responses, 35 opposed town-wide limits 

- 

Sheffield Rejected city-wide approach to 20mph in 

2012 

Adopted incremental approach instead, 

with 20mph limits to be introduced in 

seven residential areas 

View that evidence suggested that a signs-

only approach would only result in a short-

term and marginal adjustment in speeds 

amongst some drivers, and that achieving 

a fundamental change in driving behaviour 

would be a lengthy process 

- 

P
age 168



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 50 

Area / Local 

Authority 
Current Situation Reasons Outcomes 

Nottingham
18

 All roads (except for A and B roads) are 

being considered for 20mph limits, on an 

area-by-area basis, as part of Nottingham’s 

20:20 vision 

First area scheme implemented in 2012, 

with more following 

- - 

 

                                                           
18

 http://www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/article/26332/Nottinghams-2020-vision 

P
age 169



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 51 

Examples from Europe and overseas 

6.4 In addition to examples from the UK, there are also many relevant examples from overseas. As 

most other countries set speed limits in metric units, the schemes examined have generally 

involved lowering the speed limit from 50km/h (32mph) to 30km/h (19mph). Especially in 

some European countries, 30km/h speed limits have been in place for quite some time, so it is 

instructive to examine the impacts that have been observed and the lessons that have been 

learnt. These examples are listed in Table 6.2 below. 

 

 

Page 170



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 52 

 

Table 6.2 Relevant examples from other countries 

Country, city Background and measures implemented Observed outcomes 

Australia
19

 
· Whilst this example does not pertain to a 30km/h speed limit, it is of 

relevance because it provides an insight into the impacts of a widespread 

reduction of speed limits in urban areas without physical traffic calming 

measures. 

· The default urban speed limit (which is the speed limit that applies in urban 

areas unless otherwise signed) was previously 60km/h across Australia. In 

general, this limit therefore applied to residential roads and collector roads. 

· Between 1997 and 2003, every state and territory (except the Northern 

Territory) lowered their default urban speed limit to 50km/h. This was done 

on a state- or territory-wide basis via a change in legislation, together with 

publicity and marketing. In general, no new signs or traffic calming measures 

were introduced. The exception to this is where some collector roads have 

been excluded from the lowered limit, which necessitated new 60km/h 

signs. 

· Each state and territory where the limit was lowered conducted some form 

of monitoring to understand the impacts that the speed limit reduction had. 

· On 50km/h roads, mean speeds were observed to fall by between about 

1km/h and 2km/h. 

· This monitoring consistently showed a decrease in the number of casualty 

collisions, of up to 20%. 

· Interestingly, some results also suggested that lowered speeds also occurred 

on roads where the 60km/h limit was retained. 

Austria 

(Graz)
20

 
21

 
· Initially, small 30km/h zones with some physical traffic calming were 

implemented. Due to their success, 30km/h was later applied to whole 

areas, but in order to reduce implementation costs fewer measures were 

used (only road markings, entry treatments and public relations work). 

· There was still demand for 30km/h to be expanded more widely, however 

simply applying the previous approaches was considered to be too 

expensive. 

· A new city-wide approach was therefore used, that applied a 30km/h limit 

to the whole city except for a network of ‘priority roads’. This scheme 

consisted of the following elements: 

· Signs at the city boundary 

· Road markings, consisting of speed limit roundels and repeaters 

· Intensive public relations 

· Police enforcement complemented by vehicle activated signs 

· The number of serious injury collisions declined by 24%, whilst the number 

of slight injury collisions declined by 12%, indicating a disproportionate 

decrease in more severe collisions. 

· The largest decrease by transport mode was for pedestrians, with 

pedestrian collisions declining by 17%. 

· There was a slight reduction in average vehicle speeds. However, due to a 

reduction in extremely high speeds, vehicle speeds became more 

homogenous. 

· Public acceptance rose from less than 50% prior to implementation, up to 

77% post-implementation. 

· A reduction in vehicle noise was observed. 

· A slight reduction in NOX emissions was observed. 

                                                           
19

 Woolley J (2005) Recent advantages of lower speed limits in Australia in Journal of the Eastern Asia Society for Transportation Studies 6, pp3562–3573. 

P
age 171



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 53 

Country, city Background and measures implemented Observed outcomes 

Denmark
22

 
· 30km/h streets in Denmark have some requirements for physical measures. 

They were created as a cheaper alternative to 15km/h streets, which had 

more stringent requirements for physical measures. As such, 30km/h streets 

became much more popular, especially in existing residential areas. 

· Mean vehicle speeds fell by about 11km/h, although this was through the 

use of physical measures. 

· On 30km/h streets, there was a 24% reduction in the number of collisions, 

with a 45% decrease in the number of casualties. This benefit appeared to 

also extend to the streets just outside of the 30km/h areas, with a 18% 

reduction in the number of collisions and 21% decrease in the number of 

casualties. (These results have been adjusted to take into account the trend 

in the control group, which consisted of all local urban streets in Denmark.) 

· A more intensive analysis was undertaken for casualties per road user 

kilometre (which includes motorised traffic, cyclists and pedestrians), for a 

smaller sample of streets. It was found that casualties per road user 

kilometre fell by 72%. 

Germany 

(Hamburg)
23

 
· A 50km/h limit already applied in inner cities. In 1983, 30km/h speed zones 

were proposed by the Hamburg Police traffic department in conjunction 

with local authorities. 

· Such zones were limited to areas that are residential in character, and 

excluded main roads. Within each zone, all roads should be similar in width 

and character, which may necessitate some design change. All junctions 

within the zones were uncontrolled, with all signs controlled traffic 

removed. Within the zones, no zebra crossings or cycleways were required. 

· Following the example in Hamburg, 30km/h zones were included in national 

legislation in 1985, which enabled their spread to other cities. 

· 55% of drivers complied with the limit (which implies that the median 

vehicle speed became less than 30km/h). 

· A decrease in the number of collisions was not observed, although there 

was a decrease in the severity level of the collisions that did occur. 

· A small decrease in vehicle noise levels was observed. 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            
20

 Sammer G (1994) General 30 kph speed limit in the city : the results of a model project in the City of Graz in Hakkert AS The Third International Conference on 

Safety and the Environment in the 21st Century - Lessons from the past: shaping the future, 7–10 November 1994, Tel Aviv, Israel. pp598–608. 
21

 Sammer G & Wernsperger F (1995) Results of the scientific investigation accompanying the pilot trial of 30 kph limit in side streets and 50 kph limit in priority 

streets in PTRC Education and Research Services The 23
rd

 European Transport Forum : Proceeding of Seminar G : Traffic Management and Road Safety, 11–15 

September 1995, Warwick. P394, pp27–38. 
22

 Engel U. & Thomsen L.K. (1992) Safety effects of speed reducing measures in Danish residential areas in Accident Analysis & Prevention, 24(1), pp17–28. 
23

 Scharping F-K (1994) Experience report – 30km/h speed limited zones in Hamburg – speed reduction measures on inner city roads in Hakkert AS The Third 

International Conference on Safety and the Environment in the 21st Century - Lessons from the past: shaping the future, 7–10 November 1994, Tel Aviv, Israel. 

pp585–589. 

P
age 172



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 54 

Country, city Background and measures implemented Observed outcomes 

Germany
24

 
· Before and after study in selected German cities, to analyse the impact of 

introducing a 30km/h limit together with traffic signal offsets optimised for 

progression at 30km/h. 

· Improved traffic flow was observed. 

· Possibly also improved safety and reduced emissions, although evidence not 

conclusive. 

Netherlands
25

 
· As traffic levels in built-up areas increased, many collisions seemed to be 

caused by conflicts between vehicles and vulnerable road users such as 

pedestrians and cyclists, in particular the young and the elderly. The initial 

response drew on the principle of separation between different traffic 

types. 

· Subsequent to this, an alternative approach based on integration of all road 

users was applied. This was based on the principle of making motorised 

traffic subordinate to other road users, with the solution being the 

‘woonerf’ or ‘home zone’. However, barriers to widespread implementation 

of this solution included high costs. 

· There was therefore a need for a new approach that would achieve lower 

speeds without the disadvantages of the woonerf. Following demonstration 

projects, the 30km/h regulation was introduced in 1984, which allowed 

municipalities to introduce 30km/h zones. Such zones generally employ a 

range of engineering measures, to create an environment that encourages 

speeds of no greater than 30km/h. 

· Changes in vehicle speeds varied widely depending on the type of 

engineering measures employed. Speed humps were found to be the most 

effective, achieving 85%ile speeds of 30km/h or less. Other measures were 

generally less effective. 

· Traffic volumes generally fell by between 5% and 30%. There did not appear 

to be any noticeable changes in walking and cycling levels. 

· After correction for national and local trends, the number of injury collisions 

decreased by about 25%, with a 5% reduction in the number of all collisions. 

· A survey showed that there was a high level of acceptance of the 30km/h 

regulation, and that safety was perceived to have improved. 

                                                           
24

 Schuster G (1994) Analysis of the effects of low progression speed in progressive signal systems in Hakkert AS The Third International Conference on Safety and the 

Environment in the 21st Century - Lessons from the past: shaping the future, 7–10 November 1994, Tel Aviv, Israel. pp590–597. 
25

 Vis A.A et al (1992) Safety effects of 30 km/h zones in The Netherlands in Accident Analysis & Prevention, 24(1), pp75–86. 

P
age 173



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 55 

Country, city Background and measures implemented Observed outcomes 

Switzerland
26

 
· 30km/h speed limits can be imposed on a local basis, in areas up to 1km

2
 in 

area. 

· Can include neighbourhood streets and collector street in residential areas, 

but not main highways. 

· Physical traffic calming measures are generally used where vehicle speeds 

are particularly high. 

· By 2005, 700 districts and areas in Switzerland had implemented 30km/h 

zones. 

· For zones in ‘urban areas’, there was a reduction in the 50%ile speed of 

about 7km/h (from 37km/h to 30km/h), and a reduction in the 85%ile speed 

of also approximately 7km/h (from 45km/h to 38kmh/h). However, for 

zones without physical traffic calming measures, only negligible changes in 

speeds were observed. 

· For zones in ‘large/medium-sized towns/cities’ there was a modest 

reduction in collision per year of about 4%, but a larger decrease in the 

number of casualties per year by about 15%. It was also found that 30km/h 

zones are more effective in areas with a dispersed spatial distribution of 

collisions, whilst more targeted interventions are suited to tackling 

concentrations of collisions (particularly at junctions). 

· A simple cost-benefit analysis was also undertaken. It was found that the 

benefits exceed costs within a period of about three years. This is on the 

basis that on average, each zone results in a reduction of one collision and 

0.5 casualties over a three year period. 

USA (New 

York City)
 27

 
· In August 2010 the Mayor of New York and the Department for 

Transportation (DOT) committed to a pilot programme to test the safety 

performance of neighbourhood 20mph zones. The first zone was installed in 

the Claremont section of the Bronx in 2011. 

· In October 2013, DOT announced a further 15 communities from across the 

city selected to become Neighbourhood Slow Zones by 2016/17. These 

communities were selected from among 74 applicants. DOT selected each 

location based on crash history, community support, proximity of schools, 

and senior and day-care centres, among other criteria. 

· To reduce speeding and increase safety. Mayor Bloomberg stated that 

‘speeding is the single greatest contributing factor in traffic fatalities in our 

City’. 

· Following installation in 2011, the Claremont Slow Zone saw a 10% 

reduction in the worst speeding in the neighbourhood, and across the city, 

speed bumps have been shown to reduce pedestrian crashes by more than 

40% and reduce speeds by nearly 20%. 

· Slow zones are marked by high-visibility blue gateway signs at all streets 

entering the area, with signs noting the 20 mph speed limit in the zone, as 

well as speed bumps and stencilling of ‘20mph’ eight-foot-high letters to 

make clear that motorists are in a reduced speed area. Areas that include 

fire stations, hospitals, and truck routes are avoided and the amount of bus 

routes are kept to a minimum inside the proposed zones. 

· The period between 2008 and 2013 recorded the fewest traffic fatalities 

since the City began collecting data in 1910. 

 

 

                                                           
26

 Lindenmann H.P. (2005) The Effects on Road Safety of 30 Kilometer-Per-Hour Zone Signposting in Residential Districts in ITE Journal, June 2005, pp50–54. 
27

 Mayor Bloomberg and Commissioner Sadik-Khan Announce Citywide Expansion of Neighbourhood Slow Zones to Combat Speeding on Residential Streets and 

Further Improve Record Traffic Safety (2013). Available at http://www1.nyc.gov/office-of-the-mayor/news/329-13/mayor-bloomberg-commissioner-sadik-khan-

citywide-expansion-neighborhood-slow-zones-to/ [Accessed online 7
th

 July 2014] 

P
age 174



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 56 

Other implementation issues 

Public attitudes 

6.5 In early 2014 the Automobile Association (AA) conducted a survey amongst 25,000 panel 

members into opinions on a variety of issues related to 20mph zones
28

. The overriding 

message is that councils and local authorities should consider the views of residents before 

imposing 20mph speed limits on their streets. A selection of responses is shown in Table 6.3. 

Table 6.3 AA survey responses 

Statement Agree Disagree 

1. 20mph speed limits across residential neighbourhoods offer such 

a great road safety benefit that residents’ views need not be taken 

into account. 

32% 47% 

2. Residents should be consulted before a 20mph speed limit is set 

on their road. 
69% 18% 

3. 20mph zones should not include any roads where there are no 

houses, shops or schools. 
75% 12% 

4. It is OK for 20mph speed limits on local neighbourhoods to be 

enforced by a speed camera system. 
41% 38% 

5. Speed camera enforcement should only be used in 20mph speed 

limit zones when a specific problem emerges. 
61% 21% 

 

6.6 There is interesting regional variation in responses with the greatest calls for wider 

consultation on 20mph zones coming from the regional centres of Manchester, Liverpool, 

Birmingham and London; areas where speed limits will have the greatest impact on 

commuters, services and businesses. However, Londoners were also most likely to disagree 

with the statement that 20mph zones should be limited to roads with houses, shops or schools 

(statement 3 in Table 6.3). 

6.7 The challenge is understanding the local traffic context and managing it appropriately. A 

blanket 20mph speed limit imposed on main roads removes the incentive to stay on faster 

moving routes and instead divert through neighbourhoods. This could contribute to quieter 

streets being used as ‘rat-runs’ which in turn may require physical traffic calming measures. 

Soft measures 

6.8 Bristol City Council and the NHS commissioned a study that explored the effectiveness of 

social marketing interventions to support the implementation of signed-only 20mph limits, 

which was undertaken by the University of the West of England
29

. The study identified an 

apparent disconnect between general public support for 20mph in residential areas, and the 

lack of action to comply with this limit when driving. 

                                                           
28

Slow down and consult on 20mph zones, AA members tell councils (2014). Available at 

http://www.theaa.com/newsroom/news-2014/aa-members-want-a-say-on-20mph-zones.html 

[Accessed online 25th June 2014] 
29

 Toy S (2012) Delivering soft measures to support signs-only 20mph limits. University of the West of 

England, Bristol. 

Toy S (2012) Delivering soft measures to support signs-only 20mph limits: A practical guide. University of 

the West of England, Bristol. 

Page 175



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 57 

6.9 A number of factors were identified to explain this non-compliance: 

· Psychological factors: 

· People supportive of 20mph on their own street, but reluctant to drive more slowly 

elsewhere 

· Perceived pressure from other drivers to go faster than 20mph 

· Habit, given that most drivers have learnt to drive at 30mph in urban areas 

· Practical factors: 

· No fear of getting caught 

· Road environment, as the current design of many roads gives visual cues consistent with 

speeds of 30mph or more 

· Informational factors: 

· Lack of awareness of the new limit 

· Misconceptions, such as that driving at 20mph will significantly increase journey times 

6.10 It was found that driver attitudes towards 20mph could be broadly split into three categories: 

· Supporters: ‘A small number of enthusiasts or visionaries that are keen to support 20mph.’ 

· Pragmatists: ‘A large number of pragmatists or conservatives that prefer to follow the 

norm and drive at 30mph.’ 

· Sceptics: ‘A small number of sceptics or self-determinists that are resistant to observing 

speed limits on principle.’ 

6.11 As such, a social marketing campaign to achieve behaviour change and make 20mph ‘normal’ 

is essential to support the roll-out of signed-only 20mph schemes. It is suggested that a 

programme for soft measures should comprise the following five elements: 

· Education: Helping people to understand why 20 is important and how they can change 

their driving habits 

· Enlightenment: Developing a broad vision for 20mph and selling the vision to win over 

residents, visitors, employees and employers 

· Engagement: Listening to local concerns, helping communities to change their streets 

· Encouragement: Visual reminders and rewards for keeping to the limit and driving 

considerately 

· Enforcement: Warnings, sanctions and penalties for breaking the limit or for anti-social 

driving 

6.12 Implementing such measures requires an adequate budget (at least 10% of the budget for 

physical implementation), along with a project team that has the ‘soft’ skills required for social 

marking. It also needs to be recognised that successfully achieving and sustaining culture is a 

long and slow process. It requires ongoing actions, to gain awareness, provide information and 

then provide periodic reminders. 

6.13 The study notes that from a social marketing perspective, the ideal implementation approach 

would be a ‘big bang’ implementation programme, accompanied by appropriately timed social 

marketing. However, it is recognised that a phased approach to implementation is often 

adopted for pragmatic reasons . 

Discussion of key findings 

6.14 A wide range of case studies, from both the UK and overseas, have been examined in the 

chapter. As expected, the impacts of the case studies vary widely, given the diverse nature of 

Page 176



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 58 

the schemes implemented. Nevertheless, there are some common themes that emerge, and 

the key findings from the case studies are summarised in Table 6.4 below. 

6.15 In general, whilst the signed-only schemes in the UK examined have shown only small 

reductions in vehicle speeds of 1–2mph, early monitoring indicates that they are achieving a 

number of positive benefits, including reductions in collisions. However, to confirm these 

trends a further post-implementation data gathered over a longer period of time will be 

required. 

6.16 There are also a number of relevant findings from the overseas case studies. It is interesting 

that a common trajectory regarding the requirements for implementing 30km/h schemes may 

be found in many countries. This comprises a starting point where any 30km/h schemes 

required quite significant physical measures, including ‘home zone’ type treatments. These 

were implemented in small areas, and there was then pressure to implement them more 

widely. However, this was prevented by the high cost of implementation. As such, in many 

cases the requirements for physical measures have been eased, in order to facilitate more 

widespread implementation of 30km/h schemes. However, in most cases, at least some 

physical measures are still used. 

6.17 As such, Graz is a particularly useful case study, as it involved a city-wide lowering of the speed 

limit primarily using signs. The scheme also included a programme of police enforcement. 

Whilst the decrease in average vehicle speeds was small, there were significant decreases in 

casualties, with serious injury collisions declining by about a quarter. In addition, public 

acceptance of the scheme rose after it had been implemented. 

6.18 Another relevant case study comes from Australia, where the default urban speed limit was 

lowered from 60km/h to 50km/h. Although this did not involve 30km/h speed limits,  it 

provides a good example of the effects of a widespread decrease in urban speed limits, 

without any associated  physical measures. It was found that average speeds declined, and 

that reductions in collisions was observed. 

6.19 Research undertaken by the University of the West of England has shed some light on drivers’ 

attitudes towards complying with 20mph limits. The conclusion of this research suggests that 

it is vital that an integral programme of ‘soft’ measures be included as part of any scheme. The 

aim is to achieve cultural change to make driving at 20mph ‘normal’, although this will take 

slow and long process. 

Table 6.4 Summary of key findings 

Impact 

theme 
Evidence from UK case studies 

Evidence from European and overseas case 

studies 

Road safety Some reductions in collisions and casualties 

observed for signed-only 20mph limits, 

although this is generally based on a short 

post-implementation monitoring period. 

Reductions in collisions and casualties have 

been observed for schemes implemented 

overseas, although the magnitude of the 

decrease varies. The reductions seem to be 

greatest where schemes include some physical 

measures. 

In some cases, it was also found that collisions 

and casualties fell surrounding roads that were 

not directly affected by the speed limit 

reduction. 

Page 177



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 59 

Impact 

theme 
Evidence from UK case studies 

Evidence from European and overseas case 

studies 

Traffic speeds 20mph limits without physical measures have 

generally decreased mean vehicle speeds by 

approximately 1–2mph. 

Significant reductions in traffic speeds 

occurred where schemes included physical 

measures; in other cases, a smaller impact was 

observed. 

Interestingly, in some cases it was found that 

vehicle speeds on surrounding roads (not 

affected by a speed limit change) also 

decreased. 

Environment 

and health 

- Little information, although a slight reduction 

in NOX emissions was observed in Graz. 

Amenity May have some positive impact on amenity, as 

post-implementation surveys indicate that 

many residents view 20mph schemes 

positively. 

A slight reduction in traffic noise was observed 

in one case study. 

Little information, although in some cases a 

slight reduction in vehicle noise had been 

observed. 

Inequality - - 

Transport 

efficiency 

Available evidence shows a negligible effect on 

journey times, for both general traffic and 

buses. 

Some evidence that a 30km/h limit, coupled 

with traffic signal offsets optimised for 

progression as 30km/h, results in smoother 

traffic flow. 

Traffic 

volumes and 

sustainable 

modes 

In some cases there have been reductions in 

traffic volumes and an increase in walking and 

cycling, although it is difficult to determine 

whether this can be solely attributed to 20mph 

or is caused by other factors. 

In one case study, a reduction in traffic 

volumes was observed. 

 

Page 178



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 60 

7 Detailed case studies 
Chapter summary 

· The results that are available indicate that speed reductions of 1–2mph are achieved for 

area-wide schemes. There is generally not yet enough data to draw conclusions any impact 

on the number of collisions. 

· Various lessons can be learnt from the experiences of the case studies in terms of the 

practicalities of implementation. In particular, early engagement with key stakeholders, 

such as police and bus operators, is essential. 

· Post-implementation levels of support for the schemes has generally been high. 

· A consistent theme is that enforcement will only play a small part in achieving lower 

speeds. 

 

Introduction 

7.1 In order to obtain more detailed information that is pertinent to this study, four case studies 

have been selected for further investigation. As London is the primary focus of this study, 

three out of the four case studies are located in London, with the fourth located outside 

London as a point of comparison. The aim has been to select four authorities that will provide 

a range of relevant experiences and lessons. 

7.2 Islington and Camden are two inner London boroughs which have implemented borough-wide 

20mph schemes. Kingston upon Thames provides a contrast, both because of its outer London 

location and also as it has not adopted a blanket approach. Finally, Bristol is an example from 

outside London. 

Islington 

7.3 Islington was the first borough to implement 20mph limits on all of their borough roads, 

including main roads, making it an interesting case study. Previously, Islington implemented 

20mph zones across the borough between 2002 and 2009, targeting those areas with the 

worst accident trends. The introduction of a blanket 20mph limit completed its 20mph 

programme, bringing the remaining 22% of borough roads to 20mph. 

Page 179



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 61 

7.4 The borough’s approach to delivering 20mph limits and the discussion with stakeholders 

including the Metropolitan Police and London Buses provide some useful background 

information for boroughs seeking to adopt a similar approach. For example, the cost of the 

scheme was originally expected to be £1m, but rose to £1.6m following requests from the 

Department for Transport and police that the signs were illuminated. 

7.5 A discussion was held with Islington to expand on the information provided in their response 

to the questionnaire. The key points raised in this discussion are listed in Table 7.1. 

Table 7.1 Findings from Islington case study 

Topic Findings 

Impact of 

20mph 

zones/limits 

· Surveys on the borough wide 20mph limit on non-Principal Roads indicated that there 

was an average reduction of 1mph.  

· Surveys undertaken on the Principal Road network before and after implementation of 

the 20mph limit showed the average speed went down 1mph from 23mph to 22mph. The 

85th percentile speed (the speed at or below which 85% of the traffic is travelling) fell 

from 28 to 27mph 

Cost-benefit 

assessment 

· Islington have typically examined cost benefits on the First Year Rate of Return, predicting 

the number of accidents their 20mph zones would help reduce. However, it is difficult to 

attribute accident reduction to 20mph limits as there are a number of contributing 

factors (e.g. engineering measures, driver education, targeted advertising campaigns, 

vehicle safety improvements etc.) 

Consultation 

and barriers to 

implementation 

· Transport for London’s London Buses were initially opposed, concerned about the 

impacts on bus journey times. The opposition was somewhat reduced where it was 

shown that the journey times did not significantly increase, often due to the 20mph roads 

having low average speeds in the first place.  

· The Metropolitan Police initially concerned from a resources and enforcement 

perspective, but over time the increased support for 20mph limits has led to a softening 

of this position as the Council prefers compliance rather than enforcement. 

· Ipsos Mori-commissioned surveys targeting residents found overall support for the 

scheme 

Authority and 

enforcement 

· Islington prefer to foster a cultural shift towards 20mph that encourages compliance 

rather than proactively targets enforcement.  

· Recently, the police has run ‘stop and advise’ sessions, resulting in improved awareness 

and in some cases picking up minor incidents. 

· A speed gun calibrated to 20mph has been acquired, making a further shift towards 

enforcement, if compliance is still the preferred approach 

Soft measures · Some marketing to raise awareness was undertaken in addition to public meetings and 

the formal consultation. This has included advertising on buses. 

Cross-boundary 

and hybrid 

solutions 
· Neighbouring boroughs have progressed 20mph limit proposals, welcomed by Islington 

 

Camden 

7.6 Camden is another inner London borough that has implemented 20mph across all of its 

borough roads. This was completed in late 2013. The findings of a discussion held with 

Camden are listed in Table 7.2 below. 

Page 180



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 62 

Table 7.2 Findings from Camden case study 

Topic Findings 

Impact of 

20mph 

zones/limits 

· Monitoring consists of ATCs on a representative sample of affected roads. It is ongoing for 

three years, and will be reported on in due course. Data on reported collisions will also be 

examined as it becomes available. 

· Monitoring will also draw upon the regular screenline counts that Camden also 

undertake, which include cycle counts. 

· Undertaking attitudinal surveys may also be considered. 

· There are also some air quality monitoring stations in Camden, but it would be difficult to 

isolate the impact of 20mph from other factors. 

Cost-benefit 

assessment 

· Scheme costs consisted of a capital element for implementation, plus an ongoing element 

for monitoring. 

· Initial estimates of scheme costs were higher than then actual cost. This was partially 

because the initial estimates were based on a ‘worst-case’ view. In addition, discussions 

were held with DfT to clarify signing and lighting requirements, and internal discussions 

were also held to determine the signage and road markings that were viewed as 

essential. The outcomes of these discussions were then used to design the details of the 

scheme. 

· The scheme costs were covered by LIP funding. 

· The possibility of drawing upon public health funding was explored, however this did not 

eventuate. At the time, public health was a new responsibility for local government. As 

such, it was found that the transport and public health teams spoke different ‘languages’. 

In addition, a significant amount of officer time was required to demonstrate the public 

health benefits of the 20mph scheme through a business case. Now that the public health 

function is more embedded, there is a better working relationship between the transport 

and public health teams. 

Consultation 

and barriers to 

implementation 

· The main complaints received post-implementation were concerns about how signs and 

road markings were being used in conservation areas. On the other hand, some people 

also raised concerns about there not being enough signs and road markings. 

· Some concerns have also been raised that 20mph is making roads less safe, due to drivers 

using dangerous manoeuvres to get past vehicles travelling at slower speeds. However, 

this is based on anecdotal evidence only. 

· The queries and concerns received have generally focussed on the street that the 

enquirer lives on. 

· There are a handful of people who have shown a more ongoing interest in the 20mph 

scheme, and have followed up with FOI requests for monitoring data. 

· The next step will be to examine the monitoring data, to identify if there are any locations 

where physical measures may be required to achieve lower vehicle speeds. This is likely 

to take place about 1 year after implementation. 

Authority and 

enforcement 

· The police were intensively engaged with throughout the development of the scheme. 

This resulted in an agreed position between Camden and the police, whereby police 

enforcement of 20mph will only take place on streets with persistently high speeds once 

the borough has exhausted all other measures available (such as engineering measures) 

to reduce speeds. 

· More recent discussions have indicated that there may be the possibility of police support 

for annual campaigns to encourage compliance. 

Soft measures 

· Initial measures were consultation during pre-implementation, and publicity to build 

awareness of the scheme during implementation. 

· Currently putting together LIP submission. Camden will consider in due course what 

softer measures may be required to support the 20mph schemes. This may tie into 

ongoing programmes that Camden has, such as Corridors and Neighbourhoods Schemes 

(CANS). 

Page 181



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 63 

Topic Findings 

Cross-boundary 

and hybrid 

solutions 

· Almost all boundary roads were included, except for those on the border with 

Westminster (and possibly Brent?). 

· At this point, discussions regarding extending 20mph onto other sections of the TLRN in 

Camden have not been pursued with TfL. 

· Some initial discussions have been held within the Central London Sub-regional Transport 

Partnership about developing a framework for the application of 20mph onto the TLRN. 

 

7.7 In terms of evaluating the benefits of the scheme, a range of scenarios were evaluated for 

varying reductions in speed and collisions. The results obtained are reproduced in Table 7.3 

below. 

Table 7.3 Camden’s evaluation of savings from casualty reductions 

 

Kingston upon Thames 

7.8 Kingston is a useful case study to examine, as it is an outer London borough adjacent to 

Surrey, in contrast to the two inner London boroughs above. It is also an authority that has not 

adopted a blanket borough-wide approach to 20mph, but rather has a neighbourhood 

decision making structure. Under this system, the borough is divided into four 

neighbourhoods, with each neighbourhood having autonomy over its highway network, which 

includes decisions over 20mph schemes. 

7.9 This system means that the extent of 20mph varies across the neighbourhood. The Kingston 

Town neighbourhood has almost complete coverage of all residential roads, whilst in the other 

neighbourhoods there are lower levels of coverage. Across the whole borough, almost half of 

all borough roads will be covered by 20mph once schemes planned for this financial year are 

implemented. This means that apart from Haringey, it has the highest level of 20mph coverage 

out of all the outer London boroughs that responded to the questionnaire. 

7.10 A discussion was held with Kingston, to expand on the information provided in their response 

to the questionnaire. The key points raised in this discussion are listed in Table 7.4 below. 

7.11 It is interesting to note that a formal cost-benefit analysis is generally not undertaken for 

20mph schemes, given that the number of collisions on residential streets is relatively low. 

Page 182



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 64 

Table 7.4 Findings from Kingston case study 

Topic Findings 

Impact of 

20mph 

zones/limits 

· Reviews completed on a neighbourhood-by-neighbourhood basis, and reports available 

on website. 

· Reviews involved re-surveying roads in scheme areas and examining collision data. 

Cost-benefit 

assessment 

· Schemes funded through LIP. 

· Ongoing maintenance costs absorbed into wider maintenance programme. 

· Some savings in maintenance costs through removal of external illumination of signs. 

· Formal cost-benefit analysis generally not undertaken. Difficult as number of collisions in 

residential streets is very low. 

Consultation 

and barriers to 

implementation 

· Some people question need for 20mph schemes, especially if speeds are already low and 

due to expectation that schemes are self-enforcing. 

· Post-implementation, some general queries are received regarding speeds and 

enforcement. 

· Post-implementation changes to schemes have generally involved expanding them. 

Authority and 

enforcement 

· No regular programme of enforcement. Some ad-hoc speed surveys undertaken by Safer 

Neighbourhoods teams. 

· Borough’s role is generally limited to passing on any strong concerns from residents to 

Safer Neighbourhoods teams. 

Soft measures 

· Generally no scheme-specific soft measures. Consultation results are examined to see 

what people’s attitudes are. 

· Publicity about 20mph schemes through ongoing Smarter Travel programme, which uses 

boards throughout the borough which are alternated regularly. Programme also includes 

work with schools. 

Cross-boundary 

and hybrid 

solutions 

· Currently looking at an area in Worcester Park where the only way in and out is via 

Sutton. Initial discussions have been held with Sutton regarding including a section of 

their road in the scheme, and Sutton have been receptive in-principle. Details such as 

implementation timing and prioritisation are subject to further discussions. 

· A 20mph limit is in place on Tolworth Broadway (SRN), as it was a key part of the 

Tolworth Greenway scheme. 

 

Bristol 

7.12 Bristol is an interesting case study for examining practice outside of London. Bristol has an 

authority-wide 20mph policy which it is currently implementing. It is a policy based decision to 

reduce the risk and severity of road casualties and create more attractive communities and 

environment for active modes, forming part of a broader sustainable transport package 

funded through the DfT's Local Sustainable Transport Fund. 

7.13 Its 20mph proposal is for 90% of Bristol's adopted roads to have a default 20mph limit based 

only on signage. Exemptions include 40mph-50mph roads and dual carriageways. The 

proposals are to be delivered in eight phases, with the first five having been implemented by 

September 2014. The first two phases were introduced as pilot areas in 2010 (Inner East Pilot 

Area and Inner South Pilot Area). There are a further six phases, with the third phase 

introduced in January 2014, followed by the fourth in July 2014 and the fifth in September 

2014.  

Page 183



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 65 

Table 7.5 Findings from Bristol case study 

Topic Findings 

Impact of 

20mph 

zones/limits 

· Pre and post scheme monitoring has been undertaken on the pilot areas show 65% of 

roads saw a reduction in mean speeds and 18 roads no longer saw average speeds above 

24mph; 

· average speed reduction of 0.9mph in the Inner South area (from 23.6mph to 22.7mph), 

and 0.9mph in the Inner East area (from 23.4mph to 22.9mph). 

· No detectable trends based on the short period (on year) of evidence available at the 

time of reporting 

· Six monthly monitoring is taking place to build a more comprehensive understanding of 

impacts after implementation 

Cost-benefit 

assessment · No quantitative analysis of cost benefits has taken place to date 

Consultation 

and barriers to 

implementation 

· Household interview surveys have been undertaken for pre-implementation for four 

phases, with phase 1 post-monitoring forthcoming  

· Pilot areas support for 20mph limits around 82% 

· Set up a stakeholder group for early engagement, including local bus operators First & 

Wessex, taxi groups, local business representatives, the local Freight Transport 

Association group, and Avon and Somerset Constabulary  

· Bus operators – early engagement key  

Authority and 

enforcement 

· ‘Police enforcement is assisted by neighbouring authorities introducing 20mph limits, 

with the local constabulary starting to now enforce 20mph limits  

· Although enforcement is similar to 30mph limits, the emphasis for 20mph limits is to 

educate, not penalise  

· Police are supported by community speedwatch, where police train community 

volunteers to use small speed guns and record speeds which for 26mph upwards results 

in a letter informing the driver of their speed. Three letters results result in a police visit. 

A 20mph awareness course has been piloted, one of three in the country  

· ‘Pace’ stickers are available for willing drivers to place on their vehicle, explaining to 

drivers in vehicles behind them that they are complying with the authority’s 20mph limit 

 

Soft measures · The 20mph programme forms part of a broader LSTF programme with smarter choices 

measures to encourage mode shift 

Cross-boundary 

and hybrid 

solutions 

· Neighbouring authorities have pursued 20mph limits, which has been useful in working 

alongside Avon, Bath and Somerset constabulary 

 

Page 184



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 66 

8 Lessons for future 20mph policy in 
London 
Chapter summary 

· Drawing on the evidence and experience examined in this report, this chapter suggests an 

appropriate approach to 20mph schemes in London. 

· An area-wide approach is suggested, expanding on the existing nucleus of 20mph boroughs 

in central London. Such an approach provides more consistency and builds awareness 

amongst drivers, and helps to foster culture change. 

· The lower cost of a primarily signed-only approach would facilitate a more rapid roll-out. 

The inclusion of borough main roads and TLRN roads depends on the local context. A 

package of complementary softer measures, aimed at achieving cultural change, should be 

an integral part of each scheme. 

· More comprehensive monitoring of schemes should be undertaken to evaluate their 

impacts, and coordinated London-wide monitoring of 20mph schemes would result in more 

effective monitoring. 

· In terms of compliance, it is unlikely that a significantly increase level of police enforcement 

is achievable. Giving local authorities the option of enforcing speed limits would enable 

better responsiveness to local issues and priorities. The wider use of Intelligent Speed 

Adaptation (ISA) also has a role to play in slowing vehicle speeds. 

 

Introduction 

8.1 This report has examined the current context for 20mph, as well as the varying approaches 

that are currently used across London. Evidence from overseas has also been discussed. In 

terms of road safety, the evidence is clear that in general, slower vehicle speeds result in 

fewer and less severe collisions. 20mph schemes are one way to achieve this, although actual 

speed reductions vary depending on the details of each scheme. 

8.2 Therefore, drawing on the information gathered for the previous chapters of this report, this 

chapter recommends a feasible policy approach for 20mph in London going forward. This 

takes into account the current situation in London, its particular transport context as well as 

Page 185



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 67 

differences that exist across the city. Nevertheless, there is value in pursuing a coordinated 

and joined-up approach throughout London, as this would result in greater consistency, 

minimising unexpected changes based on arbitrary borough boundaries. 

8.3 These key recommendations are summarised in Table 8.1 below, and discussed further in the 

following sections. 

Table 8.1 Future 20mph policy for London 

Item Description 

Overall approach 

· Applying an area-wide approach has the benefit of providing greater consistency for 

drivers, improving awareness and supporting cultural change 

· There is already a nucleus of existing 20mph boroughs in central London, and this could 

be used as a starting point for outwards expansion 

· 20mph limits supported primarily by signage and roadmarkings are more cost effective; 

however, a budget should be retained to implement targeted measures where high 

vehicle speeds persist 

· Whether borough main roads and TLRN roads are included in 20mph schemes should 

be decided based on the local context 

· At least 10% of the implementation budget should be set aside for a package of 

complementary ‘soft’ measures to foster cultural change 

Costs and benefits 

· Evaluation of scheme benefits should focus on road safety impacts, and test a range of 

scenarios given the difficulty of accurately predicting changes in vehicle speeds 

· More certainty on the impacts of 20mph limits will be available once the DfT study is 

complete in 2017 

Monitoring and 

evaluation 

· More comprehensive monitoring over at least a three year period (encompassing 

collisions, vehicle speeds, movement volumes and a comparison against control areas) 

should be undertake to evaluate the effectiveness of 20mph schemes 

· There would be merit in creating a London-wide system for monitoring the effects of 

20mph schemes 

Compliance 

· Police enforcement is limited by available resources; this could be alleviated by allowing 

local authorities to enforce speed, which would enable better responsiveness to local 

issues and priorities 

· Technology such as Intelligent Speed Adaptation (ISA) has a role to play in achieving 

compliance, and more widespread adoption should be promoted 

 

Overall approach 

8.4 Given the strong evidence demonstrating the road safety benefits of 20mph schemes, rolling 

them out more widely across London would be expected to reduce the number of severity of 

collisions. 

8.5 The maps included in Figure 8.1, Figure 8.2 and Figure 8.3 below show actual average speeds 

for every road in London, for the peak, inter peak and night periods respectively, based on 

observed GPS data. The speeds shown on these maps are overall averages for each link, 

including any delays at junctions. However, what is very clear is that throughout the day (peak 

and inter peak), the vast majority of roads in inner London have an average speed of 24mph or 

less. This is the case even in outer London, although speeds on main roads tend to exceed 

24mph, particularly in the inter peak. Unsurprisingly, speeds at night time tend to be higher, 

although the majority of roads still have an average speed of up to 24mph. 

8.6 This suggests that London is suited for the more widespread implementation of 20mph 

schemes. Whilst it is recognised that mid-block speeds (excluding delays at junctions) may be 

higher than indicated on the maps, the nature of the road network in London means that 

Page 186



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 68 

overall journey times are generally dictated by junction delays anyway. As such, slowing 

vehicles to 20mph would not be expected to have any significant impact on overall transport 

efficiency. 

8.7 Employing an area-wide approach would be the most efficient way of achieving this. At 

present, in many parts of London there are a patchwork of 20mph zones and limits, which in 

some cases end abruptly at borough boundaries. This is likely to be confusing to drivers, and 

results in an unnecessary proliferation of signage. Area-wide approaches provide greater 

consistency, and hence should help to enhance driver awareness. This approach would also 

reinforce cultural change, by being consistent with the message that 20mph is an appropriate 

speed to driver at in urban areas. 

8.8 There is already a ‘nucleus’ of authorities in central London with borough-wide schemes. 

These are surrounded by a number of other borough who intend to roll out borough-wide 

schemes. Ideally, a coordinated approach between borough would be beneficial, where the 

existing 20mph nucleus forms a starting point, with 20mph radiating outwards from this. In 

particular, it would be desirable to avoid situations where there is a ring of 20mph boroughs 

surrounding a borough that has not adopted 20mph, as this would appear illogical and 

undermine the 20mph message to drivers. 

8.9 In the first instance, 20mph limits supported primarily by signage and road markings are likely 

to be the most feasible to implement, given their lower implementation cost. This means that 

it will be possible to roll them out more rapidly in the current climate of constrained 

resources. Nevertheless, it is also suggested that a budget be held back, so that appropriate 

targeted measures can subsequently be implemented where vehicle speeds remain 

persistently high. 

8.10 Another issue to consider is whether borough main roads should be included in 20mph 

schemes. The borough-wide schemes that have been implemented to date have applied to 

borough main roads, however, it is important to note that these have all been borough 

located in central London. In parts of outer London, the character of some borough main roads 

that primarily have a traffic movement function is not likely to be suitable for 20mph. This can 

be seen on the average speed maps, where many main roads (particularly in outer London) 

have average speeds of over 30mph in the inter peak period. 

8.11 However, in these cases a more targeted approach to applying 20mph on specific sections of 

main roads would be more appropriate, for example around where the ‘place’ function of a 

road becomes more important, such as around shops. In general then, the decision on 

whether borough main roads should be included in 20mph schemes should be made locally, 

taking into account the differing context of each borough. 

8.12 A similar issues arises regarding whether TLRN roads should also be included as part of 20mph 

schemes, although the crucial difference in this case is that the decision ultimately rests with 

TfL. However, many of TfL’s policies recognise the benefits of 20mph, and the work of the 

Roads Task Force advises that 20mph is suitable for roads with an important ‘place’ function. 

As such, where TLRN roads fall within the appropriate category, their inclusion in 20mph 

schemes should be strongly advocated for. 

8.13 A key point is that ‘soft’ measures need to be included as an integral part of all 20mph 

schemes. These measures need to go further than solely publicity, and encompass a broader 

package of initiatives aimed at fostering sustained culture change to make driving at 20mph 

normal. To enable this, at least 10% of a scheme’s budget should be set aside for this purpose. 

Page 187



U:\London\Projects\227\0\96\01\GIS\MAPPING\ARCGIS\Map_Documents\London Road Speeds Map Peak Drive Times.mxd

Road Speeds in London

Peak Journey Times

© 2014 TeleAtlas N.V.s-Hertogenbosch. All rights reserved.

© Crown Copyright and database right of the Crown 2014. All rights reserved.

Created by:

ORussell

Last Updated:

15/09/2014

Scale:

300,000

Legend

Road Speeds > 30 mph

Road Speeds 24 - 30 mph

Road Speeds 20 - 24 mph

Road Speeds 0 - 20 mph

P
age 188



U:\London\Projects\227\0\96\01\GIS\MAPPING\ARCGIS\Map_Documents\London Road Speeds Map Inter Peak Drive Times.mxd

Road Speeds in London

Inter Peak Journey Times

© 2014 TeleAtlas N.V.s-Hertogenbosch. All rights reserved.

© Crown Copyright and database right of the Crown 2014. All rights reserved.

Created by:

ORussell

Last Updated:

15/09/2014

Scale:

300,000

Legend

Road Speeds > 30mph

Road Speeds 24 - 30 mph

Road Speeds 20 - 24 mph

Road Speeds 0 - 20mph

P
age 189



U:\London\Projects\227\0\96\01\GIS\MAPPING\ARCGIS\Map_Documents\London Road Speeds Night Time Map.mxd

Road Speeds in London

Night Journey Times

© 2014 TeleAtlas N.V.s-Hertogenbosch. All rights reserved.

© Crown Copyright and database right of the Crown 2014. All rights reserved.

Created by:

ORussell

Last Updated:

15/09/2014

Scale:

300,000

Legend

Road Speeds > 30mph

Road Speeds 24 - 30 mph

Road Speeds 20 - 24 mph

Road Speeds 0 - 20mph

P
age 190



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 72 

Scheme costs and benefits 

8.14 The primary benefit of 20mph schemes is an improvement in road safety, with fewer and less 

severe collisions. As such, the evaluation of scheme benefits should focus on quantifying 

anticipated changes in the number of collisions. This difficulty is that this is dependent on the 

vehicle speed reductions that are achieved, which is likely to be heavily dependent on local 

circumstances. 

8.15 As such, it is suggested that a range of speed reduction scenarios be tested, drawing of DfT 

guidance and any local experience from previous schemes. These can be used to then estimate 

the expected change in the number of collisions for each scenario. The benefit of this can then 

be valued, by using current DfT estimates for the cost of a collision for each severity level. 

8.16 In addition, there may be other impacts, but these are likely to be negligible, difficult to 

estimate and/or longer-term in nature. As such, rather than attempting to quantify these 

impacts, it would be more practical to note that they are possible. A summary of this is 

provided in Table 8.2 below. 

8.17 The points above are based on currently available information on the impacts of 20mph limits. 

More certainty will be available once the findings of the current DfT study are available, 

however it is not scheduled to be completed until 2017. 

Table 8.2 Estimating impacts 

Impact 

theme 
Likely outcome Estimating impacts 

Road safety Some reductions in collisions and casualties 

observed for signed-only 20mph limits Exact impacts will depend on local 

circumstances, so estimate speed and collision 

reductions based on a range of scenarios (see 

text above) 

Traffic speeds Varies by location, but 20mph limits without 

physical measures have generally decreased 

mean vehicle speeds by approximately 1–

2mph 

Environment 

and health 

Evidence on vehicle emissions is mixed, impact 

likely to be negligible 
Note that any emissions impact is likely to be 

negligible 

Amenity May have some positive impact on amenity, as 

post-implementation surveys indicate that 

many residents view 20mph schemes 

positively. 

Any noise impact likely to be negligible 

Note that there may be positive impacts on 

amenity, although these are difficult to 

quantify 

Note that any noise impact is likely to be 

negligible 

Inequality Some impacts on inequalities - 

Transport 

efficiency 

Negligible effect on journey times, for both 

general traffic and buses. 
Note that any impact on vehicle journey times 

is likely to be negligible 

Traffic 

volumes and 

sustainable 

modes 

In some cases there have been reductions in 

traffic volumes and an increase in walking and 

cycling, particularly where 20mph has been 

implemented as part of a wider package of 

measures 

Note that 20mph will help to encourage higher 

levels of walking and cycling, although this is 

likely to be a longer term effect 

 

8.18 As noted above, the costs of 20mph schemes are potentially much lower now, as extensive 

physical traffic calming measures are no longer required. There are also some potential 

savings, as the requirements for sign lighting within 20mph zones is anticipated to be relaxed. 

Page 191



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 73 

Nevertheless, any estimate of scheme costs should include a budget to be held back, to 

implement measures in locations where vehicle speeds remain high. Also, as discussed above, 

a portion of the budget should be dedicated to complementary measures. 

Monitoring and evaluation 

8.19 One difficulty that arises when attempting to monitor the speed and road safety impacts of 

20mph zones and limits, and hence evaluate their effectiveness, is that it can be difficult to 

isolate the impact of 20mph from changes caused by other factors or random fluctuations. 

Further, monitoring is sometimes only undertaken for a relatively short period (such as only 12 

months following the implementation of a scheme), which exacerbates these issues. 

8.20 As such, it is recommended that monitoring should be undertaken for a minimum of three 

years post-implementation, and include the following elements: 

· Recorded collisions 

· Actual vehicle speeds 

· Traffic, cyclist and pedestrian volumes 

· Comparison against one or more comparable control areas (that are not included in the 

20mph scheme), to enable the effect of a 20mph scheme to be isolated from background 

trends that would have occurred anyway 

8.21 In addition, there would also be benefits in setting up a London-wide system for monitoring 

the effects of 20mph schemes. Whilst it is already possible to analyse the collisions statistics 

that occur on roads with a 20mph limit, what is missing is systematic recording of changes in 

the lengths of roads covered by a 20mph speed limit, as well as changes in movement volumes 

on roads with a 20mph speed limit. By examining the aggregate impact of 20mph schemes 

across all of London, a clearer and more robust understanding of their impacts will be gained. 

Compliance 

Enforcement 

8.22 Police enforcement of 20mph speed limits (and speed limits in general) is constrained by 

limited resources and competing priorities. The current position of the Metropolitan Police is 

that enforcement of 20mph speed limits is possible where high speeds are persistent, but only 

on a reactive basis after other measures (such as engineering) have been exhausted. It is 

unlikely that a there will be any significant increase in the level of enforcement in the 

foreseeable future. 

8.23 As such, there may be merit in advocating for local authorities to have the power to enforce 

20mph speed limits, building on existing parking and moving traffic offence enforcement 

powers. This power would not necessarily need to be taken up by all boroughs, but it would be 

useful to have as an option, as it would mean that speed enforcement could be tailored to 

better align with local needs and priorities. 

Intelligent Speed Adaptation (ISA) 

8.24 Intelligent Speed Adaptation (ISA) is an emerging technology that potentially also has a part to 

play in fostering compliance with 20mph speed limits. As such, it is a useful tool to help 

achieve lower vehicle speeds in 20mph schemes without relying on traffic calming or police 

enforcement. A number of trials have already been carried out, and it is recommended that 

the more widespread use of ISA is promoted. Possible steps to achieve this are: 

Page 192



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 74 

· Councils could lead by example, by installing ISA in their own fleets of vehicles, and also 

specifying that it be installed in their contractor’s vehicles (for example refuse collection 

vehicles). 

· ISA could also be rolled out in other fleets of vehicles, for example TfL buses, as well as 

company fleets. 

· Finally, ISA could also be installed in private vehicles, although it is unlikely to prove 

acceptable to make this mandatory for the general public. Rather, the use of ISA could be 

encouraged through incentives such as discounted insurance premiums. In addition, the 

compulsory use of ISA could be targeted at specific groups, for example those caught 

repeatedly speeding. 

 

Page 193



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 75 

 

Appendices 

Page 194



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 76 

A Reference list 
Publications 

ACPO Speed Enforcement Policy Guidelines 2011-2015: Joining Forces for Safer Roads (2013), 

Association of Chief Police Officers 

Delivering the Vision for London's Streets and Roads: Transport for London’s Response to the 

Roads Task Force (2013), TfL, London 

Draft Pedestrian Safety Action Plan (2014), TfL, London 

Grundy et al (2008a) 20 mph zones and Road Safety in London, London School of Hygiene and 

Tropical Medicine 

Grundy et al (2008b) The Effect of 20 mph zones on Inequalities in Road Casualties in London, 

London School of Hygiene and Tropical Medicine 

Interim Evaluation of the Implementation of 20mph Speed Limits in Portsmouth (2010) DfT. 

Monitoring Report: 20mph Speed Limit Pilot Areas (2012) Bristol City Council 

Slower Speeds Initiative, Killing Speed: A Good Practice Guide to Speed Management (2000) 

Hereford 

South Central Edinburgh 20mph Limit Pilot Evaluation (2013) The City of Edinburgh Council 

The Vision and Direction for London’s Streets and Roads (2013) Roads Task Force, London 

Tovar M.C. & Kilbane-Dawe I (2013) Effects of 20mph Zones on Cycling and Walking Behaviours 

in London, Par Hill Research Ltd 

Transport and Environment Committee Full Meeting Papers: Part 1, 27
th

 August 2013, The City 

of Edinburgh Council 

Webster D. C and Layfield R.E (2003) Review of 20mph zones in London Boroughs, TRL Report 

PPR243, Transport Research Laboratory, Crowthorne 

Webster D. C and Mackie A. M (1996) Review of traffic calming schemes in 20 mph zones. TRL 

Report 215, Transport Research Laboratory, Crowthorne 

Page 195



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 77 

Williams D & North R (2013), An evaluation of the estimated impacts on vehicle emissions of a 

20mph speed restriction in central London, Imperial College London 

 

Online 

Give us power to enforce 20mph, says Hackney (2014) Local Transport Today. Available at 

https://www.transportxtra.com/magazines/local_transport_today/news/?id=38575 

 

Mayor Bloomberg and Commissioner Sadik-Khan Announce Citywide Expansion of 

Neighbourhood Slow Zones to Combat Speeding on Residential Streets and Further Improve 

Record Traffic Safety (2013). Available at http://www1.nyc.gov/office-of-the-

mayor/news/329-13/mayor-bloomberg-commissioner-sadik-khan-citywide-expansion-

neighborhood-slow-zones-to/ 

 

Rucki A (2014) All roads in the City will have 20mph speed limit by the end of the month, 

London Evening Standard. Available at http://www.standard.co.uk/news/transport/all-

roads-in-the-city-will-have-20mph-speed-limit-by-the-end-of-the-month-9582113.html 

 

Slow down and consult on 20mph zones, AA members tell councils(2014). Available at 

http://www.theaa.com/newsroom/news-2014/aa-members-want-a-say-on-20mph-

zones.html 

 

Smith D (2014) Call for 20mph zones to be introduced on streets across Dundee. Available at 

http://www.thecourier.co.uk/news/local/dundee/call-for-20mph-zones-to-be-introduced-

on-streets-across-dundee-1.313390 

Page 196



Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones | Report 

 October 2014 | 78 

B Boroughs questionnaire 
B.1 A copy of the survey as distributed to all 33 local authorities in London is included in this 

appendix. 

 

Page 197



 1 of 2 

Research into the impacts of 20mph 
speed limits and zones: 
borough survey 

The London Borough of Merton, on behalf of LEDNet, has commissioned 

Steer Davies Gleave to conduct research into the impacts of 20mph speed 

limits and zones to inform future policy in London. In order to understand 

the current status of and thinking regarding 20mph schemes across the 

city, it would be appreciated if you (or a colleague) could take a few 

minutes to complete this short questionnaire. Please feel free to respond 

by attaching relevant reports and documents. 

Please send your response to David Sutanto at 

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx by Friday 18 July 2014. 

Contact details 

Borough: Click here to enter text. 

Contact name: Click here to enter text. 

Position: Click here to enter text. 

Email: Click here to enter text. 

Telephone: Click here to enter text. 

Q1: Current coverage of 20mph schemes 

How many areas / what proportion of your borough is covered by 20mph zones and 20mph 

limits? (Please supply a map if available.) 

Click here to enter text. 

Q2: Policies 

What is your borough’s current policy towards 20mph zones and/or limits (such as in your LIP, 

road safety plan,  and other broader non-transport council documents)? 

Click here to enter text. 

Q3: Approach to implementation and prioritisation 

· Where applicable, what is your borough’s current approach to implementing 20mph zones 

and/or limits? (For example, are you using physical traffic calming measures, or an 

approach primarily based on signage? Are any supporting measures being put in place, 

such as publicity campaigns or vehicle activated signs to encourage compliance?) 

Page 198



 2 of 2 

· How have different areas of your borough been prioritised? 

Click here to enter text. 

Q4: Reasoning 

How have you built the case for the roll-out of 20mph zones and/or limits (for example speed 

surveys, collision history, emissions reduction, traffic reduction/diversion, quality of life, etc)? 

Click here to enter text. 

Q5: Monitoring and evaluation 

What evidence do you have of the impacts of 20mph zones and/or limits in your borough? 

(Such as road safety, actual traffic speeds, environment and health, amenity, inequality, 

journey times, traffic volumes, mode shift, etc) 

Click here to enter text. 

Q6: Barriers and challenges 

What have been the main challenges and/or barriers to delivering a 20mph zones and/or 

limits in your borough (such as negative responses to public consultations, political and 

stakeholder opposition, deliverability, cost, etc)? Have any post-implementation issues arisen, 

and if so, how were they addressed? 

Click here to enter text. 

Any further comments 

Click here to enter text. 

Page 199



 

 P:\Projects\227\0\96\01\Work\Reporting\Stage 1 report v0.23.docx 

 Control Sheet 

Control Sheet 
Document Title 

Research into the impacts of 20mph speed limits and zones 

 

Document Type 

Report 

 

Client Contract/Project No. SDG Project/Proposal No. 

E10217902RPP 22709601 

Issue history 

Issue No. Date Details 

0.1 25/07/2014 Stage 1 working draft 

0.2 03/10/2014 Stage 2 working draft 

Review 

Originator 

David Sutanto 

 

Other Contributors 

Jennie Rothera, David Moffat 

 

Reviewed by 

 

Distribution 

Client Steer Davies Gleave 

  

 

Page 200



 steerdaviesgleave.com  

Bogotá, Colombia 

+57 1 322 1470 

colombiainfo@sdgworld.net 

 

Bologna, Italy 

+39 051 656 9381 

italyinfo@sdgworld.net 

 

Boston, USA 

+1 (617) 391 2300 

usainfo@sdgworld.net 

 

Denver, USA 

+1 (303) 416 7226 

usainfo@sdgworld.net 

 

Leeds, England 

+44 113 389 6400 

leedsinfo@sdgworld.net 

Our offices 

London, England 

+44 20 7910 5000 

sdginfo@sdgworld.net 

 

Madrid, Spain 

+34 91 541 8696 

spaininfo@sdgworld.net 

 

Mexico City, Mexico 

+52 (55) 5615 0041 

mexicoinfo@sdgworld.net 

 

New York, USA 

+1 (617) 391 2300 

usainfo@sdgworld.net 

 

Rome, Italy 

+39 06 4201 6169 

italyinfo@sdgworld.net 

San Juan, Puerto Rico 

+1 (787) 721 2002 

puertoricoinfo@sdgworld.net 

 

Santiago, Chile 

+56 2 2757 2600 

chileinfo@sdgworld.net

 

São Paulo, Brazil 

+55 (11) 3151 3630 

brasilinfo@sdgworld.net 

 

Toronto, Canada 

+1 (647) 260 4860 

canadainfo@sdgworld.net 

 

Vancouver, Canada 

+1 (604) 629 2610 

canadainfo@sdgworld.net 

Page 201



Page 202

This page is intentionally left blank



SUMMARY OF RESULTS 

Ped P/C M/C Veh Ped P/C M/C Veh Ped P/C M/C Veh Ped P/C M/C Veh Junction %
Between

junctions
%

Zones 8 798,219 21 18 396,719 50 197,237 25 1 0 0 1 4 5 2 4 0 2 0 1 3 5 1 14

52.9 -100 200 0 0 -25 0 -50 250

Speed Limits

(roads WITH

traffic calming)

14 803,204 24 20 389,027 48 152,078 19 1 1 1 1 7 10 1 9 1 0 0 0 6 6 1 8

-29.0 0 -100 -100 -100 -14 -40 0 -11

Speed Limits

(roads

WITHOUT

traffic calming)

13 361,635 23 18 159,614 44 63,106 17 1 0 1 0 2 3 0 6 0 0 0 0 4 0 3 2

-30.8

Zones & Speed

Limits (roads

WITH traffic

calming)

22 1,601,423 23 19 785,746 49 349,315 22 2 1 1 2 11 15 3 13 1 2 0 1 9 11 2 22

0.0 -50 100 -100 -50 -18 -27 -33 69

Overall (Zones

& Limits)
22 1,963,058 23 18 945,360 48 412,421 21 3 1 2 2 13 18 3 19 1 2 0 1 13 11 5 24

-6.6 -67 100 -100 -50 0 -39 67 26

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

Notes

67 33

Total number of Serious / Slight Injury Collisions Overall (Zones 7 speed limits)

%age Increase / Decrease between pre and post collisions (%) for the Overall (Zones & Speed Limits)

The zones and roads with traffic calming within the speed limit areas had high traffic volumes than roads without any traffic calming, as some of

these roads (not traffic calmed) are cul-de-sacs, 'dead end' roads, very narrow and not favouable for communting traffic.

The data for the 'average 85%ile' and 'mean speeds' in the zones and roads with traffic calming measures within the speed limits areas were better

in comparison to the high traffic volumes in these roads.

On bus routes, the speed reductions have not been high, as the recommended form of traffic calming on bus routes are speed cushions (1.6 metres

wide), which can be easily stradlled by wider vehicles. This contributed to approximately 49% of vehicles travelling above 20mph in the zones and

traffic calmed roads within the speed limit areas.

On roads with weekly traffic volume less than 10,000 vehicles, approximately 20% travel above the speed limit of 20mph.

On roads where the weekly traffic volume exceeds 15,000 vehicles, approximately more than 57% of these vehicles travel above 20mph whilst

approximately 25% travel above 25mph.

On roads where the weekly traffic volume exceeds 25,000, approximately 64 – 80% of vehicles travel above 20mph.

The general trend is that as the traffic volume in the various roads incresases, a high percentage of drivers travel above the speed limit of 20mph.

Serious

%
Total

Collisions

%age Increase / Decrease between pre and post collisions (%) for the ZONES

%age Increase / Decrease between pre and post collisions (%) for the SPEED LIMITS - roads WITH traffic calming measures

The 20mph zones/limits were implemented on roads, which already had traffic calming measures installed some years before the 20mph speed

restrictions were introduced on these roads. Therefore the reduction in traffic speeds will not be high.

Slight

23

4 27 1 21

Type of 20mph

Scheme

Mean Speed

(mph)

Before 20mph implementation _ 3 years collisions within the 20mph area

Accidents

Current 3 years collisions upto 2014 within the 20mph area

Location of current 3 year (upto 2014)collisionsSlight

Total Number

Total

Collisions

Serious

Traffic Speeds

Total Traffic Flows

(vehicles/week)

Average

85%ile Speed

(mph)

No. % No.

Vehicles travelling above

20mph

Vehicles travelling above

25mph

2 15 3

Total number of Serious / Slight Injury Collisions within the SPEED LIMITS - roads WITHOUT traffic calming measures

13 9

2 11

Speeds and Volume

1

2

Collisions

No comparison for the before and after speed data as some of the road do not have the before speed / volume data.

In some areas, the collision data (current 3 years collisions upto 2014), overlaps with some years for the before data as some of the areas have not been in for 3 years.

4

There was a derease in collisions within the speed limit area (roads with traffic calming), as most of the traffic calming measures on these roads are round top humps. There was also a decrease within the

speed limit areas (roads without traffic calming), however most of these roads are short, narrow and traffic flows are very low.

There was an overall 50% decrease in the number of serious injury collisions, whilst there was no change in the number of slight injury collisions.

3 There was an increase within the Zones areas, with most of these collisions occuring on the bus routes were the traffic calming measures are not effective at reducing speeds of larger vehicles.

61

8 53

57

4 53

0 9

26

22

Total number of Serious / Slight Injury Collisions within the ZONES

17

Total number of Serious / Slight Injury Collisions within the SPEED LIMITS - roads WITH traffic calming measures

31

17 965 35

16 73 6 27

%age Increase / Decrease between pre and post collisions (%) for the SPEED LIMITS - roads WITHOUT traffic calming measures

33 69

4 44

4848

Total number of Serious / Slight Injury Collisions within the SPEED LIMITS - roads WITH traffic calming measures 6

5 456 44

15 31

%age Increase / Decrease between pre and post collisions (%) for the SPEED LIMITS - roads WITH traffic calming measures

42

38 19

1

P
age 203



P
age 204

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Gladstone Road o/s 86 Yes No
6 round top humps with 1 junction table _ Within CPZ with

parking on both sides of the road, hence narrow

carriageway width.

2639 21.0 17.5 39 1 1149 44 306 12 No
Although 44% of drivers on this road travel more than 20mph, its only 12% who actually travell

above 25mph. This road is used as a cut through betweem Merton Road and Kingston Road.

Russell Road o/s 43 Yes No
6 setts of 3 abreast speed cushions with 1 junction table _

Within CPZ with parking on both sides of the road, hence

narrow carriageway width.

8069 17.0 12.5 37 1 351 4 61 1 No NA

Palmerston Road o/s 48 Yes No
8 setts of 3 abreast speed cushions _ Within CPZ with

parking on both sides of the road, hence narrow

carriageway width.

5431 20.5 17.0 38 1 1257 23 260 5 No NA

Southey Road o/s 2 Yes No
6 setts of 3 abreast speed cushions _ Within CPZ with

parking on both sides of the road, hence narrow

carriageway width.

12023 18.5 14.0 47 1 1287 11 211 2 No NA

Montague Road o/s 2 Yes No
6 round top humps with 1 junction table _ Within CPZ with

parking on both sides of the road, hence narrow

carriageway width.

16773 18.0 14.5 39 1 1126 7 74 0 No NA

Griffiths Road o/s 11 No Yes
4 setts of 3 abreast speed cushions _ Within CPZ with

parking on both sides of the road, hence narrow

carriageway width.

3108 23.0 18.5 39 1 1422 46 395 13 No
Although approximately 46% of vehicles travel above 20mph, its only 13% which travell above

25mph.

Pelham Road o/s 65 Yes No
7 round top humps and 3 junction tables _ Within CPZ with

parking on both sides of the road, hence narrow

carriageway width.

8242 23.0 20.0 40 1 3822 46 879 11 No
Although 46% of drivers on this road travel more than 20mph, its only 15.1% who actually travell

above 25mph. This road is used as a cut through to avoid the queues on Merton Road and The

Broadway.

56285 10414 19 2186 4 Total

%

Pincott Road o/s May Court Yes No
3 round top humps with 1 width restriction _ Within CPZ

with parking on both sides of the road, hence narrow

carriageway width.

13247 19.0 15.5 35 1 1605 12 164 1 No NA

Abbey Road o/s 26 Yes No
4 round top humps with 1 width restriction _ Within CPZ

with parking on both sides of the road, hence narrow

carriageway width.

19059 11.5 10.0 27 1 14 0 1 0 No NA

Mill Road o/s 27 Yes No
3 round top humps _ Within CPZ with parking on both sides

of the road, hence narrow carriageway width.
7197 15.0 13.0 28 1 134 2 4 0 No NA

Nelson Grove Road o/s 1_18 No No
2 setts of 3 abreast speed cushions _ Within CPZ with

parking on both sides of the road, hence narrow

carriageway width.

5035 16.5 13.5 27 2 154 3 6 0 No NA

Croft Road o/s 33 No Yes
1 sett of speed cushions _ Within CPZ with parking on both

sides of the road, hence narrow carriageway width.
1243 19.0 15.5 39 1 336 27 124 10 No NA

Meadow Road o/s 23 No Yes
1 sett of speed cushions _ Within CPZ with parking on both

sides of the road, hence narrow carriageway width.
1799 18.0 15.0 36 3 694 39 249 14 No NA

Dane Road o/s 20 Yes No
2 round top humps _ Within CPZ with parking on both sides

of the road, hence narrow carriageway width.
6703 24.5 22.5 44 3 4635 69 1942 29 No

84% of vehicles travelling in the eastbound direction travelled above 20mph, whilst 39% travelled in

the westbound direction did so above 20mph. eventhough there are round top humps in this road.

This road has been resurfaced and therefore encourgae high speeds. On average, 69% of

drivers travelled above 20mph.

High Path o/s car wash No Yes
1 sett of speed cushions _ Within CPZ with parking on both

sides of the road, hence narrow carriageway width.
52671 12.5 10.0 39 1 987 2 176 0 No

High Path o/s 1_30 Yes No
3 round top humps with 1 raised table _ Within CPZ with

parking on both sides of the road, hence narrow

carriageway width.

3318 18.0 14.0 26 15 234 7 15 0 No

110272 8793 8 2681 2 Total

%

Start of

Survey

End of

Survey

Traffic Survey in 2014

Reasons for speeds being high

Speeds

Generally

High?

(Decision

based on

85%ile

Speed)
No. %

Vehicles travelling

above 20mph

%

Vehicles travelling

above 25mph

Mean

speed

(mph)

Traffic Calmed

Before 20mph

Introduction

Before 20mph

Introduction
Before 20mph Introduction

Average

85%ile

Speed

(mph)

Pelham Road

area 20mph

Zone

Abbey / 

Dundonald
14/06/2014 20/06/2014

No.

Total Volume of vehicles within the Zone
Total volume / %age of vehicles within the

Zone exceeding the speed limit

High Path

area 20mph

Zone

Abbey 14/06/2014 20/06/2014

NA

Total Volume of vehicles within the Zone
Total volume / %age of vehicles within the

Zone exceeding the speed limit

WardScheme

Highest

Speed

(mph)

No. of

vehicles

travelling

at highest

speed

Survey Location

(2014)
Road

Total Traffic

Flow

(vehicles/week)

1

P
age 205



Start of

Survey

End of

Survey

Traffic Survey in 2014

Reasons for speeds being high

Speeds

Generally

High?

(Decision

based on

85%ile

Speed)
No. %

Vehicles travelling

above 20mph

%

Vehicles travelling

above 25mph

Mean

speed

(mph)

Traffic Calmed

Before 20mph

Introduction

Before 20mph

Introduction
Before 20mph Introduction

Average

85%ile

Speed

(mph)
No.

WardScheme

Highest

Speed

(mph)

No. of

vehicles

travelling

at highest

speed

Survey Location

(2014)
Road

Total Traffic

Flow

(vehicles/week)

2

P
age 206



Start of

Survey

End of

Survey

Traffic Survey in 2014

Reasons for speeds being high

Speeds

Generally

High?

(Decision

based on

85%ile

Speed)
No. %

Vehicles travelling

above 20mph

%

Vehicles travelling

above 25mph

Mean

speed

(mph)

Traffic Calmed

Before 20mph

Introduction

Before 20mph

Introduction
Before 20mph Introduction

Average

85%ile

Speed

(mph)
No.

WardScheme

Highest

Speed

(mph)

No. of

vehicles

travelling

at highest

speed

Survey Location

(2014)
Road

Total Traffic

Flow

(vehicles/week)

Trinity Road o/s 69 Yes No
4 chicanes _Within CPZ with parking on both sides of the

road, hence narrow carriageway width.
45220 23.1 19.0 > 56 11 13344 30 2385 5 No N/A

Faraday Road o/s 42 Yes No
6 round top humps _ Within CPZ with parking on both sides

of the road, hence narrow carriageway width.
2869 18.8 14.6 36 - 41 1 78 3 4 0 No N/A

Effra Road o/s 64 Yes No
8 round top humps _ Within CPZ with parking on both sides

of the road, hence narrow carriageway width.
4799 21.3 17.5 31 - 36 3 739 15 45 1 No N/A

Clarence Road o/s 102 Yes No
6 round top humps _ Within CPZ with parking on both sides

of the road, hence narrow carriageway width.
2154 19.8 15.8 36 - 41 1 120 6 6 0 No Majority of drivers travelled within the speed limit of 20mph.

Florence Road o/s 126 Yes No
6 round top humps _ Within CPZ with parking on both sides

of the road, hence narrow carriageway width.
3029 25.8 20.6 > 56 1 1512 50 410 14 Yes

The humps in this road are the most effective type. The recorded 85%ile is not too excessive,

however approximately 50% of vehicles travel above the speed limit of 20mph.

South Park Road o/s 128 Yes No
3 round top humps and 3 raised junctions _Within CPZ with

parking on both sides of the road, hence narrow

carriageway width.

9818 26.1 21.0 > 56 4 5228 53 1488 15 Yes
The humps in this road are the most effective type. The recorded 85%ile is not too excessive,

however approximately 53% of vehicles travel above the speed limit of 20mph. .

Birbeck Road o/s 21 No No
None _ Within CPZ with parking on both sides of the road,

hence narrow carriageway width.
3771 24.9 19.1 41 - 46 1 1435 38 428 11 Yes

The recorded 85%ile is not too excessive and the recorded traffic volume and short stretch of

road does not warrant any additional measures..

Queens Road o/s 143 No Yes
2 setts of 3 abreast speed cushions, pinch pt and a

mini_roundabout _ Within CPZ with parking on both sides

of the road, hence narrow carriageway width.

35329 30.0 24.7 > 56 14 28040 79 13078 37 Yes

Queens Road 199A Yes No
4 setts of raised speed tables with 1 mini roundabout _

Within CPZ with parking on both sides of the road, hence

narrow carriageway width.

33821 29.0 23.7 > 56 4 24935 74 9807 29 Yes

Evelyn Road o/s 42 No No
none _ Within CPZ with parking on both sides of the road,

hence narrow carriageway width.
3474 23.7 18.3 36 - 41 1 997 29 137 4 No NA

Edith Road o/s 8 No No
none _ Within CPZ with parking on both sides of the road,

hence narrow carriageway width.
3695 20.9 16.2 36 - 41 1 511 14 66 2 No NA

147979 76939 52 27854 19 Total

%

Parkway o/s 16 Yes No 7185 25.0 23.0 47 1 4333 60 1576 22 No

Parkway o/s 96 Yes No 12811 31.5 26.5 52 1 6396 50 3097 24 Yes

Elm Walk o/s 59 Yes No 7477 18.5 15.5 35 1 761 10 94 1 No NA

Elm Walk o/s 42 Yes No 6114 18.0 15.0 36 2 665 11 121 2 No NA

Southway o/s 53 No Yes
4 setts of speed cushions _ Not within CPZ with parking on

both sides of the road. Carriageway narrow.
8126 22.0 18.0 39 2 3048 38 805 10 No NA

Meadow Close o/s 35 No Yes
2 setts of speed cushions _ Road is a 'dead end'. Not

within CPZ with parking on both sides of the road.

Carriageway narrow.

2502 23.0 18.5 39 4 1405 56 653 26 Yes
Although driver speeds in one direction is higher than the other, it is not too excessive, as part of

this road is dead end and traffic volumes are very low.

Trinity Road

area 20mph

Speed limit

Trinity 08/07/2014 14/07/2014

The speed cushions in this road are 1.6 metre wide and 75mm high as this is a bus route. These

measures are therefore not very effective at reducing speeds of HGV's and vans. With an

average of 77% of vehicles travelling above 20mph and approximately 34% travelling above

25mph, the traffic calming measures need to be re-assessed.

Total Volume of vehicles within the Zone
Total volume / %age of vehicles within the

Zone exceeding the speed limit

Parkway area

20mph Zone

Cannon Hill / 

West

Barnes

7 setts of speed cushions _ Not within CPZ, parking on

both sides of the road but carriageway is very wide.

11/05/2014

10 round top road humps _ Not within CPZ with parking on

both sides of the road. Carriageway narrow.

17/05/2014

The speed cushions in this road are not wide enough to reduce driver speeds especially vans and

HGVs along the park section (toward Cannon Hill Lane) of this road. Approximately 58% of drivers

travell above 20mph.

3

P
age 207



Start of

Survey

End of

Survey

Traffic Survey in 2014

Reasons for speeds being high

Speeds

Generally

High?

(Decision

based on

85%ile

Speed)
No. %

Vehicles travelling

above 20mph

%

Vehicles travelling

above 25mph

Mean

speed

(mph)

Traffic Calmed

Before 20mph

Introduction

Before 20mph

Introduction
Before 20mph Introduction

Average

85%ile

Speed

(mph)
No.

WardScheme

Highest

Speed

(mph)

No. of

vehicles

travelling

at highest

speed

Survey Location

(2014)
Road

Total Traffic

Flow

(vehicles/week)

Heath Drive o/s 16 Yes No
3 round top humps _ Not within CPZ with parking on both

sides of the road. Carriageway very narrow.
7852 16.0 13.0 36 1 152 2 17 0 No NA

52067 16760 32 6363 12 Total

%

Dorset Road o/s 53 Yes No
14 setts of 3 abreast speed cushions and 1 entry treatment

_ Within CPZ with parking on both sides of the road
37306 23.5 20.0 46 1 14699 39 3285 9 No

Dorset Road o/s 154/156 Yes No
14 setts of 3 abreast speed cushions and 1 entry treatment

_ Within CPZ with parking on both sides of the road
29967 31.5 27.0 50 3 26805 89 18531 62 Yes

Daybrook Road o/s 39 No No none _ within CPZ with parkinh on both sides of the road 10219 20.5 16.5 40 1 843 8 184 2 No NA

Sandbourne Road o/s 56 Yes No 5 round top humps and 2 junction tables _ Within CPZ 10641 28.0 23.0 49 1 7997 75 3516 33 Yes The round top humps are too low to ensure driver speeds are reduced.

Erridge Road o/s 34 No No none _ within CPZ 5231 25.0 20.0 49 1 2608 50 1240 24 No NA

Poplar Road o/s 63 Yes No 5 round top humps and 1 entry treatment _ Within CPZ 9163 23.0 19.0 40 1 4212 46 1297 14 No NA

Sheridan Road o/s 5/5a Yes No 5 round top humps _ Within CPZ 11193 20.5 17.5 39 1 3842 34 656 6 No NA

Mostyn Road o/s 56 Yes No
13 setts of speed cushions and 1 junction table _ Part

within CPZ with parking on both sides of the road
20372 24.0 19.5 46 1 8575 42 2262 11 No

Speed cushions not wide enough and road is used as a cut through between Kingston Road and

Martin Way.

Kenley Road o/s 27 Yes No
5 round top humps and 1 entry treatment _ Part within CPZ

with parking on both sides of the road.
5483 23.5 19.5 39 1 2832 52 742 14 No NA

Kenley Road o/s 132/134 Yes No
5 round top humps and 1 entry treatment _ Part within CPZ

with parking on both sides of the road.
27084 17.0 13.5 38 1 870 3 68 0 No NA

Windermere Road o/s 47 Yes No 4 round top humps and 1 entry treatment 14011 23.0 19.0 47 1 6178 44 1247 9 No NA

Grasmere Road o/s 38 Yes No 4 round top humps and 1 entry treatment 1882 24.0 20.5 44 1 1156 61 472 25 Yes
Parking is only allowed on one side of the road and with limited passing gaps, drivers tend to drive

fast to avoid having to stop for any approaching vehicles.

Poplar Road South o/s 142/144 No No none 3681 13.5 12.0 30 1 202 5 23 1 No
Mostly school traffic - Poplar Primary School located on this road, hence parents influence driver

speeds on this road.

Aylward Road o/s 54/56 Yes No 7 round top road humps 15525 20.5 17.5 43 1 3732 24 455 3 No No restrictions to parking and used by commuters to park and get to South Merton Train Station.

Tybenham Road Yes No 4 round top hum and an entry treatment. No survey undertaken

Church Lane Yes No 6 Round top humps and entry treatment. No survey undertaken

201758 84551 42 33978 17 Total

Total Volume of vehicles within the Zone
Total volume / %age of vehicles within the

Zone exceeding the speed limit

Merton Park

area 20mph

Speed limit

Merton Park 14&21/07/14

Speed cushions not wide enough to reduce driver speeds especially vans ans HGVs

Total Volume of vehicles within the Zone
Total volume / %age of vehicles within the

Zone exceeding the speed limit

4

P
age 208



Start of

Survey

End of

Survey

Traffic Survey in 2014

Reasons for speeds being high

Speeds

Generally

High?

(Decision

based on

85%ile

Speed)
No. %

Vehicles travelling

above 20mph

%

Vehicles travelling

above 25mph

Mean

speed

(mph)

Traffic Calmed

Before 20mph

Introduction

Before 20mph

Introduction
Before 20mph Introduction

Average

85%ile

Speed

(mph)
No.

WardScheme

Highest

Speed

(mph)

No. of

vehicles

travelling

at highest

speed

Survey Location

(2014)
Road

Total Traffic

Flow

(vehicles/week)

%

Henfield Road o/s 20 No No none 7203 18.5 15.0 37 3 1289 18 285 4 No NA

Kingswood Road o/s 20 No No 10233 18.0 14.5 31 1 647 6 28 0 No

Kingswood Road o/s 59 No No 10276 25.5 21.0 45 1 6229 61 2338 23 Yes

Mayfield Road o/s 12 No No none 927 15.5 14.0 29 1 49 5 2 0 No NA

Merton Hall Gardens o/s 23 No No 1 entry treatment 1343 18.5 15.5 32 1 248 18 31 2 No NA

Merton Hall Road o/s 69 Yes Yes 8 round top humps, 2 junstion tables and 1 speed table 14346 15.0 12.0 32 1 55 0 6 0 No NA

Dundonald Road o/s 34 yes no 6 round top road humps and 2 junction tables 27016 16.0 13.0 36 1 364 1 19 0 No NA

Toynebee Road o/s 79 Yes no
4 round top humps, mini_roundabout, 1 width restriction

and 1 junction  table
25623 15.5 12.5 29 2 230 1 8 0 No NA

Toynebee Road o/s 28 yes no
4 round top humps, mini_roundabout, 1 width restriction

and 1 junction  table
18972 24.5 21.5 49 1 11062 58 2785 15 No NA

Winton Grove o/s 33 No No none 2425 17.5 15.5 39 1 675 28 154 6 No NA

Wilton Crescent o/s 1 yes no 4 road humps 13840 22.0 18.0 38 1 3829 28 829 6 No NA

Wilton Crescent o/s 35 yes no 4 road humps 9397 28.0 24.0 44 2 7241 77 3542 38 Yes
Traffic calming in this road has been replaced with sinusoidal humps. Road used as a cut through

between Kingston Road and Hartfield Road.

Cliveden Road o/s 29 no no none 1219 21.5 19.0 44 1 521 43 165 14 No NA

Rayleigh Road o/s 33 no no none 1829 19.0 15.5 36 1 469 26 105 6 No NA

144649 32908 23 10297 7 Total

%

Quicks Road o/ 89 Yes No
1 width restriction and road humps _ Within a CPZ with

parking on both sides of the Road and narrow carriageway
16/07/2014 22/07/2014 31744 25.0 19.5 54 1 14527 46 3991 13 Yes

Road has been resurfaced recently and therefore provide a smooth surface for drivers to travel

fast.

Hardy Road o/s 48 yes No
Gate at Merton High Street end _ Within a CPZ with

parking on both sides of the road and narrow carriageway
2698 19.5 15.0 44 1 774 29 422 16 No NA

Merton Hall

Road area

20mph Speed

limit

Dundonald 07/07/2014 07/07/2014

1 entry treatment
No traffic calming measures in this road. Restriction to parking on this road and used by drivers to

avoid the queues on Kingston Road between Wilton Crescent and Dorset Road.

Total Volume of vehicles within the Zone
Total volume / %age of vehicles within the

Zone exceeding the speed limit

5

P
age 209



Start of

Survey

End of

Survey

Traffic Survey in 2014

Reasons for speeds being high

Speeds

Generally

High?

(Decision

based on

85%ile

Speed)
No. %

Vehicles travelling

above 20mph

%

Vehicles travelling

above 25mph

Mean

speed

(mph)

Traffic Calmed

Before 20mph

Introduction

Before 20mph

Introduction
Before 20mph Introduction

Average

85%ile

Speed

(mph)
No.

WardScheme

Highest

Speed

(mph)

No. of

vehicles

travelling

at highest

speed

Survey Location

(2014)
Road

Total Traffic

Flow

(vehicles/week)

Nelson Road o/s 47 yes No
Gate at Merton High Street end _ Within a CPZ with

parking on both sides of the road and narrow carriageway
1805 24.0 19.0 33 2 217 12 34 2 No NA

Victory Road o/s 62 yes No
Gate at Merton High Street end _ Within a CPZ with

parking on both sides of the road and narrow carriageway
1615 18.5 15.5 36 1 294 18 84 5 No NA

Hamilton Road o/s 37 Yes no
Gate at Merton High Street end _ Within a CPZ with

parking on both sides of the road and narrow carriageway
1324 18.0 15.0 39 2 526 40 135 10 No NA

Trafalgar Road o/s 22 Yes no
Gate at Haydon's Road end _ Within a CPZ with parking on

both sides of the road and narrow carriageway
827 12.0 10.5 22 1 1 0 0 0 No N/A

Wycliffe Road o/s 27 no no
None _ Within a CPZ with parking on both sides of the road

and narrow carriageway
8345 20.5 16.5 40 1 1797 22 345 4 No NA

Latimere Road o/s 27 no no
None _ Within a CPZ with parking on both sides of the road

and narrow carriageway
7002 24.5 20.0 41 1 3116 45 1026 15 No NA

Ridley Road o/s 24 no no
None _ Within a CPZ with parking on both sides of the road

and narrow carriageway
5050 23.5 18.5 39 1 10695 212 785 16 No NA

60410 31947 53 6822 11 Total

%

Alverston Avenue o/s 34 No No Entry treatment 1590 25.5 19.7 36 - 41 2 689 43 198 12 Yes
Used as a cut through during the peak periods to avoid the traffic queues on Durnsford Road and

also the traffic signals at the junction of Durnsford Road / Arthur Road.

Melrose Avenue o/s 80 Yes Yes 2 speed tables and entry treatment 9232 20.1 16.3 36 - 41 1 1003 11 80 1 No NA

Stuart Road o/s 55 No No Entry treatment 2358 28.4 21.4 41 - 46 9 1243 53 583 25 Yes
Used as a cut through during the peak periods to avoid the traffic signals at the junction of

Durnsford Road / Arthur Road.

Farquhar Road o/s 16 No No Entry treatment 2580 23.1 18.0 31 - 36 2 656 25 83 3 No NA

Stratmore Road o/s 16 No No Entry treatment 2487 24.8 19.3 36 - 41 3 910 37 212 9 No NA

Ryford Road o/s 29 No No Entry treatment 2216 21.0 16.4 36 - 41 2 311 14 44 2 No NA

Stroud Road o/s 37 No No Entry treatment 2003 23.5 17.8 41 - 46 8 1013 51 461 23 NA

Ashen Road o/s 48 No No Entry treatment 4941 26.2 20.7 51 - 56 3 2330 47 727 15 Yes
Used as a cut through during the peak periods to avoid the traffic signals at the junction of

Durnsford Road / Arthur Road.

Durnsford Avenue o/s 24 No No Entry treatment 2885 27.1 21.3 51 - 56 1 1674 58 608 21 Yes
Used as a cut through during the peak periods to avoid the traffic queues on Durnsford Road and

also the traffic signals at the junction of Durnsford Road / Arthur Road.

Quicks Road

area 20mph

Speed limit

Abbey / 

Trinity

06/06/2014 12/06/2014

Total Volume of vehicles within the Zone
Total volume / %age of vehicles within the

Zone exceeding the speed limit

Melrose

Avenue area

20mph Speed

limit

Wimbledon

Park
08/07/2014 14/07/2014

6

P
age 210



Start of

Survey

End of

Survey

Traffic Survey in 2014

Reasons for speeds being high

Speeds

Generally

High?

(Decision

based on

85%ile

Speed)
No. %

Vehicles travelling

above 20mph

%

Vehicles travelling

above 25mph

Mean

speed

(mph)

Traffic Calmed

Before 20mph

Introduction

Before 20mph

Introduction
Before 20mph Introduction

Average

85%ile

Speed

(mph)
No.

WardScheme

Highest

Speed

(mph)

No. of

vehicles

travelling

at highest

speed

Survey Location

(2014)
Road

Total Traffic

Flow

(vehicles/week)

Wolseley Avenue o/s 30 No No None 1783 26.0 20.0 36 - 41 4 839 47 260 15 Yes
Used as a cut through during the peak periods to avoid the traffic queues on Durnsford Road and

also the traffic signals at the junction of Durnsford Road / Arthur Road.

Normanton Avenue o/s 40 No No Entry treatment 2100 27.1 20.9 41 -46 6 1073 51 395 19 Yes
Used as a cut through during the peak periods to avoid the traffic queues on Durnsford Road and

also the traffic signals at the junction of Durnsford Road / Arthur Road.

Braemar Avenue o/s 43 No No Entry treatment 3324 23.0 18.0 31 - 36 9 864 26 100 3 No N / A

37499 12605 34 3751 10 Total

%

Middleton Road o/s 81 No No None 63562 24.5 20.4 > 56 13 27099 43 3770 6 Yes

Middleton Road o/s 37 No Yes 5 setts of speed cushions 27963 31.9 26.9 > 56 2 25110 90 16157 58 Yes

Easby Crescent o/s 17 No No None 1126 22.2 16.7 31 - 36 1 230 20 36 3 No NA

Evesham Road o/s 20 no No None 748 20.8 15.6 36 - 41 1 115 15 28 4 No NA

Evesham Green o/s 6 no No None 593 19.1 14.6 31 - 36 1 37 6 3 1 No NA

Evesham Green o/s 20 no No None 775 21.4 16.6 31 - 36 2 125 16 16 2 No NA

Egleston Road o/s 18 no No None 934 18.8 14.7 36 - 41 1 177 19 26 3 No NA

Furness Road o/s 45 Yes No 4 setts of speed cushions 0 0.0 0.0 0 #DIV/0! 0 #DIV/0! No data due to road works being undertaken during time of survey. Survey to be conducted later.

Faversham Road o/s 27 Yes No 3 setts of speed cushions 16577 28.2 22.2 > 56 7 10371 63 3842 23 Yes
This road leads into Farm Road and is a bus route, hence the speed cushions which are 1.6m by

75mm high are not effective at reducing the speeds of vans and HGVs.

Bruton Road o/s 27 no No None 1032 19.0 14.6 26 - 31 1 41 4 2 0 No NA

Canterbury Road o/s 145 Yes No 10 road humps 6899 26.4 21.1 46 - 51 1 3527 51 1079 16 Yes
Runs parallel to St Helier Avenue and therefore used as a cut through to avoid traffic queues on St 

Helier Avenue. The road humps in this road are the most effective type

Crowland Walk o/s 6 No No None 952 15.4 12.1 16 - 20 58 0 0 0 0 No NA

Calder Road o/s 6 No No None 843 19.4 14.5 31 - 36 5 72 9 13 2 No NA

Farm Road o/s 70 Yes Yes 4 setts of speed cushions 17219 30.9 25.1 > 56 12 13434 78 7512 44 Yes

This road leads into Faversham Road and is a bus route, hence width of speed cushions are only

1.6m wide. Although there is a HGV restriction on this road, HGV drivers still use this road and the

width of these speed cushions do not affect speeds of these trucks and vans. Approximately 78%

of drivers travel above 20mph whilst 44% travelled above 25mph.

Total Volume of vehicles within the Zone
Total volume / %age of vehicles within the

Zone exceeding the speed limit

Farm Road

area 20mph

Speed limit

St Helier 03/07/2014 09/07/2014

Although there is a HGV restriction, it is used by HGV drivers as a cut through between Green

Lane and St Helier Avenue. These vehicles can easily stradle the speed cushions making them

ineffective. Approximately 90% of drivers travel above 20mph in Middleton Road between the

roundabout and Green Lane.

7

P
age 211



Start of

Survey

End of

Survey

Traffic Survey in 2014

Reasons for speeds being high

Speeds

Generally

High?

(Decision

based on

85%ile

Speed)
No. %

Vehicles travelling

above 20mph

%

Vehicles travelling

above 25mph

Mean

speed

(mph)

Traffic Calmed

Before 20mph

Introduction

Before 20mph

Introduction
Before 20mph Introduction

Average

85%ile

Speed

(mph)
No.

WardScheme

Highest

Speed

(mph)

No. of

vehicles

travelling

at highest

speed

Survey Location

(2014)
Road

Total Traffic

Flow

(vehicles/week)

Bristol Road o/s 24 No Yes 2 sinusoidal humps and 1 entry treatment 8686 22.3 17.8 41 - 46 1 1718 20 293 3 No NA

Combermere Road o/s 6 No No None 874 17.5 16.0 26 - 31 2 83 9 3 0 No NA

148783 82139 55 32780 22 Total

%

Wandle Road o/s 37 Yes Yes 13244 32.4 26.7 61.3 1 11423 86 7147 54 Yes

Wandle Road o/s 128 Yes No 19567 30.7 24.7 55.9 1 14589 75 7993 41 Yes

The Drive o/s 62 Yes No 27667 25.8 22.3 46 - 51 5 18150 66 3171 11 Yes

The Drive o/s 120 Yes No 28122 26.6 22.6 47.6 2 19380 69 4712 17 Yes

Lilleshaw Road o/s 144 Yes No 9 road humps and 1 width restriction 28074 25.0 20.7 > 56 2 13149 47 2127 8 No NA

Seddon Road o/s 79 No Yes 8432 29.6 22.8 60.9 1 5282 63 2689 32 Yes

Seddon Road o/s 45 No Yes 7524 30.7 24.5 > 56 3 5529 73 3010 40 Yes

Pollard Road o/s 32 No no entry treatment 3646 29.6 22.6 52.2 1 2304 63 1144 31 Yes Road is very wide and no traffic calming measures.

Morton Road o/s 24 No No none 3657 26.7 19.7 54.6 1 1503 41 611 17 Yes
Used by drivers on Seddon Road to avoid the traffic calming measures (roundtop road humps) in

The Drive. This road is also used by a high number of driving schools.

Montacute Road o/s 55 Yes No 3 road humps and 2 entry treatment 3198 21.8 17.2 30.5 1 588 18 45 1 No NA

Muchelney Road o/s 33 No No none 3708 30.7 24.2 58.5 1 2665 72 1563 42 Yes
Driver speeds are just above the 85%ile. Very narrow reisdential road with parking on one side of

the road. Used as an alternative road/cut through to avoid traffic quees on Middleton Road.

Approximately 72% of drivers travel above 20mph, whilst 42% travelled above 25mph..

Edward Avenue o/s 17 No No none 2256 29.3 21.8 45.5 1 1161 51 632 28 Yes
Used by drivers on Seddon Road to avoid the traffic calming measures (roundtop road humps) in

The Drive. This road is also used by a high number of driving schools.

Milner Road o/s 11 No No none 2202 27.3 19.2 51.2 1 839 38 410 19 Yes
Used by drivers on Seddon Road to avoid the traffic calming measures (roundtop road humps) in

The Drive. This road is also used by a high number of driving schools.

151297 96562 64 35254 23 Total

%

Gorrange Park Avenue o/s 92 Yes Yes 8 road humps, 1 width restriction and 2 entry treatments 11054 24.8 19.9 55.9 1 4398 40 848 8 No NA

Total Volume of vehicles within the Zone
Total volume / %age of vehicles within the

Zone exceeding the speed limit

Wandle Road

area 20mph

Speed limit

Ravensbury

12 sets of speed cushions

25/06/2014

3 priority traffic flow system (with speed cushion and

overrun area) and 1 set of speed cushion with 1 entry

treatment

5 road humps and a width restriction.

01/06/2014

This is a bus route, hence width of speed cushions are only 1.6m wide. This width of these speed

cushions do not affect speeds of trucks and vans. Approximately 80% of drivers travel above

20mph.

Traffic calming within the priority traffic flow system are not effective, as drivers use the overrun

areas to avoid the speed cushions at these locations. Approximately 68% of drivers travel above

20mph

Traffic speeds are just above the acceptable 85%ile speed. Road has just been resurfaced

therefore a smooth surface for drivers to drive fast. Approximately 66% of drivers travel above

20mph.

Total Volume of vehicles within the Zone
Total volume / %age of vehicles within the

Zone exceeding the speed limit

8

P
age 212



Start of

Survey

End of

Survey

Traffic Survey in 2014

Reasons for speeds being high

Speeds

Generally

High?

(Decision

based on

85%ile

Speed)
No. %

Vehicles travelling

above 20mph

%

Vehicles travelling

above 25mph

Mean

speed

(mph)

Traffic Calmed

Before 20mph

Introduction

Before 20mph

Introduction
Before 20mph Introduction

Average

85%ile

Speed

(mph)
No.

WardScheme

Highest

Speed

(mph)

No. of

vehicles

travelling

at highest

speed

Survey Location

(2014)
Road

Total Traffic

Flow

(vehicles/week)

St James Road o/s 48 No No Entry treatment 6949 33.5 25.8 >56 12 5212 75 3277 47 Yes
Used by drivers to avoid the road humps in Gorrange Park Road. 75% of drivers travel above

20mph and 47% travel above 25mph.

Woodland Way o/s 60 No No none 2831 21.4 16.7 31 - 36 3 442 16 61 2 No NA

Ashbourne Road o/s 94 Yes No 9 road humps and 1 entry treatment 4036 24.0 18.8 40.5 1 1235 31 221 5 No NA

Manship Road o/s 22 No No None 1885 20.2 14.8 50.4 1 216 11 45 2 No NA

Framfield Road o/s 46 No No None 2834 28.5 21.6 57.1 2 1521 54 671 24 Yes
Very wide road and used by drivers to avoid the road humps in Gorrange Park Road. 54% of

drivers travel above 20mph whilst 24% travel above 25mph.

Figge's Road o/s 4 No No none 8315 20.3 16.6 31 - 36 3 721 9 41 0 No NA

St Barnabas Road o/s 24 No No none 4079 19.0 13.9 51 - 56 2 1699 42 664 16 No NA

Edenvale Road o/s 13 No No none 1946 25.1 19.3 46.4 1 751 39 194 10 No NA

Milton Road o/s 3 No No none 751 20.8 15.5 31 - 36 4 104 14 13 2 No NA

Stanley Road o/s 27 No No none 1888 24.3 18.5 49.9 1 561 30 159 8 No NA

Thirsk Road o/s 31 No No none 1569 27.0 20.6 45.3 1 729 46 289 18 Yes Very narrow road with parking on both sides of the road and no traffic calming measures.

Tynemouth Road o/s 63 No No none 2192 26.1 20.0 45.1 2 975 44 327 15 Yes Very narrow road with parking on both sides of the road and no traffic calming measures.

Heaton Road o/s 43 No No none 2918 28.4 21.6 59.2 2 1547 53 685 23 Yes Very narrow road with parking on both sides of the road and no traffic calming measures.

Bruce Road o/s 42 No No None with a gate. 2901 27.3 19.9 48.7 1 1277 44 554 19 Yes Very narrow road with parking on both sides of the road and no traffic calming measures.

Inglemere Road o/s 24 No No none 2147 23.4 17.6 43.4 2 563 26 105 5 No NA

Grenfell Road o/s 17 No No None 4859 26.7 19.4 48.3 2 1765 36 816 17 Yes Very narrow road with parking on both sides of the road and no traffic calming measures.

63154 23716 38 8970 14 Total

%

Dunstall Road o/s 5 No No 3085 27.0 22.5 47 1 1853 60 1055 34 Yes
No traffic calming on this road and used by some drivers from the A3 to travel through the village

ward into Wandsworth and beyound.

Ashbourne

Road area

20mph Speed

limit

Graveney 27/06/2014 03/07/2014

Total Volume of vehicles within the Zone
Total volume / %age of vehicles within the

Zone exceeding the speed limit

None

9

P
age 213



Start of

Survey

End of

Survey

Traffic Survey in 2014

Reasons for speeds being high

Speeds

Generally

High?

(Decision

based on

85%ile

Speed)
No. %

Vehicles travelling

above 20mph

%

Vehicles travelling

above 25mph

Mean

speed

(mph)

Traffic Calmed

Before 20mph

Introduction

Before 20mph

Introduction
Before 20mph Introduction

Average

85%ile

Speed

(mph)
No.

WardScheme

Highest

Speed

(mph)

No. of

vehicles

travelling

at highest

speed

Survey Location

(2014)
Road

Total Traffic

Flow

(vehicles/week)

Dunstall Road o/s 11 No No 1569 20.5 17.0 44 1 440 28 153 10 No
Speed along this section of the road acceptable, as majority of cut through drivers do not use this

section of road.

Ernle Road o/s 25 No Yes 9188 25.5 21.0 47 1 4674 51 1894 21 Yes
Used by drivers from the A3 travelling towards Wimbledon and Central London. The speed table in

the middle of the road is not enough to reduce traffic speeds.

Ernle Road o/s 8 No Yes 8266 23.0 19.0 41 1 3109 38 796 10 No Speed along this section of the road acceptable

McKay Road No No None 1343 18.5 16.0 33 1 411 31 102 8 No NA

Wool Road o/s 9 No No 2373 20.0 17.0 35 1 658 28 107 5 No

Driver speeds within this section of the road is acceptable. No traffic calming on this road and

used by some drivers from the A3 through the village ward into Wandsworth. Majority of cut

through drivers do not use this section of the road; in addition the steep incline makes it difficult for

drivers to accelerate along this section of the road.

Wool Road o/s 6 No No 1079 25.5 21.5 42 1 658 61 401 37 Yes
No traffic calming on this road and used by some drivers from the A3 to travel through the village

ward into Wandsworth.

26903 11803 44 4508 17 Total

%

Denmark Avenue o/s 35 No Yes
4 sets of speed cushions and 1 entry treatment _ Within a

CPZ
2837 13.5 10.5 31 1 13 0 4 0 No NA

Denmark Road o/s 11 No No 1 entry treatment 1679 20.0 17.0 36 1 308 18 56 3 No NA

Ridgeway Place o/s 34 No Yes
6 sets of speed cushions and 2 entry treatments _ Within a

CPZ. Carriageway narrow at the top end of the road but

very wide at the bottom end.

13204 25.0 20.0 47 1 6286 48 2267 17 Yes
Traffic speeds are just on the boarder line, as the existing speed cushions can be easily straddled

by some vans and other larger vehicles. Although 57% travelled above 20mph, only 21% travelled

above 25mph.

Spencer Hill o/s 11 No No 4 sinusoidal humps and 1 entry treatment. 6384 16.0 13.0 31 1 262 4 19 0 No NA

Thornton Hill o/s 8 No No 2 sets of speed cushions and 1 entry treatment 3043 17.0 14.0 33 1 215 7 17 1 No NA

Murray Road o/s 23 No Yes 2 sets of speed cushions and 1 entry treatment 7988 20.0 16.5 38 1 1559 20 211 3 No NA

Thornton Road o/s 27 No Yes 3 sets of speed cushions and 1 entry treatment 4372 15.5 12.0 34 1 95 2 12 0 No NA

St John's Road o/s 7 No No None 2764 13.5 11.5 29 1 19 1 2 0 No NA

42271 8757 21 2588 6 Total

%

Church Hill o/s 5 No No 2 sets of speed cushions and 1 traffic island 15449 22.0 19.0 36 2 5242 34 936 6 No NA

St Marys Road o/s 12/14 No Yes 23372 21.5 18.5 40 1 7860 34 1127 5 No

Ernle Road

area 20mph

Speed limit

Village

None

19/05/2014

None

1 speed table and 2 entry  treatment _ Not within a CPZ

with parking on both sides of the road, hence narrow

carriageway width

25/05/2014

Total Volume of vehicles within the Zone
Total volume / %age of vehicles within the

Zone exceeding the speed limit

Total Volume of vehicles within the Zone
Total volume / %age of vehicles within the

Zone exceeding the speed limit

Ridgeway

area 20mph

Zone

Hillside 30/05/2014 05/06/2014

4 sets of speed cushions, 3 priority system, 2 entry

The 3 priority traffic locations and 7 speed cushions are not effective, as the speed cushions can

be easily straddled and the overrun areas within the 3 priority traffic locations do nothing to reduce

10

P
age 214



Start of

Survey

End of

Survey

Traffic Survey in 2014

Reasons for speeds being high

Speeds

Generally

High?

(Decision

based on

85%ile

Speed)
No. %

Vehicles travelling

above 20mph

%

Vehicles travelling

above 25mph

Mean

speed

(mph)

Traffic Calmed

Before 20mph

Introduction

Before 20mph

Introduction
Before 20mph Introduction

Average

85%ile

Speed

(mph)
No.

WardScheme

Highest

Speed

(mph)

No. of

vehicles

travelling

at highest

speed

Survey Location

(2014)
Road

Total Traffic

Flow

(vehicles/week)

St Marys Road o/s 7 No Yes 25312 28.0 23.5 49 1 16220 64 8447 33 Yes

Lake Road o/s 1 Pixham Ct Yes Yes 8240 18.5 14.0 38 1 1059 13 152 2 No

Lake Road o/s 18_28 Yes Yes 12135 24.5 20.5 49 1 5106 42 1822 15 No

Leopold Avenue o/s 12/14 No Yes 1 entry treatment 6049 12.0 9.5 37 1 4 0 1 0 No NA

Ricards Road o/s 1_6 No No none 5519 23.0 19.0 39 1 2420 44 752 14 No NA

96076 37911 39 13237 14 Total

%

Edge Hill o/s 15/17 No No 12392 24.5 20.0 43 1 5447 44 1567 13 No

Edge Hill o/s 8A No No 13262 24.5 19.0 48 2 4996 38 2002 15 Yes

The Downs o/s 37 No No 11872 29.0 24.0 43 3 8240 69 4763 40 Yes

The Downs o/s11 Yes No 16215 23.0 19.0 39 3 6595 41 1778 11 No

Darlston Road o/s 6 No No 2812 16.5 13.0 32 1 111 4 13 0 No

Darlston Road o/s 25 No No 2536 23.5 20.0 39 1 1249 49 391 15 No

Ridgway Gardens o/s 5 No No None _ within a CPZ and a 'dead end' road. 1696 14.0 11.0 28 1 46 3 6 0 No NA

Berkeley Place o/s 16 No No None _ within a CPZ and a 'dead end' road. 739 13.0 11.0 24 1 6 1 0 0 No NA

Hillside o/s 7 No No None _ within a CPZ and a 'dead end' road. 948 13.5 12.0 28 1 17 2 2 0 No NA

62472 26707 43 10522 17 Total

%

Tennyson Avenue o/s 43 No No 2421 26.5 20.0 38 1 1186 49 462 19 Yes
No traffic calming measures on this road and some drivers use this road to avoid the traffic

queues on West Barnes Lane.

Tennyson Avenue o/s 111 No No 2189 24.5 20.5 44 1 1143 52 439 20 No NA

Although traffic speeds are not too high, there is a school in this road and as shown in the traffic

data, the speed cushions are not effective at reducing driver speeds, as most vehicles which use

this road can easily straddle them.

Lake Road

area 20mph

Zone

Hillside / 

Village
21/06/2014 29/06/2014

treatments.

7 sets of speed cushions, 1 speed table and 2 entry

treatments

driver speeds. There was upto 72% of drivers travelling above the speed limit within some

sections of this road.

Total Volume of vehicles within the Zone
Total volume / %age of vehicles within the

Zone exceeding the speed limit

2009/10

Edgehill area

20mph Speed

Limit

Hillside / 

Raynes

Park

None _ Within a CPZ with parking on both sides of the

road. Carriageway narrow at the top where the schools are

concerntrated.

30/05/2014 05/06/2014

High traffic volumes due to schools (approximately 3) in this road - No traffic calming and drivers

accelerate to avoid having to wait in a gap for other drivers travelling in the opposite direction to

pass.

1 speed table and 1 vehicle activated signs. Within a CPZ

with parking on both sides of the road.

High traffic volumes due to schools (approximately 2) in this road - No traffic calming and drivers

accelerate to avoid having to wait in a gap for other drivers travelling in the opposite direction to

pass.

None _ Within a CPZ with parking on both sides of the

road.
The same school run traffic into Edge Hill also uses this road.

Total Volume of vehicles within the Zone
Total volume / %age of vehicles within the

Zone exceeding the speed limit

None

11

P
age 215



Start of

Survey

End of

Survey

Traffic Survey in 2014

Reasons for speeds being high

Speeds

Generally

High?

(Decision

based on

85%ile

Speed)
No. %

Vehicles travelling

above 20mph

%

Vehicles travelling

above 25mph

Mean

speed

(mph)

Traffic Calmed

Before 20mph

Introduction

Before 20mph

Introduction
Before 20mph Introduction

Average

85%ile

Speed

(mph)
No.

WardScheme

Highest

Speed

(mph)

No. of

vehicles

travelling

at highest

speed

Survey Location

(2014)
Road

Total Traffic

Flow

(vehicles/week)

Arthur Road o/s 3/5 Yes No Mini_roundabout 4201 21.0 17.0 39 2 973 23 227 5 No NA

West Barnes Lane o/s 368 No No None 34708 23.5 12.0 52 1 9345 27 3367 10 No NA

West Barnes Lane o/s 150 No Yes 4 raised junctions 53126 29.0 24.5 54 1 40056 75 18937 36 Yes

West Barnes Lane o/s 240 Yes Yes
5 sets of speed cushions, 2 speed tables and a

mini_roundabout
25568 26.0 22.0 49 1 15292 60 5482 21 Yes

Adela Avenue o/s 57 Yes Yes 5 sets of speed cushions 504 20.0 17.0 36 1 124 25 24 5 No NA

Seaforth Avenue o/s 49 Yes Yes 6159 22.0 18.5 44 1 1954 32 465 8 No

Seaforth Avenue o/s 232 Yes No 4814 21.0 16.5 37 1 1934 40 323 7 No

Marina Avenue o/s 12 No No 7071 17.5 9.0 36 1 396 6 46 1 No NA

Marina Avenue o/s 69 No No 1523 19.5 11.5 35 1 322 21 63 4 No NA

Douglas Avenue o/s 9 No No None 2304 22.0 18.5 36 1 861 37 179 8 No NA

Estella Avenue o/s 17 No No None 1228 20.0 17.5 34 1 305 25 43 4 No NA

Phyllis Avenue o/s 61 Yes No 7 sets of speed cushions 2016 21.5 18.0 40 1 764 38 199 10 No NA

147832 74655 50 30256 20 Total

%

Claremont Avenue o/s 79/81 Yes Yes
9 round top road humps_ Not within a CPZ with parking on

both sides of the road
16153 24.0 19.0 41 1 8172 51 2281 14 No

Although traffic speeds are not high, the recorded speeds are just on the boarder line and can be

easily exceeded. Not enough passing gaps between the parked vehicles, hence drivers accelerate

to avoid having to wait and give way to other drivers approaching from the opposite direction.

Cavendish Avenue o/s 51 No No
None _ Not within a CPZ with parking on both sides of the

road
4943 27.5 22.5 54 2 3026 61 1824 37 Yes

There are no traffic calming measures and this road and it's used to avoid traffic queues leading to

both railway crossings on West Barnes Lane. Not enough passing gaps between the parked

vehicles, hence drivers accelerate to avoid having to wait and give way to other drivers

approaching from the opposite direction.

Belmont Avenue o/s 38 No No
None _ Not within a CPZ with parking on both sides of the

road
7913 27.0 22.0 53 1 4982 63 2309 29 Yes

Belmont Avenue o/s 79/81 No No
None _ Not within a CPZ with parking on both sides of the

road
6971 25.0 21.0 43 2 4028 58 1640 24 No

Errol Gardens o/s 4 No No
None _ Not within a CPZ with parking on both sides of the

road
3435 14.0 11.0 29 2 55 2 9 0 No NA

NA

This is a bus route, hence width of speed cushions are only 1.6m wide, which do not reduce

speeds of trucks and vans, as they can easily straddle them.

West Barnes

area 20mph

Speed limit

West

Barnes
29/06/2014 02/07/2014

8 sets of speed cushions

None

Total Volume of vehicles within the Zone
Total volume / %age of vehicles within the

Zone exceeding the speed limit

Claremont

Avenue area West
19/05/2014 25/05/2014

Although traffic speeds are not high, the recorded speeds are just on the boarder line and can be

easily exceeded. Not enough passing gaps between the parked vehicles, hence drivers accelerate

to avoid having to wait and give way to other drivers approaching from the opposite direction.

12

P
age 216



Start of

Survey

End of

Survey

Traffic Survey in 2014

Reasons for speeds being high

Speeds

Generally

High?

(Decision

based on

85%ile

Speed)
No. %

Vehicles travelling

above 20mph

%

Vehicles travelling

above 25mph

Mean

speed

(mph)

Traffic Calmed

Before 20mph

Introduction

Before 20mph

Introduction
Before 20mph Introduction

Average

85%ile

Speed

(mph)
No.

WardScheme

Highest

Speed

(mph)

No. of

vehicles

travelling

at highest

speed

Survey Location

(2014)
Road

Total Traffic

Flow

(vehicles/week)

Consfield Avenue o/s 60 No No
None _ Not within a CPZ with parking on both sides of the

road
4082 21.5 17.5 42 2 1204 29 283 7 No NA

Byron Avenue o/s 64 No No
None _ Not within a CPZ with parking on both sides of the

road
6893 31.0 25.5 49 3 5492 80 3926 57 Yes

There are no traffic calming measures on this road and it's used as a link from Malden Way (A3)

to Claremont Avenue in addition to avoid traffic queues leading to both railway crossings on West

Barnes Lane. Not enough passing gaps between the parked vehicles, hence drivers accelerate to

avoid having to wait and give way to other drivers approaching from the opposite direction.

Cobham Avenue o/s 49 No No
None _ Not within a CPZ with parking on both sides of the

road
3431 21.0 17.0 39 2 1285 37 387 11 No NA

Stanley Avenue o/s 30 No No
None _ Not within a CPZ with parking on both sides of the

road
1396 17.0 15.0 27 2 112 8 11 1 No NA

West Barnes Lane o/s 455 No No
None _ Not within a CPZ with parking on both sides of the

road
11577 23.0 19.0 38 1 4606 40 840 7 No NA

66794 32962 49 13510 20 Total

%

Cambridge Road o/s 87 No Yes 2 vehicle activated signs and 1 entry treatment 10871 21.5 18.5 39 1 3133 29 457 4 No N/A

Cambridge Road o/s school Yes No 4 road humps and traffic island 11538 28.5 23.5 50 1 8113 70 4321 37 Yes School located on this road and mainly.

22409 11246 50 4778 21 Total

%

Grove Road o/s 34 Yes No 6 chicanes 9149 25.4 20.8 41 - 46 22 4238 46 1032 11 Yes Chicanes not effective at reducing driver speeds.

Worsecter Close o/s 21/23 No Yes 1 overrun area 958 20.7 15.5 31 - 36 2 127 13 18 2 No NA

Spencer Road o/s 60 Yes Yes 5 chicanes and 1 overrun area 11111 27.6 22.0 61.6 1 6374 57 2184 20 Yes Chicanes not effective at reducing driver speeds.

Commonside East o/s 171 No No None 17461 27.1 22.5 46 2 11066 63 3009 17 Yes Traffic management measures not working.

Acacia Road o/s 41/43 Yes No 3 road humps and 1 entry treatment 17365 25.0 20.0 > 56 24 7355 42 1304 8 No NA

Cedars Avenue o/s 7 No Yes 3 sets of speed cushions 74170 27.8 22.2 > 56 17 42969 58 16155 22 Yes Speed cushions not effective at reducing traffic speeds. Road used by HGVs

Tamworth Lane o/s 75 Yes No 3 road buildouts and speed cushions. 97418 31.4 26.6 > 56 29 87009 89 53668 55 Yes
This is a bus route and the speed cushions are not effective at reducing driver speeds, in addition

to being used by HGVs.

227632 159138 70 77370 34 Total

%

Avenue area

20mph Speed

limit

West

Barnes
19/05/2014 25/05/2014

Total Volume of vehicles within the Zone
Total volume / %age of vehicles within the

Zone exceeding the speed limit

Total Volume of vehicles within the Zone
Total volume / %age of vehicles within the

Zone exceeding the speed limit

Cambridge

Road area

20mph Speed

limit

Raynes

Park
22/06/2014 28/06/2014

Total Volume of vehicles within the Zone
Total volume / %age of vehicles within the

Zone exceeding the speed limit

Eastfields

area 20mph

Zone

Hillside / 

Raynes

Park

26/06/2014 02/07/2014

13

P
age 217



Start of

Survey

End of

Survey

Traffic Survey in 2014

Reasons for speeds being high

Speeds

Generally

High?

(Decision

based on

85%ile

Speed)
No. %

Vehicles travelling

above 20mph

%

Vehicles travelling

above 25mph

Mean

speed

(mph)

Traffic Calmed

Before 20mph

Introduction

Before 20mph

Introduction
Before 20mph Introduction

Average

85%ile

Speed

(mph)
No.

WardScheme

Highest

Speed

(mph)

No. of

vehicles

travelling

at highest

speed

Survey Location

(2014)
Road

Total Traffic

Flow

(vehicles/week)

Chestnut Grove o/s 69 Yes No 8 road hunps 8701 25.5 20.8 50.8 1 5108 59 1118 13 Yes Round top road humps not effective.

Carisbrooke Road o/s 53 No No None 6450 24.1 21.4 49.2 3 3404 53 1198 19 Yes No traffic calming measures on this road.

South Lodge Avenue
adj to 2 Lancaster

Gds
Yes Yes

5 traffic island with speed cushions, 2 raised junctions and

1 entry treatment
63798 31.1 25.9 > 56 11 54473 85 30100 47 Yes This is a bus route and the speed cushions not effective at reducing traffic speeds.

Yorkshire Road o/s 47 Yes No 2 junction tables and 1 speed table 4243 25.1 19.6 > 56 3 1446 34 434 10 Yes The junction and speed tables are very low and not effective.

Lancaster Avenue o/s 56 Yes No 3 junction table and 1 speed table 2379 25.7 20.4 41.8 1 1095 46 299 13 Yes The junction and speed tables are very low and not effective.

Middlesex Road o/s 10 Yes No 1 speed table 1439 23.2 17.6 31 - 36 5 371 26 51 4 No NA

Radnor Close o/s 20 No No None 4070 24.3 19.1 46.5 2 1324 33 262 6 No NA

Galpins Road o/s 274 No No 4299 29.8 22.9 > 56 3 2710 63 1323 31 Yes

Galpins Road o/s 196 No No 11279 34.2 27.1 > 56 12 9359 83 6439 57 Yes

Tavistock Crescent o/s 105 No No None 1984 26.6 20.5 61.6 1 932 47 325 16 Yes No traffic calming measures installed on this road.

Conway Gardens o/s 14 No No None 6219 28.0 21.9 66.5 1 3580 58 1331 21 Yes No traffic calming measures installed on this road.

Berkshire Way adj 49 Yorkshire Rd Yes No 1 raised junction 6813 23.4 18.6 36 - 41 2 1761 26 211 3 No NA

Westmorland Way o/s 12 No No None 6852 28.8 22.5 54.2 1 3989 58 1816 27 No NA

Northumberland Gardens o/s 14 No No None 1368 24.2 17.4 49.8 1 338 25 135 10 No NA

129894 89890 69 45042 35 Total

%

Commonside East LC 14 _ Bridge Yes Yes 109928 32.0 26.0 > 56 47 87522 80 60458 55 Yes

Commonside East OS 243 Yes Yes 82574 31.3 26.3 > 56 28 72303 88 41590 50 Yes

Tamworth Park o/s 22 Yes No Gated closure 829 28.2 15.7 34.4 5 90 11 35 4 Yes No Traffic calming measures on this road.

Although there is a HGV restriction of this road, it is heavily used by vans and HGVs. It is also a

bus route, hence the speed cushions can be straddled by these vans and HGVs. This road is also

used to by-pass traffic queues on Commonside West and Croydon Road.

Pollards Hill

area 20mph

Speed limit

Pollards Hill 18/06/2014 24/06/2014

None No traffic calming measures installed on this road.

Total Volume of vehicles within the Zone
Total volume / %age of vehicles within the

Zone exceeding the speed limit

8 sets of speed cushions, 1 raised junction, 2 speed tables

ane 2 vehicle activated signs

14

P
age 218



Start of

Survey

End of

Survey

Traffic Survey in 2014

Reasons for speeds being high

Speeds

Generally

High?

(Decision

based on

85%ile

Speed)
No. %

Vehicles travelling

above 20mph

%

Vehicles travelling

above 25mph

Mean

speed

(mph)

Traffic Calmed

Before 20mph

Introduction

Before 20mph

Introduction
Before 20mph Introduction

Average

85%ile

Speed

(mph)
No.

WardScheme

Highest

Speed

(mph)

No. of

vehicles

travelling

at highest

speed

Survey Location

(2014)
Road

Total Traffic

Flow

(vehicles/week)

Tamworth Lane OS 329 Yes Yes 57702 30.9 25.3 > 56 12 46849 81 26248 45 Yes

Tamworth Lane o/s 275 Yes Yes 59084 31.0 25.7 > 56 11 48872 83 27378 46 Yes

St Georges Road o/s 26 No Yes Overrun areas 1138 24.0 18.0 47.2 2 313 28 94 8 No N/A

Although there is a HGV restriction of this road, it is heavily used by vans and HGVs. It is also a

bus route, hence the speed cushions can be straddled by these vans and HGVs. This road is used

to by-pass traffic queues leading into Mitcham.

24/06/20148 sets of speed cushions and buildouts

Commonside

East area

20mph zone

Pollards Hill 18/06/2014

15

P
age 219



Start of

Survey

End of

Survey

Traffic Survey in 2014

Reasons for speeds being high

Speeds

Generally

High?

(Decision

based on

85%ile

Speed)
No. %

Vehicles travelling

above 20mph

%

Vehicles travelling

above 25mph

Mean

speed

(mph)

Traffic Calmed

Before 20mph

Introduction

Before 20mph

Introduction
Before 20mph Introduction

Average

85%ile

Speed

(mph)
No.

WardScheme

Highest

Speed

(mph)

No. of

vehicles

travelling

at highest

speed

Survey Location

(2014)
Road

Total Traffic

Flow

(vehicles/week)

Pentland Close
adj. 253

Commonside East
No Yes Raised entry 2241 19.7 15.3 40.4 2 114 5 21 1 No NA

Cambridge Road o/s 17 No No None 3090 25.6 20.1 40.2 1 1341 43 380 12 Yes Quite residential road with no traffic calming measures.

316586 257404 81 156204 49 Total

%

Ashcombe Road before Bridge

Yes No 52704 23.5 19.5 41 1 23540 45 3972 8 No NA

Ashcombe Road 33/35

Yes No 47150 23.0 19.5 41 1 16435 35 2525 5 No NA

Cromwell Road o/s 30

Yes No 4230 15.5 13.5 36 1 90 2 9 0 No NA

Cromwell Road o/s 90

Yes No 5784 15.0 12.0 24 3 46 1 0 0 No NA

Avondale Road o/s 4

Yes No 7140 13.5 11.0 22 1 5 0 0 0 No NA

Avondale Road o/s 17

Yes No 4101 14.0 12.0 23 1 11 0 0 0 No NA

Haydon Park Road o/s113

Yes No 5773 19.5 16.5 36 1 1545 27 180 3 No NA

Haydon Park Road o/s43

Yes No 8349 26.5 24.5 45 2 5961 71 3298 40 No NA

135231 47633 35 9984 7 Total

%

Total Volume of vehicles within the Zone
Total volume / %age of vehicles within the

Zone exceeding the speed limit

Cromwell

Road area

20mph zone

Trinity

2 raised junctions, 1 speed table and 1 entry treatment _

Within a CPZ with parking on both sides of the road.

Carriageway narrow

6.06.14

7 round top road humps and 1 entry treatment _ Within a

CPZ with parking on both sides of the road. Carriageway

narrow

4 round top road humps and 1 entry treatment _ Within a

CPZ with parking on both sides of the road. Carriageway

narrow

7 round top road humps and 1 entry treatment _ Within a

CPZ with parking on both sides of the road. Carriageway

narrow

Total Volume of vehicles within the Zone
Total volume / %age of vehicles within the

Zone exceeding the speed limit

12.6.14

16

P
age 220



Ped P/C M/C Veh Ped P/C M/C Veh Ped P/C M/C Veh Ped P/C M/C Veh Junction
Between

junctions

Gladstone Road o/s 86 Yes No
6 round top humps with 1 junction table _ Within CPZ with
parking on both sides of the road, hence narrow
carriageway width.

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ 1 _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do Nothing Do nothing _

Russell Road o/s 43 Yes No
6 setts of 3 abreast speed cushions with 1 junction table _
Within CPZ with parking on both sides of the road, hence
narrow carriageway width.

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do Nothing Do nothing _

Palmerston Road o/s 48 Yes No
8 setts of 3 abreast speed cushions _ Within CPZ with
parking on both sides of the road, hence narrow
carriageway width.

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do Nothing Do nothing _

Southey Road o/s 2 Yes No
6 setts of 3 abreast speed cushions _ Within CPZ with
parking on both sides of the road, hence narrow
carriageway width.

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 1 _ 1 Do Nothing Do nothing _

Montague Road o/s 2 Yes No
6 round top humps with 1 junction table _ Within CPZ with
parking on both sides of the road, hence narrow
carriageway width.

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do Nothing Do nothing _

Griffiths Road o/s 11 No Yes
4 setts of 3 abreast speed cushions _ Within CPZ with
parking on both sides of the road, hence narrow
carriageway width.

_ _ _ _ _ 1 _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do Nothing Do nothing _

Pelham Road o/s 65 Yes No
7 round top humps and 3 junction tables _ Within CPZ with
parking on both sides of the road, hence narrow
carriageway width.

_ _ _ _ _ 1 1 _ _ _ _ _ 1 1 1 _ 2 1
All the collisions in this area occurred on this road. The road markings to be made more visible to
drivers approaching from Pelham Road to give way when they approach these junctions.

Remark road markings at the
junctions.

£3.0

4 0 0 0 0 0 2 1 1 4 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 1 2 2

% 0 0 0 0 0 50 25 25 % 0 0 0 0 25 25 25 25 50 50

Pincott Road o/s May Court Yes No
3 round top humps with 1 width restriction _ Within CPZ
with parking on both sides of the road, hence narrow
carriageway width.

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing Do nothing _

Abbey Road o/s 26 Yes No
4 round top humps with 1 width restriction _ Within CPZ
with parking on both sides of the road, hence narrow
carriageway width.

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing Do nothing _

Mill Road o/s 27 Yes No
3 round top humps _ Within CPZ with parking on both
sides of the road, hence narrow carriageway width.

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing Do nothing _

Nelson Grove Road o/s 1_18 No No
2 setts of 3 abreast speed cushions _ Within CPZ with
parking on both sides of the road, hence narrow
carriageway width.

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing Do nothing _

Croft Road o/s 33 No Yes
1 sett of speed cushions _ Within CPZ with parking on
both sides of the road, hence narrow carriageway width.

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing Do nothing _

Meadow Road o/s 23 No Yes
1 sett of speed cushions _ Within CPZ with parking on
both sides of the road, hence narrow carriageway width.

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing Do nothing _

Dane Road o/s 20 Yes No
2 round top humps _ Within CPZ with parking on both
sides of the road, hence narrow carriageway width.

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing Do nothing _

High Path o/s car wash No Yes
1 sett of speed cushions _ Within CPZ with parking on
both sides of the road, hence narrow carriageway width.

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing Do nothing _

High Path o/s 1_30 Yes No
3 round top humps with 1 raised table _ Within CPZ with
parking on both sides of the road, hence narrow
carriageway width.

_ _ _ _ _ 1 _ _ 1 _

This collision occurred at the junction of Hayward Close, which is along the cycle route. Since
Hayward Close is a residentail road; and rearly any traffic comes from this road, the precense of the
cycle route should be made aware to drivers exiting Hayward Close. Consider 'give way' markings
at the junction across the cycle track as well as the existing one across Hayward Close.

Give way' road markings £1.0

1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0

% 0 0 0 0 0 0 100 0 % 0 0 0 0 0 100 0 0 100 0

Overall comments Proposed Measures CostAccidents

Before 20mph implementation _ 3 years collisions within the

20mph area
Current 3 years collisions upto 2014 within the 20mph area

Serious Slight

Overall

Collision

Serious Slight

Location of current 3

year (upto

2014)collisions

K (000)

Before 20mph

Introduction

During 20mph

Introduction

Current traffic calming measures (after 20mph

introduction)

Overall

Collisions

4 4

Total Volume of vehicles within the Zone

Pelham Road
area 20mph

Zone

Abbey / 
Dundonald

There was a reduction in the number of collisions between the pre and post data.

Although this reduction was not high, the post collisions can be attributed to driver error.

With more than 66% of the collisions in the area occuring at road junctions, the road

markings at these locations should be remarked on a regular basis to prevent these

collisions occuring again.

Remark road markings at

junctions.
£3.0

1

_ _ _ _ _ _ 1 _

Total Volume of vehicles within the Zone

1
High Path area
20mph Zone

Abbey

No reduction in the number of collisions between the pre and post data. The collision on

the road occurred at a junction along the cycle track. Consider additional road markings,

as the only collision does not warrant the need for excessive traffic calming measures.

Additional road markings £1.0

Scheme

Traffic Calmed

Survey Location

(2014)
RoadWard

1

P
age 221



Ped P/C M/C Veh Ped P/C M/C Veh Ped P/C M/C Veh Ped P/C M/C Veh Junction
Between

junctions

Overall comments Proposed Measures CostAccidents

Before 20mph implementation _ 3 years collisions within the

20mph area
Current 3 years collisions upto 2014 within the 20mph area

Serious Slight

Overall

Collision

Serious Slight

Location of current 3

year (upto

2014)collisions

K (000)

Before 20mph

Introduction

During 20mph

Introduction

Current traffic calming measures (after 20mph

introduction)

Overall

Collisions

Scheme

Traffic Calmed

Survey Location

(2014)
RoadWard

Trinity Road o/s 69 Yes No
4 chicanes _Within CPZ with parking on both sides of the
road, hence narrow carriageway width.

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 1 _ _ 1 _ Improve the road markings at the junctions. Improve road markings £3.0

Faraday Road o/s 42 Yes No
6 round top humps _ Within CPZ with parking on both
sides of the road, hence narrow carriageway width.

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing Do Nothing _

Effra Road o/s 64 Yes No
8 round top humps _ Within CPZ with parking on both
sides of the road, hence narrow carriageway width.

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing Do Nothing _

Clarence Road o/s 102 Yes No
6 round top humps _ Within CPZ with parking on both
sides of the road, hence narrow carriageway width.

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing Do Nothing _

Florence Road o/s 126 Yes No
6 round top humps _ Within CPZ with parking on both
sides of the road, hence narrow carriageway width.

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing Do Nothing _

South Park Road o/s 128 Yes No
3 round top humps and 3 raised junctions _Within CPZ
with parking on both sides of the road, hence narrow
carriageway width.

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing Do Nothing _

Birbeck Road o/s 21 No No
None _ Within CPZ with parking on both sides of the road,
hence narrow carriageway width.

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing Do Nothing _

Queens Road o/s 143 No Yes
2 setts of 3 abreast speed cushions, pinch pt and a
mini_roundabout _ Within CPZ with parking on both sides
of the road, hence narrow carriageway width.

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 1 _ _ _ _ 1

Queens Road 199A Yes No
4 setts of raised speed tables with 1 mini roundabout _
Within CPZ with parking on both sides of the road, hence
narrow carriageway width.

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ 1 _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 1 1 _

Evelyn Road o/s 42 No No
none _ Within CPZ with parking on both sides of the road,
hence narrow carriageway width.

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing Do Nothing _

Edith Road o/s 8 No No
none _ Within CPZ with parking on both sides of the road,
hence narrow carriageway width.

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing Do Nothing _

1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 3 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 1 2 1

% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 100 % 0 0 0 0 33.33 33.3 0 33.33 66.7 33.3

Parkway o/s 16 Yes No _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

Parkway o/s 96 Yes No _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

Elm Walk o/s 59 Yes No _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ £1.0

Elm Walk o/s 42 Yes No _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ £1.0

Southway o/s 53 No Yes
4 setts of speed cushions _ Not within CPZ with parking on
both sides of the road. Carriageway narrow.

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 2 2 _

The collisions at this junction occured due to sightlines being obscured at the junctions. Sightlines
at the junction of Elm Walk/Southway to be improved by the implementation of double yellow lines
(approximately 10 metres) into each arm of the junction. The existing hatch markings at this junction
are parked over by drivers as they know well they are not enforceable.

Double Yellow Lines - 10 metres
into each arm of the junction

£1.0

Meadow Close o/s 35 No Yes
2 setts of speed cushions _ Road is a 'dead end'. Not
within CPZ with parking on both sides of the road.
Carriageway narrow.

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
Implement double yellow lines (approximately 10 metres into each arm) at its junction with Elm Walk
to improve sightlines and safety.

Double Yellow Lines - 10 metres
into each arm of the junction

£1.0

Heath Drive o/s 16 Yes
3 round top humps _ Not within CPZ with parking on both
sides of the road. Carriageway very narrow.

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
Implement double yellow lines (approximately 10 metres into each arm) at its junction with Parkway
to improve sight lines and safety.

Double Yellow Lines - 10 metres
into each arm of the junction

£1.0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 2 0

% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 % 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 100 100 0

Parkway area
20mph Zone

Cannon Hill / 
West

Barnes

7 setts of speed cushions _ Not within CPZ, parking on
both sides of the road but carriageway is very wide.

There was a collision at a junction and also within the road. Option A - Review the layout of the
existing traffic calming measures or Option B -Replace the 2 sets of speed cushions with 2 speed
tables.

Trinity Road
area 20mph
Speed limit

Trinity

Option B - 2 no. 6-metre speed
tables

£30.0

Total Volume of vehicles within the Zone
There was an increase in the number of collisions after implementation of the zone.

Approximately 60% of the collisions occurred in Queens Road (one at a junction and the

other within the link). This shows that the speed cushions are not effective at reducing

driver speeds before approaching the junctions. These speed cushions in Queens Road

should be reviewed or replace with speed tables. In addition, the road markings at the

junctions should be remarked.

Option B - 2 no. 6-metre speed

tables and improve road

markings at the junctions.

£33.0

1 3

Option A - Review the layout of the existing traffic calming measures or Option B - Replace all 7
sets of speed cushions with sinusoidal road humps. In addition double yellow lines to be
implemented at its junctions with Southway and also Heath Drive to improve sightlines.

Option B - 7 no. sinusiodal road
humps.

£19.5

10 round top road humps _ Not within CPZ with parking on
both sides of the road. Carriageway narrow.

Implement double yellow lines (approximately 10 metres into each arm) at its junction with Meadow
Close to improve sight lines and safety.

Double Yellow Lines - 10 metres
into each arm of the junction

0 2

Although there is an increase in the number of collisions; all of which occurred at

junctions, these problems can be resolved by improving sightlines at these junctions. The

additional conversion of the speed cushions into sinusoidal road humps is to ensure

drivers in Parkway do not exceed the speed limit.

Implement 7 no. sinusoidal road

humps and double yellow line

markings.

£24.5

Total Volume of vehicles within the Zone

2

P
age 222



Ped P/C M/C Veh Ped P/C M/C Veh Ped P/C M/C Veh Ped P/C M/C Veh Junction
Between

junctions

Overall comments Proposed Measures CostAccidents

Before 20mph implementation _ 3 years collisions within the

20mph area
Current 3 years collisions upto 2014 within the 20mph area

Serious Slight

Overall

Collision

Serious Slight

Location of current 3

year (upto

2014)collisions

K (000)

Before 20mph

Introduction

During 20mph

Introduction

Current traffic calming measures (after 20mph

introduction)

Overall

Collisions

Scheme

Traffic Calmed

Survey Location

(2014)
RoadWard

Dorset Road o/s 53 Yes No
14 setts of 3 abreast speed cushions and 1 entry
treatment _ Within CPZ with parking on both sides of the
road

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

Dorset Road o/s 154/156 Yes No
14 setts of 3 abreast speed cushions and 1 entry
treatment _ Within CPZ with parking on both sides of the
road

_ _ _ _ _ 3 _ 2 _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

Daybrook Road o/s 39 No No none _ within CPZ with parkinh on both sides of the road _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Install 6 sinusoidal road humps, locations to be identifed during design stage 6 no.sinusoidal road humps. £15.0

Sandbourne Road o/s 56 Yes No 5 round top humps and 2 junction tables _ Within CPZ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Re-assess the traffic calming measures and review where possible
Re-assess traffic calming
measures

_

Erridge Road o/s 34 No No none _ within CPZ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Install 2 new junction speed tables at Keswick Avenue and Poplar Road junctions. 2 no. raised junctions £30.0

Poplar Road o/s 63 Yes No 5 round top humps and 1 entry treatment _ Within CPZ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do Nothing Do Nothing _

Sheridan Road o/s 5/5a Yes No 5 round top humps _ Within CPZ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do Nothing Do Nothing _

Mostyn Road o/s 56 Yes No
13 setts of speed cushions and 1 junction table _ Part
within CPZ with parking on both sides of the road

_ _ _ _ _ _ 1 1 _ _ _ _ 2 1 _ 1 2 2
Approximately 67% of the collisions in this area occured in this road (junctions and links). Most of
the junctions are already treated, but those which are not, considerations should be given to raised
junctions. In addition replace the 14 sets of speed cushions wiith sinusoidal road humps.

14 no.sinusoidal road humps. £35.0

Kenley Road o/s 27 Yes No
5 round top humps and 1 entry treatment _ Part within CPZ
with parking on both sides of the road.

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

Kenley Road o/s 132/134 Yes No
5 round top humps and 1 entry treatment _ Part within CPZ
with parking on both sides of the road.

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

Windermere Road o/s 47 Yes No 4 round top humps and 1 entry treatment _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do Nothing Do Nothing _

Grasmere Road o/s 38 Yes No 4 round top humps and 1 entry treatment _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
Provide more passing gaps in the form of 'double yellow line' road markings between parked
vehicles to reduce driver speeds.

Double yellow line road markings £8.0

Poplar Road South o/s 142/144 No No none _ _ _ _ _ 1 _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
Install 6 sinusoidal humps along the length of this road and 1 raised speed table within the vicinity of
the school entrance.

6 no. sinusoidal road humps, and
1no. 6 metre speed table outside
the school.

£30.0

Aylward Road o/s 54/56 Yes No 7 round top road humps _ _ _ _ _ 1 _ _ _ _ _ 1 _ _ _ _ 1 Do Nothing Do Nothing _

Tybenham Road _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 1 _ 1 Do Nothing Do Nothing _

Church Lane _ _ _ _ _ 1 _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do Nothing Do Nothing _

10 0 0 0 0 0 6 1 3 6 0 0 0 0 3 1 0 2 2 4

% 0 0 0 0 0 60 10 30 % 0 0 0 0 50 17 0 33 33 67

Henfield Road o/s 20 No No none _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
There were 14 collisions all of which happened on the boundary road (Kingston Road) at its
junctions with the side roads into the 20mph area.

Do Nothing _

Kingswood Road o/s 20 No No _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

Kingswood Road o/s 59 No No _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

Mayfield Road o/s 12 No No none _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
There were 14 collisions all of which happened on the boundary road (Kingston Road) at its
junctions with the side roads into the 20mph area.

Install  junction speed table at the
junction of Kingswood
Road/Mayfield Road

£15.0

Merton Hall Gardens o/s 23 No No 1 entry treatment _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
There were 14 collisions all of which happened on the boundary road (Kingston Road) at its
junctions with the side roads into the 20mph area.

Do Nothing _

Merton Hall Road o/s 69 Yes Yes 8 round top humps, 2 junstion tables and 1 speed table _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
There were 14 collisions all of which happened on the boundary road (Kingston Road) at its
junctions with the side roads into the 20mph area.

Do Nothing _

Do Nothing

There were 14 collisions all of which happened on the boundary road (Kingston Road) at its
junctions with the side roads into the 20mph area. Install 2 sinusoidal road humps and a junction
speed table at the junction of Kingswood Road/Mayfield Road

Install 2 sinusoidal road humps and
a junction speed table at the
junction of Kingswood
Road/Mayfield Road

£22.0

_

6

No recorded collision after the introduction of the 20mph speed limit, however to ensure driver
speeds are within the specified speed limit, the layout of the speeds chions should be reviewed OR
replace the 14 sets of speed cushions with sinusoidal road humps.

Do Nothing

Merton Park
area 20mph
Speed limit

Merton Park

14 no.sinusoidal road humps. £35.0

Total Volume of vehicles within the Zone

Approximately 67% of the collisions in this area occured between junctions, whilst 33%

was at junctions. More emphasis should be given to the traffic measures along the link.

Implement traffic calming

measures s listed above for the

individual roads.

£153.0

10

1 entry treatment

3

P
age 223



Ped P/C M/C Veh Ped P/C M/C Veh Ped P/C M/C Veh Ped P/C M/C Veh Junction
Between

junctions

Overall comments Proposed Measures CostAccidents

Before 20mph implementation _ 3 years collisions within the

20mph area
Current 3 years collisions upto 2014 within the 20mph area

Serious Slight

Overall

Collision

Serious Slight

Location of current 3

year (upto

2014)collisions

K (000)

Before 20mph

Introduction

During 20mph

Introduction

Current traffic calming measures (after 20mph

introduction)

Overall

Collisions

Scheme

Traffic Calmed

Survey Location

(2014)
RoadWard

Dundonald Road o/s 34 yes no 6 round top road humps and 2 junction tables _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
There were 14 collisions all of which happened on the boundary road (Kingston Road) at its
junctions with the side roads into the 20mph area.

Do Nothing _

Toynebee Road o/s 79 Yes no
4 round top humps, mini_roundabout, 1 width restriction
and 1 junction  table

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
There were 14 collisions all of which happened on the boundary road (Kingston Road) at its
junctions with the side roads into the 20mph area.

Do Nothing _

Toynebee Road o/s 28 yes no
4 round top humps, mini_roundabout, 1 width restriction
and 1 junction  table

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
There were 14 collisions all of which happened on the boundary road (Kingston Road) at its
junctions with the side roads into the 20mph area.

Do Nothing _

Winton Grove o/s 33 No No none _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
There were 14 collisions all of which happened on the boundary road (Kingston Road) at its
junctions with the side roads into the 20mph area.

Do Nothing _

Wilton Crescent o/s 1 yes no 4 round top humps _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
There were 14 collisions all of which happened on the boundary road (Kingston Road) at its
junctions with the side roads into the 20mph area. Restriction to parking on this road and used by
drivers to avoid the queues on Kingston Road between Wilton Crescent and Dorset Road.

Install 2 sinusoidal road humps £5.0

Wilton Crescent o/s 35 yes no 4 round top humps _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
There were 14 collisions all of which happened on the boundary road (Kingston Road) at its
junctions with the side roads into the 20mph area.

Do Nothing _

Cliveden Road o/s 29 no no none _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
There were 14 collisions all of which happened on the boundary road (Kingston Road) at its
junctions with the side roads into the 20mph area.

Do Nothing _

Rayleigh Road o/s 33 no no none _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
There were 14 collisions all of which happened on the boundary road (Kingston Road) at its
junctions with the side roads into the 20mph area.

Do Nothing _

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 % 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Quicks Road o/ 89 Yes Yes
1 width restriction, 1 entry treatment and road humps _
Within a CPZ with parking on both sides of the Road and
narrow carriageway

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing _ Good sightlines at junctions Do nothing _

Hardy Road o/s 48 yes No
Gate at Merton High Street end _ Within a CPZ with
parking on both sides of the Road and narrow carriageway

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing _ Good sightlines at junctions Do nothing _

Nelson Road o/s 47 yes No
Gate at Merton High Street end _ Within a CPZ with
parking on both sides of the Road and narrow carriageway

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing _ Good sightlines at junctions Do nothing _

Victory Road o/s 62 yes No
Gate at Merton High Street end _ Within a CPZ with
parking on both sides of the Road and narrow carriageway

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing _ Good sightlines at junctions Do nothing _

Hamilton Road o/s 37 Yes no
Gate at Merton High Street end _ Within a CPZ with
parking on both sides of the Road and narrow carriageway

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing _ Good sightlines at junctions Do nothing _

Trafalgar Road o/s 22 Yes no
Gate at Haydon's Road end _ Within a CPZ with parking on
both sides of the Road and narrow carriageway

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing _ Good sightlines at junctions Do nothing _

Wycliffe Road o/s 27 no no
None _ Within a CPZ with parking on both sides of the
Road and narrow carriageway

_ _ 1 _ _ _ _ 1 _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing _ Good sightlines at junctions Do nothing _

Latimere Road o/s 27 no no
None _ Within a CPZ with parking on both sides of the
Road and narrow carriageway

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 1 _ _ _ 1 _ Do nothing _ Good sightlines at junctions Do nothing _

Ridley Road o/s 24 no no
None _ Within a CPZ with parking on both sides of the
Road and narrow carriageway

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing _ Good sightlines at junctions Do nothing _

2 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0

% 0 0 50 0 0 0 0 50 % 0 0 0 0 100 0 0 0 100 0

Alverston Avenue o/s 34 No No Entry treatment _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
Provide more passing gaps in the form of 'double yellow line' road markings between parked
vehicles to reduce driver speeds, where possible. Otherwise install 2 sinusoidal road humps in this
road

2 sinusoidal humps or double
yellow line markings

£5.0

Melrose Avenue o/s Yes Yes 2 speed tables and entry treatment _ _ _ 1 _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Improve road markings Road markings £5.0

Merton Hall
Road area

20mph Speed
limit

Dundonald 0 0

Implement the above measures within the are to ensure drivers travel at the posted speed

limit.

4 no. sinusoidal road hump and

1 no. junction table
£42.0

Total Volume of vehicles within the Zone

Quicks Road
area 20mph
Speed limit

Abbey / 
Trinity

2 1

There is a reduction in the number of collisions. Data not conclusive as the Police officers

who recorded the incident belive the 32 year old pedestrian was making a false claim.
Do nothing £0.0

Total Volume of vehicles within the Zone

4

P
age 224



Ped P/C M/C Veh Ped P/C M/C Veh Ped P/C M/C Veh Ped P/C M/C Veh Junction
Between

junctions

Overall comments Proposed Measures CostAccidents

Before 20mph implementation _ 3 years collisions within the

20mph area
Current 3 years collisions upto 2014 within the 20mph area

Serious Slight

Overall

Collision

Serious Slight

Location of current 3

year (upto

2014)collisions

K (000)

Before 20mph

Introduction

During 20mph

Introduction

Current traffic calming measures (after 20mph

introduction)

Overall

Collisions

Scheme

Traffic Calmed

Survey Location

(2014)
RoadWard

Stuart Road o/s 55 No No Entry treatment _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

There were 6 collisions and all occurred on Durnsford Road at its junctions with the side roads.
There are entry treatments with single yellow lines on these side roads. Consideration should be
given to converting these signle yellow lines at the junctions into double yellow lines to improve
sightlines and safety. Provide more passing gaps in the form of 'double yellow line' road markings
between parked vehicles to the side roads to reduce driver speeds, where possible. Otherwise
install 2 sinusoidal road humps in this road

2 sinusoidal humps or double
yellow line markings

£5.0

Farquhar Road o/s 16 No No Entry treatment _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
Provide more passing gaps in the form of 'double yellow line' road markings between parked
vehicles to reduce driver speeds, where possible. Otherwise install 2 sinusoidal road humps in this
road

2 sinusoidal humps or double
yellow line markings

£5.0

Stratmore Road o/s 16 No No Entry treatment _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
Provide more passing gaps in the form of 'double yellow line' road markings between parked
vehicles to reduce driver speeds, where possible. Otherwise install 2 sinusoidal road humps in this
road

2 sinusoidal humps or double
yellow line markings

£5.0

Ryford Road o/s 29 No No Entry treatment _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

There were 6 collisions and all occurred on Durnsford Road at its junctions with the side roads.
There are entry treatments with single yellow lines on these side roads. Consideration should be
given to converting these signle yellow lines at the junctions into double yellow lines to improve
sightlines and safety. Provide more passing gaps in the form of 'double yellow line' road markings
between parked vehicles to reduce driver speeds, where possible. Otherwise install 2 sinusoidal
road humps in this road

2 sinusoidal humps or double
yellow line markings

£5.0

Stroud Road o/s 37 No No Entry treatment _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

There were 6 collisions and all occurred on Durnsford Road at its junctions with the side roads.
There are entry treatments with single yellow lines on these side roads. Consideration should be
given to converting these signle yellow lines at the junctions into double yellow lines to improve
sightlines and safety. Provide more passing gaps in the form of 'double yellow line' road markings
between parked vehicles to reduce driver speeds, where possible. Otherwise install 2 sinusoidal
road humps in this road

2 sinusoidal humps or double
yellow line markings

£5.0

Ashen Road o/s 48 No No Entry treatment _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
Provide more passing gaps in the form of 'double yellow line' road markings between parked
vehicles to reduce driver speeds, where possible. Otherwise install 2 sinusoidal road humps in this
road

2 sinusoidal humps or double
yellow line markings

£5.0

Durnsford Avenue o/s 24 No No Entry treatment _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
Provide more passing gaps in the form of 'double yellow line' road markings between parked
vehicles to reduce driver speeds, where possible. Otherwise install 2 sinusoidal road humps in this
road

2 sinusoidal humps or double
yellow line markings

£5.0

Wolseley Avenue o/s 30 No No None _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
Provide more passing gaps in the form of 'double yellow line' road markings between parked
vehicles to reduce driver speeds, where possible. Otherwise install 2 sinusoidal road humps in this
road

2 sinusoidal humps or double
yellow line markings

£5.0

Normanton Avenue o/s 40 No No Entry treatment _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
Provide more passing gaps in the form of 'double yellow line' road markings between parked
vehicles to reduce driver speeds, where possible. Otherwise install 2 sinusoidal road humps in this
road

2 sinusoidal humps or double
yellow line markings

£5.0

Braemar Avenue o/s 43 No No Entry treatment _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
Provide more passing gaps in the form of 'double yellow line' road markings between parked
vehicles to reduce driver speeds, where possible. Otherwise install 2 sinusoidal road humps in this
road

2 sinusoidal humps or double
yellow line markings

£5.0

1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

% 0 0 0 100 0 0 0 0 % 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Middleton Road o/s 81 No No 5 setts of speed cushions

Middleton Road o/s 37 No no 5 setts of speed cushions

Easby Crescent o/s 17 No No None _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do Nothing Do Nothing £0.0

Evesham Road o/s 20 no No None _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do Nothing Do Nothing £0.0

Evesham Green o/s 6 no No None _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do Nothing Do Nothing £0.0

Evesham Green o/s 20 no No None _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do Nothing Do Nothing £0.0

Egleston Road o/s 18 no No None _ _ _ _ 1 _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do Nothing Do Nothing £0.0

Furness Road o/s 45 Yes No 4 setts of speed cushions _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 1 _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 0 Do Nothing £0.0

1 0

Total Volume of vehicles within the Zone

Melrose
Avenue area

20mph Speed
limit

Wimbledon
Park

There is a reduction in the number of collisions. The proposed measures for the

individual roads will make the speed limit / zone self enforcing.

2 no. each sinusoidal road

humps in the various roads

above.

£60.0

Farm Road
area 20mph St Helier 4

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ 1

3

_ _ _ _ _ _ 1 _ 1 _
Review the layout of the speed cushions OR replace the 6 sets of speed cushions with sinusoidal
road humps and consider other means of restricting HGV access.

Implement 6 no. sinusoidal road
humps.

£15.0

5

P
age 225



Ped P/C M/C Veh Ped P/C M/C Veh Ped P/C M/C Veh Ped P/C M/C Veh Junction
Between

junctions

Overall comments Proposed Measures CostAccidents

Before 20mph implementation _ 3 years collisions within the

20mph area
Current 3 years collisions upto 2014 within the 20mph area

Serious Slight

Overall

Collision

Serious Slight

Location of current 3

year (upto

2014)collisions

K (000)

Before 20mph

Introduction

During 20mph

Introduction

Current traffic calming measures (after 20mph

introduction)

Overall

Collisions

Scheme

Traffic Calmed

Survey Location

(2014)
RoadWard

Faversham Road o/s 27 Yes No 3 setts of speed cushions _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 1 _ _ 1 _
Review the layout of the speed cushions OR replace all 3 sets of speed cushions with speed
tables

Implement 3 no. speed tables. £45.0

Bruton Road o/s 27 no No None _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do Nothing Do Nothing £0.0

Canterbury Road o/s 145 Yes No 10 road humps _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 1 1 _ Do Nothing Do Nothing £0.0

Crowland Walk o/s 6 No No None _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do Nothing Do Nothing £0.0

Calder Road o/s 6 No No None _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do Nothing Do Nothing £0.0

Farm Road o/s 70 Yes Yes 4 setts of speed cushions _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 1 _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
Replace the 5 sets of speed cushions in addition to the other 3 in Fervesham Road with speed
tables, which will not impact on buses services.

Implement 4 no. speed tables £60.0

Bristol Road o/s 24 No Yes 2 sinusoidal humps and 1 entry treatment _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do Nothing Do Nothing £0.0

Combermere Road o/s 6 No No None _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do Nothing Do Nothing £0.0

4 0 0 0 1 0 0 3 3 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 3 0

% 0 0 0 0 25 0 0 75 % 0 0 0 0 0 33.3 33.3 33.3 100 0

Wandle Road o/s 37 Yes Yes

Wandle Road o/s 128 Yes No

The Drive o/s 62 Yes No _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

The Drive o/s 120 Yes No _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

Lilleshaw Road o/s 144 No 9 road humps and 1 width restriction _ _ _ _ _ 1 _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing Do Nothing _

Seddon Road o/s 79 No No

Seddon Road o/s 45 No No

Pollard Road o/s 32 No no entry treatment _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Install 2 sinusoidal road humps in this road. 2 no. sinusoidal road humps £5.0

Morton Road o/s 24 No No none _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Install 2 sinusoidal road humps in this road. 2 no. sinusoidal road humps £5.0

Montacute Road o/s 55 Yes No 3 road humps and 2 entry treatment _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing Do Nothing _

Muchelney Road o/s 33 Yes Yes none _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 1 _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing Do Nothing _

Edward Avenue o/s 17 No No none _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Install 2 sinusoidal road humps in this road. 2 no. sinusoidal road humps £5.0

Milner Road o/s 11 No No none _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Install 2 sinusoidal road humps in this road. 2 no. sinusoidal road humps £5.0

4 0 0 0 0 1 2 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

% 0 0 0 0 25 50 0 25 % 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

3 no. footway build-out and 3 no.
sinusoidal road humps.

£14.0

3 no footway build-outs and 11

no. sinusoidal road humps
£74.0

Replace 3 sets of speed cushions
and replace with 2 junction tables.

£40.0

Do Nothing _

area 20mph
Speed limit

St Helier 4 3

100% of the collisions in the area occured at junctions. Middleton Road, Farm Road and

Faversham Road are the roads of major concern within the area, due to a high than

expected percentage travelling above 20mph. Although there was a reduction in recorded

personal injury collisions, the traffic calming measures in these 3 roads should be

reviewed to ensure the area is self-enforcing.

6 no. sinusoidal road humps

and 7 no. speed tables.
£120.0

Total Volume of vehicles within the Zone

Wandle Road
area 20mph
Speed limit

Ravensbury

12 sets of speed cushions

3 priority traffic flow system (with speed cushion and
overrun area) and 1 set of speed cushion with 1 entry
treatment

4

_

_

_ _ _ 1 _ _ _

0

1 _ _

_ _ _ _ _ _

Review the layout of the traffic calming measures OR remove 2 speed cushions within the vicinity of
Wandle Road / The Drive junction and replace with a junction speed table. In addition, remove 1
speed cushion on approach to the junction of Morton Road junction and replace with a junction table
at this location (Wandle Road/Morton Road).

5 road humps and a width restriction. Do nothing. The traffic calming measures in this road are the most effective of the measures.

_ _ _ _

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
Replace the overrun areas within the 3 no. priority traffic flow system with actual build-outs and
change the 3 no. speed cushions into 3 no. sinusoidal road humps.

Total Volume of vehicles within the Zone

High reduction if recorded personal injury collisions. However, on some roads a high

percentage of drivers travel above 20mph.

_ _ _ _

6

P
age 226



Ped P/C M/C Veh Ped P/C M/C Veh Ped P/C M/C Veh Ped P/C M/C Veh Junction
Between

junctions

Overall comments Proposed Measures CostAccidents

Before 20mph implementation _ 3 years collisions within the

20mph area
Current 3 years collisions upto 2014 within the 20mph area

Serious Slight

Overall

Collision

Serious Slight

Location of current 3

year (upto

2014)collisions

K (000)

Before 20mph

Introduction

During 20mph

Introduction

Current traffic calming measures (after 20mph

introduction)

Overall

Collisions

Scheme

Traffic Calmed

Survey Location

(2014)
RoadWard

Gorrange Park Avenue o/s 92 Yes Yes 8 road humps, 1 width restriction and 2 entry treatments _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 1 _ _ _ 1 Do nothing Do nothing _

St James Road o/s 48 No No Entry treatment _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Install 5 sinusoidal road humps in this road.
Implement 5 no. sinusoidal road
humps

£12.0

Woodland Way o/s 60 No No none _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing Do nothing _

Ashbourne Road o/s 94 Yes No 9 road humps and 1 entry treatment _ _ 1 _ _ 1 _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 1 _ 1 Do nothing Do nothing _

Manship Road o/s 22 No No None _ _ _ _ _ 1 _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 1 _ 1 Do nothing Do nothing _

Framfield Road o/s 46 No No None _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Install 4 sinusoidal road humps.
Implement 4 no. sinusoidal road
hump

£10.0

Figge's Road o/s 4 No No none _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing Do nothing _

St Barnabas Road o/s 24 No No none _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 1 _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing Do nothing _

Edenvale Road o/s 13 No No none _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing Do nothing _

Milton Road o/s 3 No No none _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing Do nothing _

Stanley Road o/s 27 No No none _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing Do nothing _

Thirsk Road o/s 31 No No none _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Install 1 no. sinusoidal road hump in the middle of this road
Implement 1 no. sinusoidal road
hump

£2.0

Tynemouth Road o/s 63 No No none _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Install 1 no. sinusoidal road hump in the middle of this road
Implement 1 no. sinusoidal road
hump

£2.0

Heaton Road o/s 43 No No none _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Install 1 no. sinusoidal road hump in the middle of this road
Implement 1 no. sinusoidal road
hump

£2.0

Bruce Road o/s 42 No No None with a gate. _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Install 1 no. sinusoidal road hump in the middle of this road
Implement 1 no. sinusoidal road
hump

£2.0

Inglemere Road o/s 24 No No none _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Install 1 no. sinusoidal road hump in the middle of this road
Implement 1 no. sinusoidal road
hump

£2.0

Grenfell Road o/s 17 No No None _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Install 1 no. sinusoidal road hump in the middle of this road
Implement 1 no. sinusoidal road
hump

£2.0

4 0 0 1 0 0 2 0 1 3 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 2 0 3

% 0 0 25 0 0 50 0 25 % 0 0 0 0 0 33.3 0 66.7 0 100

Dunstall Road o/s 5 No No _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

Dunstall Road o/s 11 No No _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

Ernle Road o/s 25 No Yes _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

Ernle Road o/s 8 No Yes _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

McKay Road No No None _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
More drivers will use this road due to the other measures being proposed for Wool Road and
Dunstall. Therfore install 2 no. sinusoidal road humps between the 2 proposed junction tables at
Wool Road end and Dunstall Road end.

2 no. sinuisoidal road hump and
double yellow lines

£5.0

£34.0

2 no. sinusoidal road hump and 2
junction speed tables.

£40.0

2 Sinusoidal road humps or raised
junctions with double yellow lines

Ashbourne
Road area

20mph Speed
limit

Graveney 4 3

No change in the number of recorded personal injury collisions. All of which occurred

within the road and not at the junctions.

Implement 15 no. sinusoidal

road humps

Total Volume of vehicles within the Zone

Ernle Road
area 20mph
Speed limit

Village

None

1 speed table and 2 entry  treatment _ Not within a CPZ
with parking on both sides of the road, hence narrow
carriageway width

0 0

Install 2 junction speed table at Wool Road and McKay Road and 2 additional sinusoidal road
hump.

Review the layout of the traffic calming measures OR Install 2 additional sinusoidal road hump
between the existing speed table and the entry treatment at the junction of Copse Hill OR a junction
raised junction at its junction with Wool Road. In addition, double yellow lines (approximately 10
metres into each arm) to be provided at the junctions to improve sight lines and safety.

£15.0

7

P
age 227



Ped P/C M/C Veh Ped P/C M/C Veh Ped P/C M/C Veh Ped P/C M/C Veh Junction
Between

junctions

Overall comments Proposed Measures CostAccidents

Before 20mph implementation _ 3 years collisions within the

20mph area
Current 3 years collisions upto 2014 within the 20mph area

Serious Slight

Overall

Collision

Serious Slight

Location of current 3

year (upto

2014)collisions

K (000)

Before 20mph

Introduction

During 20mph

Introduction

Current traffic calming measures (after 20mph

introduction)

Overall

Collisions

Scheme

Traffic Calmed

Survey Location

(2014)
RoadWard

Wool Road o/s 9 No No _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

Wool Road o/s 6 No No _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 % 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Denmark Avenue o/s 35 No No
4 sets of speed cushions and 1 entry treatment _ Within a
CPZ

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing _ _

Denmark Road o/s 11 1 entry treatment _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing _ _

Ridgeway Place o/s 34 No No
6 sets of speed cushions and 2 entry treatments _ Within a
CPZ. Carriageway narrow at the top end of the road but
very wide at the bottom end.

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 1 _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 1
Review the layout of the traffic calming measures OR replace existing speed cushions with
sinusoidal road humps. This road is a cycle route and the collision involved a cyclist.

6 no. sinusoidal road humps, 80mm
high

£15.0

Spencer Hill o/s 11 No No 4 sinusoidal humps and 1 entry treatment. _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing _ _

Thornton Hill o/s 8 No No 2 sets of speed cushions and 1 entry treatment _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing _ _

Murray Road o/s 23 2 sets of speed cushions and 1 entry treatment _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing _ _

Thornton Road o/s 27 3 sets of speed cushions and 1 entry treatment _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing _ _

St John's Road o/s 7 None _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing _ _

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 % 0 100 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 100

Church Hill o/s 5 No No 2 sets of speed cushions and 1 traffic island _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do Nothing Do Nothing £0.0

St Marys Road o/s 12/14 No No
4 sets of speed cushions, 3 priority system, 2 entry
treatments.

St Marys Road o/s 7 No No
4 sets of speed cushions, 3 priority system, 2 entry
treatments.

Lake Road o/s 1 Pixham Ct Yes Yes
7 sets of speed cushions, 1 speed table and 2 entry
treatments

Lake Road o/s 18_28 Yes Yes
7 sets of speed cushions, 1 speed table and 2 entry
treatments

Leopold Avenue o/s 12/14 No Yes 1 entry treatment _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing Do Nothing _

Ricards Road o/s 1_6 No No none _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing Do Nothing _

1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

% 0 0 0 0 100 0 0 0 % 0 100 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 100

Edge Hill o/s 15/17 No No

Implement 7 no. sinusoidal road
hump.

£17.0

Implement 14 no. sinusoidal

road humps
£34.0

Implement 7 no. sinusoidal road
hump.

£17.0

None Install 3 junction speed tables at Ernle, McKay and Dunstall Road junctions.
3 no. junction speed table with
double yellow lines

£45.0

£15.0

Install additional traffic calming to make the area self-enforcing and convert the 20mph

speed limit to a 20mph zone.

Implement 4 no.sinusoidal road

humps and 4 raised junctions
£105.0

Total Volume of vehicles within the Zone

0 1

Total Volume of vehicles within the Zone

Ridgeway area
20mph Zone

Hillside

Replace existing speed cushions with sinusoidal road humps. This road is a cycle route

and the collision involved a cyclist.

Replace 6 no. speed cushions

with 6 no. sinusoidal road

humps

£15.0

Lake Road
area 20mph

Zone

Hillside / 
Village

1 1

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

Review the layout of the traffic calming measures OR replace the existing overrun areas within the 3
priority traffic flow locations with sinusoidal road hump extending from the kerb to the island. In
addion replace the exisiting speed cushions in this road with sinusoidal road humps. The raised
entry treatment at its junction with Arthur Road should be reconstructed.

_ _ _ _ 1 _ _ _ _ 1 _ _ _ 1
Review the layout of the traffic calming measures or replace the 7 no. existing speed cushions with
7 no. sinusoidal road humps.

Total Volume of vehicles within the Zone

Changing the traffic calming measures at the priority traffic flow loactions will ensure the

zone is self-enforcing.

_ _ _ _

2009/10

None _ Within a CPZ with parking on both sides of the
road. Carriageway narrow at the top where the schools are _ _ 2 _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Install 6 sets of sinusoidal road humps.

Implement 6 no. sinusoidal road
_ _

8

P
age 228



Ped P/C M/C Veh Ped P/C M/C Veh Ped P/C M/C Veh Ped P/C M/C Veh Junction
Between

junctions

Overall comments Proposed Measures CostAccidents

Before 20mph implementation _ 3 years collisions within the

20mph area
Current 3 years collisions upto 2014 within the 20mph area

Serious Slight

Overall

Collision

Serious Slight

Location of current 3

year (upto

2014)collisions

K (000)

Before 20mph

Introduction

During 20mph

Introduction

Current traffic calming measures (after 20mph

introduction)

Overall

Collisions

Scheme

Traffic Calmed

Survey Location

(2014)
RoadWard

Edge Hill o/s 8A No No

The Downs o/s 37 No No

The Downs o/s11 Yes No

Darlston Road o/s 6 No No

Darlston Road o/s 25 No No

Ridgway Gardens o/s 5 No No None _ within a CPZ and a 'dead end' road. _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing _ _

Berkeley Place o/s 16 No No None _ within a CPZ and a 'dead end' road. _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing _ _

Hillside o/s 7 No No None _ within a CPZ and a 'dead end' road. _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing _ _

3 0 1 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

% 0.0 33.3 0 0 66.7 0 0 0 % 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Tennyson Avenue o/s 43 No No None

Tennyson Avenue o/s 111 No No None

Arthur Road o/s 3/5 Yes No Mini_roundabout _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing Do Nothing _

West Barnes Lane o/s 368 No No
5 sets of speed cushions, 2 speed tables and a
mini_roundabout

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Review the layout at the junction of West Barnes Lane/Clearmont Avenue. Junction review TBC

West Barnes Lane o/s 150 No No 4 raised junctions _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

West Barnes Lane o/s 240 Yes Yes
5 sets of speed cushions, 2 speed tables and a
mini_roundabout

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ 1 _ _ _ _ _ 1 _ _ 1 _

Adela Avenue o/s 57 Yes Yes 5 sets of speed cushions _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing Do Nothing _

Seaforth Avenue o/s 49 Yes Yes 8 sets of speed cushions Do nothing Do Nothing _

Seaforth Avenue o/s 232 Yes No 8 sets of speed cushions 0 0 £0.0

Consider traffic calming measures in this road. Locations and type of measures to be investigated. Measures to be identified TBC

£15.0

£15.0

£15.0_

Edgehill area
20mph Speed

Limit

Hillside / 
Raynes

Park

road. Carriageway narrow at the top where the schools are
concerntrated.

1 speed table and 1 vehicle activated signs. Within a CPZ
with parking on both sides of the road.

_

_ 1 _

_ 2 _ _ _

0

_

_

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Install 6 sets of sinusoidal road humps.
humps, 80mm high

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Install 6 sets of sinusoidal road humps.
Implement 6 no. sinusoidal road
humps, 80mm high

None _ Within a CPZ with parking on both sides of the
road.

_ _

3

_ _

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Install 3 sets of sinusoidal road humps.
Implement 6 no. sinusoidal road
humps, 80mm high

_ _ _ _ _

Implement 15 no. sinusoidal road humps in addition to existing measures to improve safet

and encourage drivers to travel at the speed limit of 20mph. Convert the area from a limit

to a zones once the measures have been implemented.

Implement 15 no. sinusoidal

road humps
£45.0

Total Volume of vehicles within the Zone

West Barnes
area 20mph
Speed limit

West
Barnes

_

_ _ _ _ _

1

_ _

_ _ _

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

Replace 3 sets of the speed cushions with speed tables.
3. no speed tables, 6 metres in
length excluding ramps.

£45.0

1

_ _ _

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

9

P
age 229



Ped P/C M/C Veh Ped P/C M/C Veh Ped P/C M/C Veh Ped P/C M/C Veh Junction
Between

junctions

Overall comments Proposed Measures CostAccidents

Before 20mph implementation _ 3 years collisions within the

20mph area
Current 3 years collisions upto 2014 within the 20mph area

Serious Slight

Overall

Collision

Serious Slight

Location of current 3

year (upto

2014)collisions

K (000)

Before 20mph

Introduction

During 20mph

Introduction

Current traffic calming measures (after 20mph

introduction)

Overall

Collisions

Scheme

Traffic Calmed

Survey Location

(2014)
RoadWard

Marina Avenue o/s 12 No No None Do nothing Do Nothing _

Marina Avenue o/s 69 No No None 0 0 £0.0

Douglas Avenue o/s 9 No No None _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing Do Nothing _

Estella Avenue o/s 17 Yes No None _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing Do Nothing _

Phyllis Avenue o/s 61 Yes No 7 sets of speed cushions _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing Do Nothing _

1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0

% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 100 % 0 0 0 0 0 100 0 0 100 0

Claremont Avenue o/s 79/81 Yes Yes
9 round top road humps_ Not within a CPZ with parking on
both sides of the road

_ _ _ _ 1 2 _ 2 1 _ _ _ 1 1 _ 1 2 2
The junction at West Barnes Lane was the location of most of these collisions. Redesign of this
junction should be a priority in this review.

Junction re-design £50.0

Cavendish Avenue o/s 51 No No
None _ Not within a CPZ with parking on both sides of the
road

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Install 8 sinusoidal road humps and double yellow lines at the junctions 8 no. sinusoidal road humps. £22.0

Belmont Avenue o/s 38 No No
None _ Not within a CPZ with parking on both sides of the
road

Belmont Avenue o/s 79/81 No No
None _ Not within a CPZ with parking on both sides of the
road

Errol Gardens o/s 4 No No
None _ Not within a CPZ with parking on both sides of the
road

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do Nothing Do nothing _

Consfield Avenue o/s 60 No No
None _ Not within a CPZ with parking on both sides of the
road

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do Nothing Do nothing _

Byron Avenue o/s 64 No No
None _ Not within a CPZ with parking on both sides of the
road

_ _ _ _ _ 1 _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 1 _ 1 Install 8 sinusoidal road humps and double yellow lines at the junctions. 8 no. sinusoidal road humps. £22.0

Cobham Avenue o/s 49 No No
None _ Not within a CPZ with parking on both sides of the
road

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do Nothing Do nothing _

Stanley Avenue o/s 30 No No
None _ Not within a CPZ with parking on both sides of the
road

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do Nothing Do nothing _

West Barnes Lane o/s 455 No No
None _ Not within a CPZ with parking on both sides of the
road

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 1 _ _ _ 1 _
The re-design at the junction of Claremont Avenue will improve safety at this junction, as the level
crossing contributes to most of the collisions at this junction.

Junction re-design above. _

6 0 0 0 0 1 3 0 2 7 1 0 0 0 3 1 0 2 3 4

% 0 0 0 0 16.7 50 0 33.3 % 14.3 0 0 0 42.9 14.3 0 28.6 42.9 57.1

Cambridge Road o/s 87 No No 2 vehicle activated signs and 1 entry treatment _ _ _ _ 1 _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Consider traffic calming measures Consider traffic calming measures £50.0

Cambridge Road o/s school Yes No 4 road humps and traffic island _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Review traffic calming measures. Review traffic calming measures. £50.0

1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

% 0 0 0 0 100 0 0 0 % 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Review the layout at the junction of West Barnes Lane/Clearmont Avenue and consider

measures to reduce driver speeds in Tennyson Avenue.

No much change in the number of collisions which equally occurred at the junctions and

also along the link.

Junction review and measures

in Tennyson Avenue.
£45.0

£22.08 no. sinusoidal road humps.

_ _ _ _ _ __ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

6

Claremont
Avenue area

20mph Speed
limit

West
Barnes

1

Total Volume of vehicles within the Zone

__ _ _ _ _ _ 1

7

_ ___ _

Junction re-design and

measures within some of the

roads.

Review traffic calming measures in this road.
Consider traffic calming

measures.

0

£116.0

_

Total Volume of vehicles within the Zone

_ _ 1 Install 8 sinusoidal road humps and douvle yellow lines at the junctions._

Cambridge
Road area

20mph Speed
limit

Raynes
Park

£100.0

Total Volume of vehicles within the Zone

10

P
age 230



Ped P/C M/C Veh Ped P/C M/C Veh Ped P/C M/C Veh Ped P/C M/C Veh Junction
Between

junctions

Overall comments Proposed Measures CostAccidents

Before 20mph implementation _ 3 years collisions within the

20mph area
Current 3 years collisions upto 2014 within the 20mph area

Serious Slight

Overall

Collision

Serious Slight

Location of current 3

year (upto

2014)collisions

K (000)

Before 20mph

Introduction

During 20mph

Introduction

Current traffic calming measures (after 20mph

introduction)

Overall

Collisions

Scheme

Traffic Calmed

Survey Location

(2014)
RoadWard

Grove Road o/s 34 No No 6 chicanes _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 2 _ 2 Do Nothing Do Nothing _

Worsecter Close o/s 21/23 No Yes 1 overrun area _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do Nothing Do Nothing _

Spencer Road o/s 60 Yes Yes 5 chicanes and 1 overrun area _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 1 _ _ 1 _ Do Nothing Do Nothing _

Commonside East o/s 171 No No traffic management _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do Nothing Do Nothing _

Acacia Road o/s 41/43 Yes No 3 road humps and 1 entry treatment _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do Nothing Do Nothing _

Cedars Avenue o/s 7 No Yes None _ _ _ _ _ 1 _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do Nothing Do Nothing _

Tamworth Lane o/s 75 Yes No 3 road buildouts and speed cushions. _ _ _ _ 1 1 _ 1 _ _ _ 1 1 2 _ 4 6 2
72% of collisions within the area occurred on this road. Review the existing traffic calming
measures.

Review the traffic calming
measures in this road OR change
the speed cushions to sinusoidal
road humps.

TBC

4 0 0 0 0 1 2 0 1 11 0 0 0 1 1 3 0 6 7 4

% 0 0 0 0 25 50 0 25 % 0 0 0 9.1 9.1 27.3 0.0 54.5 63.6 36.4

Chestnut Grove o/s 69 Yes No 8 road hunps _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Consider traffic calming this road Trafficcalming measures. £0.0

Carisbrooke Road o/s 53 No No None _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 1 _ _ _ 1 _ Install 3 no. junction speed table and 4 no. sinusoidal road humps.
4 no. sinusoidal road humps, and 3
no. junction speed tables.

£57.0

South Lodge Avenue
adj to 2 Lancaster
Gds

Yes Yes
5 traffic island with speed cushions, 2 raised junctions and
1 entry treatment

1 _ _ _ 4 _ _ 2 _ _ _ _ 1 _ 1 3 5 _
Approximately 71% of collisions in the area occurred in this road and all at road junctions. With
approximately 85% of drivers travelling above 20mph and 47% travelling above 47mph, the traffic
calming measures must be reviewed to ensure drivers comply to the speed limit on this road.

Traffic calming measures review. TBC

Yorkshire Road o/s 47 Yes No 2 junction tables and 1 speed table _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
Although there are no collisions in this road, the junctions speed tables are not effective at reducing
driver speeds.

Consider traffic calming measures TBC

Lancaster Avenue o/s 56 Yes No 3 junction table and 1 speed table _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Consider traffic calming measures. Consider traffic calming measures TBC

Middlesex Road o/s 10 Yes No 1 speed table _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Consider traffic calming measures. Consider traffic calming measures TBC

Radnor Close o/s 20 No No None _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Consider traffic calming measures. Consider traffic calming measures TBC

Galpins Road o/s 274 No No None Consider traffic calming measures. Consider traffic calming measures TBC

Galpins Road o/s 196 No No None 0 0 £0.0

Tavistock Crescent o/s 105 No No None _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Consider traffic calming measures. Consider traffic calming measures TBC

Conway Gardens o/s 14 No No None _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Consider traffic calming measures. Consider traffic calming measures TBC

Berkshire Way adj 49 Yorkshire Rd Yes No 1 raised junction _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Consider traffic calming measures. Consider traffic calming measures TBC

Westmorland Way o/s 12 No No None _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Consider traffic calming measures. Consider traffic calming measures TBC

Northumberland Gardens o/s 14 No No None _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Consider traffic calming measures. Consider traffic calming measures TBC

8 1 0 0 0 4 0 0 3 7 0 0 0 0 2 0 2 3 6 1

% 12.5 0 0 0 50 0 0 37.5 % 0 0 0 0 28.6 0 28.6 42.9 85.7 14.3

Total Volume of vehicles within the Zone

_

Majority of the collisions in the area occurred at the junctions. 27% of the collisions in the

area involving pedal cycles. Review the traffic calming measures in the are to reduce the

number of collision involving pedal cycles.

Review the traffic calming

measures in this road OR

change the speed cushions to

sinusoidal road humps.

_ _ _

4 11
Eastfields

area 20mph
Zone

Hillside / 
Raynes

Park

£0.0

Pollards Hill
area 20mph
Speed limit

Pollards Hill

_ _ _

7

_ _ _ _ _ 1

Total Volume of vehicles within the Zone

_ _ _ 11

8

85% of the collisions occurred at junctions, the layout of the junctions must be reviewed.

Consider traffic calming

measures in some roads within

the area.

TBC

11

P
age 231



Ped P/C M/C Veh Ped P/C M/C Veh Ped P/C M/C Veh Ped P/C M/C Veh Junction
Between

junctions

Overall comments Proposed Measures CostAccidents

Before 20mph implementation _ 3 years collisions within the

20mph area
Current 3 years collisions upto 2014 within the 20mph area

Serious Slight

Overall

Collision

Serious Slight

Location of current 3

year (upto

2014)collisions

K (000)

Before 20mph

Introduction

During 20mph

Introduction

Current traffic calming measures (after 20mph

introduction)

Overall

Collisions

Scheme

Traffic Calmed

Survey Location

(2014)
RoadWard

Commonside East LC 14 _ Bridge Yes Yes

Commonside East OS 243 Yes Yes

Tamworth Park o/s 22 No No Gated closure _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do Nothing Do nothing _

Tamworth Lane OS 329 Yes Yes

Tamworth Lane o/s 275 Yes Yes

St Georges Road o/s 26 None _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do Nothing Do nothing _

Pentland Close
adj. 253

Commonside East
No Yes Raised entry _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do Nothing Do nothing _

Cambridge Road o/s 17 No No None _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do Nothing Do nothing _

7 1 0 0 1 2 1 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 6 5 2

% 14.3 0 0 14.3 28.6 14.3 0 28.6 % 0 0 0 0 50.0 0 0 300.0 250.0 100.0

Ashcombe Road before Bridge Yes No

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing Do nothing _

Ashcombe Road 33/35 Yes No

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing Do nothing _

Cromwell Road o/s 30 Yes No

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing Do nothing _

Cromwell Road o/s 90 Yes No

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing Do nothing _

Avondale Road o/s 4 Yes No

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing Do nothing _

Avondale Road o/s 17 Yes No

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing Do nothing _

Haydon Park Road o/s113 Yes No

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing Do nothing _

Haydon Park Road o/s43 Yes No

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Do nothing Do nothing _

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Review the existing traffic calming
measures OR change the speed
cushions to sinusoidal road humps.

TBC

Majority of the collisions were on this road. Although there was no decrease in the nmber of
collisions, there was a decrease in the severity. The worse location was at its junction with Cedars
Avenue. The traffic calming measures (speed cushions) are not effcetive at reducing traffic
speeds.

Review the traffic calming
measures in this road.

TBC3_ _ _ 1 _ _ 3_

_ _ 1_ _ _ __

1

Pollards Hill

2 1 _ 1

Commonside
East area
20mph zone

_ _ 1
8 sets of speed cushions, 1 raised junction, 2 speed

tables ane 2 vehicle activated signs

78 sets of speed cushions and buildouts
The post collisions on this road were all vehicle to vehicle collisions, as the speed cushions does
not reduce vehicle speeds.

There was a 60% decrease in the number of pedestrian collisions. The junction of

Commonside East / Cedars Avenue was the location of the majority of collisions in this

area. Although the traffic signal phasing has been altered to accommodate a pedestrian

crossing stage, which has reduced the pedestrian collisions, the vehicle to vehicle

collisions has increase at this junction. The traffic signal timing to be altered to allow

enough inter green period between the stages.

2 1

1

_ _ _

Review the existing traffic

calming measures
£0.0

Total Volume of vehicles within the Zone

Cromwell
Road area
20mph zone

Trinity

2 raised junctions, 1 speed table and 1 entry treatment _
Within a CPZ with parking on both sides of the road.
Carriageway narrow

0 0

7 round top road humps and 1 entry treatment _ Within a
CPZ with parking on both sides of the road. Carriageway
narrow

4 round top road humps and 1 entry treatment _ Within a
CPZ with parking on both sides of the road. Carriageway
narrow

7 round top road humps and 1 entry treatment _ Within a
CPZ with parking on both sides of the road. Carriageway
narrow

Do nothing Do nothing £0.0

Total Volume of vehicles within the Zone

3_ _ _ _

12

P
age 232



Agenda Item 9

Page 233



Page 234



Page 235



Page 236



Page 237



Page 238



Page 239



Page 240



Page 241



Page 242



Page 243



Page 244



Page 245



Page 246



Page 247



Page 248



Page 249



Page 250



Page 251



Page 252



Page 253



Page 254



Page 255



Page 256



Page 257



Page 258



Page 259



Page 260



P
age 261



P
age 262



P
age 263



P
age 264



P
age 265



P
age 266



P
age 267



P
age 268



P
age 269



P
age 270



P
age 271



P
age 272



P
age 273



P
age 274



P
age 275



P
age 276



P
age 277



P
age 278



P
age 279



P
age 280



P
age 281



P
age 282



P
age 283



P
age 284



P
age 285



P
age 286



P
age 287



P
age 288



P
age 289



P
age 290



P
age 291



P
age 292



P
age 293



P
age 294



P
age 295



P
age 296



Page 297



Page 298



P
age 299



P
age 300



P
age 301



P
age 302



P
age 303



P
age 304



Page 305



Page 306



P
age 307



P
age 308



P
age 309



P
age 310



P
age 311



P
age 312



P
age 313



P
age 314



P
age 315



P
age 316



Page 317



Page 318



P
age 319



P
age 320



P
age 321



P
age 322



P
age 323



P
age 324



P
age 325



P
age 326



P
age 327



P
age 328



P
age 329



P
age 330



P
age 331



P
age 332



Page 333



Page 334



P
age 335



P
age 336



P
age 337



P
age 338



P
age 339



P
age 340



P
age 341



P
age 342



P
age 343



P
age 344



P
age 345



P
age 346



P
age 347



P
age 348



P
age 349



P
age 350



P
age 351



P
age 352



P
age 353



P
age 354



P
age 355



P
age 356



P
age 357



P
age 358



P
age 359



P
age 360



P
age 361



P
age 362



Page 363



P
age 364



P
age 365



P
age 366



P
age 367



P
age 368



P
age 369



P
age 370



Value Target Status
Long 

Trend

Short 

Trend

CRP 045 / SP 118 Income (Development and Building Control) 171,898 146,666 901,166 963,330

CRP 046 / SP 023 Maintain level of Capital receipts to support the financial strategy 

(excluding Merton Priory Homes)
£0.4m £1.5m

CRP 050 Volume of planning applications 214 161 1,236 966

CRP 051 / SP 114 % Major applications processed within 13 weeks 100% 62% 53.85% 62%

CRP 052 / SP 115 % of minor planning applications determined within 8 weeks 53.85% 65% 61.01% 65%

CRP 053 / SP 116 % of 'other' planning applications determined within 8 weeks 

(Development Control)
80.21% 82% 85.01% 82%

SP 015 Income generated - Merton Active Plus activity £928 £2,120 £34,223 £34,080

SP 024 % Vacancy rate of property owned by the council 0.80% 4%

SP 025 % Debt owed to LBM by tenants inc businesses 8.10% 9%

SP 028 Total LBM cemeteries income £22,044 £30,000 £219,751 £173,000

SP 029 Total outdoor events income £2,023 £30,000 £247,255 £194,000

SP 032 Number of Green Flags (annual) 5 5

SP 040 % Market share retained by LA (Building Control) 59.62% 75% 61.80% 75%

SP 113 Number of enforcement cases closed 150

SP 117 % appeals lost (Development & Building Control) 25% 35%

SP 250 Income from Morden Assembly Hall £1,320 £3,300 £27,602 £19,800

SP 251 Income from Watersports Centre £13,365 £9,350 £316,810 £315,780

SP 257 % Town centre vacancy rates 5.68% 10%

SP 260 % Streetworks inspections completed 28.25% 35%

SP 314 External funding and internal investment £ £164,390 £165,000

SP 318 Number of outdoor events in parks 21 7 131 112

SP 327 % to Emergency callouts within 2 hours (traffic & highways) 100% 100% 100% 100%

SP 328 % Streetworks permitting determined 99.50% 98% 98.75% 98%

PI code and description

Sep-14

YTD result

Annual 

YTD 

Target

ITEM 10 - Sustainable Communities

September dashboard 2014

Quarter 2 performance

Annual measure (result received)

Unable to measure

Quarter 2 performance

Quarter 2 performance

Quarter 2 performance

Current 

YTD 

status

Quarter 2 performance

Quarter 2 performance

Quarter 2 performance

A
genda Item

 10

P
age 371



Value Target Status
Long 

Trend

Short 

Trend

SP 349 14 to 25 year old fitness centre participation at leisure centres 8,628 7,600 52,958 54,100

SP 350 Percentage of jobs completed where no Fixed Penalty Notice issued 94.50% 98% 93.58% 98%

SP 379 % enforcement site visits within 14 days
Unable to 

measure

SP 391 Average number of days taken to repair an out of light street light 2.11 3

PI code and description YTD result

Annual 

YTD 

Target

Quarter 2 performance

Quarter 2 performance

Sep-14 Current 

YTD 

status

P
age 372



 

Committee:  Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel 

Date:  11 November 2014 
Wards:  All  

Subject:  Appointment of co-opted members to Sustainable Communities 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel 

Lead officer:  Rebecca Redman, Scrutiny Officer 

Lead member:  Cllr Russell Makin, Chair of the Sustainable Communities Overview and 
Scrutiny Panel 

Contact officer: Rebecca Redman. Rebecca.redman@merton.gov.uk 020 8545 4035 

Recommendations:  

That the Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel consider the 
appointment of non-voting co-opted members to its membership.   

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 The Commission, at its meeting on 8 July 2014, heard that the Healthier Communities 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel had agreed to adopt a new approach to co-option. The 
Commission therefore asked the Head of Democracy Services to find out what the 
Healthier Communities Panel had decided to do, to look at good practice in other 
authorities and to report back to the Commission with a proposal.  

1.2 At the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Commission on 7 October 2014, the 
scrutiny team proposed a more formal approach towards the appointment of non-
voting co-opted members so that each Panel identifies the area of expertise that is 
required and then recruits accordingly for a time-limited period to support delivery of 
its work programme. 

1.3 This report sets out proposals for the recruitment and support of non-voting co-opted 
scrutiny members and asks the Panel to give consideration to co-opting new 
members to the Panel and/or task group. 

2. BACKGROUND  

  

2.1 Co-opted members can provide scrutiny committees or task groups with outside 
knowledge, experience and skills that can inform the work of scrutiny and 
complement the role of councillors. Co-opted members can be particularly helpful in 
representing community perspectives, contributing a wider perspective and 
encouraging public engagement. 

2.2 Panels and task groups may also call upon expert witnesses to present information 
and ask/answer questions for particular agenda items or meetings – this may be a 
more effective use of that person’s time when the panel or task group has a wide 
remit. 

Agenda Item 11

Page 373



 

2.3 The Healthier Communities and Older People Overview and Scrutiny Panel, at its 
meeting on 3 September 2014, agreed to adopt a clear and transparent process by 
which it would advertise co-option opportunities to local residents and community 
organisations and develop a role description and set criteria against which applicants 
would be assessed. It also agreed that the Chair and Vice Chair would shortlist 
applicants and invite them to an interview to discuss the role. 

2.4 A small number of other councils have formalised their approach to the appointment 
and support of non-voting co-opted members. Although there are variations in the 
detail, all have identified the skills and expertise that is sought and all require the co-
opted member to sign up to the councillors’ code of conduct and to complete the 
declaration of pecuniary interests form. An appointment process, similar to that 
envisaged by the Healthier Communities Panel, has been adopted. Some form of 
training and support is provided. Travel and subsistence expenses are usually 
reimbursed. 

3. PROPOSALS 

3.1 It is proposed that the Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel agree 
this approach to the appointment of non-voting co-opted members whereby the Panel 
should determine how many co-opted members would be appropriate for that Panel, 
the length of the appointment and what the required skills and expertise would be. 
Appointments should be made in line with the following principles agreed by the 
Commission: 

Advertisement 

3.2 The role must be widely advertised. This should include the Council’s website, Merton 
Voluntary Service Council e-bulletin plus emails to local community organisations and 
resident associations. 

3.3 Co-opted members may represent a local organisation or be interested individuals or 
experts in a particular field. 

3.4 Role description 

3.5       A role description has been drawn up and can be made available to applicants. 
Appendix 1 contains the role description and person specification that will be used by 
the Healthier Communities Panel. It is suggested that other Panels and the 
Commission could draw upon this as a basis for their own use. 

3.6 The person specification should include these core essential requirements: 

• To have a working knowledge and/or experience in one or more of the following 
areas, in line with the remit of the Sustainable Communities Overview and 
Scrutiny Panel: 

o housing, including housing need, affordable housing and private sector 
housing; 

o environmental sustainability, including energy, waste management, parks & 
open spaces and the built environment; 

o culture, including tourism, museums, arts, sports & leisure; 
o enterprise and skills, including regeneration, employment, adult education & 

libraries; and  
o transport 

 

• To be a good communicator and to be able to contribute constructively to 
discussions 

Page 374



 

• To have the ability to understand complex issues 

• To have a genuine interest in the work of local government 

• To demonstrate commitment to equalities and the positive development of all 
Communities in Merton. 

• To sign up to the code of conduct and complete the declaration of pecuniary 
interest form 

• To be available to attend evening meetings at the Civic Centre 

•  To live or work in the borough 

 

3.7 Selection 

3.8 Applicants should be shortlisted against the criteria set out in the role description. 

3.9 Shortlisted applicants should be invited to an informal 20 minute interview with the 
relevant Chair, Vice Chair and scrutiny officer. 

3.10 The appointment should be made for a fixed period. The Commission recommends 
making an appointment for two years, with the ability to re-appoint for a further two 
years. The Commission also recommends that no co-opted member should serve for 
more than four years in total. 

3.11 If appropriate, the appointment may be made to a specific task group or an invitation 
made to join discussion at a specific Panel meeting(s) instead of a longer term 
appointment. 

3.12 The co-opted member may terminate their membership by giving one month’s notice 
in writing to the Chair or scrutiny officer. 

3.13 Support  

3.14 Co-opted members should attend an induction briefing with the scrutiny officer prior to 
attending the first panel or task group meeting. 

3.15 Co-opted members should be invited to join any training that is provided to scrutiny 
councillors. 

3.16 Non-voting co-opted members will not be paid an allowance but travel and any 
reasonable subsistence expenses that are incurred whilst fulfilling duties as a co-
opted member will be reimbursed. 

4. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

4.1 The Panel can choose not to appoint non-voting co-opted members or to postpone 
advertising for non voting co-opted members until a time when there is a specific 
agenda item or task group review that they wish to seek expertise on.   

5. CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN OR PROPOSED 

5.1 None for the purposes of this report. 

6. FINANCIAL, RESOURCE AND PROPERTY IMPLICATIONS 

6.1 The cost of recruitment and support of co-opted members would be met within 
existing budgets. 

Page 375



 

7. LEGAL AND STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 The Local Government Act 2000 provides for the formal co-option of a person onto a 
committee to occupy a non-voting position.  

8. HUMAN RIGHTS, EQUALITIES AND COMMUNITY COHESION IMPLICATIONS 

8.1 It is a fundamental aim of the scrutiny process to ensure that there is full and equal 
access to the democratic process through public involvement and engagement. The 
proposed approach for a widely advertised and clear process will enable local 
residents and community and voluntary sector groups to apply for these positions and 
to engage with scrutiny. 

9. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 The Police and Justice Act 2006 allows crime and disorder committees (the 
Commission has this role in Merton) to co-opt additional members with particular 
expertise in crime and disorder issues. Co-optees must be employees, officers or 
members of one of the responsible authorities. Cabinet Members may not be co-
opted.     

10. RISK MANAGEMENT AND HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

10.1 There are none specific to this report.   

11. APPENDICES – THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTS ARE TO BE PUBLISHED WITH 

THIS REPORT AND FORM PART OF THE REPORT 

11.1 Appendix 1 –role description and person specification for appointment of non-voting 
co-opted persons to the Healthier Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel 

12. BACKGROUND PAPERS  

12.1 None  

Page 376



 

                                                         Appendix 1 

Role Description  
 
Position: Voluntary Co-opted Scrutiny Member 
 
Scrutiny Panel: Healthier Communities and Older People Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
 
Background information 
 
Are you interested in improving local public services? 
 
Are you able to investigate issues in-depth; work in a non-party political way; focus on the needs 
of the whole borough and not just those of where you live or the group that you identify with, 
and give up your time to attend and actively participate in meetings? 
 
If the answer is yes, then volunteering as a co-opted member could be for you. The Council 
currently has vacancies for non-statutory, voluntary co-opted scrutiny 
Members to serve on the Healthier Communities and Older People Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel. 
 
The role of the scrutiny panel is to scrutinise the effectiveness of services and to make 
recommendations for improvement. The Health Scrutiny Panel also has a wider role in looking 
at the services of local health providers such as the Clinical Commissioning Group and Acute 
Trust.   
 
Scrutiny Committees do not make decisions on spending or policy – this is a function of the 
Cabinet and the full Council and, in the case of services provided by external health 
organisations, NHS Boards. Neither can Scrutiny Committees, by law, investigate individual 
complaints against the Council or other public bodies. 
 
A Scrutiny Co-opted Member’s Role 
 
As a scrutiny panel co-opted member, you will work with elected councillors from all parties on 
the Health Scrutiny Panel and will be expected to use your relevant skills and knowledge to add 
to the discussion and debate. 
You may also be invited to join a task group to look at a particular issue or service in greater 
depth, where you have relevant knowledge or expertise. 
 
Time Commitment 
Co-opted members will be expected to attend Health Scrutiny Committee meetings 
(approximately 6 times a year but this may vary) which are held from 7.15pm in the 
evening at the civic centre and last, on average, around 2 hours. You will need to allow some 
time before the meeting to read and consider reports and to attend any additional member 
development meetings or site visits. 
 
 
Terms of Appointment 
For continuity, Co-opted Members on the health scrutiny panel will be appointed to serve until 
May 2018, subject to annual review by the Committee and annual approval of nominations by 
full Council, after which time appointments will automatically cease and vacancies will be re-
advertised. However, if vacancies occur during this time they may be dealt with immediately. 
Co-optees will also be required to comply with any conditions that are attached to the position. 

Page 377



 

Where there is a breach of conditions, co-option will cease following consideration by the Head 
of Democracy Services and the Monitoring Officer. 
 
Training 
You will be given the opportunity to learn about how aspects of council services are 
delivered and to take part in scrutiny training sessions or site visits and dates will be provided as 
and when they become available. 
 
Application 
You will need to complete an application form and this should be supported by a reference. 
 
 Conditions of appointment 
 
All applications will be evaluated against the competencies stated above. 
 
The total number of non-statutory Co-opted Members to the above Committee will not exceed 
the required number (three as at June 2014). Where the number of applications exceeds this 
number, the most appropriate representatives will be selected. 
 
Co-opted Members will be entitled to claim travelling or other reasonable   expenses. 
A candidate for appointment must disclose any relationship to a Councillor or to any member of 
staff. 
 
Successful applicants will be expected to observe the Code of Conduct for 
Members, as set out in the Council’s Constitution which covers, among other 
matters, treating others with respect, not disclosing confidential information and 
disclosing relevant personal interests. The Code of Conduct can be found in the Merton 
constitution which is on the website or at the following link:  
 
http://democracy.merton.gov.uk/documents/s2597/Part%205A.pdf 
 
The deadline for applications is Friday 31st October 2014 and should be either 
emailed or posted to: 
 
Email: scrutiny@merton.gov.uk 

 

Post: London Borough of Merton, Democracy Services, London Road, Morden SM4 5DX 

Page 378



 

Healthier Communities and Older People Overview and Scrutiny Panel – Appointment of 
a co-opted member 

Person specification 

Qualifications: 

No formal qualifications  are required 

Essential: 

Be able to contribute to the work of the Scrutiny Panel as a whole in terms 
of debate, local knowledge and insight into issues of local concern. 
 
Have a working knowledge and/or experience of one or more of the following 
areas: 

• Health 

• Voluntary Sector 

• Adult Social Care 

• Issues facing older people in Merton 
 
Be committed to equalities and the positive development of all Communities in 
Merton. 
 
To be a good communicator and to be able to contribute constructively to 
discussions 
 
Have an understanding of local government. 
 
Be available to attend evening meetings in the civic centre 
 
Live or work in the borough 
 
To build positive relationships with other panel members, councillors, partner 
organisations and officers in the council.   
 
To sign up to the councils code of conduct and complete the declaration of 
pecuniary interest form. 

Desirable 

Experience of working in committee structure in the public, private or voluntary 
sector. 
 
Understanding of the work of locally elected councillors 
 
Be able to offer relevant specialist skills or knowledge relevant to the work of the 
Scrutiny committee. 
 

Other requirements: 

Must not be disqualified from standing for election as a councillor, i.e. been 
adjudged bankrupt or been sentenced to a term of imprisonment for a period of 
not less than three months in the past five years. 

 

Page 379



Page 380

This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

 

Sustainable Communities Work Programme 2014/15  

 
This table sets out the Sustainable Communities Panel Work Programme for 2014/15; the items listed were agreed by the Panel at its 
meeting on 24th June 2014. This Work Programme will be considered at every meeting of the Panel to enable it to respond to issues of 
concern and incorporate reviews or to comment upon pre-decision items ahead of their consideration by Cabinet/Council. 

 
The work programme table shows items on a meeting-by-meeting basis, identifying the issue under review, the nature of the scrutiny (pre 
decision, policy development, issue specific, performance monitoring, partnership related) and the intended outcomes. 

 
The Sustainable Communities Panel has specific responsibilities regarding Budget and Business Plan Scrutiny and Performance Monitoring 
for which Lead Members are appointed: 

 
The Performance Monitoring Lead for 2014/15 is Councillor              
The Budget and Business Plan Lead for 2014/15 is Councillor  

 
The Task Group Review for the 2014/15 work programme is Housing Supply. 

Scrutiny Support 

For further information on the work programme of the Sustainable Communities Scrutiny Panel please contact: - 
Rebecca Redman, Scrutiny Officer) 
Tel: 020 8545 4035; Email: rebecca.redman@merton.gov.uk 

 

For more information about overview and scrutiny at LB Merton, please visit www.merton.gov.uk/scrutiny 

 

A
genda Item

 12

P
age 381



 2 

 

Meeting date –16th September 2014 

Scrutiny Category Item/issue How Lead 
member/lead 
officer 

Intended outcomes 

Pre decision scrutiny Inward Investment 
Strategy 

 

Report Chris 
Lee/James 
McGinlay 

To comment on the councils draft inward 
investment strategy and make any 
recommendations to Cabinet. 

Scrutiny Review Economic 
Development Strategy 

Report Chris 
Lee/James 
McGinlay 

To receive a progress update on delivery 
of the councils economic development 
strategy.  

Scrutiny Review Climate Change and 
Green Deal Task 
Group 

Executive 
Response 
and Action 
Plan 

Chris Lee To provide a response and associated 
action plan from the Cabinet Member for 
Environmental Sustainability and 
Regeneration on how the task groups 
recommendations will be taken forward.   

Response Attendance at Youth 
Parliament meeting 
15th September 2014 

Presentation Panel 
Members 

Panel members to attend the next 
scheduled meeting of the Youth 
Parliament on 15th September to provide a 
response on their topic suggestions and 
the panels work programme and 
opportunities to get involved. 

Performance 
Monitoring 

Performance 
Reporting(including 
focus on waste 
management and 
street scene) 

Verbal 
Report 

Cllr  To highlight to the Panel any items for 
concern where under performance is 
evident and to make any 
recommendations or request information 
as necessary 

 
Meeting date – 29th September 2014 
Special meeting of the Panel – Circle Merton Priory Homes 

 

Scrutiny Category Item/issue How Lead member/lead 
officer 

Intended outcomes 

P
age 382



 3 

Performance 
Monitoring 

Monitoring of stock 
transfer to Merton 
Priory Homes 
(including street 
cleaning 
strategy/estate 
maintenance) 

Report/Presentation Steve Langley To receive an update 
from MPH on delivery 
of the commitments 
within the housing 
stock transfer 
agreement.  

Scrutiny Review Update on 
Regeneration 
Proposals – CHMP 

Report Steve Langley To provide members 
with a briefing on the 
outcomes of councils 
consideration of the 
regeneration proposals 
from CHMP and to 
identify any 
opportunities for 
further scrutiny by the 
Panel.  

 

P
age 383



 4 

Meeting date –11th November 2014 
 

Scrutiny Category Item/issue How Lead 
member/lead 
officer 

Intended outcomes 

Pre decision scrutiny Budget/Business Plan Report Chris 
Lee/Simon 
Williams/Caro
line Holland 

To comment on the councils budget 
proposals at phase 1.  

Pre decision scrutiny 20 Mph zones/road 
safety 

 

 

Report Chris Lee To comment on the findings of the research 
undertaken by the E&R department on 
20mph zones and make any 
recommendations on associated proposals 
for 20mph zones/limits in the borough.  

Scrutiny Review Morden Leisure 
Centre 

Report Chris Parsloe To provide an update to the Panel on the 
development of Morden leisure Centre.  

Scrutiny Review Co-option Report Rebecca 
Redman 

To discuss the possibility of co-opting 
members onto the Panel and task group.  

Performance 
Monitoring 

Adult Skills and 
Employability Task 
Group – Progress on 
implementation of 
action plan 

Report James 
McGinlay/Yvo
nne Tomlin 

Cllr Holmes 
(Member 
Champion) 

To performance monitor delivery of the 
action plan resulting from the task groups 
review of adult skills and employability. 

P
age 384



 5 

Information item Community Toilet 
Scheme 

Briefing 
note via 
email 

Chris Lee To provide members with information on the 
community toilet scheme and performance 
to date to determine if any further scrutiny is 
to be undertaken in this area.  

Performance 
Monitoring 

Performance 
Reporting(including 
focus on waste 
management and 
street scene) 

Verbal 
Report 

Cllr  To highlight to the Panel any items for 
concern where under performance is 
evident and to make any recommendations 
or request information as necessary 

 
 

Meeting date – 8th January 2015 

Scrutiny Category Item/issue How Lead member/lead 
officer 

Intended outcomes 

Pre decision scrutiny Budget and business 
plan scrutiny 

Report Chris Lee/Simon 
Williams/Caroline 
Holland 

To comment on the 
budget and business 
plan proposals at 
phase 2 and make any 
recommendations to 
the Commission to 
consider and 
coordinate a response 
to Cabinet.  

Scrutiny Review Libraries/Arts/Green 
Spaces 

Presentation by 
Cabinet Member 

Cllr Nick Draper To provide an 
overview on 
developments within 
the portfolio of 
Community and 
Culture by the Cabinet 
Member.  

P
age 385



 6 

Scrutiny Review Housing Supply Task 
Group – Scoping and 
Progress Report 

Scoping Report Rebecca Redman To agree the scope for 
the agreed task group 
review of housing 
supply by the Panel.  

Performance 
Monitoring 

Performance 
Reporting (including 
focus on waste 
management and 
street scene) 

Verbal Report Cllr  To highlight to the 
Panel any items for 
concern where under 
performance is evident 
and to make any 
recommendations or 
request information as 
necessary 

Work Programme 
2014/15 

Draft work programme Schedule Rebecca Redman To identify any items 
for inclusion in the 
work programme or 
any necessary 
amendments to the 
schedule 

 

P
age 386



 7 

Meeting date –25th February 2015 

Scrutiny Category Item/issue How Lead member/lead 
officer 

Intended outcomes 

Performance 
monitoring 

Town Centre Parking 
and Parking at 
Neighbourhood 
Shopping Parades – 
Action Plans 

Report Paul Walshe To enable members to 
undertake 
performance 
monitoring of delivery 
of the councils action 
plans on parking in 
town centres and at 
neighbourhood 
shopping parades.  

Performance 
Monitoring 

Town Centre 
Regeneration 

Presentation James McGinlay To provide a progress 
update on delivery of 
the councils town 
centre regeneration 
programme. 

Performance 
Monitoring 

Climate Change and 
Green Deal Task 
Group – Action Plan 

Report James McGinlay To enable Members to 
undertake 
performance 
monitoring of the 
delivery of the action 
plan resulting from 
their task group review 
of Climate Change and 
the Green Deal 

Pre decision scrutiny Cycling Provision 

 

Report Chris Lee To make comments on 
the department’s 
proposals for 
improvements to 
cycling provision in the 
borough linked to the 
earlier mini Holland 
bid.  

P
age 387



 8 

Performance 
Monitoring 

Performance 
Reporting(including 
focus on waste 
management and 
street scene) 

Verbal Report Cllr  To highlight to the 
Panel any items for 
concern where under 
performance is evident 
and to make any 
recommendations or 
request information as 
necessary 

 

P
age 388



 9 

Meeting date –18th March 2015 

Scrutiny Category Item/issue How Lead 
member/ lead 
officer 

Intended outcomes 

Scrutiny Review Street Lighting Report Chris Lee To provide a briefing to members on 
the councils approach to street 
lighting and possible technology that 
could be used, including the position 
of the councils street lighting 
contract. 

Scrutiny Review Parking and 
congestion outside 
schools 

Report Paul Walshe To provide a briefing on measures 
and enforcement outside schools to 
enable the Panel to make any 
recommendations for improvement.  

Scrutiny Review Outlets in town 
centres (e.g., Betting 
Shops, Hairdressers, 
Fast Food) (licensing) 

 

Report Chris Lee To consider the rights that the 
council has to discourage an 
increase in these types of outlets in 
town centres where not of benefit to 
residents or a negative impact is 
anticipated.   

Performance 
Monitoring 

Performance of Circle 
Housing Merton 
Priory – Update 

Report/Presentation CHMP To provide an update on progress 
following the special meeting of the 
Panel on 29th September 2014. 

Performance 
Monitoring 

Performance 
Reporting(including 
focus on waste 
management and 
street scene) 

Verbal Report Cllr  To highlight to the Panel any items 
for concern where under 
performance is evident and to make 
any recommendations or request 
information as necessary 

P
age 389



 10 

Scrutiny Review Topic Suggestions 
2014/15 

Report Rebecca 
Redman 

To seek topic suggestions from the 
Panel to inform discussions about 
the Panels 2014/15 work 
programme.  

 

 

 

P
age 390


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 16th September 2014
	4 Minutes of the special meeting held on 29th September 2014
	Appendix 1 - Presentations

	6 Adult Skills and Employability Task Group - Progress Update
	Adult Skills and Employability Task Group - Progress Update Appendix 1
	Adult Skills and Employability Task Group - Progress Update Appendix 2

	7 Morden Leisure Centre - Update
	Morden Leisure Centre - Update Appendix A
	Morden Leisure Centre - Update Appendix 1 to Cabinet report (Project Scope)
	Morden Leisure Centre - Update Appendix 2 to cabinet report (sites map)
	Morden Leisure Centre - Update Appendix 3 to cabinet report (sites review)

	8 20 Mph Zones and limits
	20 Mph Zones and Road Safety Appendix 1
	20 Mph Zones and Road Safety Appendix 2
	20 Mph Zones and Road Safety Appendix 3
	20 Mph Zones and Road Safety Appendix 4a
	20 Mph Zones and Road Safety Appendix 4b
	20 Mph Zones and Road Safety Appendix 4c

	9 Business Plan Update 2015-2019 (appendix to follow)
	10 Performance Monitoring - Verbal Update
	11 Co-option
	12 Work Programme 2014/15

